Central

Central Bedfordshire i . BedfordShire
Council This meeting
riory House i
Chickeands. may be filmed.*
Shefford SG17 5TQ

please ask for Leslie Manning
direct line 0300 300 5132
date 14 September 2017

NOTICE OF MEETING

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Date & Time
Wednesday, 27 September 2017 10.00 a.m.

Venue at

Room 15, Priory House, Monks Walk, Shefford

Richard Carr
Chief Executive

To:  The Chairman and Members of the AUDIT COMMITTEE:
Clirs M C Blair (Chairman), D J Lawrence (Vice-Chairman), D Bowater,
P Downing, R Morris, D Shelvey and A Zerny
[Named Substitutes:

Clirs R D Berry, Mrs J G Lawrence, | Shingler and N Warren]

All other Members of the Council - on request

MEMBERS OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC ARE WELCOME TO ATTEND THIS
MEETING



*Please note that phones and other equipment may be
used to film, audio record, tweet or blog from this
meeting. No part of the meeting room is exempt from
public filming.

The use of arising images or recordings is not under
the Council’s control.



AGENDA

1. Apologies for Absence
To receive apologies for absence and notification of substitute Members.
2. Minutes

To approve as a correct record the minutes of the meeting of the Audit
Committee held on 29 June 2017 (copy attached).

3. Members' Interests
To receive from Members any declarations of interest.
4. Chairman's Announcements and Communications

To receive any announcements from the Chairman and any matters of
communication.

5. Petitions

To receive petitions from members of the public in accordance with the Public
Participation Procedure as set out in Annex 2 of Part 4G of the Constitution.

6. Questions, Statements or Deputations
To receive any questions, statements or deputations from members of the

public in accordance with the Public Participation Procedure as set out in
Annex 1 of Part 4G of the Constitution.

Reports

Item Subject Page Nos.
7. External Audit Results Report 2016/17 * 69-108

To consider a report from Ernst & Young LLP which sets
out the outcomes from the external audit of the Council’s
2016/17 financial statements and the conclusion of work to
review the Council’s arrangements for securing value for
money in the use of its resources. The report also sets out
Ernst and Young’s proposed audit opinion, key findings
and any recommendations to consider prior to the approval
of the 2016/17 accounts.



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

2016/17 Statement of Accounts

To present for approval the 2016/17 Statement of
Accounts for Central Bedfordshire Council and the letter of
representation to the external auditors.

Update on the General Data Protection Regulation

To consider an update on the General Data Protection

Regulation which becomes enforceable from 25 May 2018.

Annual Governance Statement 2016/17

To consider the proposed updates to the Annual
Governance Statement.

Risk Update Report

To consider an overview of the Council’s risk position as at
August 2017.

Internal Audit Progress Report

To consider an update on the progress of work by Internal
Audit for 2017/18.

Tracking of Internal Audit Recommendations

To consider a summary of high priority recommendations
arising from Internal Audit reports together with the
progress made in their implementation.

Work Programme

To consider the Audit Committee’s work programme.

109 - 266

267 - 276

277 - 308

309 - 320

321 - 328

329 - 336

337 - 340



Agenda ltem 2
Page 5

CENTRAL BEDFORDSHIRE COUNCIL
At a meeting of the AUDIT COMMITTEE held in Council Chamber, Priory House,
Monks Walk, Shefford on Thursday, 29 June 2017
PRESENT

Clir M C Blair (Chairman)
Clir D J Lawrence (Vice-Chairman)

Clirs D Bowater Clirs D Shelvey
R Morris A Zerny
Apologies for Absence: Clir P Downing
Substitutes: Clir ~ Mrs J G Lawrence (In place of P Downing)

Members in Attendance: Clirs Mrs C F Chapman MBE

P A Duckett
Officers in Attendance: Mr Q Baker AD Legal Services (Monitoring
Officer)
Mr D Galvin Head of Financial Performance
Mr R Gould Head of Financial Control
Mr C Horne Head of Internal Audit and Risk
Mrs J Luckman Fraud, Welfare & Partnerships
Manager, Revenues and Benefits
Mr L Manning Committee Services Officer
Mr G Muskett Head of Revenues & Benefits
Ms S Pocock Financial Controller
Mr C Warboys Director of Resources
Others in Attendance: Ms C Ryan Manager — Ernst & Young LLP

AUD/17/1. Minutes
RESOLVED

that the minutes of the meeting of the Audit Committee held on 3 April
2017 be confirmed and signed by the Chairman as a correct record.

AUD/17/2. Members' Interests

None.



AUD/M7/3.

AUD/17/4.

AUD/17/5.

AUD/17/6.

Agenda ltem 2

AUD - 29.06.1?age 6
Page 2

Chairman's Announcements and Communications

The following announcements and communications were made:

¢ this was the last meeting that Ralph Gould, Head of Financial Control,
would attend prior to his retirement. The Chairman, on behalf of the
Committee, thanked Mr Gould for his excellent guidance to Members
and wished him well. In response Mr Gould thanked the Committee for
its best wishes and expressed his pleasure at having worked at the
Council.

e At the Chairman’s request, and arising from Mr Gould’s forthcoming
retirement and the recent retirement of Kathy Riches, the former Head of
Internal Audit and Risk, the Director of Resources outlined the resulting
changes which had taken place at both individual and team level within
Finance and introduced those officers concerned who were present at
the meeting.

¢ all attendees were asked to silence their mobile telephones.

Petitions

No petitions were received from members of the public in accordance with the
Public Participation Procedure as set out in Annex 2 of Part A4 of the
Constitution.

Questions, Statements or Deputations

No questions, statements or deputations were received from members of the
public in accordance with the Public Participation Procedure as set out in
Annex 1 of Part A4 of the Constitution.

Central Bedfordshire Council Unaudited Statement of Accounts 2016/17

Members received a presentation on the unaudited Statement of Accounts for
2016/17. The presentation, entitled ‘Unaudited Statement of Accounts 2016/17
— Presentation to Members 29/6/2017’ was introduced in turn by the Assistant
Director of Finance, the Financial Controller and the Head of Financial Control.
A concluding summary was provided by the Director of Resources.

Paper copies of the presentation were circulated at the meeting. A copy of the
presentation is attached at Appendix A to these minutes.

In addition paper copies of the document entitled ‘Extracts from Unaudited
Statement of Accounts for the year 2016/17 - Presentation to Members
29/06/2017 — Core Statements and Note 31’ were also circulated at the
meeting. A copy of the document is attached at Appendix B to these minutes.

Points and comments included:



Agenda ltem 2

AUD - 29.06.1?age 7
Page 3

e the Director of Resources would sign off the draft Statement of Accounts
at the end of the meeting. The Council’s external auditors, Ernst &
Young LLP, would carry out the audit over the summer and the fully
audited Statement of Accounts would be submitted to the Audit
Committee on 27 September 2017 for approval.

e the statutory deadline for producing the draft Statement of Accounts was
currently 30 June. Following changes to the Accounts and Audit
Regulations this would be 31 May with effect from the 2017/18 draft
Statement (i.e. from 31 May 2018). Central Bedfordshire had used 2017
as a trial for the change and produced the draft Statement of Accounts
so that it was ready to sign on 8 June 2017. The experience gained
would enable a faster preparation process for 2018.

e new software for the production of the statement of accounts (commonly
known as the ‘Big Red Button’) had been developed by the Chartered
Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) and trialled by a
small number of Councils in 2016/17. Central Bedfordshire was in the
first tranche of councils to use it in closing its accounts. The Council had
provided a high level of input to the development of the product and had
influenced its reporting. Updates by CIPFA should take place later this
year for a wider rollout in 2017/18 and it was anticipated that this should
help speed up the production of the Statement of Accounts.

e various questions and points of clarification were raised by Members.
In conclusion the Chairman thanked the officers for their presentation.
NOTED

the presentation on the unaudited Statement of Accounts for 2016/17.

AUD/17/7. Annual Audit and Certification Fees 2017/18

The Committee received a letter from the Council’s external auditors, Ernst and
Young LLP, to the Chief Executive. The letter confirmed the audit and
certification work that the company proposed to undertake for the 2017/18
financial year and the related fees.

Points and comments included:

¢ An explanation by the Director of Resources of the current position
regarding the arrangements for the appointment of local auditors as from
2018/19. The Director stated that six different audit companies had
been appointed by the Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA) to
cover the national area. The largest company was Grant Thornton UK
LLP followed by Ernst and Young and then the remainder.



AUD/17/8.

AUD/17/9.

Agenda ltem 2

AUD - 29.06.1?age 8
Page 4

e |t had been suggested that, nationally, as a result of the changes to way
in which auditors were appointed, there would be an 18% reduction in
fees paid by local authorities.

NOTED

the 2017/18 annual audit and certification fees letter to the Chief
Executive from Ernst & Young LLP.

Annual Governance Statement 2016/17

Members considered a report by the Monitoring Officer which sought Members’
approval of the draft Annual Governance Statement for 2016/17. The
Committee noted that the Statement, a copy of which was attached at
Appendix A to the report, had adopted a new format in line with the guidance
issued by the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy
(CIPFA)/Solace in 2016.

Points and comments included:

e consideration was being given to revising the content of the Statement
so that future iterations would be more concise and include
assessments rather than be merely descriptive. Members noted that
there was no standard format that could be adopted for the Statement.

¢ the opinion that the draft Statement accurately reflected the governance
arrangements and the management of risk within the Council.

RESOLVED

that the draft Annual Governance Statement for 2016/17 be approved for
submission to the Leader and Chief Executive to be formally signed off.

Annual Counter Fraud Update

The Committee considered a report which provided an update on the work of
the Council’s Corporate Fraud Investigation Team (CFIT) for 2016/17 and
those areas which the CFIT intended to concentrate on over the coming twelve
months. The Committee noted that the work programme for the team was
jointly developed and delivered by the CFIT and Internal Audit.

Points and comments included:
e the real savings/income of £241,304 for 2016/17 arising from counter
fraud work compared with the total cost of the CFIT of £160k

demonstrated the value of the team.

e nationally, less than half (45.7%) of councils in England had a corporate
counter fraud team tackling non-benefit fraud. In London 93.5% of



Agenda ltem 2

AUD - 29.06.1?age 9
Page 5

councils had a corporate fraud team but only 37.4% of councils in the
rest of the country had such a team.

e the publication of the CFIT’s successes was subject to decisions by the
local media. The sanctions taken against those committing fraud were
often quite low and it was the threat of publicity which acted as a greater
deterrent.

e at a Member’s suggestion the Chairman undertook to contact the Local
Government Association and seek their publication of the Central
Bedfordshire Council’s success in its anti fraud work. The Chairman, on
behalf of the Committee, congratulated the CFIT for its successes.

o the possibility of increasing the level of savings by enlarging staffing
numbers in the CFIT. The Head of Revenues and Benefits advised that
there was limited scope to increase the team’s size. He acknowledged
that there were cases which required investigation and more referrals
were being made to the team, particularly by Housing.

e with regard to those persons who were entitled to benefits but didn’t
claim the meeting noted that Investigation Officers were therefore able
to offer guidance.

e an update on Blue Badge fraud, its possible extent and the number of
applications for a badge. The Fraud, Welfare and Partnerships Manager
stated that there was an element of education in the response to Blue
Badge misuse and no formal action was taken unless it was believed
that the misuse had been deliberate.

e care home fees and the obtaining of information from the Probate Office
to establish the estate size. The Head of Revenues and Benefits stated
that the information was not accessed automatically but only as part of
an investigation following allegations of hidden assets. Following a
query the Head of Revenues and Benefits undertook to establish how
another local authority was able to establish the estate size of one of its
residents.

NOTED

the update on the work of the Corporate Fraud Investigation Team for

2016/17 and the main areas of work identified for 2017/18.
AUD/17/10Local Government Pension Scheme Update

The Committee considered an update on the governance of the Local
Government Pension Scheme (LGPS).

Points and comments included:



Agenda ltem 2

AUD - 29.06.'1:)7age 10
Page 6

e the creation of pooled investment vehicles for the England and Wales
LGPS was progressing and eight pools had submitted business plans to
the government. The Bedfordshire Fund was a member of the Border to
Coast Pension Partnership Ltd (BCPP) which had been registered with
12 shareholders reflecting the 12 participating Administering Authorities.

e The initial transfer of assets to the BCPP pool was expected in 2019.
Members noted all member Funds had contributed money towards the
transfer costs. The Bedfordshire Fund had committed £350k which
would be covered by a reduction in management fees. The Vice-
Chairman, as a former trustee, offered his thanks to the Head of
Financial Control for his work in this area.

e the BCCP would be based in Leeds which had been chosen because of
its attractive financial centre and communication advantages.

e the general election had delayed the implementation of further public
sector pension and exit payment reforms and it was unclear when the
changes would be introduced.

e the Bedfordshire Fund had implemented an investment strategy and
benchmark, linked to the Fund’s liabilities, that sought to provide less
volatile returns compared to those Funds with a greater weighting to
equities. At the Bedford Borough Council Pensions Committee on 27
June 2017 the Fund Administrator reported that the market value of the
Fund at 31 March 2017 was £2,068m, an increase of £75m since 31
December 2016.

NOTED

the Local Government Pension Scheme update.

AUD/17/112016/17 Internal Audit - Annual Audit Opinion

The Committee considered the annual report by the Head of Internal Audit and
Risk to those charged with governance on the overall adequacy and
effectiveness of Central Bedfordshire Council’s financial and other
management internal controls. The meeting noted that under the Public Sector
Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS), which came into effect in April 2013, the
Head of Internal Audit and Risk was required to deliver such a report to those
charged with governance, timed to support the Annual Governance Statement
(minute AUD/17/8 above refers).

Points and comments included:
e a query regarding the unplanned resourcing issues which had affected

Internal Audit throughout 2016/17. The Head of Internal Audit and Risk
stated that most of these issues had now been resolved.



Agenda ltem 2

AUD - 29.06.'1:)7age 11
Page 7

the postponement, at the request of the service area, of the review of
Section 106 Agreements. The Head of Internal Audit and Risk
explained that another review on this issue was being carried out and a
second would not be undertaken at the same time. He added that he
believed the review was nearing completion.

a review of the use of the SWIFT Financials software had covered
various areas and the overall weaknesses found had resulted in a
limited overall opinion. Members noted that a replacement was being
sought.

NOTED

that the 2016/17 Internal Audit Annual Audit Opinion is that the Council’s
Internal Control environment continues, overall, to be adequate.

AUD/17/12Risk Update Report

The Committee considered a report which provided an overview of the
Council’s risk position as at June 2017.

Points and comments included:

whilst the strategic risks had been reconsidered and the key revisions
set out for Members’ information, operational risks had been omitted
from the update pending a more detailed review of the processes.

Members felt the different layout used made the data easier to read and
should possibly be adopted for future reports.

reference by a Member to a recent outcome of partnership working and
that the resulting financial impact suggested that the residual likelihood
score relating to strategic risk reference STR0009 (Failure of
partnerships as a result of conflicting priorities etc) should be increased
rather than revised down despite the mitigating actions set out. The
Director of Resources undertook to include this matter for discussion
within the ongoing review of risk management activities.

the need to monitor the operation of EU General Data Protection
Regulation which, once enforceable, could lead to fines of up to £37m
for non compliance. It was noted that the Regulation was far stronger
than the current Data Protection Act. The Head of Internal Audit and
Risk stated that the impact of the new Regulation was being considered
within the Council.

NOTED

the strategic and operational risks facing Central Bedfordshire Council as
set out in the risk Register Dashboard attached at Appendix A to the
report of the Director of Resources.



Agenda Item 2

AUD - 29.06.'1:)7age 12
Page 8

AUD/17/13Tracking of Internal Audit Recommendations

The Committee considered a report which summarised the high priority
recommendations arising from Internal Audit Reports and the progress made in
implementing them.

NOTED

the report setting out the high priority recommendations arising from
Internal Audit reports and the progress made in implementing the
recommendations to date.

AUD/17/14Work Programme

Members considered a report which set out the Committee’s work programme.

RESOLVED

1 that the proposed Audit Committee work programme for 27
September 2017 and 8 January 2018, as attached at Appendix A of
the report of the Committee Services Officer, be approved subject
to resolution 2 below;

2 that the Chief Information Officer be requested to submit a report, if
possible, on the impact etc of the EU General Data Protection
Regulation to the next meeting of the Committee on 27 September.

(Note:  The meeting commenced at 10.00 a.m. and concluded at 12.06 p.m..)

Chairman ........coooeiii .



Page 13

Agenda ltem 2

Appendix A

o _EEwu

N*A0S 2IIYSPIOFPIQEIIUII MMM  [0UNOD BAIYSPIOPag [eNUs)

19]|0J1U0D [eloURUI{ Y0000 dlurydals

|0J1U0D [e1ouBUI JO PESH ‘PIN0Y ydjey
9oUBUI{ JO 10108lI(J JUBISISSY ‘UIA[EL) Slua(

S92IN0S8Yy Jo 10108l ‘shogiepn sejiey)

L10E/9/6& SL2QUIDIA 0] UOIDIUISIA]

LY/QT10T SIUNOIY
JO JuouwId}elS pajypneun


ManningL01
Text Box
Appendix A



Agenda ltem 2

Page 14

NN A0S AATYSPIOFPIRIIUII MMM  [IOUNOD BIIYSpIojpeg [eua)d

suonsenp Auy .

sAogiep) sajieyn — sdels 1IXaN pue suoisnjouo)

p|nox) ydjey pue 00004

©

alueydels — sjuswalels ayl uo Arejuswiwo) e

UIAJeE) SIua(] — MBIAIBAO pue punoiboeg

epuaby

©



Agenda ltem 2

Page 15

NN°ACS ATYSPIOFPAQIBIIUII MMM [IDUNOY allyspiopeg [elus)d

9oueUI{ JO J0)0alI(] UBISISSY

UIA[en) siua(



Page 16

Agenda ltem 2

NN"ACS IIIYSPIOIPIAQIBIUII MMM [IDUNOD BIIYSpIojpag [eNuad

(@)

uoljeJaunwal 18210 pue seouemo|fe ‘sisalslul SISqUIDIA
0} Bunejas asoy Buipnjoul ‘sainsojasip Alolnjels ulejuod

suoljesiueblio Jaylo yum paledwod

og ued YoIym - siseq 1S09 |B10} — Jewloy e ul ‘Jesh
oy} J0J sallljigel] pue S}esse ‘alnjjpuadxs ‘@wodul MOYS

aul| wopoq a8y} uo 1snl jou ‘IoUN0D
oy} JO Sallljigel| pue s1esse ay} uo snooy e abeinoduy
1oUN0Y U}

J0 Y)jeay [eloueul) 8y} Jo a1njoid aAjsuayaidwoo e jussald e

9sodind — SJUN022yY



Agenda ltem 2

Page 17

NN° A0S AIMYSPIOIPIQIBIIUII MMM [IDUNOY dllysplojpag [elus)d

pJeog sueo SYIOM Ol|dnd 8y} 0] SS820y  —
BuiMmo.iog ©4n08s 0] S}9SSe asn Jouued salllioyiny [ed0] —
ainypuadxa Jnoul 0} suonebhijgo Aiownjels sidiiniy  —

Aoualedsuel ] pue Algold ‘diyspiemsls
uo siseydwse [ebo] Juepodwi ue INg SAlOW 11joid ON  —
siomod Bulsiel xe] -

10100s a)eAld ayl yum saouaiayip luepodw| e

*10109s 2l|qnd 8y Joj paidepe se sjuswaiinbal
10198s a1eAld Aq usAlp — | 1/010g woJ) paldde
(SH4|) sptepuels buiuoday |eloueul{ [euoljeuldlu|

puno.ibyoeg



Agenda ltem 2

Page 18

MN°A0S AIMYSPIOIPIQIBIIUII MMM  [IOUNOD BlIYspiojpag [eliud)

‘opIny)

s Jauolnoelid e Agq pauoddns apo) ayj ul palos|jel

aJe pue Ajjenuue parepdn aJje sjuswalinbal Bununoody
aonoeid 1seq Aloinjels - adijoeid Jo 8po)H

(V4dID) Aouelunoooy pue adueul aljgnd JO a1nisu|
paJauey) oyl AQ JUBWUIBAOK) [B00T YN 40} palaidialu|

(SvSdl)
spJepue]g Bununoody 10109S dlignd [euoijeulalu]
pue (SYH4|) spiepuels Buipoday [eloueul{ [euolieulaiu|

puno.ibyoeg

@



Page 19

Agenda ltem 2

NN° A0S AIMYSPIOIPIYIBIIUII MMM  [IDUN0D aJlysplojpag [eljus)d

©

Juswa|dwi 0] SeAlesay 9|gesnu 0 Jaquinu e salinbay

(*sjouoo ainupuadxa [eyded ‘eonoeud 1seq Aousiedsuel)
‘ooua} Bull JUNODOY anuaAay BuisnoH ‘sjuswalinbal
Xe| |louno) “6-8) sjuswalinbal Aioinels snouea yum Aldwoo  —

oonoe.id Bunnunoooe J01oas aljgnd mojjo} —

o

sBuiy} [esanas op sjuswalels ay |

puno.ibyoeyg



Page 20

Agenda ltem 2

NN°A0S QIIYSPIOJPICRIIUII MMM  [I0UNOY BIIYspIojpag [enua)d

w/ 03 Jo (xeL [1ouno)
‘9°1) pun4 [eJeusx) ay} uo j1oedw aAllsod e ‘uswalels
SOAJI9SaY Ul JUBWBAOJN 8y} ybnoiy) paaowal Jou J|

‘uoneluasald ay} ul Joje| paule|dxs - 8sealosp
(%9 ¥1) we'e3 (W9'ge3 91/GL) we'6L3 (61 SVI)
61 pJepuels Buiunoody [euoneulslu| Japun pale|ndjed
Se — S80IAI8S JO 1S0D 19N 8y} ul pableyd sujauaq
JuawAojdwa — 1S0D) 82IAIBS JudlIND — YUM padejday e

L7 ©10N - (W9'61L3 91/G1) seones Aqg

ainypuadx3 se [1ouno) ayj 01 pauodal w023 - SdDT
allyspJojpag 01 Jeak ul pred sjunowe [BNJOY - POAOWSY e

a|[dwex3 uy



Agenda ltem 2

Page 21

MN°A0S JIMYSPIOIPIQIRIIUII MMM  [IDUNOY 8lIYspiojpag [eus)d

1UNO22Y Juawisnipy pun4

UOI108[|0D PuUR 1UN022Y Jusawisnipy [eude) syy Buipnjoul
SOAI9SaY 9|gesnuf, / UO SjuswaAow sjieleq ¢ 810N
suone|nbay Jepun siseg bBuipun

pue siseq BunuNoody usamiaq sjuswisnipy, 6 810N
SJUNO2JY JO JUBWAIL1S By} 0] paallbe sjunooddy
Juswabeurew S, |IoUN0) 8y] AjOAI108))S - SBJ0U paleloosSse
pue Juswsajlels sisAjeuy Buipung pue ainjipuadx3

so|dwex3 Jaul0

O



Page 22

Agenda ltem 2

NN°ACS AIYSPIOIPIQIBIIUII MMM [IDUNOD BIIYSpIojpag [enus)d
ol
SO]ON Gt — SJUNOJJY 8} O} SOION e

MO[4 USB)
190USg aoueeg e
SOAI8SaY Ul JUBWOAO| e

ain)puadx3 pue awoou| dAISUBYaIdWOD e

SjuUsWae]S |eloueUly

oy} pue JeaA ay1 Buunp pauodas sainblj useamlag JuUsWBAOW dU}
MOUS 0] swie ‘JeaA siy} mau — sisAjeuy Buipun pue ainlipuadxy e

Bpon ay]| , — donoeld
1S8q MOJ|0} 0] JUswalinbal Alolnjels — sjuswolels Ulel e

paulwexa S| Ing — uoluido ypne Aq paJanod jou
0S Ssjuawalels ay) Jo Jed Jou — Juswalels SAlelIeN 8yl e

JUBWNI0P 9y} JO MIIAIDAQ



Agenda ltem 2

Page 23

HE

NN°ACS IIYSPIOIPIQIBIIUII MMM [IDUNOD BIIYSpIojpag [enuad

JUSWB)L]IS 9OUBUIDAOK) [BNUUY o
AessolL) o

sjuswalels 8yl Jo ed |ON INg Yyum paysiignd e

pun4 Uoljog||0D pue YHH e
sjuswalels Aejuswa|ddng e

JUBWIN20P 9y} JO MIIAIDAQD



Agenda ltem 2

Page 24

¢l

MN°A0S AIIYSPIOJPIY[BIJUII MMM

J8]|0J3U0)) [BlIOUBUIH

Y0000d alueydais

[IoUN0Y aliyspiojpag [enuad



Agenda ltem 2

Page 25

NN° A0S AIMYSPIOIPIQIBIUII MMM [IOUNOY 8lIyspiojpeg [elius)d

€l

L€ ©9]ON uoneiaunway aahojdw3g
Juswialels Mmo|4 ysen

198yS aouejeq

JuswIvlelS SOAIaSaY Ul JUBWSAO|N
Juswelels aJnjipuadxg pue awoou| aAIsusyaldwo)

sisAreuy Buipun4 pue ainypuadx3

JNOpUEH

sjuawalels ayl uo Alejuswiwio)



Agenda ltem 2

Page 26

14

NN° A0S JIMYSPIOIPIAQIBIIUII MMM [IOUNOY BlIYspiojpag [esiue)

SUOISUD e
uonen[ensy e
pun4 [eJ8UBKL)

SOAI9SaY



gl

Page 27

Agenda ltem 2

NN° A0S AIMYSPIOIPIQIBIUII MMM |IUNOY dlIYspiojpag [elius)d

SIOlpaID) e
suolsuad e

we) -Joys pue Buo| — Buimolriog e

SaljjigelT]

SJUBW]SAAUI WIS)-1OYS / UYSB) e
slolgeq e

(3dd) wewdinbg % ued ‘Auedold e
S19SSyY

SoN|IqelT PUE S}ossy



Page 28

Agenda ltem 2

NN° A0S JIIYSPIOIPIQIBIIUII MMM |IOUNOY BlIYspiojpag [esius)d

ol

(960°21)  |(GLL01) (619'8) SaAIasaY 9|qes [el0L
¢z |oos (657'2) (09g'c) aMasay paliddeun siuels) [eyde)
ec  |(8Lp'e) (h2¥'9) (966°) oMasay sidiedey [elde)
GL1 6d YaH|0 (002) (002) aMasay siredey Jofel\ YHH
oL |(6IEY) (LS12) (ese'L)) aAleseY poyiewed YHH
GH Bd VHH|0 (0002) (000°2) ‘8%_8 ViH
lON | 000.3 000,3 0003
yoS |uowonpad  |.10Z/€0/kE  |910T/EO/LE

/(aseasau))

SaAI9SaY 9|ges



Agenda ltem 2

Page 29

A

NN A0S ATYSPIOFPIAQIBIIUII MMM [IDUNOD allyspiojpeg [eljus)d

sainssa.d 126png Buinuiluoo
punj o] ajelidoidde jou 0s 8ouo pasn ag Ajuo ue) e

Sysi4 8soyp Jo 10eduwl
lrenusjod ayl pue |1ounoy ayl Buioe) sysii 0] payul] e

solouabiowa 10 SJUBAd
pajoadxaun Jo 1oedwi ay} uolysno o} Aousbunuooy e

SOAI9SOI payJew.lea se apise
1S aJe spuny ‘oljioads alaypA ‘siuswalinbal psjoipaid
JO umouy| 1@ew 01 spuny dn Buip|ing J0} SsUBBW {/ e

uonesiueBbio ay) Jo yieay |elouruly 8y} Jo Joleoipul A8)] e

seoueleg pund |[eiauax) Jo asodind ayl



Page 30

Agenda ltem 2

NN°A0S ITYSPIOFPIAY[BIIUII MMM

[1oUN0Y aliyspiojpag [esus)

8l
0L0°6Y (z8¢'akh) (z6¢°L6V) S9AJIasaY [e10]
(960°LL) (s1L°201) (619c8) S9AI9SY 9qesn [elo L
90199 (299°cH€) (eLL1Lp) S9AIasaY ajqesnuf [ejo L
GSS €952 8002 (8AI9SY Hge(,) S90UaSqY PeTBINWINIJY Wi | HOYS
996 (7181 (08L2) JUN02JY Juswisn(py pund UoRIB|I0D
67.'1¢ (170'929) 1(06.°038) Junody Juawisnipy [eyde
1 L0 Bacoze | (onesaY Uge(.) 9asay uoisusq
el At mlidied | e R et e T R e R N T Bl
9AIB9S”Y 9jes 10
pg 810N | 000.3 0003 0003 |
voS  |,uononpay  [L10Z/E0/}E 9102/€0/1€
[(aseasouy)

SOAI9SaY a|gesnu(



Page 31

Agenda ltem 2

6l

MN° A0S AIYSPIOIPIACRIUII MMM  [IDUN0Y 8llysplojpag [eliua)d

ainjipuadx3 pue
awoou| aAlsusyaidwo) [elo] (262°261)

010‘6¥
ainjipuadx3y pue
08262 awoou] aaisuayaidwon 18410 (L€0°eStE)
19sse / Aljigel| njeusq paulep
2r0‘ss Jou 8y} Jo Juswainseswsay (921 'v/)
sjesse
[eloueul) ajes 10} 8|de|leAe Jo
(821) uonen[eAsl uo yoyap Jo sniding (Ly1)
wewdinbg
pue jueld ‘Auadoid jo
(FE1L69) uonen[eAas uo J1oiep Jo sniding (G12°8/)
S99IAJ8S JO UOISInOId
0ge‘se (zev‘889) 299119 uo yoyeq 4o snidins (092‘) (£09‘8.9) ehe‘vLS
awoou|
(1v2'682) (982°052) 9v0°LE JueID o10eds UON pue uonexe] (S9g° 1) (¥S1'ese) 688°LL
ainjpuadx3 pue awWoau|
L0E°12 (ges‘st) 2v8‘oe JuswiseAu| pue Buloueuld 6£9'ze (098'ct) 661'9¢
OvP'SL 0 ovP'SlL ainypuadx3z bunesado Joyi0 0911 0 09Y'v 1
glLe‘oze (or12ee) 8ze‘shs S82IAISS JO 1S0D 906661 (685°LLE) G6Y LLS
0003 0003 0003 0003 0003 0003
19N awoauj ainypuadx3gy 1N awoauj alnypuadxgy
91/5102

LL/910C

alnjipuadx3 pue sawoou| aAlIsuayaldwo)



0c

Page 32

Agenda ltem 2

NN° A0S AIMYSPIOJPIY[BIIUII MMM

%:00°00T | 855°695 1 rAfAn
%0t L 8RC'IY {2 i SUoIRNgUIUOC)D PUE S1UEID jended
269070 €GE FAN S SL0IU| 153ia1U|
%0L°0 /66 veo'y S1uUels paoua) Ful uou J3ylo
281G 7 0 0T0'8¢ Hue) pue Ara JO 15U saleYy SsaUIsng
%S E 26102 Z/0'0E (s1uElD JUSLIUISAOD) DSH
%pl6T | BSEEIT £9'90T S1U3Y pue s351ey) ‘s934
%L 0°CE 008'ZHT oT9'0ET ¥E] [1D2Unod
%01"8€ SO0'LTZ Ot6'80T S1UEID INUIAY J110ads
000F 000F Iwoou|
ITfot0E oT/STO0Z aunypuadx3 pue awoou] anisuayaidwo)

[IDUNO) SAIYspiopag |BNuad)

SH4| wodj sawod Asuow 8y} a18yp\

IoUNOY aJlyspiopag [esjus)




(a\Noep!
n_mb w MN°A0S IIIYSPIOIPIQ[RIUIDI MMM [IDUNOY BIIYsplojpag [esjus)
= 12
© (a
©
c
n%u 90110N Syluow ¢ 1e sysodaq - SusWISaAU Wiel Loys
< pun4 awr - sjuswsaAy| wia) Buo
6.2%. 926°LE€'} 919'€9Z’ | sjossy |ejol
(158‘s) €60°0S v¥6°sS S19sSy Juaing
6l  |vG8E o7 “leov 5 USED pUE 580
(2) 06 86 SOLI0JUBAU
02 (z91) 9 Ll o[es 10} p|oH SIossy
9l 944 L00°} 99 SJusW)SeAU| W] Uoys
0cL‘08 €€8°'/8¢2°L €0.L°202°} sjessy wia] buo
91 (89) 161 675 sI01go Wia| buoT
9l 8¢l 6.2'S 0SS SjueW)SaAU| Wie] BuoT
Gl . 4! 0,9 sjessy a|qibuely|
vl l‘w | eladars E F R R L TS T 0 1ueld ‘Auadol4|
910N | 000.3 000.3 000.3
VoS (uononpay) (/102/€0/1E 91.02/€0/1€
Jasealou]

S)9SSY



Page 34

Agenda ltem 2

NN*AOS AITYSPIOFPIAYRIIUII MMM [IOUNOD BIIYSpIojpag [eNusd

2c
(oro'6¥) 28e‘shv £6£°L6V sjessy 18N
6.2v. 926°'/8€’| 9y9'c9g’L Slessy [el0]
(682‘cet) (ev5‘688) (¥Sc‘99L) saijljiqel [elol
(e6€°101) (zzz0sL) (cz8‘st9) saly|iqer] wia ] buoT
e [bs0y) __JUgeey) (€98°6E) _SUBHpe U poNGO3) SLEID [eyde
~ |(eeg'or)
9l RIF
(1ze'sel) ~ sani|igery wan)
ac (LoL'9 SUOISINOId
12 (16268 ‘ C
9l
910N
vos uononpay |Z102/€0/1E 9102/S0/1€
/(eseasou))

Saljljigel]



€

Page 35

Agenda ltem 2

NN*A0S IIMYSPIOFPIC[BIIUII MMM [IDUNOY BIIYSpIojpag [eSjUSD

/L1 -Gl sebed —1unoddy VHH e
vLL - 0kl sebed — pun4 uond9|[0D

sjuswolels Alejuswa|ddng



Page 36

Agenda ltem 2

NN*AOS AIYSPIOFPIQ[RIIUII MMM  [[OUNOD BIIYSpIojpeg [elua)d

144

SUOI}0lI)Sal paje|al pue

suoloalig BuiuNo22y — JUBWUIBAOY) [E00T]
pUE SaIlUNWWO)) SMO||0} BUlUNOIDY

(91/SLWO L13) W L L3 dx3

den senuoud oibajels pue sawayos BulAll
Juspuadepul Buipunj pue 10} buiniesay e
solel 1SaJ1alul MO| wou) bunjauag e

JUNO22Y dnuaAay buisnoH



Agenda ltem 2

Page 37

NN°A0S IIIYSPIOFPIQIBIIUII MMM [IDUNOD BIIYspIojpag [enued

gc

(We' L3
aleys DgD) We'e3 Mou (91/G1) Wg .3

(GL/PL) W93 (PL/EL) WE 93 Jo Housd
‘spunjal pue sjeadde uoljenjen ‘sjaljel mau
Bunoa|jal 1018 uollsod 8jel ssauisng e

(wz'e3 ateys DgO) Wy +3 01 (91/G1)

we' /3 “(SH/L) wees ‘(L/SL) WS 03
WoJ} Xe| |1ouno) uo uoiisod snjding [e10] e

pun4 uoN93||0D



Agenda ltem 2

Page 38

9¢

NN*A0S IIIYSPIOIPIQIBIIUI° MMM [IDUNOD BIIYspiojpag [elusd

6E 9JON "S1S00 Aouepunpal se

pred (91/G1 Ul X8/.3) XE.93 UM JeaA ul pareulwisl
aJam (91/G1 Ul 89) HelS 8E JO SJOBJUOD BYL e

‘|Jel1s Jaylo pue

s|ooyos usamiag Hjds Ajluana sem 0G3 J8A0 pled

slegwinu juauewJlad ul asealoul 8yl "L1/910¢ ul
pieme Aed paAledal yeis Buiyoesl-uou pue buiyoes] e

‘RIlenpIAIpUl PBSOJISIp 8Je oYM ‘wes] juswebeuely
a1elodion 8y} Jo siaquiawl apnjoxa sainblj 8yl e

/61 16} 181  lusuewlisd
L1/910¢ 91/510¢C SL/v10¢

(Rouepunpa. Buipniour) Jeah ul 3053 JeA0 pled jjels JO JaquinN e

LS 910N Uoljelaunwiay :Swal| Jayl0



Agenda ltem 2

Page 39

X

NN° A0S AIYSPIOFPIQBIIUII MMM  [IDUNOD BlIYspIolpag [esius)d

10JJUOD) [eloUBUIH JO PESOH

pinoy) ydjey



Page 40

Agenda ltem 2

8¢

TI8'€9T
908°8€

(zTT06Y)
(vss‘e)
(S¥L'Ly)
(LL6'vE)
(v8¥'22)

(ssLTze)
(£65'89)

€26'€S9

T6Y'SLT

889°S
LT9
9TTtLy

LT0T-600T

NN° A0S IITYSPIOIPIY[BIIUII MMM

£1/6007 V¥ H X2 paau Suimolioq anljejnwn)

[IoUNOY aliyspioipag [esuad

Jjuswalinbay
Buimoliog pue ainypuadx3 jeyde)

5, £ 1 3 6 3 3 wCQEw‘__ﬂ_U&
168‘82 seL'se 0sL'8l £98'vT ¥9L'0LL 156°01- zel'el Butoueuy eudes ui (esesaepyeseauy
| L85y 026'9tY CIN:1%4 yEV'66¢ 2v60LE 915002 6Ly L2 wawalinbay Buoueul lende) Buisol
(098°28) (86L°6L) (r1£°€9) (svsst) (c66°8S) (zoec9) (gzL2E) Jeak ui burpueul |ejo)
(822°2) (222) (6+9) SJUSWSAON JBYIO
(298'8) (0g2'2) (#20°2) (28'S) (veg's) (s20'2) (eLt'y) fediounid |4d / (dHIN) UOISIAOL SNUSASY WNWIUIN
(eoL'zl) (006°01) (952°2) (82s) (882't) (20s°1) (202) SuONNQUIUOD BNUBARI J031
W :9NUAASI WOJ} BpISe 18S swng
(ov6'e) (265°€) (695'9) 0 (sos‘e) 20ue MOj|Y Sireday Jofey
(e9829) (S1¥29) (#95'¥b) (18¥'8€) (808‘1¥) (e2LY2) (r15's2) SUOINQGLIUOD Jaylo pue sjuelh JusWUIBA0D
(180'g) (9€9°1) (198°2) (g99'¢) (082'€) (928°62) (06%'1) sidieoel [exdeD
:90UBUl4 JO S82IN0S
1S/°LLL £85'P01L ¥90'28 Lib'eL 2979 4 Grees 4 09816 ,  BuroueulA YHH Joj paisnipy suij owsw
VSLLEL £€5'v01 #9028 L'eL 152622 SvE'2S 0S8°1S puads |1eol
S66v9L o - Buioueu YHH J0 ynsal e se gaq
: : . . ; . . (SNo-AH) einels
| 90522 (R A €116l G80‘le 068‘€2 €012l 61901 Jepun [Eude0 W0l pepund sinypuadia enushsy
Gle 8. 822 125 Syl 69¢‘L - sjesse g|qibueyy]
= See 10 ¥8 16 - # seiedoud yuswysaay|
0€6'c8 SLLLL 29619 GLL'LS 09¢'6E €/8'8E (KA juawdinbs pue jued ‘Apedod
‘JuswysaAul [eyden
000.3 0003 000.3 000.3 000.3 000.3 000.3
|ot-s102 SI-v102 v1-£102 £1-2102 zL-L102 L1-01L02 01-6002



Page 41

Agenda ltem 2

6¢

NN* A0S IITYSPIOIPILIUII MMM  [IDUN0Y 8iIysplojpag [esjus)d

*S1S09 8NUBAaJ §LSY| pue spuny uoisuad Jo

saljljigel| palewnss uo 1oedwi uediubls e sey spuog 1UsWUIBA0L)
pue 81elodio) uo pied }salslul Jo S8jel 183Jew ayl Ul SJUBWBAO|N e

‘Jeal [eloueUl) 1XaU 8y} Ul Ajjeulalxa moliog O} 8nuiuod
0} paau ||Im [19uno) 8y} swwelboid [eydes Buiobuo ue YUpL e

sleaA aininj ul asealoul ue sjosloid ueld [eloueulj wiel

wnipaw [elded ay pue ‘(W9 8Yy3) Jeah ejoueul) 8yl ul pesealoul
sey (moJtioq o1 peau) Juswalinbai Buioueuly [eldeod s [1oun0) 8y e

sajey 1S8Jalu| MO



0

Page 42

Agenda ltem 2

NN°A0S 2IIYSPIOJPIQ[RIIUID MMM [IDUNOD BIIYSPI0jpag [EAUSD

Supueuyy eyde)——  SNDJJymmmm  pudds [e}ide) mm—

/T-9T07 9T-ST0Z SI-¥I0T ¥I-€10T €I-¢10C <¢I-TT0C T1-010C 01-600C

000001

000°0ZT
000.3

sasodind jexde) 10} puads




Page 43

Agenda ltem 2

NN° A0S ITYSPIOIPIRIIUII MMM

[IoUN0Y BlIyspiojpag [esusd

L
a|qefed }saiaiu] paniooe Sepnjoul YOS Uo anjeA1geq [elol .
%80°€ S¥8‘LYE %11°C 000591 %86 G¥8°C8T x[€101
%t€0 08¢tL - 0 %€0 08z'tL wJa1-1oys
%LS0 0005t %LS0 000t - 9|qeleA
%86 G95°0€T %0T°€ 000°0CT %EEV G9S°0TT paxid4
91ey 152421U] [ 000,F19°q |eroL| °@1ey1saidiu] | 000,F 392A VHH | 1By 1sa4=au| 000.3 39°d
98esany |e10L 98esany 98esony pund |eiauan

L 10c¢ Y3IEeN

1S € Je se buimouaiog |el1o ]



4%

Page 44

Agenda ltem 2

MN° A0S ITYSPIOIPIY[BIIUII MMM

Yd) e VHH HEEE 393Q0 4O

00000T

00000€

000007

000005

000009

4D pue 192@ |ej0L

000,3

(1DUNOD BlIyspiojpag [esua)

wi3l YoyS 49m 2qeuUBA 4O M P3XJ 4ON

192d 19

- 00002
- 000°0%
- 00009
- 00008
- 000007
- 000021
- 0000VT

000091

000081

000002
000,3

600¢ 2°UI§ 198Qd




Page 45

Agenda ltem 2

MN°A0S ITYSPIOJPIY[RITUII MMM

€e

sAeq ¢ Joy 2|qeAed 15233301 ZTOT Y2JEW YIBT USNEIIQ3PYHH .

[IoUNOY aliyspioipag [enusd

GL6'E Szo’s LT-9T0C

veo'y LYT'S 9T1-ST0C

€10y L9T'S ST-v10¢

896°¢€ LTL's v1-€T0C

LL6'E LE9'S €1-¢10¢

144 889°GC +CL-TT0C
- 089°G TT-0T0C
g 1,69 0T-600¢
000,7 VyH 000,3 45

188°LTY ov8‘LYbE LT-9T0C
T09°08€ CLO'8EE 91-ST0C
7€8'E8E 8T9°C1IE ST-v10C
GLL'6TE 766°L0€ v1-€10¢
066°LSE 8G'GTE €1-¢10d
008°0S€ 985°0zE ¢T-110¢
009°T9T LET'OST TT-010¢
00t'€9T 65191 0T-600¢
000.7 000,37
on|eA Jie4 onN|eA |eUlWoN

S1S02 ]SaldlUu]|

192d 04O

anpey Jied s\ enje/ [BUIWON




Page 46

Agenda ltem 2

NN A0S IATYSPIOFPIAQIBIIUII MMM [IOUNOD BJlyspiojpag [elue)d

SuUIMOLI0Q JO PRAISUI PASN YSBD) e YD) s 3IUR| G YSE)) 3 5RIINY s

1 1 1

LT-9T0C 91-STOT ST-¥10T PT-€T0C €T-CTOC TT-TT0CT TT-0T0C OT-600¢C
. 0

1 1 1

e —— \\1
— e 000'00T
000002

—

00000€

000°00P

000°00S

\
000009
000,3

44D/ 8uimouioq
jo peajsul agesn yse)/yse) ui spuaaj




Page 47

Agenda ltem 2

NN°A0S 2IIYSPIOFPIQIRIIUID MMM [IDUNOD BIIYSPIOopag [BAUSD

Ge

M s3juejeg yseO W
2JUR|2g YS) 252JNY e W

£1-9T0T 91-610T ST-¥T0T $1-€10T €T-TT0T TT-T10T TT-0T0T 01-600C
L 1 1 L ! 1 ! ! O

r/ 000°0%
/\j 00009 b
00008 |

- 000°0¢

- 000°0P

L 00009

- 00008

- 000007

L 000'0TT
000,3

sajuejeq yse) a8eIany pua JeaA je saouejeq yse)

102 1oqWaAON ;02 WO} Saouejeq S|ooyds sspnjou]

(pung awi Buipnjox3)

6002 90UIS S8ouUR[e( JUdSWISaAU|



9¢€

Page 48

Agenda ltem 2

MN°A0S AIYSPIOIPIY[RIIUII MMM

[1DUNOD BlIyspiopag [esua)

%¢Er0 96 8EY'CT L1-9T0C
%SS°0 ¥l ] vL0°CT 9T-STOC
%¢€S0 191 €es’oe ST-v10¢
%L 0 (437 v6C'8S pT-€10C
%960 €49 06,69 €T-¢10¢
%9¢°1 68 €L8°G9 CT-T110¢
%er'1T Ge0'T vLvTL HAUL0C
%9°1T GSL'T €€TLOT 0T-600¢
9}ey 1saialu| 000,7| 000,37 Iuswi}soAU|
poulie] }1Saoiolu| 938eIdAY

(pun4 awi x3)
6002 20UlIS uin}ay JUusW]SaAU|




Agenda ltem 2

NN*ACS IIIYSPIOFPIQIBIIUII MMM [IDUNOY BIIYspiojpag [elue)d
JAY

Page 49

(sesiwoid uoisuad) sailjigel
10} @}BJ JUNOJSIP S18S - SPUOg JuBWUIBA0D
pue 81eJ0diod uo (sajel 1saiaiul)

sp|alA Jo [9A8] SI @duan|jul BUulW|BYMIBAQ e
Aoueroadxe oJi| buinoiduwil

1sea| J0u sebus|ieyo Auew aney sswayds e

6l
gV| UIIM 8Ul| Ul painseaw Ww9e3 JO 8sealoul

ue w93 1e Aljigel| 1sebie| s|Iouno) e

sHoleQ SWaYOS UoIsudd ST



8¢

Page 50

Agenda ltem 2

NN°A0S IATYSPIOFPAYIBIUII MMM [IDUNOD allyspiopeg [eljus)d

LTOCIEIN-TE 9TOC-1eIN-TE STOCIEN-TIE VTOC-1EN-TE

|
‘
_
|
|
"

|

(%)
PI2IA

LT0Z dunf 01 10T Y24eNl (%) PIBIA 9€0C %ST 7 MID

00T

SPIaIA HID ul Alljire|oA




Agenda ltem 2

Page 51

6€

MN°A0S ITYSPIOFPIY[BIUI" MMM

[IouNoy aliyspiojpag [esua)

%S [%S  |wes  |%ss  |%ss  [%S  [%€9  |%CS | (93] Buipuny

Gty  |00ze  |o6LE  [TL0f  |8'€0E  [9'6WT  [€'L6T  |€'9TE TTEN]

6005 |TUlty  |LTeb  |Tue (0698 [TTEE  |T9eE  |T'TSE $}355Y

(vzte) |(ceve) |(ezos) |(e89) |(5'699) |(8'T8s) |(sees) |(v8L9) sa1}l|iqen
WF | W | Wi | w3 | w3 | W | WI | W3

%7 |use  (wre  [%Ty  |%St  |%8v  |%S'S  |%S'S | 2ieyiunodsiq
[v/efie | ov/e/ie | st/e/ie | vv/e/ve | €1/e/1€ | TT/E[iE | TT/E[TE | OV/E/IE

SUOISUBd 81y JUN0JSI(]




Page 52

Agenda ltem 2

oy

NN°A0S IIYSPIOIPIY[BITUII MMM

IDUNOY allyspioipag [enusd

(%99 WESL3) pepund

0,00 W/ LZ3 Hoiad (W9e3) wgey3 s1essy (€102 WoSS3)

WEEO3 Selliger 9102 UdJB|N LE Pasn siseq Jusiayip

uolen|eA punj [eluusLl} MOJ||0} S8jel UoiINgLUIU0) [BNJOY e

%9 VS %L°LS %/,'2S %L'GS | 61 SVI Se|igel] % Se slessy
(%608) W9e3 | (W21H3) | (wige3) | (wee3) | (Wr0e3) uoyeq 1eN
(%)) Wp/3 | WLOS3 | wW/igh3| WwWeey3| W/L/E3 SESS
(%g2) WoLL3 | (wgLe3) | (weys3) | (wz08s3) | (Wys93) soll|igelT
LL/9L —9L/SL
ebueyn | Z1/9102 | 9L/SLOC| SLL0og| vH/ELOZ

61 SVI SMO||0} SaljljigelT] pue S}9SSY e

suolsuad



Agenda ltem 2

Page 53

(4%

NN° A0S AIMYSPIOIPIQIBIIUII MMM [IDUNOY dlIYsplojpag [eljua

S92IJN0SaY JO 101084I(

shoqiepn saleyn



Page 54

Agenda ltem 2

NN°ACS IIYSPIOIPAQIRIIUID MMM [IDUNOD BIIYSPIOpag [BAUSD

A4

- soled pa)salaiul, Se sisijeudnol 01 (sjunoddY JO Juswelels 8y} O}
psebal yum Joypne [eussixe oy} Jo Buluonsanb pue uoleluswnoop
Bununoooe Ajoyine [eoo] 8y} jo uonoadsul ‘uonoslqo Jo

syBu ay) sepnjoul yaiym) sybry olgnd spusixe siyl "/10¢ dunfr g
UO 9910} Ojul BUIWIOD ‘ME| Mou S| pue /|0g |Udy /g Uo Jusssy jeAoy
PaAI9dal /102 19V (Sluswnoo O} SS829Y 2lldnd) HPNY [8d07] 8y L

-359001d 9S0[0 Jo}Se) UBA® 9|geus ||IM Jey) Jeah 1xau 1o} suosss| juies] -

-/ 102 aunr g ubis o} Apeas yeip e ‘siesh snoinaid
uey pouad Ja)se} B Ul SJUNOJOE 8y} paonpoid pue [eu} e se Jedh siyl pesn  —

‘(8102 AeN LE
‘9°1) YOS 81//102 Wolj annoaye ‘Aely L¢ 01 pabueyd sey syl 510e
suole|nbay pny pue sjJunoddy ayi o0} sobueyod Japun "210g dunp

0¢ Apuaiung s sjunoooe ay) buionpoud Joj suljpesp AloInjels syl e

sobueyn



Page 55

Agenda ltem 2

NN°ACS IIIYSPIOFPIQIBIIUII MMM [IDUNOD dIIYSpIoJpag [enue)

ey

Aj@so|o palonuow Buiaq si pue Juepodwl
S| )Sl 8}kl 1Sa48]u| "sieaA [eloueul) 8ininj Ul SJUNOJOE 8y} JO JUBWIS|S
uepodwi ue e [|Im ainipuadxa [eydeo wody Buinsal buimoliog

JUBWIUIBAOK) [BJlud)
wo.J} Buipuny 01 Bunejas pesye saiuienaoun Juedyiubis ale alay

SySL
pauiuapl Jsuiebe [1ouno) 8y} 1098104d 0] pjay ‘SaAIasal payiewles
pue [eJauab 0} peppe sey pue uonisod [eroueuly Buolls e ul s| D90

uonesiuebio ayj Jo yjeay |elourul) |[BIOA0 8} MOUS SJUNOJDY

sda)S 1XeN pue uoisnjouo)

(]



Page 56

Agenda ltem 2

NN°ACS IIIYSPIOFPIQ[BIIUI MMM [IDUNOY BIIYSpIopag [elue)

144

Jagwidag ul

ganIwwon upny Aq panoidde aq ||Im SjUNOdJe |eul) 8yl

(sAep Buiom

0g) 1snbny 0| — 0} dUNP y{OE POUBd uondadsul dlland  «
Ainp Buuinp

d17 BUunoA ¥ 1sui3 Ag palpne aq [|IM SJUN0JdJe 8y e

o

@

sdalg 1XaN pue uoIsnjouo)



Agenda ltem 2

Page 57

14

NN*ACS IINYSPIOIPIQIBIIUII MMM [IDUNOD BIIYspiojpag [enusd

s suonsanp Auy



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 2
Page 59

Appendix B

Central Bedfordshire Council
www.centralbedfordshire.gov.uk

Extracts from Unaudited Statement
of Accounts for the year 2016/17

Presentation to I\/Iembers’f*‘i~
29/06/2017

Core Statements and Note 31

Expenditure and Fundmg Analy3|s

Comprehenswe Ing;eme and Expenditure Statement
Movement in Reserves Statement

Balance Sheet

Cash Flow Statement

Offlcers Remuneratlon — Note 31

Central Bedfordshire Council Unaudited Statement of Accounts 2016/17



ManningL01_1
Text Box
Appendix B



Agenda ltem 2
Page 60

Expenditure and Funding Analysis
2015/16 2016/17
Net Expenditure  Adjustments Net Expenditure Net Expenditure  Adjustments Net Expenditure
Chargeable to in the Chargeabile to in the
the General Comprehensive the General Comprehensive
Fund and HRA Income and Fund and HRA Income and
Expenditure Expenditure
Statement Statement
£000 £000 £000 £000
68,996 3,571 72,477 Social Care, Health & | 75,346
Housing =
55,054 838 55,892 Children’s Services 1,486 55,864
42,682 36,135 78,817 Community Servities 18,937 64,913
7,100 3,857 10,957 Regeneration & 6,247 3,684 9,931
Business Support
(53) 24 (29) Public Health : : (187) (13) (201)
8,333 1,345 9,441 Chief Executives 7,790 1,359 9,148
8,532 1,101 9,302 Resources 11,490 (115) 11,375
3,620 (10,701) (6:991) Cbgpprate Costs 2,792 (12,730) (9,938)
(15,447) 21,875 6.428Schools. - (18,212) 23,722 5,510
(2,876) (33,510) < - (36,386) Landlord Business (8,242) 12,511 4,269
(HRA).. ki
175,941 24,535 489,906 Net Cd_st of Services 177,685 48,532 226,217
(176,289) .~ (28/446) _ (204,166) Other Income and (177,737) (25,250) (202,987)
£ k- e = Expenditure
(34 (3,911) (4,260) (Surplus) / Deficit on (52) 23,282 23,230
S iE Provision of Services
. (78774) Opening Combined (79,164)
General Fund and HRA
’ Balance
S Pius / less (Surplus) or (52)
h Deficit on the General
Fund and HRA Balance
for the Year (Statutory
basis)
41 Transfers (to) / from (14,366)
other Reserves
Closing Combined
(79,164) General Fund and (93,582)

HRA Balance

23




Agenda ltem 2

Page 61
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
This Statement shows the accounting cost in the year of providing services in
accordance with generally accepted accounting practices, rather than the amount to
be funded from taxation. Authorities raise taxation to cover expenditure in
accordance with regulations: this may be different from the accounting cost. The
taxation position is shown in both the Expenditure and Funding Analysis and the
Movement in Reserves Statement.
2015/16 2016/17
Restated
Expenditure Income Net itur Net
£000 £000 £000 . £000 £000
100,532 (28,055) 72,477 Social Care, Health & Housing £ 103,622 75,346
84,739 (28,847) 55,892 Children’s Services 55,863
92,603 (13,787) 78,816 Community Services - 64,914
16,155 (5,199) 10,956 Regeneration & Busmess"“ " 9,031
Support rE
15,826 (15,855) (29) Public Health (17,953) (200)
9,476 (35) 9,441 Chief Executives . o (1,702) 9,149
78,412 (69,110) 9,302 Resources 7 _ 78,779 (67,405) 11,374
2,138 (9,129) (6,991) Corporaie Costs 2,492 (12,430) (9,938)
118,273 (112,846) 6,427 Schoois < 118,187 (112,677) 5,510
(7,659) (28,727) (36,386} Landlord Busmess (HRA)‘ ‘ 33,907 (29,639) 4,268
511,495 (311,589) 198,906 Cost of Seerces y 548,328 (322,110) 226,218
14,460 0 14 460 Other Operatlng Expendlture 15,446 0 15,446
36,499 (13,860) 22 639 Fmancmg and Investment 36,842 (15,535) 21,307
A _ Income and Expendlture
11,889 (253,154)7:' (241,265) Taxatwnand Non Specific Grant 11,046 (250,786) (239,741)
“% . Income
574,343 (578,603) (4 260) (Surplus) | Deficit on Provision 611,662 (588,432) 23,230
ik : of Services
(78 715) (Surplus) / deficit on revaluation (59,134)
! of Property, Plant and
Equipment
(147) (Surplus) / deficit on revaluation (128)
of available for sale financial
assets
(74,176) Remeasurement of the net 85,042
defined benefit liability / (asset)
(153,037) Other Comprehensive income ﬁ_—m
and Expenditure
(157,297) Total Comprehensive Income 49,010

and Expenditure

24




Page 62

Agenda ltem 2

(z8¢‘8vv) (899°5v¢) (p2201) (65¥°2) (002) (yLv'9) (L25°12) (000°2) (zi¥ps) (69551) 2102 Ydie L¢ je aduejegd
0L0'6¥ 90199 (960°L1) 008 0 (81¥°e) (61¢'p) 0 {2v0'01) (z9) £1/9102 ut 3sea1daq / (aseasduy)
; SOAIaSaY
(] 0 6L€'Y) 6LE'Y {vool) 1¥0'01 paxew.es woyj / (0) ssejsuel]
4 , . seAlesay
pa)Jewles 0} siajsuel]
010'6v 90199 (960°2L) 008 0 (8L+°¢) 0 (61EY) (660°01) 210J9q 9SL2129(] 4O 9SE3IU] JON
, ; suoyenbial
. e Jspun siseq Buipuny pue siseq
0 gze'oy (9z€‘op) 008 0 (82¥'¢) Lo, (6zz'0€) Bununoooe ussmiag sjuswisnipy
. “._ Lk ; ainjipuadxgy pue
010'6¥ 08162 0£2¢T L loe -0 0€1°0Z awodu| dAIsusyaiduwio) [ejo)
. k| ainppuadxgy
08.'sz 08.'s2 / swoduf sasudya1dwio) JBYI0
$82INISS JO
0£2'€ 0s£z'ee LoL'e 0gL'0Z uoisinoid ay) uo yoyap / (snjding)
1119102
Bunnp s9A18S81 Ul JUSWBAON
(zee‘L6Y) (€22'11¥) (619'58) (09z'¢) (000'2) (g6E'vh) (£15'g1) 910Z Yd4e Lg je dduejeg

0003 0003 0003 0003 0003 0003 0003

SOA13S9Y |BJ0) SOAI9S9Y S9AI9SIY JunoodIYy saA19s9y  (VHH) Junoddy  SaAlasay aosuejeg
ajgesnun ajqesn jejoL paydde’ YdH anuaAay pung jelsudg) pung |esauas)
-uf sjues) payieuieq BuisnoH paxlewelq

woJj 10 0} s19jsuel} Areuonaiosip Aue Qow@n mocm_m.m_E:oouﬁuzcgww_ BuisnoH pue eouejeqg

leyded

119UN0) 8y} Aq uaxeUapuUN SaNISSOY paylewler
pun4 |eiauac) A10}nje}s ay} SMOYs aul| SaAIasay

paxlewlies] o] SI9jSuBl} 81040q SE9I99p / (9sealoul) JoN, 8y L "sesodind Bupes jual sbuljjemp pue Bulj}os Xe | [I9unoy 10§ JUNOJDY SNUSASY
BuISNOH aY} pue souejeg pun4 |eISURS) 8y} 0} paBieyo aq 0} pasinbai sjunowe AI0JnNje)s U} WOy JUSISYIP SI SIY| JUSWSIBIS ainjipuadxy
pUE SWOOU| SAISUSYSIdWOD By} Ul UMOYS a1e (olym JO S|Iejop 2I0W ‘SIVIAISS S IPUN0Y By} Buipincid JO }SOO JILUOU0ID SN} Y} SMOYS dul|
S901M9S 40 uoisinoid sy uo Jolep /(snjding), 8y "saniasal ,9|gesnun, 18yjo pue (Uoiexe) [edo] aonpal 10 alnypuadxs puny o} pajdde oq ues
1By} asoy) “'a°1) SoAI9sal ,9|qesn, ojul pesAjeue ‘1ouno) ay) Aq pjay SoAI9SaI JUSISHIP 9Y) UO Jeah sy} Ul JUSWSAOW By} SMOYS Juswsle)sS siy |

Judwivdlel}S SOAIDSIY Ul JUBSWDAON



Agenda ltem 2
Page 63

e r—

(cec L6V) WLL'LLY) (61968) (09z's) (002) (966°2) mmgs ,, (915's1) 910z YoiBy L€ je aduejegd
(y62'251) (089°2L91) 98£04 0ze'0l 0 qSY (2450 (6v¢) 91/510T ul 9sea1d9( 10 asealou)
SaAI9S9Y
0 0 (rrL')) rLL payeuues wody / (0) sigjsuel]
SOAI9SIY
pa)ieuwes o) sigjsuel]
(v6z'L51) (089°291) 98¢0l 0Z£°0l 0 (g6¥1) alojoq aseasde( | (eseasdul) JoN
suolejnbas
1apun siseq Buipuny pue siseq
0 9v9'vL) 9r9'vl 0ze'0L L08'¥E (0£6'0¢) Buiunoooe usamiaq sjuswisnipy
ainyipuadxy pue
(y62°251) (Feo‘est) (09z'v) (269°¢€) 0 LEV'6T awodu| dAIsuayaidwo) jejol
ainjipuadxgy
(veo‘ess) (re0'es)) / 8Woou} aaIsusyaIdwo) JBYI0
SSIIAISS JO
(09z‘v) (09Z‘v) (£69'¢E) LEV'62 uoisinoid 8y} uo yoyap / (sniding)
9415102
BulInp S9AI9S381 Ul JUSWDAON
(660°0v¢) (¥60'v¥2) (500°96) (L5¥'€) (zs€'81) (000°2) (ogz'ey) (L9L'S1) G10Z Y24ey L€ Je aduejegd

0003 0003 : 0003 0003 0003 0003 0003

SOAI9SaY |ejoL S9AI9S9Y : , BAI9SOY EYNEEC M saA19s9y  (VHH)Iunoddy  SoaAlasay asuejeg
ajgesnupn s|qesn [ejoL pajjdde sneday lofepy  sydivasy VviH anuaAady pund [eiduas) pund |esausn
G -up sjueln jenden poylewleg BuisnoH pajieunesy

{eydeo



Agenda ltem 2
Page 64

Balance Sheet

The Balance Sheet shows the value as at the Balance Sheet date of the assets and
liabilities recognised by the Council. The net assets of the Council (assets less liabilities)
are matched by the reserves held by the Council. Reserves are reported in two
categories. The first category of reserves are usable reserves, i.e., those reserves that
the Council may use to provide services, subject to the need to maintain a prudent level
of reserves and any statutory limitations on their use (for example, the Capital Receipts
Reserve that may only be used to fund capital expenditure or repay debt). The second
category of reserves is unusable reserves, i.e., those reserves that the Council is not
able to use to provide services. This category of reserves includes res ves that hold
unrealised gains and losses (for example, the Revaluation Reserve: . here”'a“mounts
would only become available to provide services if the assets are soid and reserves that
hold timing differences shown in the Movement in Reserves Statemen’f line ‘Adju"tments
between accounting basis and funding basis under regulatzons ‘

31 March 2016 31 March 2017

£'000 £'000
1,193,334  Property, Plant and Equipment 1,269,878
8,670 Intangible Assets 12,185

5,150 Long Term Investments 5,279

548  Long Term Debtors . 491
1,207,703 Long Term Assets 1,287,833
564  Shor-term Investments- 1,007

173 Assets Held. for Sale 6

98 lnventones 90

54,700 'Shbrt Term Debtors - 44,726

409 Cash and Cash Equwaients 4,263

55944 Current Assets -~ - 50,093

© . (63)683)  Short-Tem Borrowing (73,430)
(48,071) "~ Short-Term Creditors (59,791)
(5.677) Provisions (6,101)
(117,431) :Current Liabilities (139,321)
o (27’4};146) Long Term Borrowing (274,279)
"°.{835,814) Other Long-Term Liabilities (433,016)
(38,863) Grants Receipts in Advance - Capital (42,927)
(648,823) Long Term Liabilities (750,222)
497,393 Net Assets 448,382
(85,619) Usable Reserves (102,715)
(411,774)  Unusable Reserves (345,668)
(497,393) Total Reserves (448,382)

27




Agenda ltem 2
Page 65

Cash Flow Statement

The Cash Flow Statement shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents of the
Council during the financial year. The Statement shows how the Council generates
and uses cash and cash equivalents by classifying cash flows as operating, investing
and financing activities. The amount of net cash flows arising from operating
activities is a key indicator of the extent to which the operations of the Council are
funded by way of taxation and grant income or from the recipients of services
provided by the Council. Investing activities represent the extent to which cash
outflows have been made for resources which are intended to contribute to the
Council's future service delivery. Cash flows arising from financing activities are
useful in predicting claims on future cash flows by providers of cap;tal (ie.,
borrowing) to the Council.

2015/16 201617
£ ,, £
(4,260)  Net (surplus) / deficit on the provision of _séfﬁcés‘} 23,230
(45,959)  Adjustment to (surplus) / deficit on the prowsmn of semces for i (89,110)
noncash movements e
37,116  * Adjustment for items mcluded in the net (surpms) / deficit on 55,851
the provision of services: that are mvestmg or ﬂnancing
activities .
(13,103) Net cash flows from operating activities (10,029)
37,516 * Netcash ﬂows from lnvestmg actlvmes 17,026
(23,023) Net cash"ﬂows from f nancmg actxvmes (10,852)
1,39q Net (mcrease) or decrease in cash and cash equivalents (3,854)
= 3,,17h9;91.:"(3ash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the reporting 409
period. -
w409 = Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the reporting 4,263

period

*To conform wﬂh CIPFAs ‘Code of Practice, interest has been included in Net Operating Activities instead of Investing
Activities in 2016/17 although the figures for 2015/16 have been left unchanged from last year's published accounts.

28




v8

Page 66

Agenda ltem 2

ciIp'ele’l 786'vET 0 16101 o¥Z'vL0°L 91/5102
958992} gzelee 182'c9 1S€°LL $68°096 L119102 lejoL
ovv'eZt $09'62 0 191'¢ 699004 91/5102 (moos
oL6‘6zZL ¥eL'sT 0 ¥66°2 z81'101 L119102 IN) YieaH aljgnd Jo 103094iq
. . , . (3sinybuo]
200'L¥1 zLl'82 0 §89'C 08G'SLL 2119102 2 uoneIaudhHay jo 1032a11Q
vev'er $98'6 0 0 6.5'6€ 91/5102 (Ke1o ) 199140 Se2IMIBS
0 0 0 0 0 2119102 apesoowsq B jeba a1y
. (oxue|D-juagpeolg
68Z°¢El 0 0 16S z69'2¢el 9115102 Q) sedInIag aje :ma 109
¥05°26 0 182'€9 191 050'vE 1119102 8 Juswaaoidwy jo 1030041Q
szL'9vi S¥1'62 0 825 050211 L119102 Ajunwwo) jo Jopoeiq
chz'sc) 06¢€'42 0 €58 000'0L1 9L/S102 (skoquem
89Z'LYL G162 0 €.0°') 0S0°'LL) 119402 Q) $924n0saYy Jo 10)284|d
LL¥'T8) ¥01'9€ 0 €LE'L 000'S¥} 91/5102 (k8160 r) BuisnoH 3
G19'v81 99v'9¢ 0 669') 0SYy'orl L1/910Z UeaH ‘ared [eldos Jo 10393410
€16'181 S0L'9€ 0 808 000°G¥ L 9L/5102 (uosiueH g)
$99°¢8) 991'9¢ 0 8L 0Sv'ovl L1/910Z S9IIAIDG S,udIpIyD Jo 10322110
1£9°122 44514 0 €611 00¢g'18l 91/5102
S9L°0€2 G6G'Gy 0 15%'1 cLL'est L119102 (1189 ¥) aapnaaxy J8Iyo
03 03 03 03 03
{2101 uopnquIu0Y 82130 Jo $507 S30UBMO||Y saouemojly LH910Z

uoisuad

103 uonesuadwon sesuadx3y

pue saa4 ‘Aiejeg

uonjelaunuwiay s19dJ0

:SMOJ|0} SE SI s9akojdwa Jojuas Juauewlad s JIouno sy} o} pled uolelsunwal 8y |

S10}J08lI(] UBASS pue dAIINIaXT Jaly)

2y} papnjoul UoHEdSSEO SIY} ‘21/910Z Buling "aAoqe 10 |9A8) 10J0211( Je J9d1jo Aue se [Iounod ayj Aq paulyep ale si1aQ Joluas

uoneIauNWay ,SI1991J0 - L¢ 9ION



S8

Page 67

‘(suonnguyuod uoisuad s akojdwae Buipnjoxa) 1eak ayj 10} UOHEIDUNWSL YQGF UBY} dI0W Buinieoal (saakoldwa JOlUaS UIYYMm
anoqe pajsi] S|ENpIAIpUI 9soy} Bulpnfoxe) soakojdwe Jusuewsad |00YIS-UOU puUE [00YIS JSUJ0 S IoUN0) 8} SMOYs 9|qe} SA0qe ayyl

Agenda ltem 2

161 161 lejoL
€ 4 000'G013 0} 1000043
¥ 4 0000013 0} 100°563
L 14 000°G63 0} 100063
o m ooo.omuo:oo_mmu
m ¢
o m
w m

000°G83 0} L00'083
000'083 0} L00'GL3
000'523 01 L00'0L3

1z 9z 000'0.3 0} LO0'G93
9¢ €€ 000693 0} 100093
85 ov 000'093 0} L00'GS3
LS €9 000'5S3 0} L00'0S3
L1/9102 9115102

uonjersunwiay saakojdwy Jofuag

*§9SNUOQ 0} UOKE|al Ul SISO Jolusg 0} 1eak 1ayye ul sjusawAed 1ayjo ou alam a1y |

*1./9ZGF JO UoijeJauNwWal [e}o} B S| JUSWS|® §|10UN0Y AUIYSpiojpag [BAUS] *|IoUn0DH
saukay| UoyI pue uno) ybnolog piojpag ‘[1ouno) alIYspioypag [BAUSD Aq papuny si yjieaH aliqnd Jo 1030a1iQ - HO9S [SUN

"1921JJO @dueUlH JBIYD
sy} usaq Ajsnoinaid Buiaey ‘9L 0z 1990100 Is| uo uorjisod mau siy} 0} psjuiodde sem $821n0SAY 40 10JI3MIJ — shoquepn sspey)

‘91,02 SUNp YIOE UO [10Un0D dy} 3| $901A19S djelodiod g Jusianoidu] J0 10joaulQ - dX1ejD-jusqpeoig 933



98

Page 68

Agenda ltem 2

‘ulel}s [BLENJOE PUEB S2UBISASS ‘S91j0u Jo nai| ul Aed ‘Aouepunpal 69 ‘uoljeuILIS} UO S)yaUS( j|e SIPNoUl S|qe) 8y L

-asodind siy} 10} paysI|qe]ISe SAI8SaI POXIEWLES UE SI 818y} JoAsmoy ‘sabesoed JIxe 10) uoisinoid Aue apnoul
10U SP0p JUBWSJE}S SINYpuadx p SWOodU| SAISUSYaI1dWOY SJIPUN0D YL "1edk Jus.nd Sy} 1o} Juswsjels alnjipuadxy X awoou|
anisuayaidwod s,1ouno) ayj o) pabileyd pue 104 paniode ‘paaibe usaq aaey jey sobeyoed }ixa ||e sapnjoul aA0ge 3|qe} 8y |

000°€L9 000'8.L 8¢ 89 8 9z o€ (44 lejol
000'ZL€ 000°0€} € z z L L L 000°00Z3 - L00'093
000'06 0 Z 0 b 0 L 0 000'093 - L00'0¥3
000°G51 000'62¢ 9 €l 0 L 9 9 000°0¥3 - 100'023
000°9}} 000'61€ L2 €S S 8l [44 ge 000'023-03
2119102 91L/15102 L119102 91/5102 L119402 9115102 L119102 9115102

(syuswihed

(0003) pueq yaes
ul sabeyoed ji1xa J0 }S09 [ejoL

paasbe sainuedap
18Y)0 JO 1aquinN

pueq }s09 Aq sebexyoed
}IX3 Jo Jaquinu jejo|

sajouepunpal
Aosindwiod jo saquinN

|e1oads Buipnjoul)
pueq }s09 abeyoed Jix3

sofieyoed jixg



Agenda Item 7
Page 69

Central Bedfordshire Council

Audit Committee 27 September 2017

External Audit Results Report 2016/17
Report of Ernst & Young LLP

Neil Harris, Executive Director

Purpose of this report

To consider a report from Ernst & Young LLP which sets out the outcomes
from the external audit of the Council’s 2016/17 financial statements and the
conclusion of work to review the Council’s arrangements for securing value for
money in the use of its resources. The report also sets out Ernst and Young’s
proposed audit opinion, key findings and any recommendations to consider
prior to the approval of the 2016/17 accounts.



This page is intentionally left blank



Central Bedfordshire

Council
Audit results report

Year ended 31 March 2017

/. Wal| epuaby

T/ obed



Private and Confidential

Dear Audit Committee Members

27 September 2017

We have substantially completed our audit of Central Bedfordshire Council (the Authority) for the

year ended 31 March 2017.

Subject to concluding the outstanding matters listed in our report, we confirm that we expect to issue
an unqualified audit opinion on the financial statements in the form at Section 03, before the
statutory deadline of 30 September 2017. We also have no matters to report on your arrangements

to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in your use of resources

This report is intended solely for the use of the Audit Committee, other members of the Authority,
and senior management. It should not be used for any other purpose or given to any other party

without obtaining our written consent.

We would like to thank your staff for their help during the engagement.

We look forward to discussing with you any aspects of this report or any other issues arising from our

work.
Yours faithfully
Neil Harris

Executive Director

For and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP

United Kingdom




Contents

Areas of
Audit Focus

_ O Assessment O 8 Appendices
Reporting of Control
Issues Environment

In April 2015 Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA) issued “Statement of responsibilities of auditors and audited bodies”. It is available from the via the PSAA website (www.PSAA.co.uk).

The Statement of responsibilities serves as the formal terms of engagement between appointed auditors and audited bodies. It summarises where the different responsibilities of auditors and audited bodies begin and end, and what is to be
expected of the audited body in certain areas.

The “Terms of Appointment (updated September 2015)” issued by the PSAA sets out additional requirements that auditors must comply with, over and above those set out in the National Audit Office Code of Audit Practice (the Code) and
in legislation, and covers matters of practice and procedure which are of a recurring nature..

This report is made solely to the Audit Committee, other members of the Authority and management of Central Bedfordshire Council in accordance with the statement of responsibilities. Our work has been undertaken so that we might
state to the Audit Committee, other members of the Authority and management of Central Bedfordshire Council those matters we are required to state to them in this report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law
we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Audit Committee, other members of the Authority and management of Central Bedfordshire Council for this report or for the opinions we have formed. It should not be

provided to any third-party without obtaining our written consent.

/. W3]| epusny



http://www.psaa.co.uk/

O Executive Summary

7/ abed

/. Wa)| epuaby



A

" Executive Summary

Overview of the audit

Status of the audit

Scope and materiality

In our Audit Plan issued on 7 December 2016, we gave you an overview of how we intended to carry out

our responsibilities as your auditor. We carried out our audit in accordance with this plan.

We planned our procedures using a materiality of £11.1 million. We reassessed this using the actual year-

end figures, which has increased this amount to £11.7 million. The threshold for reporting audit

differences has increased from £558,000 to £585,701. The basis of our assessment of materiality has

remained consistent with prior years at 2% of gross revenue expenditure.

We also identified areas where misstatement at a lower level than materiality might influence the reader

and developed a specific audit strategy for them. They include:

- Remuneration disclosures including any severance payments, exit packages and termination benefits,
where we reviewed a sample of payments, irrespective of value;

- Related party transactions, where we reviewed the Council’s processes for identifying and disclosing
such transactions; and

- Members’ allowances, where we carried out a reasonableness assessment of the amount disclosed.

We have substantially completed our audit of Central Bedfordshire Council‘s financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2017 and have performed the procedures

outlined in our Audit plan. Subject to satisfactory completion of the following outstanding items we expect to issue an unqualified opinion on the Authority’s financial
statements in the form which appears at Section 03. However until work is complete, further amendments may arise:

« Clearance of final queries

- Review of the final version of the financial statements

- Completion of subsequent events review

- Receipt of the signed management representation letter

7g/ abed

) W3]l epuaby



?/ Executive Summary

Executive summary (continued)

Status of the audit (continued)

We expect to issue the audit certificate at the same time as the audit opinion.

Audit differences

There are no unadjusted audit differences arising from our audit.
We have agreed amendments to disclosure notes with management.

Areas of audit focus

Our Audit Plan identified key areas of focus for our audit of Central Bedfordshire Council’s financial statements This report sets out our observations and conclusions,
including our views on areas which might be conservative, and where there is potential risk and exposure. We summarise our consideration of these matters, and any
others identified, in the "Key Audit Issues" section of this report.

We ask you to review these and any other matters in this report to ensure:
- There are no other considerations or matters that could have an impact on these issues

= You agree with the resolution of the issue
- There are no other significant issues to be considered.

There are no matters, apart from those reported by management or disclosed in this report, which we believe should be brought to the attention of the Audit
Committee.

/. Wal| epuaby

?9/ abed



?/ Executive Summary

Executive summary (continued)

Value for money

We have considered your arrangements to take informed decisions; deploy resources in a sustainable manner; and work with partners and other third parties. In our
Audit Plan we identified a significant risk related to the financial pressures facing the Council’s medium and longer term plans.

We have no matters to report about your arrangements to secure economy efficiency and effectiveness in your use of resources.

/. Wdl| epuaby

~ ) ) abed



?/ Executive Summary

Executive summary (continued)

Other reporting issues

We have reviewed the information presented in the Annual Governance Statement for consistency with our knowledge of the Authority. We have no matters to report as a
result of this work to date but note we have not yet seen the Head of Internal Audit Opinion. We have performed the procedures required by the National Audit Office (NAO) on the
Whole of Government Accounts submission. We had no issues to report.

We have no other matters to report.

Control observations

We have not identified any significant deficiencies in the design of an internal control that might result in a material misstatement in your financial statements and which is
unknown to you. We have adopted a fully substantive approach, so have not tested the operation of contraols.
We have identified two areas for consideration by the Council. Further detail is in section 07 Assessment of the Control Environment.
- Expenditure and funding analysis - we were able to agree the disclosure per the financial statements at a high level but the Council may wish to consider the link
between the EFA and its outturn reporting such that the two are more closely aligned.
- Valuations - the Council currently instructs the valuer to prepare a valuation at the 1 April and an impairment review is then carried out to determine whether
there have been any material movements in valuation in the period to 31 March. We recommend the Council consider amending their instruction to the valuer to
provide the detailed valuation at a date later in the year such that any movement in valuation between the valuation date and the year end is minimised.

Independence

Please refer to Appendix B for our update on Independence.

/. Wal| epuaby

*g/ ®



T

| ’ f 1

__

, Qo Areas of Audit Focus



Areas of Audit Focus

Audit issues and approach: Key ISSUE: Revenue and expenditure recognition

Expenditure Recognition Risk of fraud in revenue recognition - We reviewed and tested revenue recognition policies;
Under ISA240 there is a presumed risk that revenue - We identified key accounting estimates most susceptible to
may be misstated due to improper recognition of management bias. This included estimates related to valuation
revenue. In this public sector this requirement is and depreciation of property, plant and equipment, pension
modified by Practice Note 10, issued by the Financial liabilities and the business rates appeals provision. We
Reporting council, which states that auditors should evaluated the judgments and decisions made by management in
also consider the risk that material misstatements may making the accounting estimate, including, where relevant,
occur by manipulating expenditure recognition. their reliance on specialists. We concluded that the bases of the
estimates examined were reasonable;

Our testing has not identified any - We developed a strategy for testing material revenue and

material misstatements from revenue expenditure streams. We tested a sample of revenue and

and expenditure recognition. expenditure items to supporting documentation and

« Undertook cut-off procedures around the year-end date to
Overall our audit work did not identify ensure transactions were allocated to the correct financial year.

any material issues or unusual
transactions to indicate any
misreporting of the Authoritys

. . anR 1 1
financial position. :D'" AuditReport | | /. SignificantRisk |

08 abed

) W3]l epuaby



Areas of Audit Focus

Audit issues and approach: Key ISsue: management Override

What is the risk? What did we do?

Management override

What are our conclusions?

We have not identified any material
weaknesses in controls or evidence of
material management override.

We have not identified any instances of
inappropriate judgements being
applied.

We did not identify any other
transactions during our audit which
appeared unusual or outside the
Authority‘s normal course of business

Risk of management override

As identified in ISA 240, management is in a unique
position to perpetrate fraud because of its ability to
manipulate accounting records directly or indirectly and to
prepare fraudulent financial statements by overriding
controls that otherwise seem to be operating effectively.
We identify and respond to this fraud risk on every audit
engagement.

1
|
: D In Audit Report : :

We obtained a full list of journals posted to the general ledger
during the year, and analysed them to identify any unusual
journal types or amounts. We then tested a sample of these
journals and tested them to supporting documentation;

We identified key accounting estimates most susceptible to
management bias and concluded that the bases of the estimates
examined were reasonable; and

We did not identify any significant unusual transactions.

T8 obed

) W3]l epuaby



0P Audit Report

-

28 abed

/. Wal| epuaby



v —_

v

Audit Report

Draft audit report

Our opinion on the financial statements

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF CENTRAL BEDFORDSHIRE COUNCIL
Opinion on the Authority’s financial statements

We have audited the financial statements of Central Bedfordshire Council for the year ended 31 March 2017 under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014. The financial
statements comprise the:
- Authority Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement,

Authority Movement in Reserves Statement,

Authority Balance Sheet,

Authority Cash Flow Statement,

Related notes 1 to 45,

Housing Revenue Account Income and Expenditure Statement, the Movement on the HRA Statement and related notes HRA 1 to HRA 8; and

Callection Fund and the related notes.

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the
United Kingdom 2016/17.

This report is made solely to the members of Central Bedfordshire Council, as a body, in accordance with Part 5 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 and for no other

purpose, as set out in paragraph 43 of the Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies published by Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited. To the fullest
extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Authority and the Authority’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this
report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of the Chief Finance Officer and auditor

As explained more fully in the Statement of the Chief Finance Officer’s Responsibilities set out on page 21, the Chief Finance Officer is responsible for the preparation of the
Statement of Accounts, which includes the financial statements, in accordance with proper practices as set out in the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority
Accounting in the United Kingdom 2016/17, and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view. Our responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the financial

statements in accordance with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board's

Ethical Standards for Auditors.

»cg abed

) W3]l epuaby



v —_

v

Audit Report

Draft audit report (continued)

Our opinion on the financial statements (continued)

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free
from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error. This includes an assessment of: whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the Authority’s circumstances
and have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed; the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the Chief Finance Officer; and the overall
presentation of the financial statements. In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial information in the Statement of Accounts 2016/17 to identify material
inconsistencies with the audited financial statements and to identify any information that is apparently materially incorrect based on, or materially inconsistent with, the
knowledge acquired by us in the course of performing the audit. If we become aware of any apparent material misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the implications for
our report.

Opinion on financial statements

In our opinion the financial statements:
give a true and fair view of the financial position of Central Bedfordshire Council as at 31 March 2017 and of its expenditure and income for the year then ended; and
have been prepared properly in accordance with the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2016/17.

Opinion on other matters
In our opinion, the information given in the Statement of Accounts 2016/17 for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial
statements.

Matters on which we report by exception
We report to you if:
- inour opinion the annual governance statement is misleading or inconsistent with other information forthcoming from the audit or our knowledge of the Council;
we issue a report in the public interest under section 24 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014;
we make written recommendations to the audited body under Section 24 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014;
we make an application to the court for a declaration that an item of account is contrary to law under Section 28 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014;
we issue an advisory notice under Section 29 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014; or
we make an application for judicial review under Section 31 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014.

We have nothing to report in these respects

=g abed

) W3]l epuaby



v —_

= Audit Report

Draft audit report (continued)

Our opinion on the financial statements (continued)

Conclusion on Central Bedfordshire Council’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use of resources

Authority’s responsibilities
The Authority is responsible for putting in place proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources, to ensure proper stewardship and
governance, and to review regularly the adequacy and effectiveness of these arrangements.

Auditor’s responsibilities

We are required under Section 20(1)(c) of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 to satisfy ourselves that the Authority has made proper arrangements for securing
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. The Code of Audit Practice issued by the National Audit Office (NAO) requires us to report to you our conclusion
relating to proper arrangements.

We report if significant matters have come to our attention which prevent us from concluding that the Authority has put in place proper arrangements for securing economy,
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. We are not required to consider, nor have we considered, whether all aspects of the Authority’s arrangements for securing
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources are operating effectively.

Scope of the review of arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use of resources

We have undertaken our review in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice, having regard to the guidance on the specified criterion issued by the Comptroller and Auditor
General (C&AG) in November 2015, as to whether Central Bedfordshire Council had proper arrangements to ensure it took properly informed decisions and deployed resources
to achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local people. The Comptroller and Auditor General determined this criterion as that necessary for us to
consider under the Code of Audit Practice in satisfying ourselves whether Central Bedfordshire Council put in place proper arrangements for securing economy,
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources for the year ended 31 March 2017.

We planned our work in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice. Based on our risk assessment, we undertook such work as we considered necessary to form a
view on whether, in all significant respects, the Central Bedfordshire Council had put in place proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness
in its use of resources.

Conclusion
On the basis of our work, having regard to the guidance issued by the C&AG in November 2015, we are satisfied that, in all significant respects, Central Bedfordshire
put in place proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources for the year ended 31 March 2017.

Certificate
We certify that we have completed the audit of the accounts of Central Bedfordshire Council in accordance with the requirements of the Local Audit and
Accountability Act 2014 and the Code of Audit Practice issued by the National Audit Office.

nGg abed

) W3]l epuaby






124 Audit Differences

Audit differences

In any audit, we may identify misstatements between amounts we believe should be recorded in the financial statements and disclosures and amounts actually recorded.
These differences are classified as ‘known’ or ‘judgemental’. Known differences represent items that can be accurately quantified and relate to a definite set of facts or

circumstances. Judgemental differences generally involve estimation and relate to facts or circumstances that are uncertain or open to interpretation.

Summary of adjusted differences

We include all known amounts greater than £8.7 million relating to Central Bedfordshire Council.

We considered the valuation of property, plant and equipment. In doing so, we:
- Reviewed the valuation report and supporting schedules provided by the Council’s external valuer
-  Reviewed the methodology adopted by the valuer
- Compared the indexation applied to the valuation supplied by the valuer as at 1 April 2016, to adjust for any material market movements to 31 March 2017, to
industry valuation trends
Consulted with EY valuation experts, as required, as to the appropriateness of the indices applied by the Council

Based on these procedures, we discussed with the Council the level of indexation applied to Council dwellings. We agreed the reflection of a 10% indexation would more
accurately reflect the movement in the market, based on a range of industry data from both the Council’s external valuer and other available industry trends. We also
consulted internally with EY valuation experts. This has led to a material change of £40m which is reflected in Note 14 of the financial statements.

There were no other uncorrected misstatements.

/. Wdl| epuaby

N/ g abed



R
%&f,‘ﬁf )

e 2 - Pande s 3
ety i"i e 1 I S 3 i

Sl 2 e X e Al w7, ' ey N i e ! A s
! Qs i B - : N Rt o g ) s S .

™ R
alue 10r ivione =
. ‘-,._. " s, A \‘.1 { N
p EP | i yf“‘: { »H A\
By » . an ne i o, &
e + W ” & >
R " 4 ; v
L G ] ! e




=2 Value for Money

Value for Money

Informed
decision making

Proper arrangements for

securing value for money

Sustainable Working with
resource partners and
deployment third parties

v

Overall conclusion

We identified one significant risk around these arrangements. The table below present our findings in response to the risks in our Audit Plan.

We expect having no matters to report about your arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in your use of resources.

Proper arrangements are defined by statutory guidance issued by the National Audit Office. They

comprise your arrangements to:

- take informed decisions;

- deploy resources in a sustainable manner; and
- work with partners and other third parties.

In considering your proper arrangements, we use the CIPFA/SOLACE framework for local government to
ensure that our assessment is made against an already existing mandatory framework which you use in

documents such as your Annual Governance Statement.

Economy, efficiency and effectiveness

We must consider whether you have ‘proper arrangements’ to secure economy, efficiency and
effectiveness in your use of resources. This is known as our value for money conclusion.

/. Wdl| epuaby

©6g abed



\..--'

Ny

!..--'

Value for Money

VFM risks

We are only required to determine whether there is any risk that we consider significant within the Code of Audit Practice, where risk is defined as:
“A matter is significant if, in the auditor’s professional view, it is reasonable to conclude that the matter would be of interest to the audited body or the wider public”

Our risk assessment supports the planning of enough work to deliver a safe conclusion on your arrangements to secure value for money, and enables us to determine the
nature and extent of any further work needed. If we do not identify a significant risk we do not need to carry out further work.

The table below presents the findings of our work in response to the risks areas in our Audit Plan.

What is the significant VFM risk?

What arrangements

What are our findings?

did this affect?

Sustainability and Transformation Plans (STPs)
give local NHS organisations and councils the
opportunity to work together to improve the
way health and social care is designed and
delivered. The Bedford, Luton and Milton
Keynes (BLMK) footprint encompasses 16
partners; and covers almost 1 million people
with hugely diverse populations across areas.
The partners have focussed on refining BLMK’s
5 STP priorities, including planning and
resourcing how changes will be implemented.
The Plan recognises that there will be system-
wide demand and financial pressures over the
next five years, resulting in a consolidated
BLMK deficit in 2020/21 of £311m. It also
notes that:

» BLMK'’s recurrent annual NHS deficit rises to
£203m per annum by 2020/21.

« A further recurrent deficit, estimated at
£108m per annum, would need to be added as
aresult of

unavoidable cost pressures surfacing in Council
health and social care budgets which are not
recovered.

Deploying
resources ina
sustainable
manner

We are satisfied that the Council had sound arrangements in place for working with its STP partners to
develop governance arrangements and that is has engaged fully with the STP process. The Council, with
the STP is now finalising the governance arrangements that will allow it to move to a delivery model and
demonstrate how the STP can contribute to the financial sustainability of the Council in the context of the
STP footprint. BLMK is one of the eight STPs in the first wave Accountable Care Systems. As it moves to a
delivery model, the STP is continuing to review how the governance structures will work in practice and
how they will need to evolve.

A key challenge for STPs is the need to foster good working relationships between partners and evidence
from the Council is that improving relationships have allowed opportunities for chief executives, finance
and governance leads to more effectively share good practices. The Chief Executive Group has been
pivotal in allowing the STP partners to engage with each other and to promote this engagement
throughout their organisations, and this is now permeating down to the Director of Finance group and to
Chairs/Political leaders. The STP has also agreed a dedicated resource for clinical engagement.
Increasing this collaboration with all stakeholders will facilitate management of the whole system. Difficult
discussions and decisions will be required in the future; and the Council is working with its partners to
develop robust governance arrangements to support this.

The Council and its BLMK partners, as with other STPs, have further challenges to overcome in terms of
the conflict between organisational and STP accountability; how to address the financial challenges
presented and reach system wide solutions to these; how they can ensure performance against individual
and system wide targets can be accurately reported, with robust data; and ensuring the governance
structures agreed facilitate robust and efficient decision making.

The Council has not yet included any potential savings from the STP work into its medium term financial
plans. The Director of Finance Group is developing a finance reporting package with a first report due in
August 2017.

306 abed

) W3]l epuaby



..f i\
N ; .
Y
A .
wl&\
P
Y
<
P

e
- J-
= LLn...
[ PSS 3 2
.
AN
2 A
7 & X
\" 2
-ur /\ A
"u b/
R

g

=%

i3

AT




@ Other reporting issues
Other reporting issues

Consistency of other information published with the financial statements, including the Annual Governance Statement

We must give an opinion on the consistency of the financial and non-financial information in the Statement of Accounts 2016/17 with the audited financial
statements

We must also review the Annual Governance Statement for completeness of disclosures, consistency with other information from our work, and whether it
complies with relevant guidance.

Financial information in the Statement of Accounts 2016/17 and published with the financial statements was consistent with the audited financial statements.

We have reviewed the Annual Governance Statement and can confirm it is consistent with other information from our audit of the financial statements and we
have no other matters to report.

Whole of Government Accounts

Alongside our work on the financial statements, we also review and report to the National Audit Office on your Whole of Government Accounts return. The extent
of our review, and the nature of our report, is specified by the National Audit Office.

We anticipate having no issues to raise.

NZ6 abed

/. Wal| epuaby



@ Other reporting issues
Other reporting issues

Other powers and duties

We have a duty under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 to consider whether to report on any matter that comes to our attention in the course of the
audit, either for the Authority to consider it or to bring it to the attention of the public (i.e. “a report in the public interest”). We did not identify any issues which
required us to issue a report in the public interest.

We also have a duty to make written recommendations to the Authority, copied to the Secretary of State, and take action in accordance with our responsibilities
under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014. We did not identify any issues.

Other matters

As required by ISA (UK&I) 260 and other ISAs specifying communication requirements, we must tell you significant findings from the audit and other matters if they
are significant to your oversight of the Authority’s financial reporting process. They include the following:

- Significant qualitative aspects of accounting practices including accounting policies, accounting estimates and financial statement disclosures;
- Any significant difficulties encountered during the audit;

- Any significant matters arising from the audit that were discussed with management;
- Written representations we have requested;

- Expected modifications to the audit report;

- Any other matters significant to overseeing the financial reporting process;

- Related parties;

- External confirmations;

- Going concern; and

- Consideration of laws and regulations.

We have no matters to report.

) W3]l epuaby

sce abed



Assessment of Control
Environment




g@ Assessment of Control Environment

Assessment of control environment

Financial controls

It is the responsibility of the Authority to develop and implement systems of internal financial control and to put in place proper arrangements to monitor their
adequacy and effectiveness in practice. Our responsibility as your auditor is to consider whether the Authority has put adequate arrangements in place to
satisfy itself that the systems of internal financial control are both adequate and effective in practice.

As part of our audit of the financial statements, we obtained an understanding of internal control sufficient to plan our audit and determine the nature, timing
and extent of testing performed. As we have adopted a fully substantive approach, we have therefore not tested the operation of controls.

Although our audit was not designed to express an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control we are required to communicate to you significant
deficiencies in internal control.

We have not identified any significant deficiencies in the design or operation of an internal control that might result in a material misstatement in your
financial statements of which you are not aware.

We have identified the following areas for consideration:

- Expenditure and funding analysis - this was a new disclosure for 2016/17. This note is intended to show how expenditure is used and funded from
resources and how it is allocated for decision making purposes within the Council’s reporting structure. We were able to agree the disclosure per the
financial statements at a high level but the Council may wish to consider the link between the EFA and its outturn reporting such that the two are more
closely aligned.

- Valuations - we have had detailed discussions this year related to the valuation as at 31 March 2017 of properties held within the HRA. We have
undertaken additional audit procedures to ensure the valuation is within an acceptable range, including benchmarking with available market data and
consultation with the EY Estates team. The Council currently instructs the valuer to prepare a valuation at the 1 April and an impairment review is then
carried out to determine whether there have been any material movements in valuation in the period to 31 March. We recommend the Council
consider amending their instruction to the valuer to provide the detailed valuation at a date later in the year such that any movement in valuation
between the valuation date and the year end is minimised.

G6 obed

) W3]l epuaby



Ols® Appendices




@ Appendix A
Required communications with the Audit Committee

There are certain communications that we must provide to the Audit Committees of UK clients. We have done this by:

Required communications

Terms of engagement

Planning and audit approach

Significant findings from the
audit

Going concern

Misstatements

|i What is reported?

Confirmation by the audit committee of acceptance of terms of engagement as written in
the engagement letter signed by both parties.

Communication of the planned scope and timing of the audit, including any limitations.

- Our view of the significant qualitative aspects of accounting practices including
accounting policies, accounting estimates and financial statement disclosures

- Any significant difficulties encountered during the audit

- Any significant matters arising from the audit that were discussed with management
- Written representations we have requested

- Expected modifications to the audit report

- Any other matters significant to overseeing the financial reporting process

- Findings and issues around the opening balance on initial audits (delete if not an initial
audit)

Events or conditions identified that may cast significant doubt on the entity’s ability to
continue as a going concern, including:

» Whether the events or conditions constitute a material uncertainty

» Whether the use of the going concern assumption is appropriate in the preparation and
presentation of the financial statements

» The adequacy of related disclosures in the financial statements

Uncorrected misstatements and their effect on our audit opinion
The effect of uncorrected misstatements related to prior periods
A request that any uncorrected misstatement be corrected
Significant corrected misstatements, in writing

v VvV VvV VY

Our Reporting to you

9 When and where

The statement of responsibilities serves as

the formal terms of engagement between
the PSAA’s appointed auditors and audite
bodies.

Audit Plan

Audit Results Report

No conditions or events were identified,

d

either individually or together to raise any

doubt about Central Bedfordshire Council

'S

ability to continue for the 12 months from

the date of our report.

Audit Results Report

N/ 6 abed

/. Wd]| epuaby



@ Appendix A

Required communications

Fraud

Related parties

Subsequent events

Other information

External confirmations

|i What is reported?

| 2

| 2

Significant matters arising during the audit in connection with the Authority’s related parties

Asking the Audit Committee whether they have knowledge of any actual, suspected or
alleged fraud affecting the Authority

Unless all those charged with governance are involved in managing the entity, any fraud
identified or information obtained indicating that a fraud may exist involving:

(a) management;
(b) employees with significant roles in internal control; or

(c) others where the fraud results in a material misstatement in the financial statements.

A discussion of any other matters related to fraud, relevant to Audit Committee
responsibility.

including, where applicable:

| 2

v VvV VvV

Non-disclosure by management

Inappropriate authorisation and approval of transactions
Disagreement over disclosures

Non-compliance with laws and/or regulations

Difficulty in identifying the party that ultimately controls the entity

Where appropriate, asking the Audit Committee whether any subsequent events have
occurred that might affect the financial statements.

Where material inconsistencies are identified in other information included in the
document containing the financial statements, but management refuses to make the
revision.

Management’s refusal for us to request confirmations
We were unable to obtain relevant and reliable audit evidence from other procedures.

Our Reporting to you

9 When and where

We have asked management and those
charged with governance about
arrangements to prevent or detect fraud.
We have not become aware of any fraud or
illegal acts during our audit.

We have no matters to report.

We have asked management and those
charged with governance.

Our work on this area is not yet complete
and we will consider whether any
subsequent events have occurred that
might affect the financial statements up to
the date that the opinion is signed.

Audit Results Report
We have no matters to report.

We have received all requested
confirmations.

/. Wal| epuaby

%86 abed



@ Appendix A

Required communications

Consideration of laws
and/or regulations

Significant deficiencies in
internal controls identified
during the audit

Independence

Fee Reporting

Certification work

| 2

|i What is reported?

Audit findings of non-compliance where it is material and believed to be intentional. This
communication is subject to compliance with legislation on “tipping off”

Asking the audit committee about possible instances of non-compliance with laws and/or
regulations that may have a material effect on the financial statements, and known to
the audit committee.

Significant deficiencies in internal controls identified during the audit.

Communication of all significant facts and matters that have a bearing on EY’s objectivity
and independence.

Communicating key elements of the audit engagement partner’s consideration of
independence and objectivity such as:

| 2

>
>
>

The principal threats
Safeguards adopted and their effectiveness
An overall assessment of threats and safeguards

Information on the firm’s general policies and processes for maintaining objectivity and
independence

Communications whenever significant judgments are made about threats to objectivity or
independence and the appropriateness of safeguards,

Breakdown of fee information when the audit plan is agreed
Breakdown of fee information at the completion of the audit
Any non-audit work

Summary of certification work

Our Reporting to you

9 When and where

We have asked management and those
charged with governance. We have not
identified any material instances or non-
compliance with laws and regulations.

Audit Results Report

Audit Plan
Audit Results Report

Audit Plan
Audit Results Report

The Certification Report will be presented
to the Audit Committee in due course.

/. Wdl| epuaby

366 abed



@ Appendix B
Independence

We confirm that there are no changes in our assessment of independence since
our confirmation in our Audit Planning Board Report dated presented to the Audit
Committee on 16 January 2017.

We complied with the APB Ethical Standards and the requirements of the PSAA’s
Terms of Appointment. In our professional judgement the firm is independent and
the objectivity of the audit engagement partner and audit staff has not been
compromised within the meaning of regulatory and professional requirements.

We consider that our independence in this context is a matter which you should
review, as well as us. It is important that you and your Audit Committee consider
the facts known to you and come to a view. If you would like to discuss any
matters concerning our independence, we will be pleased to do this at the
meeting of the Audit Committee on 27 September 2017.

We confirm that we have undertaken no non-audit work outside the PSAA
Code requirements. Non-audit work is work not carried out under the Code.

The table below sets out the scale fee and our final proposed audit

fees,

Description Proposed fee

2016/17
£

Scale fee 2016/17
£

Total Audit Fee -
Code work

136,465

136,466

Certification of
claims and returns
- hiousing subsidy
claim*

26,910

26,910

Teachers’ Pensions

10,000
Return®

n/a

Pooling of housing
capital
receipts return®

4,000

n/a

All fees exclude VAT,

! Qur fee for the certification of grant claims iz based on the indicative scale

fee set by the PSAA

2 The Teachers' Pensions return does not form part of the P544A contract.
We are currently finalising the engagement terms for this return.

3 The poaling of houszing capital receipts return do not form part of the
P3AA confract. We are curently finalising the engagement terms for this

return.

As part of our reporting on our independence, we set out below a summary of
the fees paid for the year ended 31 March 2017.

/. Wal| epuaby

800T abed



@ Appendix C
Outstanding matters

The following items are outstanding at the date of this report:

Actions to resolve

Clearance of final queries Receipt and review of all final queries

Review of final version of financial statements Receipt of final version of financial statements
incorporating all agreed amendments and EY check of
these

Management representation letter Receipt of signed management representation letter

Subsequent events review Completion of subsequent events procedures to the

date of signing the audit report.

Responsibility
EY and Management

EY and Management

Management

EY and Management

/. Wal| epuaby

“TOT abed



@ Appendix D
Accounting and regulatory update

Accounting update

Since the date of our last report to the Audit Committee, new accounting standards and interpretations have been issued. The following table provides a high level
summary of those that have the potential to have the most significant impact on you:

Summary of key measures

Impact on Central Bedfordshire Council |[i

IFRS 9 Financial
Instruments

Applicable for local authority accounts from the 2018/19 financial year and will
change:

How financial assets are classified and measured
How the impairment of financial assets are calculated
Financial hedge accounting

The disclosure requirements for financial assets.

Transitional arrangements are included within the accounting standard, however as
the 2018/19 Accounting Code of Practice for Local Authorities has yet to be issued
it is unclear what the impact on local authority accounting will be and whether any
accounting statutory overrides will be introduced to mitigate any impact.

Although some initial thoughts on the approach to
adopting IFRS 9 have been issued by CIPFA, until
the Code is issued and any statutory overrides are
confirmed there remains some uncertainty.
However, what is clear is that the Council will have
to:

- Reclassify existing financial instrument assets
- Remeasure and recalculate potential
impairments of those assets; and

Prepare additional disclosure notes for material
items

The Council is awaiting clarification of the exact
requirements before investing time in the above
work.

) W3]l epuaby

NgoT abed



@ Appendix D

IFRS 15 Revenue from
Contracts with
Customers

IFRS 16 Leases

Applicable for local authority accounts from the 2018/19 financial year. This new
standard deals with accounting for all contracts with customers except:

e Leases;

< Financial instruments;

< Insurance contracts; and

- for local authorities; Council Tax and NDR income.

The key requirements of the standard cover the identification of performance
obligations under customer contracts and the linking of income to the meeting of those
performance obligations.

- There are transitional arrangements within the standard; however as the 2018/19
Accounting Code of Practice for Local Authorities has yet to be issued it is unclear
what the impact on local authority accounting will be.

IFRS 16 will be applicable for local authority accounts from the 2019/20 financial year.

Whilst the definition of a lease remains similar to the current leasing standard; IAS 17,
for local authorities who lease in a large number of assets the new standard will have a
significant impact, with nearly all current leases being included on the balance sheet.

There are transitional arrangements within the standard, although as the 2019/20
Accounting Code of Practice for Local Authorities has yet to be issued it is unclear
what the impact on local authority accounting will be or whether any statutory
overrides will be introduced.

As with IFRS 9, some initial thoughts on the
approach to adopting IFRS 15 have been issued by
CIPFA. However, until the Code is issued there
remains some uncertainty. However, what is clear
is that for all material income sources from
customers the Council will have to:
- Disaggregate revenue into appropriate
categories
- ldentify relevant performance obligations
and allocate income to each
- Summarise significant judgements

The Council is awaiting clarification of the exact
requirements before investing time in the above
work.

Until the 2019/20 Accounting Code is issued and
any statutory overrides are confirmed there
remains some uncertainty in this area.

However, what is clear is that the Council will need
to undertake a detailed exercise to classify all of its
leases and therefore must ensure that all lease
arrangements are fully documented.

The Council is has yet to commence work in this
area due to the timing of implementation.

8e0T abed

/. Wal| epuaby



@ Appendix D
Accounting and regulatory update (continued)

Progress report on implementation of new standards and regulations

In previous reports to the Audit Committee, we highlighted the issue of new accounting standards and regulatory developments. The following table summarises progress
on implementation:

Summary of key
measures

Impact on Central Bedfordshire Council |[k @

Earlier
deadline for
production
and audit of
the
financial
statements
from
2017/18

The Accounts and
Audit Regulations
2015 introduced a
significant change
in statutory
deadlines from the
2017/18 financial
year. From that
year the timetable
for the preparation
and approval of
accounts will be
brought forward
with draft accounts
needing to be
prepared by 31
May and the
publication of the
audited accounts
by 31 July.

These changes provide challenges for both the preparers and the auditors of the financial statements.

To prepare for this change the Council has taken some steps in 2016/17. For example it has started to critically review and
amend the closedown process to achieve earlier draft accounts production.

As auditors, nationally we have:

Issued a thought piece on early closedown

As part of the strategic Alliance with CIPFA jointly presented accounts closedown workshops across England, Scotland

and Wales
Presented at CIPFA early closedown events and on the subject at the Local Government Accounting Conferences in
July 2017

Locally we have had discussions through the year on the Council’s proposals to bring forward the closedown timetable and on
potential areas for early work.

We have agreed with the Council to engage early, following the completion of the 2016/17 audit, to facilitate early substantive

testing for 2017/18 and also to consider steps the Council can take, for example:

Streamlining the Statement of Accounts removing all non-material disclosure notes

Bringing forward the commissioning and production of key externally provided information such as IAS 19 pension
information, asset valuations

Providing training to departmental finance staff regarding the requirements and implications of earlier closedown
Re-ordering tasks from year-end to monthly/quarterly timing, reducing year-end pressure

Establishing and agreeing working materiality amounts with the auditors

) W3]l epuaby

Ry0T abed



@ Appendix E
Management representation letter

Management Representation Letter

[To be prepared on the entity’s letterhead]
[Date]

Ernst & Young

400 Capability Green

Luton

LU1 3LU

This letter of representations is provided in connection with your audit of the financial statements of Central Bedfordshire Council (“the Council”) for the year ended 31 March 2017.
We recognise that obtaining representations from us concerning the information contained in this letter is a significant procedure in enabling you to form an opinion as to whether the
financial statements give a true and fair view of the Council financial position of Central Bedfordshire Council as of 31 March 2017 and of its income and expenditure for the year then
ended in accordance with CIPFA LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2016/17.

We understand that the purpose of your audit of our financial statements is to express an opinion thereon and that your audit was conducted in accordance with International
Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland), which involves an examination of the accounting system, internal control and related data to the extent you considered necessary in the
circumstances, and is not designed to identify - nor necessarily be expected to disclose - all fraud, shortages, errors and other irregularities, should any exist.

Accordingly, we make the following representations, which are true to the best of our knowledge and belief, having made such inquiries as we considered necessary for the purpose of
appropriately informing ourselves:
A. Financial Statements and Financial Records

1. We have fulfilled our responsibilities, under the relevant statutory authorities, for the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with the Accounts and Audit
Regulations 2015 and CIPFA LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2016/17.

2.  We acknowledge, as members of management of the Council, our responsibility for the fair presentation of the financial statements. We believe the financial statements referred
to above give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance (or results of operations) and cash flows of the Council in accordance with the CIPFA LASAAC
Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2016/17. We have approved the financial statements.

3. The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements are appropriately described in the financial statements.

4. As members of management of the Council, we believe that the Council has a system of internal controls adequate to enable the preparation of accurate financial statements in
accordance with the CIPFA LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2016/17, that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

) W3]l epuaby

&GOT abed



=

Appendix E

Management Representation Letter (continued)

5. As members of management of the Council, we believe that the Council has a system of internal controls adequate to enable the preparation of accurate financial statements in
accordance with the CIPFA LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2016/17, that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

6. There are no unadjusted audit differences identified during the current audit and pertaining to the latest period presented.

B. Fraud

1. We acknowledge that we are responsible for the design, implementation and maintenance of internal controls to prevent and detect fraud.

2. We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that the financial statements may be materially misstated as a result of fraud.

3. We have no knowledge of any fraud or suspected fraud involving management or other employees who have a significant role in the Council’s internal controls over financial

reporting. In addition, we have no knowledge of any fraud or suspected fraud involving other employees in which the fraud could have a material effect on the financial
statements. We have no knowledge of any allegations of financial improprieties, including fraud or suspected fraud, (regardless of the source or form and including without
limitation, any allegations by “whistleblowers™) which could result in a misstatement of the financial statements or otherwise affect the financial reporting of the Council.

C. Compliance with Laws and Regulations

1.

We have disclosed to you all identified or suspected non-compliance with laws and regulations whose effects should be considered when preparing the financial statements.

D. Information Provided and Completeness of Information and Transactions

1.

We have provided you with:

1. Access to all information of which we are aware that is relevant to the preparation of the financial statements such as records, documentation and other matters;
2. Additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of the audit; and

3. Unrestricted access to persons within the entity from whom you determined it necessary to obtain audit evidence.

All material transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are reflected in the financial statements.

We have made available to you all minutes of the meetings of the Council and committees (or summaries of actions of recent meetings for which minutes have not yet been
prepared) held through the year to the most recent meeting on the following date: [list date].

We confirm the completeness of information provided regarding the identification of related parties. We have disclosed to you the identity of the Council’s related parties and all

related party relationships and transactions of which we are aware, including sales, purchases, loans, transfers of assets, liabilities and services, leasing arrangements,

/. W3]l epuaby

$90T abed



=

Appendix E

Management Representation Letter (continued)

guarantees, non-monetary transactions and transactions for no consideration for the period ended, as well as related balances due to or from such parties at the year end. These

5.

transactions have been appropriately accounted for and disclosed in the financial statements.

We believe that the significant assumptions we used in making accounting estimates, including those measured at fair value, are reasonable.

We have disclosed to you, and the Council has complied with, all aspects of contractual agreements that could have a material effect on the financial statements in the event of non-

compliance, including all covenants, conditions or other requirements of all outstanding debt.

E. Liabilities and Contingencies

1.

All liabilities and contingencies, including those associated with guarantees, whether written or oral, have been disclosed to you and are appropriately reflected in the financial
statements.

We have informed you of all outstanding and possible litigation and claims, whether or not they have been discussed with legal counsel.

We have recorded and/or disclosed, as appropriate, all liabilities related litigation and claims, both actual and contingent, and have disclosed in Note [X] to the financial
statements all guarantees that we have given to third parties.

The ......... claim by [name of claimant] have been settled for the total sum of XXX which has been properly accrued in the financial statements. No other claims in connection with
litigation have been or are expected to be received.

F. Subsequent Events

1.0ther than.......... described in Note [X] to the financial statements, there have been no events subsequent to period end which require adjustment of or disclosure in the financial
statements or notes thereto.

G. Other information

1. We acknowledge our responsibility for the preparation of the other information. The other information comprises [describe the other information applicable to the entity].

2. We confirm that the content contained within the other information is consistent with the financial statements.

Yours faithfully,

(Chief Finance Officer)

(Chairman of the Audit Committee)

) W3]l epuaby

X20T abed



EY | Assurance | Tax | Transactions | Advisory

About EY

EY is a global leader in assurance, tax, transaction and advisory
services. The insights and quality services we deliver help build
trust and confidence in the capital markets and in economies the
world over. We develop outstanding leaders who team to deliver on
our promises to all of our stakeholders. In so doing, we play a
critical role in building a better working world for our people, for
our clients and for our communities.

EY refers to the global organization, and may refer to one or more,
of the member firms of Ernst & Young Global Limited, each of
which is a separate legal entity. Ernst & Young Global Limited, a UK
company limited by guarantee, does not provide services to
clients. For more information about our organization, please visit
ey.com.

© 2017 EYGM Limited.
All Rights Reserved.

ED None

This material has been prepared for general informational purposes only and is not
intended to be relied upon as accounting, tax, or other professional advice. Please refer
to your advisors for specific advice.

ey.com

/. Wal| epuaby

80T abed



Agenda Item 8
Page 109

Central Bedfordshire Council

AUDIT COMMITTEE Wednesday, 27 September 2017

2016/17 Statement of Accounts

Report of: Charles Warboys, Director of Resources and Section 151 Officer
(charles.warboys@centralbedfordshire.gov.uk)

Purpose of this report

1. The report presents the 2016/17 Statement of Accounts for Central
Bedfordshire Council. The annual accounts document is attached at
Appendix A to the report.

RECOMMENDATIONS

Having considered the Audit Results Report from Ernst and Young LLP
(agenda item 7) the Committee is asked to approve:

1. the 2016/17 Statement of Accounts as presented;

2 the publication of the Annual Governance Statement 2016/17 with the
2016/17 Statement of Accounts; and

3. the 2016/17 draft Letter of Representation, as set out at Appendix C, for
submission to the Council’s external auditor Ernst & Young LLP, and
that the Chairman of the Audit Committee and the Section 151 Officer
be authorised to sign it.

Overview and Scrutiny Comments/Recommendations

2. This report is not scheduled to be considered by Overview and Scrutiny as
the Audit Committee provides independent scrutiny of the Authority’s
financial performance.

Background

3. Regulations require that the annual accounts are published with the audit
opinion and certificate no later than 30 September following the end of the
financial year. In advance of this the accounts must have been approved
by Members. Approval of the accounts is therefore required at the


mailto:charles.warboys@centralbedfordshire.gov.uk

Agenda Item 8
Page 110

September 2017 Audit Committee. The full set of annual accounts is
attached at Appendix A.

Auditing standards require the external auditor to obtain appropriate
written representation from the Council about the financial statements and
governance arrangements. The Committee is therefore asked to approve
the draft letter of representation to Ernst and Young LLP attached at
Appendix C.

Statement of Accounts 2016/17

5.

The Section 151 Officer, as required by the Accounts and Audit
Regulations, certified the 2016/17 draft annual accounts on 29" June
2017. A presentation explaining key figures within the accounts was made
to the Audit Committee at its June meeting. Public inspection of the
accounts was also advertised and this concluded on 10 August 2017.

The Statement of Accounts 2016/17 have been subject to external audit
examination by Ernst & Young LLP during the period July to September
2017. The Ernst & Young LLP’s Audit Results Report (EY ARR) is at item
7 on this agenda. At the point of writing this report the audit has
concluded.

The Audit Results Report outlines any audit differences impacting on the
original draft version of the accounts that exceed £0.586m-a value
calculated by the external auditors based on their level of materiality. At
the time of writing this report one such difference, in respect of the
disclosed valuation of the Council’s housing stock, has been identified.
The valuation of the housing stock disclosed in the draft accounts of
£398.98m was understated by £40m and consequently the unusable
Capital Adjustment Account Reserve (£526.041m) and Revaluation
Reserve (£236.58m) were also understated. The difference has been
adjusted in the statement of accounts as it was deemed material to the
individual balance of the housing stock, albeit not to the overall valuation
of property plant and equipment of £1.3bn.

The difference in the valuation arises from the results of the impairment
review undertaken by the Council’s professional valuer, Wilks Head & Eve,
which suggested that there had been a market increase in the valuation of
the Council’s housing stock of 10%. Initially it was felt that this was not
material to the balance and therefore the suggested uplift was not applied
to the valuation in the draft statements. Further it was considered that as
the Council’s housing stock is revalued every year it would not materially
mislead the reader of the accounts.

Robust discussion took place with EY as to whether the impairment review
should have been applied. As they considered the balance of the
Council’s housing stock in isolation from the overall property plant and



Agenda Item 8
Page 111

equipment it was deemed a material change and therefore an adjustment
to the accounts would be required.

10. Further to this we have commenced discussion with the valuers to identify
whether it is possible to change the date of the initial valuation of the
housing stock from 1 April each year to later in the year. The impact of
which would greatly reduce any change in market prices at the end of the
year. At the time of writing this is looking favourable and it may be that in
future years the date of the valuation will be 31 December resulting in only
3 months of any change in market conditions which it is considered
unlikely to be material and therefore no impairment allowance will be
required to be adjusted for at the year end.

11. At the time of writing the external audit process for 2016/17 is complete
and there are no issues identified that would prevent an unqualified audit
opinion being issued. Work also continues in respect of the Whole of
Government Accounts (WGA) return for 2016/17 and it is planned to have
the audit of this aspect completed by HM Treasury’s deadline of 29
September 2017. The audit completion certificate cannot be issued until
after the WGA audit is completed.

Changes made to the Statement of Accounts certified by Section 151
Officer on 29 June 2017

12. Appendix B sets out the changes made to the statement of accounts
certified by the Section 151 Officer on 29 June 2017. The majority of the
changes are presentational in nature reflecting various incorrect
classifications of specific items. With the exception of the change in the
valuation of the Council’s housing stock, none of the items impact on the
financial position of the Council as reported at 31 March 2017.

Uncorrected misstatements below the audit reporting threshold

13. There were no misstatements identified during the audit that have not
been adjusted in the statements.

Letter of Representation

14. Auditing standards require the External Auditor to obtain appropriate
written representation from the Council about the financial statements and
governance arrangements. The Committee is therefore asked to approve
a draft letter of representation to Ernst & Young, attached at Appendix C.

Reasons for decision

15. As required by the Accounts and Audit Regulations the annual accounts
must be published with the audit opinion no later than 30 September. In



Agenda Item 8
Page 112

advance of this the accounts must have been approved by Members and
to meet this requirement approval of the accounts is required at the 27
September 2017 Committee meeting.

Council Priorities

16. The effective management of the Council’s financial resources and the
associated risks supports the delivery of the Council’s priorities.

Corporate Implications
Legal Implications

17.The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2011 require the Council to approve
and publish annual accounts by 30 September following the end of the
financial year.

Financial and Risk Implications

18.The annual accounts report the financial position of the authority at the
end of the financial year and are prepared under the International
Financial Reporting Standards, as interpreted by the Chartered Institute of
Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) Code of Practice.

Equalities Implications
19. There are no equalities implications to this report.
Conclusion and next Steps

20. Following approval, in accordance with the Accounts and Audit
Regulations 2015 and the completion of the external audit process, the
Statement of Accounts 2016/17 and the public notice of the conclusion of
the audit of accounts by Ernst & Young LLP will both be published.

21.The signed letter of representation will be provided to the auditors.
Appendices
Appendix A: 2016/17 Statement of Accounts

Appendix B: Schedule of Changes
Appendix C: 2016/17 Letter of Representation



Agenda Item 8
Page 113

Background Papers
None
Report authors:

Denis Galvin, Assistant Director of Finance,
denis.qgalvin@centralbedfordshire.gov.uk, tel: 0300 300 6083

Stephanie Pocock, Financial Controller,
stephanie.pocock@centralbedfordshire.gov.uk, tel: 0300 300 6154



mailto:denis.galvin@centralbedfordshire.gov.uk
mailto:stephanie.pocock@centralbedfordshire.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 8
e 115

Appendix A

Central Bedfordshire Council
www.centralbedfordshire.gov.uk

Central Bedfordshire

Council

Statement of Accounts for the year
2016/17



ManningL01_2
Text Box
Appendix A



Agenda Item 8
Page 116

CENTRAL BEDFORDSHIRE COUNCIL

STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2016/17

Contents Page
Narrative Report 2
Statement of Responsibilities 21

Core Financial Statements

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 23
Movement in Reserves Statement 24
Balance Sheet 26
Cash Flow Statement 27
Notes to the Core Financial Statements 28

Supplementary Financial Statements

Housing Revenue Account Income and Expenditure Statement 109
Movement on the Housing Revenue Account Statement 110
Collection Fund Statement 115
Statement of Auditor’s Opinion To be included in final statements
Annual Governance Statement To be included in final statements
Glossary 121
Contact Details 135

Central Bedfordshire Council Statement of Accounts 2016/17



Agenda Item 8
Page 117

Narrative Report

Introduction

Central Bedfordshire is a unitary authority serving a growing population of around
274,000 residents, the 15™ largest unitary council population in England. It is a
largely rural area with over half the population living in the countryside and the rest in
a number of market towns.

The largest of these are Leighton :

Buzzard, Dunstable, Houghton Sedford o Cambs
Regis, Biggleswade, Flitwick and :
Sandy.

~ Milton

The area is generally prosperous,
with above average levels of
employment. However, there are
pockets of deprivation and greater
need in some areas.

Bucks ) Herts

The area has excellent transport

links with the A1 and M1 running . Loneion
through it, three main rail lines and

two international airports, Luton and Stansted, on our doorstep.

It is a relatively safe, green and affluent area which has attracted major investment.
People living in Central Bedfordshire earn more than the national average; this is in
part influenced by some residents commuting out of the area — primarily to
Hertfordshire, Luton, London and Milton Keynes.

According to the Better Family Life Index from uSwitch.com, Central Bedfordshire
has been ranked the third best place in the UK to live for families (11th in 2015). The
annual study by the independent price comparison and switching service looks at
different aspects which are important to family life and then ranks 138 local
authorities across the UK accordingly.

This year’s study using consumer research and government data focused on 33
areas, ranging from health, housing, crime and education to the amount of sleep
people get and the average daily hours of sunshine.

Our Services
The following core services are provided by the Council:
e Adult Social Care involves the provision of social work, personal care,

protection or social support services to adults in need or at risk, or adults with
needs arising from illness, disability, old age or poverty.

e Children’s services provide care and protection where needed to help
children and young people fulfil their potential. The Council supports schools

Central Bedfordshire Council Statement of Accounts 2016/17



Agenda Item 8
Page 118

and children’s centres, helping disabled children and their families and
providing fostering and adoption services.

e Planning, regeneration and business services help to support business
growth, develop skills, drive employment and reinvigorate towns to attract
investment and jobs as well as meeting housing need.

e Waste and recycling services organise alternate weekly bin collections for
113,000 households as well as running four tidy tips.

e Highways services keep roads and pavements in good shape by fixing
problems quickly and efficiently as well as providing walking and cycling
routes and promoting road safety.

e Housing (Housing Revenue Account) the Council owns and manages over
5,000 properties.

e Community protection services make sure that Central Bedfordshire is a fair
and safe place to live by tackling anti-social behaviour, supporting businesses
to trade fairly and safely, and look after the environment.

e Leisure, libraries and countryside services provide opportunities to get fit,
meet others, learn, access arts and culture and enjoy the great outdoors.

e Other services support the democratic process and keep the Council running
effectively and efficiently making sure customers can access the services they
need. For example, customer contact teams are the first port of call for
residents’ queries including payment of housing benefit and council tax
support; financial services oversee spending and payments and legal services
support work to protect children and the public. Registrars officiate at
marriages, civil partnerships and celebratory services and certify births and
deaths. The Council also administers local and national elections and
maintains the electoral register.

These services are either provided directly by the Council or are commissioned from
and delivered by other organisations. Most of these services are mandatory,
meaning that the Council must provide them because it is under a statutory duty to
do so. There has been no major change in statutory functions during 2016/17.

e Planned future developments in service delivery include

o Customer Pathways — reviewing and improving the ways in which
customers interact with the Council

o Shared services — working more effectively with partners to deliver
improved outcomes for the public and business, and

o Waste — increasing recycling by using targeted leaflets, bin tags, vehicle
branding and electronic media to encourage residents to recycle more and
recycle the correct things thereby reducing the cost of disposal.

o Digitisation — to digitise all of the Council’'s services to enhance
accessibility for the Council’s residents, businesses and service users.

Central Bedfordshire Council Statement of Accounts 2016/17



Agenda Item 8
Page 119

Council Structure

Political Structure

There are 59 elected Councillors and at 31 March 2017 the Conservative group held
53 seats. The largest opposition group comprised three Independent Councillors and
the Labour and Liberal Democrat parties held two and one seats respectively.

Management Structure

Delivering a diverse range of services relies on a well structured management team.
The Council’s directorates are shaped around the services provided.

1
Chief Executive
Richard Carr

Director of Social | Director of Director of
Care, Health & . . Director of Resources Regeneration &
. Community Services .
Housing e Charles Warboys Business
Marcel Coiffait

Julie Ogley Jason Longhurst

|
Director of Public Director of Children's
Health Services
Muriel Scott Susan Harrison
]

Following the departure of the former Director of Improvement & Corporate Services
at the end of June 2016 a decision was taken to move to a new operating model,
where the leadership of the core services on which the whole organisation depends
would be distributed across the Corporate Management Team. As a result the Chief
Finance Officer was appointed to the role of Director of Resources and other
Directors took on various corporate functions. The 2015/16 Comprehensive Income
& Expenditure Statement has been restated to reflect the new structure and enable
comparability between the financial year ended 31 March 2017 and the previous
year.

This change has also reduced Senior Officer remuneration costs by £53k to £1.266M
(E1.319M in 2015/16). The full year impact, which will be seen in 2017/18, will
equate to a higher reduction. Further detail on this can be seen in Note 31 to the
Statement of Accounts.

Employees

The Council employs approximately 4,000 staff and also employs some temporary /
agency staff to deliver the various services, however the dependency on temporary
resources is reducing with total spend in 2016/17 down by £2.673M (£10.077M
compared with £12.750M in 2015/16).

A staff survey is conducted on a biennial basis, which provides an insight into what it
is like to work at the Council, across a range of services, and allows officers to work
together to affect positive change. The results from the Autumn 2016 survey
identified that Council staff feel valued and would recommend Central Bedfordshire
Council as a place to work.

Central Bedfordshire Council Statement of Accounts 2016/17



Agenda Item 8
Page 120

The Council invests in staff and constantly looks to improve the working
environment. A wellbeing programme is promoted including activities such as the
workplace challenge, a national programme aimed at engaging workplaces in sport
and physical activity and gardening.

In 2016/17 a vacancy management programme was implemented which has
emphasised opportunities for internal applications and has increased the flexibility for
staff to work in different areas.

A Working Smarter programme is being implemented which is aimed at continuing to
modernise the way the Council works, operating with less paper, leaner processes
and using fewer offices by enabling staff to work in any locations, including home
working. To do this technology is being applied more effectively and office space is
being adapted to enable more flexible working.

Looking ahead there are a number of projects in place for 2017/18 that are also
aimed at further improving working practices. As well as continuing to roll out the
Working Smarter programme a new HR system (Success Factors) will be
implemented to better integrate corporate systems and facilitate more efficient and
effective recruitment.

The Council is also focusing further on the use of technology. Digitisation 2017 is an
ambitious programme to transform the organisation so that the Council is in the best
possible position to deliver the objectives for customers and communities.
Technology will be essential to successful delivery of the Council’s ambitions, not
only in making 100 per cent of services accessible online but also in other areas,
such as the Working Smarter programme and improving data management.

The Council’s Five Year Plan 2015-2020

The Council has adopted a Five Year Plan for the period 2015-2020 to deliver a
vision of making Central Bedfordshire a great place to live and work. The Council
intends to respond to changes in demography and technology whilst accommodating
ongoing regulatory change and central government public expenditure plans.
Improving the health and happiness of residents are key aims of the plan.

Underpinning this vision are our priorities:

Enhancing Central Bedfordshire

Great Resident Services

Improving Education and Skills

Protecting the Vulnerable; Improving Wellbeing
Creating Stronger Communities

A More Efficient and Responsive Council

The Five Year Plan can be accessed on the Council’'s website

http://www.centralbedfordshire.gov.uk/council/five-year/plan.aspx

Central Bedfordshire Council Statement of Accounts 2016/17


http://www.centralbedfordshire.gov.uk/council/five-year/plan.aspx

Agenda Item 8
Page 121

Our Performance

Enhancing Central Bedfordshire

We have an ambitious capital programme with a plan to invest up to £284m over the
four years from 2016/17 to deliver some key infrastructure projects including roads,
school buildings, leisure facilities and much more.

The Woodside Link road scheme, which connects Houghton Regis and Dunstable
industrial estates to the M1 junction 11a, opened to the public on 13 April 2017. The
road was built to tackle current heavy traffic and poor air quality in the local towns
and villages and to provide vital infrastructure ahead of its plans to bring future
business and housing growth to the area.

Nine parks and open spaces across Central Bedfordshire were recognised in this
year’s Green Flag awards.

There are a number of exciting and ambitious schemes in place and in the pipeline
to revitalise the market towns. Town centre vacancy rates are a good way of
indicating their success and prosperity, and will be monitored closely so that the
Council can be certain the work it is doing is effective. The vacancy rate in Central
Bedfordshire town centres currently stands at 4.31%, an improvement on the 5.75%
recorded in June 2016.

Great Resident Services

Performance in key services has continued to improve. A number of the Council’s
universal services were relatively well regarded from the outset of the Council in
2009 and have enjoyed increasing levels of satisfaction.

Refuse collection, for example, achieved customer satisfaction ratings of 72% in
2011. In 2016, this had increased to 84% which is ahead of the national average.
Satisfaction with the library service is also ahead of the national average (71%
satisfied compared to an average of 64%).

Satisfaction with leisure has almost doubled during the same period. In 2011, 35% of
survey respondents expressed satisfaction and this had increased to 61% in 2016.
The Council has invested heavily in a leisure strategy with a new leisure centre for
Flitwick which opened in 2016 and is proving very popular with users. The Council is
also moving forward with plans for a £20million leisure and cultural hub in the heart
of Dunstable.

Central Bedfordshire Council Statement of Accounts 2016/17



Agenda Item 8
Page 122

Improving Education and Skills

Performance with regard to schools in Central Bedfordshire judged to be '‘Good or
Outstanding' has improved to 89% (from 85% this time last year, and from 75% in
the last four years). Ofsted publish a similar indicator which does not include
sponsored academies yet to be inspected.

The percentage of young people aged 16-18 who are in education or employment or
training (EET) in 2015/16 in Central Bedfordshire has improved to 90.4% (from
88.5% in 2014/15), reflecting the effective support and interventions from the
Council.

Learning new skills doesn't stop when children leave school, so the Council will

support adults to obtain the skills they need to succeed, and will also ensure that it
matches the provision of skills with those that are needed by employers.

Protecting the Vulnerable; Improving Wellbeing

The Council is focusing on helping people live independently for longer, with our
flagship Priory View site in Dunstable a huge success with residents since it opened.
Subsequently this has won national profile, winning awards and hosting a Royal visit
in Spring 2016, when it was opened by HM The Queen and HRH The Duke of
Edinburgh.

The building @ Priory View Exterior @ Priory View

In total the Council facilitated the provision of 164 independent living units, two new
residential care homes and has plans for a further six schemes, the first of which,
Houghton Regis Central, has secured planning permission with construction
envisaged imminently.

Improvement has also been evident in our services for vulnerable adults and
children. Initially the Council saw a rapid rise in the number of looked after children
and children on child protection plans, but has now stabilised the situation.

Much emphasis is placed on developing the Council’s workforce, meaning that we’ve
reduced the proportion of agency staff by 25%. In-house foster care placements
have been increased by 19% and, through a positive emphasis on early intervention,
the number of children on protection plans has reduced by 44% compared to an
increase in the national trend.

Central Bedfordshire Council Statement of Accounts 2016/17



Agenda Item 8
Page 123

Creating Stronger Communities

The Council will do all it can to strengthen community spirit in Central Bedfordshire's
towns and villages, nurturing a sense of place and belonging to build resilience and
reduce social isolation.

A More Efficient and Responsive Council

The Council will be focused on cost effectiveness and efficiency in all that it does.
Customers, the residents and businesses of Central Bedfordshire, will help to
determine whether it is successful in this ambition. The Council will listen to their
opinions, views and preferences in shaping its plans.

The latest market research (September 2016) suggests that customer satisfaction
has doubled since the Council was created with 70% (68% national average) of
residents suggesting they are satisfied with the way the Council runs things,
compared to 35% in 2009. Satisfaction with value for money has also more than
doubled (now 58%) and 49% of residents are positive advocates now, compared to
just 11% in the 2009 baseline research.

The Council has achieved a sustainable financial position, having delivered savings
of £104m since 2009 and has a robust plan to maintain financial stability in the years
to come.

The Council intends to continue to work to ensure that provision of the best possible
services and opportunities for residents of all ages. The Council will also continue to
work hand-in-hand with big businesses that are now seeing Central Bedfordshire as
the perfect place to set up shop, bringing money and jobs to the area.

In pursuit of achieving financial sustainability, addressing health inequalities and
improving health outcomes, the Sustainability and Transformation Plan has five
priority areas of action. The three public facing areas are focusing on prevention,
integration of primary and social care and the future of hospital provision. This is
already a contentious area of potential change but one that must be addressed given
the particular financial pressures on the health system in this area.

Draft Outcome of Corporate Peer Challenge

In May 2017 the Council took part in the Local Government Association’s Corporate
Peer Challenge. This is a proven tool for improvement. It is a process commissioned
by a Council and involves a small team of local government officers and Councillors
spending time at the council as peers to provide challenge and share learning.

Following the review the Council was described in the draft report as: “An impressive

Council, which has established a sound foundation and is delivering some exemplary
work.”

Central Bedfordshire Council Statement of Accounts 2016/17



Agenda Item 8
Page 124

Having spent time interviewing staff and Councillors, as well as analysing a wide
range of policies and plans the reviewers acknowledged the track record in
improving customer satisfaction, staff engagement and financial management. The
review also acknowledged “exemplary” partnership working, innovations in training
and development such as the Social Work Academy and the high quality of the
Council workforce.

The Council was challenged to be more joined up in the approach to affecting
change, specifically urging the importance of connecting the transformation agendas
across the Councils’ services. The finalised peer review feedback will be used to
consider future developments across the Council.

Medium Term Financial Plan 2017-2021

The Council’s Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP) underpins the Five Year Plan, by
allocating resources to deliver Council services and strategic outcomes, whilst
identifying adjustments to achieve a sustainable financial position over the next four
years. The MTFP 2017-2021 was updated and approved by Council on 23 February
2017 against a background of the significant challenges of reductions in public sector
funding and ongoing reforms to local government, at a time of subdued economic
growth.

Following a change in Central Government policy to the way in which Local
Authorities are funded, 2016/17 was the first time for a number of years that the
Council increased Council Tax.

Prior to 2016/17, the Council had generated savings of more than £104M in order to
avoid the necessity of increases in Council Tax whilst protecting front line services.
This was achieved by adopting a whole Council approach to robust budget
management, delivering more efficient ways of working and ensuring that the
Directorate and Service priorities were clearly identified and resourced.

The MTFP for 2017-21 identified £15.2M of efficiencies as required to produce a
balanced budget for 2017/18 in the light of the ongoing reduction in funding from
Government and emerging cost pressures. A further £31.2M of efficiencies had been
estimated as required over the three years from April 2018 in order to achieve the
proposed MTFP.

The Council’'s funding from Government over the MTFP period comprises three
elements:

e Revenue Support Grant (RSG) — two years only.

e Business Rates Retention Scheme and

e Grants, including Ring Fenced Grants & New Homes Bonus

Local Government funding sources are forecast to change significantly over the
Medium Term Financial Plan period 2017/18 to 2020/21.

The chart below shows how funding sources are forecast to change over the MTFP
period, with 2013/14 to 2016/17 as comparators.

Central Bedfordshire Council Statement of Accounts 2016/17



Agenda Item 8
Page 125

250

200

150 -

£m

100 - M Council Tax £m

Business Rates £m

H New Homes Bonus £m
50 -

13/14 | 14/15|15/16 | 16/17 | 17/18 | 18/19|19/20 | 20/21
£m £fm £m £m £m £m £m £m

B RSG £m

Council Tax £m 118 | 120 | 123 | 135 | 144 | 149 | 154 | 162
Business Rates £m 28 28 32 32 34 36 38 41
New Homes Bonus £m 5 7 7 7 7 7

RSG £m 43 37 30 20 11

The Council maintains a level of general reserves to allow it to withstand any
unanticipated financial impacts of future developments at a local and national level.
As at 31 March 2017 the General Fund balance stood at £15.6M (£15.5M as at 31
March 2016). Strategic and operational risks facing the Council are identified,
reviewed and managed on a continuous basis in line with the Council’'s Risk
Management Strategy.

Financial Overview
Financial Performance — Revenue Budget

The net revenue budget for 2016/17 was set by the Council at £189.2M (£186.5M in
2015/16). This excludes the budget allocated to schools and also the Council’s self
financing Housing Revenue Account (Landlord business). The latter is reported
under separate cover and schools are not included as the grant received from the
Government is passed directly through to schools.

The 31 March 2017 net revenue outturn reported to the Executive Committee
meeting of 20 June 2017, after movements in earmarked reserves, was £0.052M
below budget (£0.051M below budget 2015/16). The outturn position reported to the
Executive Committee is reconciled to the accounting statements via the Expenditure
and Funding Analysis (EFA) and summarised by Directorate in the table below.

Central Bedfordshire Council Statement of Accounts 2016/17
10



Agenda Item 8

Page 126
Provisional Outturn March 2017

Directorate Budget Actual Variance

£m £m £m
SCHH 69.3 69.8 0.5
Childrens Services 36.6 36.1 (0.6)
Community Services 46.7 46.5 (0.2)
Regeneration 5.9 5.7 (0.2)
Public Health 0.0 0.0 0.0
Chief Executive's 7.5 8.0 0.6
Resources 11.7 10.9 (0.8)
Corporate Costs 11.5 12.1 0.7
Total Excl Landlord Business 189.2 189.1 (0.2)
Schools 0.0 0.0 0.0
Landlord Business 0.0 0.0 (0.0)
Total 189.2 189.1 (0.1)

Financial Performance — Capital Programme

The Council’'s Capital programme sets out expenditure plans for acquiring,
constructing and improving buildings, roads and equipment that are used in
delivering services. The Council derives benefit from such capital expenditure over
many years. Capital expenditure on capital assets amounted to £84.9M in the year
ended 31 March 2017 (£84.2M in 2015/16).

The Capital programme also includes £28.3M (£27.5M in 2015/16) of grants and
other expenditure on projects that are capital in nature but do not create an asset to
be recognised on the Council’s Balance Sheet. The Council has authority under
statute to finance such revenue expenditure from capital resources.

In 2016/17 the total Council capital programme expenditure was £108.5M (£109.4M
in 2015/16), which was £39.7M (£50.7M in 2015/16) less than the budget. The
majority of the programme variance (£41.6M) related to various scheme delays
where expenditure will be incurred in 2017/18 and future years (£46.1M in 2015/16).
Additional expenditure of £3.1M was funded by contributions made by developers
under section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act (£2.3M in 2015/16). The
Council did not spend the full budget allocation in 2016/17 mainly due to delays in a
small number of large schemes arising from extended tendering and procurement

Central Bedfordshire Council Statement of Accounts 2016/17
11



Agenda Item 8
Page 127

activity, delays in third parties approving grant applications and extended
consultation activity.

The Council continues to invest in service improvements and during 2016/17
significant projects included expenditure on a new independent living housing
development in Houghton Regis, enhancement to waste disposal facilities and
redevelopment of a medical centre in Biggleswade. Investment in the Highway
network is a key Council priority and a very significant project is the new Woodside
Link road which connects the industrial areas of Dunstable and Houghton Regis to
the strategic road network.

Capital expenditure has been funded by Government capital grant together with
contributions from developers and outside agencies, available capital receipts and
revenue contributions. Funding from these sources totalled £64.6M (£82.9M in
2015/16); with the balance of £48.6M met from borrowing finance (£28.9M in
2015/16). Capital receipts—£10.3M (E5M in 2015/16), have been the highest
achieved since the Council began in 2009. Where Council cash resources are
required for funding, internal borrowing has been utilised to the full extent and
external borrowing used thereafter.

The following diagrams show our capital investment and sources of finance in
2016/17. Further detail can be found in Note 36 to the Statement of Accounts.

2016/17 Capital Investment - £113.2M

Revenue
funded from
capital under
statute

Intangible et

assets
1%

Central Bedfordshire Council Statement of Accounts 2016/17
12



Agenda Item 8
Page 128

2016/17 Sources of Finance Capital

receipts
9%

Borrowing
43%

Minimum Major
Direct Revenue Repairs
Revenue Provision Allowance
contributions(MRP (HRA)
5% 2% 4%

Statement of Accounts

The Council is required by statute to prepare a Statement of Accounts in accordance
with proper practices in relation to accounts. The Statement of Accounts has been
produced for the Council as a single entity based on International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS) and prepared in accordance with the Chartered Institute
of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) Code of Practice on Local Authority
Accounting in the United Kingdom 2016/17 (“the Code”).

The Code’s overriding requirement is that the Statement of Accounts should ‘present
a true and fair view’ of the financial position and transactions of the Council. The
pattern of presentation of the statement is laid down by the Code, which the Council
is legally required to follow.

The Statement of Accounts and the supporting notes explain the Council's finances
during the financial year 2016/17 and its financial position at the year end. It follows
approved accounting standards and is necessarily technical in parts. Comparative
numbers are also provided for the financial year 2015/16.

Explanation of the Main Statements in the Accounts

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (CIES)

This statement, as set out on page 23, shows the accounting cost in the year of
providing services in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices,

Central Bedfordshire Council Statement of Accounts 2016/17
13



Agenda Item 8
Page 129

rather than the amount to be funded from taxation. Authorities raise taxation to cover
expenditure in accordance with regulations; this may be different from the accounting
cost. The taxation position is shown in both the EFA and the Movement in Reserves
Statement. The 2015/16 CIES has been restated to reflect the new structure and
enable comparability between the financial year ended 31 March 2017 and the
previous year. There has been no change to the Net Cost of Service as the
restructure represented an change in responsibility between directorates and not a
change in services provided.

Key items to note:

e Net cost of services has changed by £13.780M largely as a result of the
positive valuation of the HRA in 2015/16 impacting on the comparative
figures. Individual service line expenditure has remained broadly consistent
between years demonstrating that there has not been a significant movement
in the net costs of Council’s activities. This has had an impact on the overall
position on the provision of services resulting in a deficit of £10.892M (surplus
of £4.260M in 2015/16).

e Financing and investment income has remained broadly the same between
years, as has taxation and non specific grants.

e Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure has moved considerably
between the years (£151.450M) largely as a result of the movement on the
value of the defined pension liability (£85.042M in 2016/17 compared with an
asset of £74.176M in 2015/16 — a total movement of £159.218M).

The Movement in Reserves Statement

This Statement, as set out on page 24, shows the movement in the year on the
different reserves held by the Council, analysed into 'usable reserves' (i.e. those that
can be applied to fund expenditure or reduce local taxation) and other ‘unusable
reserves’. The Statement shows how the movements in year of the authority’s
reserves are broken down between gains and losses incurred in accordance with
generally accepted accounting practices and the statutory adjustments required to
return to the amounts chargeable to council tax (or rents) for the year. The Net
Increase/Decrease line shows the statutory General Fund Balance and Housing
Revenue Account Balance movements in the year following those adjustments.

Key items to note:

e Usable reserves have increased by £17.1M to a total of £102.7M (£85.6M in
2015/16). Of the usable reserves £76M has been set aside in earmarked
reserves as it is destined for specific purposes. Note 10, to the Statement of
Accounts has further information on these future projects.

e In contrast the unusable reserves have reduced by £26.4M to a total of
£385.4M (£411.8M in 2015/16). The main reasons for this reduction are a
£96M increase in the Pension Reserve deficit as a result of changes in the
assumptions used to value the fund which is offset with a £83M increase in
the Revaluation Reserve (£263.8M in 2016/17 compared with £180.6M in
2015/16) and a £12M reduction in the Capital Adjustment Account.

Central Bedfordshire Council Statement of Accounts 2016/17
14



Agenda Item 8
Page 130

The Balance Sheet

The Balance Sheet, as set out on page 26, shows the value as at the Balance Sheet
date of the Council's assets and liabilities. The net assets of the Council (assets less
liabilities) are matched by the reserves held by the Council. Reserves are reported in
two categories. The first category of reserves are usable reserves, i.e., those
reserves that the Council may use to provide services, subject to the need to
maintain a prudent level of reserves and any statutory limitations on their use (for
example, the Capital Receipts Reserve that may only be used to fund capital
expenditure or repay debt). The second category of reserves is unusable reserves,
i.e., those reserves that the Council is not able to use to provide services. This
category of reserves includes reserves that hold unrealised gains and losses (for
example, the Revaluation Reserve), where amounts would only become available to
provide services if the assets are sold; and reserves that hold timing differences
shown in the Movement in Reserves Statement line ‘Adjustments between
accounting basis and funding basis under regulations’.

Key items to note:

e Property, plant and equipment has increased by £117M from £1,193M in
2015/16 to £1,310M in 2016/17. This is largely due to the completion of the
Woodside Link road in the year, which then opened to the public in April 2017
(expenditure of £19.6M in year), and £17.1M spent on New School Places to
address the growth in pupil numbers.

e Short-term investments and cash have both increased; investments by
£0.443M (£0.564M in 2015/16 to £1.007M in 2016/17) and cash by £3.854M
(from £0.409M in 2015/16 to £4.263M in 2016/17), the latter having been
increased due to cash in transit. This is matched by the circa £10M increase
in short-term borrowing (£73.4M in 2016/17 and £63.6M in 205/16). We have
made a concerted effort to make the most of low interest rates on borrowing.
Further information on our treasury management and borrowing practice is
outlined later in this report.

e There has been a positive movement in the Council’s working capital with a
reduction in short-term debtors by £10M to £44.7M (£54.7M in 2015/16) and a
corresponding increase in short-term creditors of £11.7M to £59.8m (£48.1m
in 2015/16). This helps to demonstrate that the Council is collecting money
owed faster. This has also helped with our treasury position.

e The nearly £100M increase in long-term liabilities (E750M in 2016/17
compared with £649M in 2015/16) is largely attributable to the increase in the
net pension liability. This has increased as a result in changes to the discount
rate that is used by the actuaries to value the fund reflecting a decline in Bond
yields. Further information on the pension liability is set out later in this report.

The Cash Flow Statement

The Cash Flow Statement page 27 shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents
of the Council during the reporting period. The statement shows how the Council
generates and uses cash and cash equivalents by classifying cash flows as
operating, investing and financing activities. The amount of net cash flows arising
from operating activities is a key indicator of the extent to which the operations of the
Council are funded by way of taxation and grant income or from the recipients of

Central Bedfordshire Council Statement of Accounts 2016/17
15



Agenda Item 8
Page 131

services provided by the Council. Investing activities represent the extent to which
cash outflows have been made for resources which are intended to contribute to the
Council’s future service delivery. Cash flows arising from financing activities are
useful in predicting claims on future cash flows by providers of capital (i.e.,
borrowing) to the Council.

Expenditure and Funding Analysis (EFA)

The Expenditure and Funding Analysis is not a core statement and is a new note to
the accounts for 2016/17. This statement, as set out on page 50, shows how annual
expenditure is used and funded from resources (government grants, council tax and
business rates) by local authorities in comparison with those resources consumed or
earned by authorities in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices. It
also shows how this expenditure is allocated for decision making purposes between
the Council’s directorates. Income and expenditure accounted for under generally
accepted accounting practices is presented more fully in the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement.

Other information also presented

This document also includes Supplementary Financial Statements:

e the Housing Revenue Account (HRA) Income and Expenditure Statement
shows the costs in the year of providing housing services and the Movement
on the HRA Statement shows adjustments made to the HRA in line with
statutory requirements

e the Collection Fund Statement separately summarises the transactions in
relation to Council Tax and Non-Domestic Rates collected by the Council on
behalf of those authorities responsible for services within the area and the
way in which these monies have been distributed among the authorities to
finance their expenditure.

Other statements published with but not part of the Statement of Accounts include
the Annual Governance Statement which explains how the Council has complied
with its corporate governance framework and provides information about the different
elements of the framework, key issues and the main areas of work that have been
progressed during 2016/17 and are being developed in 2017/18. A Glossary of key
terms is also provided as an aid to readers of this document.

Group accounts

The Code requires Local Authorities to consider all their interests and to prepare a
full set of group financial statements where they have material interests in
subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures. The Council does not have material
interests in any such bodies and accordingly is not required to prepare group
financial statements.

Central Bedfordshire Council Statement of Accounts 2016/17
16



Agenda Item 8
Page 132

Material assets acquired or liabilities incurred

The capital programme expenditure is summarised on pages 10-11 and movements
in Property Plant and Equipment are included at Note 14. There were no material
assets acquired or liabilities incurred during 2016/17.

Material and unusual charges or credits
Academy Transfers

There were two schools that transferred to Academy status during 2016/17: Arlesey
Nursery School and Childcare Centre was amalgamated with Gothic Mede
Academy; and The Lawns Early Excellence and Children’s Centre became part of
Biggleswade Academy. This resulted in a net transfer of Property, Plant and
Equipment non-current assets valued at £1.8M from the Council’s Balance Sheet.

Better Care Fund

The Better Care Fund (BCF) was established by the Government from 1 April 2015
to provide funds to local areas to support the integration of health and social care.
Under a framework partnership arrangement between Central Bedfordshire Council
(the “host”) and NHS Bedfordshire Clinical Commissioning Group, a pooled fund
was set up in 2015/16 for this purpose. Both parties jointly commission the services
and agree to meet their proportionate share of transactional costs. The risk share
agreement is on the basis of a 50:50 split, so any net surplus or deficit is shared on
this basis. The arrangement with expenditure of £19.3M (£18.2M in 2015/16) is set
out at Note 29.

Net Pension Liability

The Council’s net pension liability has increased by £95.9M (decrease of £60.5M
2015/16), which is a material movement within the 2016/17 Statement of Accounts.
The liability changes significantly with the volatility in investment markets for fixed
interest securities and also the assumption rates used in the calculations by the
actuaries. Further details can be found in Note 41 and is commented on below.

The Council’s Local Government Pension Scheme liability

The Council is a member of the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS)
administered by Bedford Borough Council, which is open to all non-teaching
employees of Central Bedfordshire Council. The CIPFA Code of Practice requires
the Council to record in the Statement of Accounts, the assets and liabilities of the
LGPS attributable to the Council and the cost of pensions. The underlying principle is
that the Council should account for retirement benefits when it is committed to
making them, even though the cash payments may be many years into the future.

The liability for both statutory and discretionary pension benefits, measured in
accordance with International Accounting Standard (IAS) 19, has increased over the
year. At 31 March 2017 the Council’s net liability reported by the Actuary to the

Central Bedfordshire Council Statement of Accounts 2016/17
17



Agenda Item 8
Page 133

LGPS was £416.5M (£320.6M in 2015/16). The fair value of LGPS assets increased
over the year to £500.9M (£427.1M in 2015/16) and the value of the obligations to
pay pension liabilities increased to £917.4M (£747.7M in 2015/16). The increase in
liabilities mainly reflects a reduced discount rate applied to the future estimated
pension liabilities.

The net pension liability of £416.5M represents an estimate following IAS19
requirements and there is no direct link to funding or employers’ contribution rates.
The net liability is matched by the Pension Reserve, also shown in the Balance
Sheet.

There are statutory arrangements for funding any LGPS deficit by increased
employer contributions over the remaining working life of employees, as determined
by the scheme's Actuary. The triennial actuarial valuation of the Bedfordshire LGPS
determines the future contribution rates for employers and reflects different
assumptions from those required by IAS19. The triennial valuation at 31 March 2016
certified a funding level of 71% for the Bedfordshire LGPS as a whole and 66% for
this Council.

Further details of the LGPS can be found in Note 41 Defined Benefit Pension
Scheme.

Treasury Management and Borrowing

The Councils treasury management and capital financing strategy is to defer
borrowing wherever possible and maintain cash balances sufficient only for
operational purposes. The value of the Council’s cash and cash equivalents at 31
March 2017 was £4.263M (£0.409M 31 March 2016). The credit risk of banking
failures is still present and diversification of investments between creditworthy
counterparties is now increasingly important to mitigate investment risk where
shareholders, bond holders and unsecured creditors are ‘bailed in’ to participate in
any recovery process.

In the wider economy, the Bank of England has continued to maintain low interest
rates and despite signs of a recovering economy with jobs growth, the Bank is not
expected to raise rates until 2018 at the earliest.

Within the Treasury Management Strategy, the Council approved an authorised
borrowing limit for 2016/17 of £567.1M (£533.4M in 2015/16). At the 31 March 2017
the Council had accessed £9.8M (£25.5M at 31 March 2016) of additional short term
borrowing from the local authority market to fund expenditure on the Capital
Programme, and £6.6M (£9.4M 2015/16) debt from the same source to repay
maturing loans from the Public Works Loan Board.

At the end of the financial year, the Council had outstanding external borrowing in
place of £347.8M (£338.1M 2015/16) in respect of the funding of the capital
programme and social housing.

Central Bedfordshire Council Statement of Accounts 2016/17
18



Agenda Item 8
Page 134

Significant provisions or contingencies and material write-offs

There were £6.1M of provisions as at 31 March 2017 (£5.7M 2015/16) the most
significant being in respect of self insurance arrangements and appeals in respect of
business rates values. The Insurance Provision, which includes some liabilities in
respect of the former Bedfordshire County Council which are managed on behalf of
the Council and Bedford Borough Council, stood at £2.3M as at 31 March 2017
(E2.3M 2015/16). A further £2.1M (£2.1M 2015/16) reflects the Council’s share of the
total provision made within the Collection Fund of £4.3M (£4.1M 2015/16) in respect
of business rate appeals.

There were no significant General Fund income write-offs in the year.

Material events after the reporting date

The Statement of Accounts were authorised for issue by the Chief Finance Officer
(Section 151 Officer) on 29 June 2017. Events taking place after this date are not
reflected in the financial statements or notes. Where events taking place before this
date provided information about conditions existing at 31 March 2017, the figures in
the financial statements and notes have been adjusted in all material respects to
reflect the impact of this information.

There are no events known to the Council which would need to be registered as
events after the Balance Sheet date.

Significant changes in accounting policies
There were no material changes in accounting policies during 2016/17.

In 2016/17, it was anticipated that the CIPFA Accounting Code of Practice would
adopt the Highways Network Asset Code in 2017/18 having delayed the
implementation from 2016/17. This would result in a change to the measurement
basis for the Council’s highways related assets. The new Highways Network Asset
would have been valued at depreciated replacement cost, replacing the depreciated
historic cost value that is currently disclosed. However, at its meeting on 8 March
2017, the CIPFA/LASAAC Local Authority Accounting Code Board decided not to
proceed with the introduction of the Highways Network Asset Code.

Conclusion

Through careful planning and management, Central Bedfordshire Council has been
able to close its 2016/17 accounts showing a robust position, which will support the
Council in meeting the financial challenges of 2017/18 and beyond. Whilst a
balanced budget has been set for 2017/18, the projections for future years indicate a
gap between the Council’'s expected funding streams and the Council’'s expenditure.
It is therefore essential that the Council continues with its programme to identify
further savings opportunities to ensure future balanced budgets are able to be set.

Central Bedfordshire Council Statement of Accounts 2016/17
19



Agenda Item 8
Page 135

Charles Warboys

Director of Resources & Section151 Officer
Central Bedfordshire Council

Priory House

Monks Walk

Chicksands

Bedfordshire

SG17 5TQ

Central Bedfordshire Council Statement of Accounts 2016/17
20



Agenda Item 8
Page 136

Statement Of Responsibilities For The Statement Of
Accounts

The Council’s Responsibilities

The Council is required to:

« Make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs and to
ensure that one of its officers has the responsibility for the administration of
those affairs. In this Council, the Chief Finance Officer has this responsibility.

« Manage its affairs to secure economic, efficient and effective use of resources
and safeguard its assets.

« Approve the Statement of Accounts. The Audit Committee, under delegated
authority from the Council, fulfils this role.

The Chief Finance Officer’s Responsibilities

The Chief Finance Officer is responsible for the preparation of the Council's
Statement of Accounts in accordance with proper practices as set out in the CIPFA
Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2016/17 (the
Code).

In preparing this statement, the Chief Finance Officer has:
« Selected suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently.
« Made judgements and estimates that were reasonable and prudent.
« Complied with the Code of Practice.

The Chief Finance Officer has also:
« Kept proper accounting records, which were up to date.
« Taken reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other
irregularities.
Certification and Approval
The Statement of Accounts presents a true and fair view of the financial position of

Central Bedfordshire Council at 31 March 2017 and its income and expenditure for
the year ended 31 March 2017.

Councillor Mike Blair = Chair of Audit Committee

Charles Warboys — Director of Resources & Section151 Officer

27 September 2017

Central Bedfordshire Council Statement of Accounts 2016/17
21



Agenda Item 8
Page 137

Core Financial
Statements
2016/17

22



Agenda Item 8

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

Page 138

This Statement shows the accounting cost in the year of providing services in
accordance with generally accepted accounting practices, rather than the amount to
be funded from taxation. Authorities raise taxation to cover expenditure in
accordance with regulations: this may be different from the accounting cost. The
taxation position is shown in both the Expenditure and Funding Analysis and the
Movement in Reserves Statement.

2015/16 2016/17
Restated
Expenditure Income Net Expenditure Income Net
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
100,532 (28,055) 72,477 Social Care, Health & Housing 103,622 (28,276) 75,346
84,739 (28,847) 55,892 Children’s Services 84,951 (29,088) 55,863
92,603 (13,787) 78,816 Community Services 80,581 (15,667) 64,914
16,155 (5,199) 10,956 Regeneration & Business 17,205 (7,274) 9,931
Support
15,826 (15,855) (29) Public Health 17,753 (17,953) (200)
9,476 (35) 9,441 Chief Executives 10,851 (1,702) 9,149
78,412 (69,110) 9,302 Resources 78,779 (67,405) 11,374
2,138 (9,129) (6,991) Corporate Costs 2,492 (12,430) (9,938)
119,273 (112,846) 6,427 Schools 118,187 (112,677) 5,510
(7,659) (28,727) (36,386) Landlord Business (HRA) 21,376 (29,639) (8,263)
511,495 (311,589) 199,906 Cost of Services 535,796 (322,110) 213,686
14,460 0 14,460 Other Operating Expenditure 15,639 0 15,639
(Note 11)
36,499 (13,860) 22,639 Financing and Investment 36,842 (15,535) 21,307
Income and Expenditure (Note
12)
11,889 (253,154) (241,265) Taxation and Non Specific Grant 11,046 (250,786) (239,741)
Income (Note 13)
574,343 (578,603) (4,260) (Surplus) / Deficit on Provision 599,323 (588,432) 10,892
of Services
(78,715) (Surplus) / deficit on revaluation (86,500)
of Property, Plant and
Equipment (Note 24)
(147) (Surplus) / deficit on revaluation (128)
of available for sale financial
assets (Note 24)
(74,176) Remeasurement of the net 85,042
defined benefit liability / (asset)
(Note 41)
(153,037) Other Comprehensive Income (1,587)
and Expenditure
(157,297) Total Comprehensive Income 9,305

and Expenditure

Central Bedfordshire Council Statement of Accounts 2016/17

23



Movement in Reserves Statement

This Statement shows the movement in the year on the different reserves held by the Council, analysed into ‘usable' reserves (i.e., those that
can be applied to fund expenditure or reduce local taxation) and other ‘unusable' reserves. The '(Surplus) / deficit on the provision of services'
line shows the true economic cost of providing the Council's services, more details of which are shown in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement. This is different from the statutory amounts required to be charged to the General Fund Balance and the Housing
Revenue Account for Council Tax setting and dwellings rent setting purposes. The ‘Net (increase) / decrease before transfers to Earmarked
Reserves’ line shows the statutory General Fund Balance and Housing Revenue Account Balance before any discretionary transfers to or from
Earmarked Reserves undertaken by the Council.

Capital
Earmarked Housing Earmarked Capital Grants Un-
General Fund General Fund Revenue HRA Receipts  Major Repairs applied Total Usable Unusable
Balance Reserves  Account (HRA) Reserves Reserve Reserve Account Reserves Reserves Total Reserves

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Balance at 31 March 2016 (15,517) (44,395) (2,000) (17,252) (2,996) (200) (3,260) (85,619) (411,773) (497,392)
Movement in reserves during
2016/17
(Surplus) / deficit on the provision 20,130 (9,238) 10,892 10,892
of services
Other Comprehensive Income / (1,587) (1,587)
Expenditure
Total Comprehensive Income 20,130 0 (9,238) 0 10,892 (1,587) 9,305
and Expenditure
Adjustments between accounting (30,229) 4,919 (3,478) 0 800 (27,988) 27,988 0
basis and funding basis under
regulations (Note 9)
Net Increase or Decrease before (10,099) 0 (4,319) 0 (3,478) 0 800 (17,096) 26,401 9,305
Transfers to Earmarked
Reserves
Transfers (to) / from Earmarked 10,047 (10,047) 4,319 (4,319) 0 0
Reserves (Note 10)
(Increase) / Decrease in 2016/17 (52) (10,047) 0 (4,319) (3,478) 0 800 (17,096) 26,401 9,305
Balance at 31 March 2017 (15,569) (54,442) (2,000) (21,571) (6,474) (200) (2,459) (102,715) (385,372) (488,087)

bed
g Wwa)| epuaby

Central Bedfordshire Council Statement of Accounts 2016/17

6et o



Capital

Earmarked Housing Earmarked Capital Grants Un-
General Fund General Fund Revenue HRA Receipts  Major Repairs applied Total Usable Unusable
Balance Reserves  Account (HRA) Reserves Reserve Reserve Account Reserves Reserves Total Reserves

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Balance at 31 March 2015 (15,167) (43,250) (2,000) (18,357) (3,451) (200) (13,580) (96,005) (244,094) (340,099)
Movement in reserves during
2015/16
(Surplus) / deficit on the provision 29,437 (33,697) (4,260) (4,260)
of services
Other Comprehensive Income / (153,034) (153,034)
Expenditure
Total Comprehensive Income 29,437 0 (33,697) 0 (4,260) (153,034) (157,294)
and Expenditure
Adjustments between accounting (30,930) 34,801 455 0 10,320 14,646 (14,646) 0
basis and funding basis under
regulations (Note 9)
Net (Increase) / Decrease before (1,493) 0 1,104 0 455 0 10,320 10,386 (167,680) (157,294)
Transfers to Earmarked
Reserves
Transfers (to) / from Earmarked 1,144 (1,144) (1,104) 1,104 0 0
Reserves (Note 10)
Increase or Decrease in 2015/16 (349) (1,144) 0 1,104 455 0 10,320 10,386 (167,680) (157,294)
Balance at 31 March 2016 (15,516) (44,394) (2,000) (17,253) (2,996) (200) (3,260) (85,619) (411,774) (497,393)

Central Bedfordshire Council Statement of Accounts 2016/17

bed
g Wa)| epuaby

ovf o



Agenda Item 8
Page 141

Balance Sheet

The Balance Sheet shows the value as at the Balance Sheet date of the assets and
liabilities recognised by the Council. The net assets of the Council (assets less liabilities)
are matched by the reserves held by the Council. Reserves are reported in two
categories. The first category of reserves are usable reserves, i.e., those reserves that
the Council may use to provide services, subject to the need to maintain a prudent level
of reserves and any statutory limitations on their use (for example, the Capital Receipts
Reserve that may only be used to fund capital expenditure or repay debt). The second
category of reserves is unusable reserves, i.e., those reserves that the Council is not
able to use to provide services. This category of reserves includes reserves that hold
unrealised gains and losses (for example, the Revaluation Reserve), where amounts
would only become available to provide services if the assets are sold; and reserves that
hold timing differences shown in the Movement in Reserves Statement line ‘Adjustments
between accounting basis and funding basis under regulations’.

31 March 2016 Note 31 March 2017
£'000 £'000
1,193,334  Property, Plant and Equipment 14 1,309,583
8,670 Intangible Assets 15 12,185
5,150 Long Term Investments 16 5,279
549 Long Term Debtors 16 491
1,207,703 Long Term Assets 1,327,538
564  Short-term Investments 16 1,007

173  Assets Held for Sale 20 6

98 Inventories 17 90
54,700 Short Term Debtors 18 44,726
409 Cash and Cash Equivalents 19 4,263
55,944  Current Assets 50,093
(63,683) Short-Term Borrowing 16 (73,430)
(48,071)  Short-Term Creditors 21 (59,791)
(5,677) Provisions 22 (6,101)
(117,431) Current Liabilities (139,321)
(274,146) Long Term Borrowing 16 (274,279)
(335,814) Other Long-Term Liabilities 38&41 (433,016)
(38,863) Grants Receipts in Advance — Capital 34 (42,927)
(648,823) Long Term Liabilities (750,222)
497,393 Net Assets 488,087
(85,619) Usable Reserves 23 (102,715)
(411,774) Unusable Reserves 24 (385,372)
(497,393) Total Reserves (488,087)

Central Bedfordshire Council Statement of Accounts 2016/17
26



Cash Flow Statement

Agenda Item 8
Page 142

The Cash Flow Statement shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents of the
Council during the financial year. The Statement shows how the Council generates
and uses cash and cash equivalents by classifying cash flows as operating, investing
and financing activities. The amount of net cash flows arising from operating
activities is a key indicator of the extent to which the operations of the Council are
funded by way of taxation and grant income or from the recipients of services
provided by the Council. Investing activities represent the extent to which cash
outflows have been made for resources which are intended to contribute to the
Council’s future service delivery. Cash flows arising from financing activities are
useful in predicting claims on future cash flows by providers of capital (i.e.,
borrowing) to the Council.

2015/16 Note 2016/17
£ £
(4,260)  Net (surplus) / deficit on the provision of services 10,892
(45,959) Adjustment to (surplus) / deficit on the provision of services for 25 (76,772)
noncash movements
37,116 * Adjustment for items included in the net (surplus) / deficit on 25 55,851
the provision of services that are investing or financing
activities
(13,103) Net cash flows from operating activities (10,029)
37,516 * Net cash flows from investing activities 26 17,026
(23,023) Net cash flows from financing activities 27 (10,852)
1,390 Net (increase) or decrease in cash and cash equivalents (3,854)
1,799 Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the reporting 409
period
409 Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the reporting 19 4,263

period

* To conform with CIPFA's Code of Practice, interest has been included in Net Operating Activities instead of Investing
Activities in 2016/17 although the figures for 2015/16 have been left unchanged from last year’s published accounts.

These financial statements replace the unaudited financial statements approved at
the meeting of the Audit Committee on 29 June 2017.

Authorised for issue 27 September 2017 C Warboys

Director of Resources &
Section 151 Officer

Central Bedfordshire Council Statement of Accounts 2016/17

27



Agenda Item 8

Page 143
Notes To The Core Financial Statements
Note Page
1 | Accounting Policies 30
2 | Accounting Standards that have been Issued but have not yet been 47
Adopted
3 | Critical Judgements in Applying Accounting Policies 47
4 | Assumptions Made about the Future and Other Major Sources of 48
Estimation Uncertainty
5 | Material Items of Income and Expense 49
6 | Events After the Balance Sheet Date 49
7 | Expenditure & Funding Analysis 50
8 | Expenditure Analysed by Nature 54
9 | Adjustments between Accounting Basis and Funding Basis under 55
Regulations
10 | Transfers to / from Earmarked Reserves 60
11 | Other Operating Expenditure 61
12 | Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure 61
13 | Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income and Expenditure 61
14 | Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) 62
15 | Intangible Assets 65
16 | Financial Instruments 66
16a | Financial Instruments — Fair Value 68
17 | Inventories 69
18 | Debtors 69
19 | Cash and Cash Equivalents 69
20 | Assets Held for Sale 70
21 | Creditors 70
22 | Provisions 71
23 | Usable Reserves 72
24 | Unusable Reserves 74
25 | Cash Flow from Operating Activities 79
26 | Cash Flow from Investing Activities 80
27 | Cash Flow from Financing Activities 80
28 | Trading Operations 81
29 | Pooled Budgets & Partnership Arrangements 82
30 | Members’ Allowances 83
31 | Officers’ Remuneration 84
32 | External Audit Costs 87
33 | Dedicated Schools Grant 87
34 | Grant Income 88
35 | Related Parties 90
36 | Capital Expenditure and Capital Financing 91

Central Bedfordshire Council Statement of Accounts 2016/17

28



Agenda Item 8

Page 144
37 | Leases 93
38 | Service Concession Arrangements 95
39 | Termination Benefits 97
40 | Pension Schemes Accounted for as Defined Contribution Schemes 97
41 | Defined Benefit Pension Schemes 98
42 | Contingent Liabilities 103
43 | Contingent Assets 103
44 | Nature and Extent of Risks Arising from Financial Instruments 103
45 | Trust Funds 107

Central Bedfordshire Council Statement of Accounts 2016/17
29



Agenda Item 8
Page 145

Note 1 - Accounting Policies

i. General Principles

The Statement of Accounts summarises the Council’s transactions for the financial
year and its position at the year-end. The Council is required to prepare an annual
Statement of Accounts by the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015, which those
Regulations require to be prepared in accordance with proper accounting practices.
These practices primarily comprise the Code of Practice on Local Authority
Accounting in the United Kingdom 2016/17 and the Service Reporting Code of
Practice (SeRCOP) 2016/17, supported by International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS).

The accounting convention adopted in the Statement of Accounts is principally
historical cost, modified by the revaluation of certain categories of non-current assets
and financial instruments.

ii. Accruals of Income and Expenditure

Activity is accounted for in the year that it takes place, not simply when cash
payments are made or received. In particular:

* Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the Council transfers the
significant risks and rewards of ownership to the purchaser and it is probable that
economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the
Council.

* Revenue from the provision of services is recognised when the Council can
measure reliably the percentage of completion of the transaction and it is probable
that economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to
the Council.

» Supplies are recorded as expenditure when they are consumed — where there is a
gap between the date supplies are received and their consumption, they are carried
as inventories on the Balance Sheet.

+ Expenses in relation to services received (including services provided by
employees) are recorded as expenditure when the services are received rather than
when payments are made.

* Interest receivable on investments and payable on borrowings is accounted for
respectively as income and expenditure on the basis of the effective interest rate for
the relevant financial instrument rather than the cash flows fixed or determined by
the contract.

* Where revenue and expenditure have been recognised but cash has not been
received or paid, a debtor or creditor for the relevant amount is recorded in the
Balance Sheet. Where debts may not be settled, the balance of debtors is written
down and a charge made to revenue for the income that might not be collected.

Central Bedfordshire Council Statement of Accounts 2016/17
30



Agenda Item 8
Page 146

iii. Acquisitions and Discontinued Operations

When necessary, income and expenditure directly related to acquired or
discontinued operations will be shown separately within the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement under the heading of acquired or discontinued
operations.

iv. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash is represented by cash in hand and deposits with financial institutions
repayable without penalty on notice of not more than 24 hours. Cash equivalents are
highly liquid investments that mature overnight from the Balance Sheet date and that
are readily convertible to known amounts of cash with insignificant risk of change in
value.

In the Cash Flow Statement, Cash and Cash Equivalents are shown net of bank
overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Council’s
cash management.

v. Prior Period Adjustments, Changes in Accounting Policies and Estimates and
Errors

Prior period adjustments may arise as a result of a change in accounting policies or
to correct a material error. Changes in accounting estimates are accounted for
prospectively, i.e., in the current and future years affected by the change and do not
give rise to a prior period adjustment.

Changes in accounting policies are only made when required by proper accounting
practices or the change provides more reliable or relevant information about the
effect of transactions, other events and conditions on the Council’s financial position
or financial performance. Where a change is made, it is applied retrospectively
(unless stated otherwise) by adjusting opening balances and comparative amounts
for the prior period as if the new policy had always been applied.

Material errors discovered in prior period figures are corrected retrospectively by
amending opening balances and comparative amounts for the prior period.

vi. Charges to Revenue for Non-current Assets

Services, support services and trading accounts are debited with the following
amounts to record the cost of holding Non-Current Assets during the year:

« depreciation attributable to the assets used by the relevant service;

* revaluation and impairment losses on assets used by the service where there are
no accumulated gains in the Revaluation Reserve against which the losses can be
written off;

» amortisation of Intangible Assets attributable to the service.

The Council is not required to raise Council Tax to fund depreciation, revaluation and
impairment losses or amortisation. However, it is required to make an annual
contribution from revenue towards the reduction in its overall borrowing requirement

Central Bedfordshire Council Statement of Accounts 2016/17
31



Agenda Item 8
Page 147

equal to an amount calculated on a prudent basis determined by the Council in
accordance with statutory guidance. Depreciation, revaluation and impairment losses
and amortisation are therefore replaced by the contribution in the General Fund
Balance (Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP)), by way of an adjusting transaction
with the Capital Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement for the
difference between the two.

vii. Council Tax and Non-Domestic Rates (England)

Billing authorities act as agents, collecting Council Tax and Non-Domestic Rates
(NDR) on behalf of the major preceptors (including Government for NDR) and, as
principals, collecting Council Tax and NDR for themselves. Billing authorities are
required by statute to maintain a separate fund (i.e., the Collection Fund) for the
collection and distribution of amounts due in respect of Council Tax and NDR. Under
the legislative framework for the Collection Fund, billing authorities, major preceptors
and Central Government share proportionately the risks and rewards that the
amount of Council Tax and NDR collected could be less or more than predicted.

Accounting for Council Tax and NDR

The Council Tax and NDR income included in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement is the Council’'s share of accrued income for the year.
However, regulations determine the amount of Council Tax and NDR that must be
included in the Council’'s General Fund. Therefore, the difference between the
income included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and the
amount required by regulation to be credited to the General Fund is taken to the
Collection Fund Adjustment Account and included as a reconciling item in the
Movement in Reserves Statement.

The Balance Sheet includes the Council’'s share of the end of year balances in
respect of Council Tax and NDR relating to arrears, impairment allowances for
doubtful debts, overpayments and prepayments and appeals.

viii. Employee Benefits
- Benefits Payable During Employment

Short-term employee benefits are those due to be settled wholly within 12 months of
the year-end. They include such benefits as wages and salaries, paid annual leave
and paid sick leave, bonuses and non-monetary benefits (e.g., cars) for current
employees and are recognised as an expense for services in the year in which
employees render service to the Council. An accrual is made for the cost of holiday
entitlements (or any form of leave, e.g., time off in lieu) earned by employees but not
taken before the year-end which employees can carry forward into the next financial
year. The accrual is made at the wage and salary rates applicable in the following
accounting year, being the period in which the employee takes the benefit. The
accrual is charged to Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services, but then
reversed out through the Movement in Reserves Statement so that holiday
entittements are charged to revenue in the financial year in which the holiday
absence occurs.

Central Bedfordshire Council Statement of Accounts 2016/17
32



Agenda Item 8
Page 148

- Termination Benefits

Termination benefits are amounts payable as a result of a decision by the Council to
terminate an officer's employment before the normal retirement date or an officer’s
decision to accept voluntary redundancy in exchange for those benefits and are
charged on an accruals basis to the appropriate service segment or, where
applicable, to a corporate service segment at the earlier of when the Council can no
longer withdraw the offer of those benefits or when the Council recognises costs for
a restructuring. Where termination benefits involve the enhancement of pensions,
statutory provisions require the General Fund Balance to be charged with the
amount payable by the Council to the Pension Fund or pensioner in the year, not the
amount calculated according to the relevant accounting standards. In the Movement
in Reserves Statement, appropriations are required to and from the Pensions
Reserve to remove the notional debits and credits for pension enhancement
termination benefits and replace them with debits for the cash paid to the Pension
Fund and pensioners and any such amounts payable but unpaid at the year-end.

- Post-employment Benefits

Employees of the Council are members of one of the three following pension
schemes:

» the Teachers’ Pension Scheme, administered by Capita Teachers’ Pensions on
behalf of the Department for Education (DfE);

+ the Local Government Pensions Scheme, administered by Bedford Borough
Council;

 the NHS Pension Scheme, administered by NHS Pensions.

All schemes provided defined benefits to members (retirement lump sums and
pensions), earned as employees worked for the Council.

However, the arrangements for the Teachers’ and NHS schemes mean that liabilities
for these benefits cannot ordinarily be identified specifically to the Council. The
schemes are therefore accounted for as if they were defined contribution schemes
and no liability for future payments of benefits is recognised in the Balance Sheet.
The Children's and Education Services line in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement is charged with the employer's contributions payable to
Teachers’ Pensions and the Public Health line charged with contributions payable to
the NHS Pension Scheme in the year

The Local Government Pension Scheme

The Local Government Pension Scheme is accounted for as a defined benefits
scheme:

* The liabilities of the scheme attributable to the Council are included in the Balance
Sheet on an actuarial basis using the projected unit method, which is an assessment
of the future payments that will be made in relation to retirement benefits earned to
date by employees, based on assumptions about mortality rates, employee turnover
rates and projections of earnings for current employees.

Central Bedfordshire Council Statement of Accounts 2016/17
33



Agenda Item 8
Page 149

+ Liabilities are discounted to their value at current prices, using a discount rate
based on the indicative rate of return on a high quality corporate bond each year end
as prescribed by IAS19.

* The assets of the Fund attributable to the Council are included at their fair value:
- quoted securities — current bid price;

- unquoted securities — market value (professional estimate);

- unitised securities — current bid price;

- property — market value (professional estimate).

The change in the net pensions liability is analysed into the following components:
* Service cost comprising:

 current service cost — the increase in liabilities as a result of years of service
earned this year — allocated in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement to the services for which the employees worked;

* past service cost — the increase in liabilities as a result of a scheme amendment or
curtailment whose effect relates to years of service earned in earlier years — debited
to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement as part of Non-Distributed Costs;

* net interest on the net defined benéefit liability (asset), i.e., net interest expense for
the Council — the change during the period in the net defined benefit liability (asset)
that arises from the passage of time charged to the Financing and Investment
Income and Expenditure line of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement — this is calculated by applying the discount rate used to measure the
defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the period to the net defined benefit
liability (asset) at the beginning of the period — taking into account any changes in
the net defined benefit liability (asset) during the period as a result of contribution
and benefit payments.

* Re-measurements comprising:

* the return on plan assets — excluding amounts included in net interest on the net
defined benefit liability (asset) — charged to the Pensions Reserve as Other
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure

« actuarial gains and losses — changes in the net pensions liability that arise because
events have not coincided with assumptions made at the last actuarial valuation or
because the actuaries have updated their assumptions — charged to the Pensions
Reserve as Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure

» contributions paid to the Pension Fund — cash paid as employer’s contributions to
the Pension Fund in settlement of liabilities; not accounted for as an expense.

In relation to retirement benefits, statutory provisions require the General Fund
Balance to be charged with the amount payable by the Council to the Pension Fund

Central Bedfordshire Council Statement of Accounts 2016/17
34



Agenda Item 8
Page 150

or directly to pensioners in the year, not the amount calculated according to the
relevant accounting standards. In the Movement in Reserves Statement, this means
that there are transfers to and from the Pensions Reserve to remove the notional
debits and credits for retirement benefits and replace them with debits for the cash
paid to the Pension Fund and pensioners and any such amounts payable but unpaid
at the year-end. The negative balance that arises on the Pensions Reserve thereby
measures the beneficial impact to the General Fund of being required to account for
retirement benefits on the basis of cash flows rather than as benefits earned by
employees.

ix. Events After the Reporting Period

Events after the Balance Sheet date are those events, both favourable and
unfavourable, that occur between the end of the reporting period and the date when
the Statement of Accounts is authorised for issue. Two types of events can be
identified:

* those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting
period — the Statement of Accounts is adjusted to reflect such events;

« those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting period — the
Statement of Accounts is not adjusted to reflect such events, but where a category of
events would have a material effect, disclosure is made in the notes of the nature of
the events and their estimated financial effect.

Events taking place after the date of authorisation for issue are not reflected in the
Statement of Accounts.

X. Financial Instruments
- Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Council becomes
a party to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially
measured at fair value and are carried at their amortised cost. Annual charges to the
Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement for interest payable are based on the carrying
amount of the liability, multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the instrument.
The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments over the life of the instrument to the amount at which it was originally
recognised.

For most of the borrowings that the Council has, this means that the amount
presented in the Balance Sheet is the outstanding principal repayable (plus accrued
interest); and interest charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement is the amount payable for the year according to the loan agreement.

Gains and losses on the repurchase or early settlement of borrowing are credited
and debited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in the year of
repurchase/settlement. However, where repurchase has taken place as part of a

Central Bedfordshire Council Statement of Accounts 2016/17
35



Agenda Item 8
Page 151

restructuring of the loan portfolio that involves the modification or exchange of
existing instruments, the premium or discount is respectively deducted from or added
to the amortised cost of the new or modified loan and the write-down to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is spread over the life of the
loan by an adjustment to the effective interest rate.

- Financial Assets
The Council holds two types of financial assets:

* Loans and Receivables — assets that have fixed or determinable payments but are
not quoted in an active market;

+ Available-for-Sale Assets — assets that have a quoted market price and/or do not
have fixed or determinable payments.

Loans and Receivables

Loans and Receivables are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Council
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are
initially measured at fair value. They are subsequently measured at their amortised
cost. Annual credits to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for interest receivable are
based on the carrying amount of the asset multiplied by the effective rate of interest
for the instrument. For most of the loans that the Council has made, this means that
the amount presented in the Balance Sheet is the outstanding principal receivable
(plus accrued interest) and interest credited to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement is the amount receivable for the year in the loan agreement.

Where assets are identified as impaired because of a likelihood arising from a past
event that payments due under the contract will not be made, the asset is written
down and a charge made to the relevant service (for receivables specific to that
service) or the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. The impairment loss is
measured as the difference between the carrying amount and the present value of
the revised future cash flows discounted at the asset’s original effective interest rate.

Any gains and losses that arise on the de-recognition of an asset are credited or
debited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

Available-for-Sale Assets

Available-for-Sale Assets are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Council
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are
initially measured and carried at fair value. Where the asset has fixed or
determinable payments, annual credits to the Financing and Investment Income and
Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for
interest receivable are based on the amortised cost of the asset multiplied by the
effective rate of interest for the instrument. Where there are no fixed or determinable

Central Bedfordshire Council Statement of Accounts 2016/17
36



Agenda Item 8
Page 152

payments, income (e.g., dividends) is credited to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement when it becomes receivable by the Council.

Assets are maintained in the Balance Sheet at fair value. Values are based on the
following principles:

* instruments with quoted market prices — the market price;

» other instruments with fixed and determinable payments — discounted cash flow
analysis;

* equity shares with no quoted market prices — independent appraisal of company
valuations.

The inputs to the measurement techniques are categorised in accordance with the
following three levels:

* Level 1 inputs — quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets
that the Council can access at the measurement date;

* Level 2 inputs — inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are
observable for the asset, either directly or indirectly;

* Level 3 inputs — unobservable inputs for the asset.

Changes in fair value are balanced by an entry in the Available-for-Sale Reserve and
the gain/loss is recognised in the Surplus or Deficit on Revaluation of Available-for-
Sale Financial Assets. The exception is where impairment losses have been incurred
— these are debited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, along with any net gain or
loss for the asset accumulated in the Available-for-Sale Reserve.

Where assets are identified as impaired because of a likelihood arising from a past
event that payments due under the contract will not be made (fixed or determinable
payments) or fair value falls below cost, the asset is written down and a charge
made to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. If the asset has fixed or
determinable payments, the impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the carrying amount and the present value of the revised future cash flows
discounted at the asset’s original effective interest rate. Otherwise, the impairment
loss is measured as any shortfall of fair value against the acquisition cost of the
instrument (net of any principal repayment and amortisation).

Any gains and losses that arise on the de-recognition of the asset are credited or
debited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, along with any accumulated
gains or losses previously recognised in the Available-for-Sale Reserve.

Where fair value cannot be measured reliably, the instrument is carried at cost (less
any impairment losses).

Central Bedfordshire Council Statement of Accounts 2016/17
37



Agenda Item 8
Page 153

xi. Government Grants and Contributions

Whether paid on account, by instalments or in arrears, government grants and third
party contributions and donations are recognised as due to the Council when there is
reasonable assurance that:

« the Council will comply with the conditions attached to the payments; and
+ the grants or contributions will be received.

Amounts recognised as due to the Council are not credited to the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement until conditions attached to the grant or
contribution have been satisfied. Conditions are stipulations that specify that the
future economic benefits or service potential embodied in the asset in the form of the
grant or contribution are required to be consumed by the recipient as specified, or
future economic benefits or service potential must be returned to the transferor.

Monies advanced as grants and contributions for which conditions have not been
satisfied are carried in the Balance Sheet as creditors. When conditions are satisfied,
the grant or contribution is credited to the relevant service line (specific revenue
grants and contributions) or Taxation and Non-specific Grant Income and
Expenditure (non-ring fenced revenue grants and all capital grants) in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

Where capital grants are credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement, they are reversed out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in
Reserves Statement. Where the grant has yet to be used to finance capital
expenditure, it is posted to the Capital Grants Unapplied Reserve. Where it has been
applied, it is posted to the Capital Adjustment Account. Amounts in the Capital
Grants Unapplied Reserve are transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account once
they have been applied to fund capital expenditure.

xii. Heritage Assets

Any Tangible or Intangible Heritage Assets held by the Council are not of material
financial value. They are therefore classified as Property, Plant and Equipment and
are not disclosed separately in the accounting statements.

xiii. Intangible Assets

Expenditure on non-monetary assets that do not have physical substance but are
controlled by the Council as a result of past events (e.g., software licences) is
capitalised when it is expected that future economic benefits or service potential will
flow from the intangible asset to the Council.

Internally generated assets are capitalised where it is demonstrable that the project
is technically feasible and is intended to be completed (with adequate resources
being available) and the Council will be able to generate future economic benefits or
deliver service potential by being able to sell or use the asset. Expenditure is
capitalised where it can be measured reliably as attributable to the asset and is
restricted to that incurred during the development phase (research expenditure
cannot be capitalised).

Central Bedfordshire Council Statement of Accounts 2016/17
38



Agenda Item 8
Page 154

Expenditure on the development of websites is not capitalised if the website is solely
or primarily intended to promote or advertise the Council’s goods or services.

Intangible Assets are measured initially at cost. Amounts are only re-valued where
the fair value of the assets held by the Council can be determined by reference to an
active market. In practice, no intangible asset held by the Council meets this
criterion, and they are therefore carried at amortised cost. The depreciable amount
of an Intangible Asset is amortised over its useful life to the relevant service line(s) in
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. An asset is tested for
impairment whenever there is an indication that the asset might be impaired — any
losses recognised are posted to the relevant service line(s) in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or
abandonment of an Intangible Asset is posted to the Other Operating Expenditure
line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

Where expenditure on Intangible Assets qualifies as capital expenditure for statutory
purposes, amortisation, impairment losses and disposal gains and losses are not
permitted to have an impact on the General Fund Balance. The gains and losses are
therefore reversed out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves
Statement and posted to the Capital Adjustment Account and (for any sale proceeds
greater than £10K) the Capital Receipts Reserve.

xiv. Inventories

Inventories are included in the Balance Sheet at the lower of cost and net realisable
value.

XV. Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases where the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the property, plant
or equipment from the lessor to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

Where a lease covers both land and buildings, the land and buildings elements are
considered separately for classification.

Arrangements that do not have the legal status of a lease but convey a right to use
an asset in return for payment are accounted for under this policy where fulfiiment of
the arrangement is dependent on the use of specific assets.

- The Council as Lessee
Operating Leases

Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement as an expense of the services benefiting from use of the
leased property, plant or equipment. Charges are made on a straight-line basis over
the life of the lease, even if this does not match the pattern of payments (e.g., there
is a rent-free period at the commencement of the lease).

Central Bedfordshire Council Statement of Accounts 2016/17
39



Agenda Item 8
Page 155

- The Council as Lessor

Where the Council grants an operating lease over a property or an item of plant or
equipment, the asset is retained in the Balance Sheet. Rental income is credited to
the Other Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement. Credits are made on a straight-line basis over the life of the lease, even if
this does not match the pattern of payments (e.g., there is a premium paid at the
commencement of the lease). Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and
arranging the lease are added to the carrying amount of the relevant asset and
charged as an expense over the lease term on the same basis as rental income.

xvi. Overheads and Support Services

The costs of overheads and support services are charged to service segments in
accordance with the Council’'s arrangements for accountability and financial
performance.

xvii. Property, Plant and Equipment

Assets that have physical substance and are held for use in the provision of
services, for income generation or for administrative purposes on a continuing basis
are classified as Property, Plant and Equipment.

- Recognition

Expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of tangible fixed assets is
capitalised on an accruals basis, provided that it will yield future economic benefits or
service potential to the Council for more than one financial year and the cost can be
reliably measured. This will include costs and fees incurred on capital projects, which
are under construction at the year end, where it can be shown that either a new
asset will be created or an existing asset enhanced. All other expenditure on assets
(i.e., repairs and maintenance) is charged to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement as an expense when it is incurred.

These also include assets under finance leases and private finance initiatives which
have been capitalised and included in the Balance Sheet at a value that reflects the
Council’s obligation to meet future rental payments.

The Council sets a £2K de-minimis level for capital spending / capital accounting
purposes and spending below this limit is charged to service revenue accounts
within the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, unless the spending
forms part of a larger capital scheme.

- Measurement
Assets are initially measured at cost, comprising:
« the purchase price;

* any costs attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary
for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management;

Central Bedfordshire Council Statement of Accounts 2016/17
40



Agenda Item 8
Page 156

« the initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring
the site on which it was located.

The Council does not capitalise borrowing costs incurred whilst assets are under
construction.

The cost of assets acquired other than by purchase is deemed to be its fair value,
unless the acquisition does not have commercial substance (i.e., it will not lead to a
variation in the cash flows of the Council). In the latter case, where an asset is
acquired via an exchange, the cost of the acquisition is the carrying amount of the
asset given up by the Council.

Assets are then carried in the Balance Sheet using the following measurement
bases:

* infrastructure, community assets and assets under construction — depreciated
historical cost;

» dwellings — current value, determined using the basis of existing use value for
social housing (EUV-SH);

« all other assets — current value, determined as the amount that would be paid for
the asset in its existing use (existing use value — EUV).

Where there is no market-based evidence of current value because of the specialist
nature of an asset, depreciated replacement cost (DRC) is used as an estimate of
current value.

Where non-property assets that have short useful lives or low values (or both), the
depreciated historical cost basis is used as a proxy for current value.

Assets included in the Balance Sheet at current value are re-valued sufficiently
regularly to ensure that their carrying amount is not materially different from their
current value at the year-end, but as a minimum every five years. Increases in
valuations are matched by credits to the Revaluation Reserve to recognise
unrealised gains. Exceptionally, gains might be credited to the Surplus or Deficit on
the Provision of Services where they arise from the reversal of a loss previously
charged to a service.

Where decreases in value are identified, they are accounted for as follows:

» where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation
Reserve, the carrying amount of the asset is written down against that balance (up to
the amount of the accumulated gains);

» where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or an insufficient balance,
the carrying amount of the asset is written down against the relevant service line(s)
in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

The Revaluation Reserve contains revaluation gains recognised since 1 April 2007
only, the date of its formal implementation. Gains arising before that date have been
consolidated into the Capital Adjustment Account.

Central Bedfordshire Council Statement of Accounts 2016/17
41



Agenda Item 8
Page 157

Impairment / Revaluation Losses

Assets are assessed at each year-end as to whether there is any indication that an
asset may be impaired. Where indications exist and any possible differences are
estimated to be material, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated and,
where this is less than the carrying amount of the asset, an impairment loss is
recognised for the shortfall.

Where impairment losses are identified, they are accounted for as follows:

« where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation
Reserve, the carrying amount of the asset is written down against that balance (up to
the amount of the accumulated gains);

» where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or an insufficient balance,
the carrying amount of the asset is written down against the relevant service line(s)
in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

Where an impairment loss is reversed subsequently, the reversal is credited to the
relevant service line(s) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement,
up to the amount of the original loss, adjusted for depreciation that would have been
charged if the loss had not been recognised.

- Depreciation

Depreciation is provided for on all Property, Plant and Equipment assets by the
systematic allocation of their depreciable amounts over their useful lives. An
exception is made for assets without a determinable finite useful life (i.e., freehold
land and Community Assets) and assets that are not yet available for use (i.e.,
Assets under Construction).

Depreciation is calculated on the following bases:

 dwellings and other buildings — straight-line allocation over the useful life of the
property as estimated by the Valuer;

* vehicles, plant, furniture and equipment — straight-line allocation over the useful life
of the asset;

« infrastructure — straight-line allocation over 30 years.

Where a financially material item of Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) over £1M
in Net Book Value has major components over £250K of the asset value, the
components will be depreciated separately where the useful life is substantially
different and the calculated depreciation can also be shown to be significantly
different. Individual PPE assets with a Net Book Value of less than and including
£1M will be classed as de-minimis and be excluded from the requirement to be
componentised. Given that residential units are valued and reported individually, the
Council does not componentise its HRA dwellings on the basis that the value for any
single Council dwelling does not exceed £1M.

Central Bedfordshire Council Statement of Accounts 2016/17
42



Agenda Item 8
Page 158

Revaluation gains are also depreciated, with an amount equal to the difference
between current value depreciation charged on assets and the depreciation that
would have been chargeable based on their historical cost being transferred each
year from the Revaluation Reserve to the Capital Adjustment Account.

- Disposals and Non-current Assets Held for Sale

When it becomes probable that the carrying amount of an asset will be recovered
principally through a sale transaction rather than through its continuing use, it is
reclassified as an Asset Held for Sale. The asset is re-valued immediately before re-
classification and then carried at the lower of this amount and fair value less costs to
sell. Where there is a subsequent decrease to fair value less costs to sell, the loss is
posted to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement. Gains in fair value are recognised only up to the amount of
any previously losses recognised in the Surplus or Deficit on Provision of Services.
Depreciation is not charged on Assets Held for Sale.

If assets no longer meet the criteria to be classified as Assets Held for Sale, they are
re-classified back to Non-Current Assets and valued at the lower of their carrying
amount before they were classified as Held for Sale; adjusted for depreciation,
amortisation or revaluations that would have been recognised had they not been
classified as Held for Sale, and their recoverable amount at the date of the decision
not to sell.

Assets that are to be abandoned or scrapped are not re-classified as Assets Held for
Sale.

When an asset is disposed of or de-commissioned, the carrying amount of the asset
in the Balance Sheet (whether Property, Plant and Equipment or Assets Held for
Sale) is written off to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement as part of the gain or loss on disposal. Receipts
from disposals (if any) are credited to the same line in the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement also as part of the gain or loss on disposal (i.e., netted
off against the carrying value of the asset at the time of disposal). Any revaluation
gains accumulated for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve are transferred to the
Capital Adjustment Account.

Amounts received for a disposal in excess of £10K are categorised as capital
receipts. A proportion of capital receipts relating to housing disposals is payable to
the Government. The balance of receipts remains within the Capital Receipts
Reserve, and can then only be used for new capital investment or set aside to
reduce the Council’s underlying need to borrow (the Capital Financing Requirement).
Receipts are appropriated to the Reserve from the General Fund Balance in the
Movement in Reserves Statement.

The written-off value of disposals is not a charge against Council Tax, as the cost of
Non-Current Assets is fully provided for under separate arrangements for capital
financing.

Central Bedfordshire Council Statement of Accounts 2016/17
43



Agenda Item 8
Page 159

Amounts are appropriated to the Capital Adjustment Account from the General Fund
Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

xviii. Private Finance Initiatives (PFI) and Similar Contracts

PFI and similar contracts are agreements to receive services, where the
responsibility for making available the property, plant and equipment needed to
provide the services passes to the PFI contractor. As the Council is deemed to
control the services that are provided under its PFI schemes, and as ownership of
the property, plant and equipment will pass to the Council at the end of the contracts
for no additional charge, the Council carries the assets used under the contracts on
its Balance Sheet as part of Property, Plant and Equipment.

The original recognition of these assets at fair value (based on the cost to purchase
the property, plant and equipment) was balanced by the recognition of a liability for
amounts due to the scheme operator to pay for the capital investment.

Non-Current Assets recognised on the Balance Sheet are re-valued and depreciated
in the same way as property, plant and equipment owned by the Council. The full
liability related to the PFI is held on the Balance Sheet as a long term liability.

The amounts payable to the PFI operators each year are analysed into five
elements:

« fair value of the services received during the year — debited to the relevant service
in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement;

 finance cost — an interest charge of 7.2% on the outstanding Balance Sheet
liability, debited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement;

« contingent rent — increases in the amount to be paid for the property arising during
the contract, debited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement;

» payment towards liability — applied to write down the Balance Sheet liability towards
the PFI operator (the profile of write-downs is calculated using the same principles
as for a finance lease);

* life-cycle replacement costs — proportion of the amounts payable is posted to the
Balance Sheet as a prepayment and then recognised as additions to Property, Plant
and Equipment when the relevant works are eventually carried out.

xix. Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
- Provisions

Provisions are made where an event has taken place that gives the Council a legal
or constructive obligation that probably requires settlement by a transfer of economic
benefits or service potential, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of
the obligation. For instance, the Council may be involved in a court case that could
eventually result in the making of a settlement or the payment of compensation.

Central Bedfordshire Council Statement of Accounts 2016/17
44



Agenda Item 8
Page 160

Provisions are charged as an expense to the appropriate service line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in the year that the Council
becomes aware of the obligation, and are measured at the best estimate at the
Balance Sheet date of the expenditure required to settle the obligation, taking into
account relevant risks and uncertainties.

When payments are eventually made, they are charged to the provision carried in
the Balance Sheet. Estimated settlements are reviewed at the end of each financial
year — where it becomes less than probable that a transfer of economic benefits will
now be required (or a lower settlement than anticipated is made), the provision is
reversed and credited back to the relevant service.

Where some or all of the payment required to settle a provision is expected to be
recovered from another party (e.g., from an insurance claim), this is only recognised
as income for the relevant service if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be
received if the Council settles the obligation.

- Contingent Liabilities

A contingent liability arises where an event has taken place that gives the Council a
possible obligation whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
otherwise of uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Council.
Contingent liabilities also arise in circumstances where a provision would otherwise
be made but either it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required or
the amount of the obligation cannot be measured reliably.

Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a note
to the accounts.

- Contingent Assets

A contingent asset arises where an event has taken place that gives the Council a
possible asset whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
otherwise of uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Council.

Contingent assets are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a note to
the accounts where it is probable that there will be an inflow of economic benefits or
service potential.

XX. Reserves

The Council sets aside specific amounts as reserves for future policy purposes or to
cover contingencies. Reserves are created by transferring amounts out of the
General Fund Balance/Housing Revenue Account. When expenditure to be financed
from a reserve is incurred, it is charged to the appropriate service in that year to
score against the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. The reserve is then transferred
back into the General Fund Balance/Housing Revenue Account so that there is no
net charge against Council Tax for the expenditure.

Certain reserves are kept to manage the accounting processes for Non-Current
Assets, financial instruments, local taxation, retirement and employee benefits and

Central Bedfordshire Council Statement of Accounts 2016/17
45



Agenda Item 8
Page 161

do not represent usable resources for the Council — these reserves are explained in
the relevant policies.

xXi. Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital under Statute (REFCUS)

Expenditure incurred during the year that may be capitalised under statutory
provisions but that does not result in the creation of a Non-Current Asset has been
charged as expenditure to the relevant service in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement in the year. Where the Council has determined to meet the
cost of this expenditure from existing capital resources or by borrowing, a transfer in
the Movement in Reserves Statement from the General Fund Balance to the Capital
Adjustment Account then reverses out the amounts charged so that there is no
impact on the level of Council Tax.

xxii. VAT

VAT payable is included as an expense only to the extent that it is not recoverable
from Her Majesty’s Revenue and Customs (HMRC). VAT receivable is excluded
from income as it is paid over to HMRC.

xxiii. Fair Value Measurement

The Council measures some of its non-financial assets such as surplus assets and
investment properties and some of its financial instruments such as equity
shareholdings at fair value at each reporting date. Fair value is the price that would
be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement
assumes that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
either:

a) in the principal market for the asset or liability, or

b) in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the
asset or liability.

The Council measures the fair value of an asset or liability using the assumptions
that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that
market participants act in their economic best interest.

When measuring the fair value of a non-financial asset, the Council takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the
asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Council uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and
for which sufficient data is available, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

Inputs to the valuation techniques in respect of assets and liabilities for which fair
value is measured or disclosed in the Council’s financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, as follows:

Central Bedfordshire Council Statement of Accounts 2016/17
46



Agenda Item 8
Page 162

* Level 1 — quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities that the Council can access at the measurement date;

* Level 2 — inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly;

* Level 3 — unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

Note 2 - Accounting Standards Issued, Not Adopted

The Council is required to disclose information relating to the probable impact of an
accounting change that will be required by a new standard that has been issued but
not yet adopted by the Code of Practice. The accounting changes introduced in the
2017/18 Code relate to an amendment to the reporting of pension fund scheme
transaction costs, and an amendment to the reporting of investment concentration.
Neither of these is expected to have a material impact on the Council and will not
require a restatement of this year’s financial statements in 2017/18.

Note 3 - Critical Judgements in Applying Accounting
Policies

In applying the accounting policies set out in Note 1, the Council has made the
following critical judgements about complex transactions or those involving
uncertainty about future events.

Uncertainty about future levels of government funding

There is a degree of uncertainty about future levels of funding for local government.
However, the Council has determined that this uncertainty is not yet sufficient to
provide an indication that the assets of the Council might be impaired as a result of a
need to close facilities and reduce levels of service provision.

Deposits or investments with financial institutions

The Council has no deposits with any financial institutions that are in administration
and has no evidence at the Balance Sheet date to suggest any treasury investment
counterparties of the Council will enter into administration.

Controlling influence with other organisations

A number of Councillors represent the Council on the Boards of external
organisations. The Council has determined that it does not have a controlling
influence in any of these organisations.

Central Bedfordshire Council Statement of Accounts 2016/17
47



Agenda Item 8
Page 163

Depreciation and componentisation

As financially material assets are re-valued or attract capital expenditure, the Council
assesses these assets with a view to splitting them into their material components,
where there may be a significant impact on how the asset is depreciated. Where the
asset is not financially material or any component does not amount to over £250K,
the asset is not split as any effect on depreciation is immaterial to the financial
statements. Where a financially material item of Property, Plant and Equipment over
£1.0M in value has major components over £250K of the asset value, the
components will be depreciated separately where the useful life is substantially
different and the calculated depreciation can also be shown to be significantly
different.

Leases at peppercorn or minimal payments

The Council has a number of leases where the land element of the asset is leased at
peppercorn or minimal rent. These leases may be of a significant length which may
potentially render the lease a finance lease under accounting rules. However, where
assets are valued in their existing use under accounting regulations, a key
determinant of value is the amount of lease payments and as these are of immaterial
rental amounts, the Council has not considered such agreements as finance leases.

Lease arrangements where the Council is the lessee or lessor are assessed to
determine whether the lease is a finance lease or an operating lease. Lease
arrangements which are not financially material are all treated as operating leases.

Heritage assets

Heritage Assets held by the Council are not financially material in value and
therefore are not separately disclosed from Property, Plant and Equipment.

Note 4 - Assumptions Made about the Future and Other
Major Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

The preparation of financial statements requires Management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported for assets and liabilities
as at the Balance Sheet date and the amounts reported for the revenues and
expenses during the year. However, the nature of estimation means that actual
outcomes could differ from those estimates.

The key judgements and estimation uncertainty that have a significant risk of causing
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for the next
financial year are:

Property, Plant and Equipment  Assets are valued by professional staff qualified by
the Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors (RICS). Nevertheless, there is an inherent
element of subjectivity with any asset valuation.

Central Bedfordshire Council Statement of Accounts 2016/17
48



Agenda Item 8
Page 164

The value of an asset and its estimated useful economic life determine the
depreciation charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. If
the useful lives of all assets are overstated by 1 year, depreciation would increase by
£1.6M.

Pension Liabilities

There are a large number of variable factors used when calculating future pension
liabilities, e.g., mortality ratios and future economic conditions. An independent
actuary estimates the values within the Balance Sheet.

If any of the factors used to calculate the net pension liability are incorrect, there
would be an impact on the balance sheet and the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement.

A 1% increase in the net pension liability would represent an increase of £4.2M
charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, reversed out to
the Pension Reserve as per regulations.

Non-Domestic Rates (NDR) Appeals

The Council has set aside a provision to cover successful appeals lodged against
NDR banding with the Valuations office, based on a professional estimate of
outstanding appeals.

If the provision is incorrect, there would be an impact on the Collection Fund
balance. Any impact would be split between the Council and preceptors, with 49% of
this amount impacting the Council.

Note 5 - Material ltems of Income and Expense

Where material items are not disclosed on the face of the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement, the nature and amount of material items are set out
below:

Arlesey Nursery, The Lawns Nursery and Brigham Pre-School were leased to
Academy schools in 2016/17 which resulted in a transfer of Property, Plant and
Equipment non current assets valued at £1.8M from the Council’s Balance Sheet.

Note 6 - Events After the Balance Sheet Date

The Statement of Accounts were authorised for issue by the Director of Resources
(Section 151 Officer) on 29 June 2017. Events taking place after this date are not
reflected in the financial statements or notes. Where events taking place before this
date provided information about conditions existing at 31 March 2017, the figures in
the financial statements and notes have been adjusted in all material respects to
reflect the impact of this information. There are no events known to the Council
which would need to be registered as events after the Balance Sheet date.

Central Bedfordshire Council Statement of Accounts 2016/17
49



Agenda Item 8
Page 165

Note 7 - Expenditure and Funding Analysis

This statement shows how annual expenditure is used and funded from resources
(government grants, council tax and business rates) by local authorities in
comparison with those resources consumed or earned by authorities in accordance
with generally accepted accounting practices. It also shows how this expenditure is
allocated for decision making purposes between the Council’s directorates. Income
and expenditure accounted for under generally accepted accounting practices is
presented more fully in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

2015/16
Adjustments

2016/17

Net Expenditure Net Expenditure Net Expenditure  Adjustments Net Expenditure

Chargeable to in the Chargeable to in the
the General Comprehensive the General Comprehensive
Fund and HRA Income and Fund and HRA Income and
Expenditure Expenditure
Statement Statement
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
68,996 3,481 72,477 Social Care, Health & 75,654 (308) 75,346
Housing
55,054 838 55,892 Children’s Services 54,378 1,486 55,864
42,682 36,135 78,817 Community Services 45,977 18,937 64,913
7,100 3,857 10,957 Regeneration & 6,247 3,684 9,931
Business Support
(53) 24 (29) Public Health (187) 13) (201)
8,333 1,108 9,441 Chief Executives 7,790 1,359 9,148
8,532 770 9,302 Resources 11,490 (115) 11,375
3,620 (10,611) (6,991) Corporate Costs 2,792 (12,730) (9,938)
(15,447) 21,875 6,428 Schools (18,212) 23,722 5,510
(2,876) (33,510) (36,386) Landlord Business (8,242) (20) (8,263)
(HRA)
175,941 23,965 199,906 Net Cost of Services 177,685 36,001 213,686
(176,289) (27,876) (204,166) Other Income and (177,737) (25,057) (202,794)
Expenditure
(349) (3,911) (4,260) (Surplus) / Deficit on (52) 10,944 10,892
Provision of Services
(78,774) Opening Combined (79,164)
General Fund and HRA
Balance
(349) Plus / less (Surplus) or (52)
Deficit on the General
Fund and HRA Balance
for the Year (Statutory
basis)
(41) Transfers (to) / from (14,366)
other Reserves
Closing Combined
(79,164) General Fund and (93,582)

HRA Balance

Central Bedfordshire Council Statement of Accounts 2016/17
50



Agenda Item 8
Page 166

Note 7A — Note to the Expenditure and Funding Analysis

2016/17
Net Capital Net Pensions Other Statutory Other Differences Total Adjustments
Statutory Statutory Adjustments

Adjustments Adjustments

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Social Care, Health & Housing 3,855 (123) 5) (4,034) (308)
Children’s Services 199 (106) (127) 1,520 1,486
Community Services 21,794 (85) (40) (2,732) 18,937
Regeneration & Business 3,723 (53) 14 0 3,684
Support
Public Health 0 (3) (10) 0 (13)
Chief Executives 1,375 (25) 8 0 1,359
Resources 7 (63) (60) 0 (115)
Corporate Costs 22 351 0 (13,103) (12,730)
Schools 23,035 (198) 775 110 23,722
Landlord Business (HRA) 7,994 (22) 0 (7,992) (20)
Net Cost of Services 62,004 (327) 555 (26,231) 36,001
Other Income and Expenditure (37,230) 11,207 3,511 (2,545) (25,057)
24,774 10,880 4,066 (28,776) 10,944

Difference between the
Statutory Charge and the
Surplus or Deficit in the
Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement

Central Bedfordshire Council Statement of Accounts 2016/17

51



Agenda Item 8

Page 167

2015/16
Net Capital Net Pensions Other Statutory Other Differences Total Adjustments
Statutory Statutory Adjustments

Adjustments

Adjustments

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Social Care, Health & Housing 3,021 536 14 (90) 3,481
Children’s Services 202 628 8 0 838
Community Services 36,042 343 (513) 263 36,135
Regeneration & Business 3,632 221 (10,551) 10,555 3,857
Support
Public Health 0 14 (13,626) 13,636 24
Chief Executives 1,216 142 (13) (238) 1,107
Resources 884 275 (58) (331) 770
Corporate Costs 7 (153) (10,555) 90 (10,611)
Schools 23,673 805 (4,753) 2,150 21,875
Landlord Business (HRA) (19,975) 91 (13,627) 0 (33,510)
Net Cost of Services 48,702 2,903 (53,674) 26,035 23,966
Other Income and Expenditure (38,816) 12,194 (1,823) 569 (27,877)
Difference between the 9,886 15,097 (55,498) 26,604 (3,911)

Statutory Charge and the
Surplus or Deficit in the
Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement

Adjustments for capital purposes — this column adds in depreciation and impairment
and revaluation gains and losses in the services line, and for:

- Other operating expenditure — adjusts for capital disposals with a transfer of income
on disposal of assets and the amounts written off for those assets.

- Financing and investment income and expenditure — the statutory charges for
capital financing i.e., Minimum Revenue Provision and other revenue contributions
are deducted from other income and expenditure as these are not chargeable under
generally accepted accounting practices.

-Taxation and non-specific grant income and expenditure — capital grants are
adjusted for income not chargeable under generally accepted accounting practices.
Revenue grants are adjusted from those receivable in the year to those receivable
without conditions or for which conditions were satisfied throughout the year. The
Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income and Expenditure line is credited with capital
grants receivable in the year without conditions or for which conditions were satisfied
in the year.

Central Bedfordshire Council Statement of Accounts 2016/17
52



Agenda Item 8
Page 168

Net Change for the Pensions Adjustments - Net change for the removal of pension
contributions and the addition of IAS 19 Employee Benefits pension related
expenditure and income:

- For services this represents the removal of the employer pension contributions
made by the authority as allowed by statute and the replacement with current service
costs and past service costs.

- For Financing and investment income and expenditure — the net interest on the
defined benefit liability is charged to the CIES.

Other Differences - Other differences between amounts debited/credited to the
Comprehensive  Income and  Expenditure  Statement and  amounts
payable/receivable to be recognised under statute:

- For Financing and investment income and expenditure the other differences
column recognises adjustments to the General Fund for the timing differences for
premiums and discounts.

- The charge under Taxation and non-specific grant income and expenditure
represents the difference between what is chargeable under statutory regulations for
Council Tax and NDR that was projected to be received at the start of the year and
the income recognised under generally accepted accounting practices in the Code.
This is a timing difference as any difference will be brought forward in future
Surpluses or Deficits on the Collection Fund.

Central Bedfordshire Council Statement of Accounts 2016/17
53



Agenda Item 8
Page 169

Note 8 - Expenditure Analysed by Nature

2015/16 2016/17
£000 Nature of Expenditure or Income £000
(107,002) Fees, charges and other service income (111,917)
(569) Support service recharge income (542)
(328) Interest and investment income (620)
(164,625) Income from local taxation (174,003)
(284,657) Government grants and contributions (282,742)
159,601 Employee benefits expenses 164,096
569 Support service recharge expenditure 542
334,064 Other service expenses 344,678
21,260 Depreciation, amortisation and impairment 33,834
22,967 Interest payments 21,927
10,823 Precepts and levies 11,386
529 Payments to Housing Capital Receipts Pool 517
3,108 Gain or loss on disposal of non-current assets 3,736
(4,260) (Surplus) or Deficit for Year 10,892

Central Bedfordshire Council Statement of Accounts 2016/17
54



Note 9 - Adjustments between Accounting Basis and Funding Basis under Regulations

This note details the adjustments that are made to the total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement recognised by the
Council in the year in accordance with proper accounting practice to the resources that are specified by statutory provisions as
being available to the Council to meet future capital and revenue expenditure. The following sets out a description of the reserves
that the adjustments are made against.

General Fund Balance:

The General Fund balance is the statutory fund into which all the receipts of the Council are required to paid and out of which all
liabilities of the Council are to be met, except to the extent that statutory rules might provide otherwise. These rules can also specify
the financial year in which liabilities and payments should impact on the General Fund Balance, which is not necessarily in
accordance with proper accounting practice. The General Fund Balance therefore summarises the resources that the Council is
statutorily empowered to spend on its services or on capital investment (or the deficit of resources that the Council is required to
recover) at the end of the financial year. For housing authorities, the balance is not available to be applied to funding Housing
Revenue Account (HRA) services.

Housing Revenue Account Balance:

The Housing Revenue Account Balance reflects the statutory obligation to maintain a revenue account for local authority council
housing provision in accordance with Part VI of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989. It contains the balance of income and
expenditure as defined by the 1989 Act that is available to fund future expenditure in connection with the Council’s landlord function
or (where in deficit) that is required to be recovered from tenants in future years.

Major Repairs Reserve:

The Council is required to maintain the Major Repairs Reserve, which controls an element of the capital resources limited to being
used on capital expenditure on HRA assets or the financing of historical capital expenditure by the HRA. The balance shows the
capital resources that have yet to be applied at the year-end.

Central Bedfordshire Council Statement of Accounts 2016/17
55

g Wa)| epuaby

0.T abed



Capital Receipts Reserve:

The Capital Receipts Reserve holds the proceeds from the disposal of land or other assets, which are restricted by statute from
being used other than to fund new capital expenditure or to be set aside to finance historical capital expenditure. The balance on
the reserve shows the resources that have yet to be applied for these purposes at the year-end.

Capital Grants Unapplied:

The Capital Grants Unapplied Account (Reserve) holds the grants and contributions received towards capital projects for which the
Council has met the conditions that would otherwise require repayment of the monies but which have yet to be applied to meet
expenditure. The balance is restricted by grant terms as to the capital expenditure against which it can be applied and/or the
financial year in which this can take place.

2016/2017 General Fund Housing Capital Receipts Major Repairs  Capital Grants Movement in
Balance Revenue Reserve Reserve Unapplied Unusable
Account Reserves
£ £ £ £ £ £

Adjustments to the Revenue Resources

Amounts by which income and expenditure
included in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement are different from
revenue for the year calculated in
accordance with statutory requirements:

Pension cost (transferred to (or from) the (10,555) (325) 10,880
Pensions Reserve)

Financial Instruments (transferred to the (48) 0 48
Financial Instruments Adjustments Account)

Council tax and NDR (transfers to or from (966) 966
the Collection Fund)

Holiday pay (transferred to the Accumulated (555) 5565
Absences reserve)

Reversal of entries included in the Surplus or (28,419) (10,102) 0 38,521

Deficit on the Provision of Services in
relation to capital expenditure (these items
are charged to the Capital Adjustment
Account)

Total Adjustments to Revenue Resources (40,542) (10,427) 0 0 0 50,969

Central Bedfordshire Council Statement of Accounts 2016/17
56

g Wa)| epuaby

T.T obed



Adjustments between Revenue and Capital
Resources

Transfer of non-current asset sale proceeds
from revenue to the Capital Receipts
Reserve

Payments to the government housing
receipts pool (funded by a transfer from the
Capital Receipts Reserve)

Posting of Housing Revenue Account
resource from revenue to the Major Repairs
Reserve

Statutory Provision for the repayment of debt
(transfer to the Capital Adjustment Account)

Capital expenditure financed from revenue
balances (transfer to the Capital Adjustment
Account)

6,910

(517)

1,648

2,273

7,354

4,567

3,425

(14,263)

517

(4,567)

(1,648)

(5,698)

Total Adjustments between Revenue and
Capital Resources

Adjustments to Capital Resources

Use of the Capital Receipts Reserve to
finance capital expenditure

Use of the Major Repairs Reserve to finance
new capital expenditure

Application of capital grants to finance
capital expenditure

10,314

15,346

(13,746)

10,268

(4,567)

4,567

800

(7,346)

(10,268)

(4,567)

(800)

Total Adjustments to Capital Resources

10,268

4,567

800

(15,636)

Total Adjustments

(30,229)

4,919

(3,478)

800

27,988

Central Bedfordshire Council Statement of Accounts 2016/17

57

g Wa)| epuaby

2/ T obed



2015/2016

General Fund
Balance

Housing
Revenue
Account

Capital Receipts Major Repairs  Capital Grants
Reserve Reserve Unapplied

Movement in
Unusable
Reserves

Adjustments to the Revenue Resources

Amounts by which income and expenditure
included in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement are different from
revenue for the year calculated in
accordance with statutory requirements:

Pension cost (transferred to (or from) the
Pensions Reserve)

Financial Instruments (transferred to the
Financial Instruments Adjustments Account)
Council tax and NDR (transfers to or from
the Collection Fund)

Holiday pay (transferred to the Accumulated
Absences reserve)

Reversal of entries included in the Surplus or

Deficit on the Provision of Services in
relation to capital expenditure (these items
are charged to the Capital Adjustment
Account)

(14,642)

1,649

1,824
464

(32,956)

(455)

18,447

(620)

15,097

(1,649)

(1,824)
(464)

15,129

Total Adjustments to Revenue Resources

Adjustments between Revenue and Capital
Resources

Transfer of non-current asset sale proceeds
from revenue to the Capital Receipts
Reserve

Payments to the government housing
receipts pool (funded by a transfer from the
Capital Receipts Reserve)

Posting of Housing Revenue Account
resource from revenue to the Major Repairs
Reserve

Statutory Provision for the repayment of debt
(transfer to the Capital Adjustment Account)

(43,661)

1,981

(529)

8,867

Central Bedfordshire Council Statement of Accounts 2016/17

17,991

3,174

3,946

0 0 (620)

(5,155)

529

(3,946)

26,289

(8,867)

58

g Wa)| epusaby

¢/ T obed



Capital expenditure financed from revenue 2,413 9,690 (12,103)
balances (transfer to the Capital Adjustment

Account)

Total Adjustments between Revenue and 12,731 16,809 (4,625) (3,946) 0 (20,970)
Capital Resources

Adjustments to Capital Resources

Use of the Capital Receipts Reserve to 5,081 (5,081)
finance capital expenditure

Use of the Major Repairs Reserve to finance 3,946 (3,946)
new capital expenditure

Application of capital grants to finance 10,940 (10,940)
capital expenditure

Total Adjustments to Capital Resources 0 0 5,081 3,946 10,940 (19,966)
Total Adjustments (30,929) 34,800 455 0 10,320 (14,646)

Central Bedfordshire Council Statement of Accounts 2016/17

59

g Wa)| epuaby

v/ T obed



Agenda Item 8
Page 175

Note 10 - Transfers to/from Earmarked Reserves

This note sets out the amounts set aside from the General Fund and HRA balances
in earmarked reserves to provide financing for future expenditure plans and the
amounts posted back from earmarked reserves to meet General Fund and HRA
expenditure in 2016/17.

Balance at 1 Transfers In Transfers Out Balance at 31 Transfers In  Transfers Out Balance at 31

April 2015 2015/16 2015/16 March 2016  2016/17 2016/17 March 2017

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
General Fund
Reserves:
Redundancy Reserve (1,488) (500) 1,328 (660) (500) 772 (388)
Insurance Reserve (4,280) (294) 520 (4,054) (1,536) 1,095 (4,495)
Other Corporate (9,024) (8,672) 5,051 (12,643) (11,091) 0 (23,734)
Reserves
Environmental Reserves (3,992) (1,278) 458 (4,812) (3,117) 833 (7,096)
School Specific (4,080) (2,267) 3,237 (3,110) 0 1,669 (1,441)
Contingency
Other Children's Services (1,871) (15) 1,008 (878) (260) 111 (1,027)
Outcome-based (3,239) 0 753 (2,486) 0 578 (1,908)
Commissioning
Social Care, Health and (2,093) (113) 917 (1,289) (194) 140 (1,343)
Housing Reserves
Public Health Reserves (1,496) (50) 0 (1,546) (239) 0 (1,785)
Schools Reserve (11,689) (1,227) 0 (12,916) 0 1,692 (11,224)
Total General Fund (43,250) (14,416) 13,272 (44,394) (16,937) 6,890 (54,442)
Housing Revenue
Account Reserves:
Independent Living (11,962) (4,116) 7,074 (9,004) (7,190) 1,296 (14,898)
Development Reserve
Strategic Reserve (6,394) (3,372) 1,517 (8,249) 0 1,575 (6,673)
Total Housing Revenue (18,356) (7,488) 8,591 (17,253) (7,190) 2,871 (21,571)
Account
Total Earmarked (61,606) (21,904) 21,863 (61,647) (24,127) 9,761 (76,012)
Reserves

Central Bedfordshire Council Statement of Accounts 2016/17
60



Agenda Item 8
Page 176

Note 11 - Other Operating Expenditure

2015/16 2016/17

£000 £000

10,154 Precepts 10,705

669 Levies 681

529 Payments to the Government Housing Capital 517

Receipts Pool
3,108 Gains/losses on the Disposal of Non-Current Assets 3,736
14,460 Total Other Operating Expenditure 15,639

Note 12 - Financing and Investment Income and

Expenditure
2015/16 2016/17

10,773 Interest payable and similar charges 10,720

12,194 Net interest on the net defined benefit liability 11,207

(asset)

(357) Interest receivable and similar income (353)

29  Other investment income and expenditure (267)

22,639 Total 21,307

Note 13 - Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income

2015/16 2016/17
£000 £000
(136,616) Council tax income (142,800)
(28,010) Non-domestic rates income and expenditure (31,204)
(34,096) Non-ringfenced government grants (24,149)
(42,543) Capital grants and contributions (41,588)
(241,265) Total (239,741)

Central Bedfordshire Council Statement of Accounts 2016/17

61



Note 14 - Property, Plant and Equipment

Movements to 31 March 2017

Land Vehicles, Plant,

Total Property,

Council and Furniture & Infrastructure Community Assets Under Plant and
Dwellings Buildings Equipment Assets Assets Surplus Assets  Construction Equipment
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Cost or Valuation
Balance as at 1 April 2016 415,692 502,106 32,387 307,196 2,678 4,407 35,727 1,300,193
Additions 10,072 18,766 5,614 32,109 139 54 17,128 83,882
Revaluation increases/(decreases) 30,245 41,439 0 0 0 3,375 4,671 79,729
recognised in the Revaluation Reserve
Revaluation increases/(decreases) (4,985) (3,026) 0 0 0 314 0 (7,697)
recognised in the Surplus/Deficit on
the Provision of Services
Derecognition — disposals (2,130) (18,607) (112) 0 (16) 0 0 (20,865)
Reclassifications and transfers 477 (19,264) 1,117 23,077 1,880 18,120 (28,855) (3,449)
Balance as at 31 March 2017 449,370 521,414 39,005 362,382 4,681 26,269 28,671 1,431,793
Accumulated Depreciation and
Impairment
Balance as at 1 April 2016 (20) (16,783) (18,682) (71,553) 3) 172 0 (106,859)
Depreciation charge (4,470) (9,595) (1,911) (11,049) (12) (111) 0 (27,147)
Depreciation written out to the 2,958 3,814 0 0 0 0 0 6,771
Revaluation Reserve
Depreciation written out to the 1,529 464 0 0 0 0 0 1,993
Surplus/Deficit on the Provision of
Services
Derecognition — disposals 22 2,944 66 0 0 0 0 3,032
Reclassifications and transfers 3) 1,435 45 9) (695) (774) 0 0
Balance as at 31 March 2017 25 (17,722) (20,481) (82,610) (710) (713) 0 (122,210)

Central Bedfordshire Council Statement of Accounts 2016/17

62

g Wa)| epuaby

/. T obed



Net Book Value

Balance as at 31 March 2017 449,395 503,693 18,524 279,772 3,971 25,557 28,671 1,309,583
Balance as at 31 March 2016 415,681 485,009 13,705 235,643 2,675 4,893 35,727 1,193,333
Movements to 31 March 2016
Land Vehicles, Plant, Total Property,
Council and Furniture & Infrastructure Community Assets Under Plant and
Dwellings Buildings Equipment Assets Assets Surplus Assets  Construction Equipment
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Cost or Valuation
Balance as at 1 April 2015 358,508 365,946 26,341 286,177 2,575 181 28,071 1,067,799
Additions 15,960 26,763 5,534 21,018 108 0 14,547 83,930
Revaluation increases/(decreases) 22,094 56,792 0 0 0 (28) (143) 78,715
recognised in the Revaluation Reserve
Revaluation increases/(decreases) 23,926 (18,940) 0 0 5) (1,824) 0 3,157
recognised in the Surplus/Deficit on
the Provision of Services
Derecognition — disposals (2,381) (5,923) (59) 0 0 0 0 (8,363)
Reclassifications and transfers 1,450 82,861 571 0 0 6,983 (6,748) 85,117
Other movements in cost or valuation (3,865) (5,705) (591) (10,161)
Balance as at 31 March 2016 415,692 501,794 32,387 307,195 2,678 4,721 35,727 1,300,194
Accumulated Depreciation and
Impairment
Balance as at 1 April 2015 13) (14,510) (17,318) (61,332) ®3) 1 0 (93,176)
Depreciation charge (3,864) (8,444) (1,422) (10,220) 0 2) 0 (23,951)
Depreciation written out to the 3,865 5,705 0 0 0 591 0 10,161
Surplus/Deficit on the Provision of
Services
Derecognition — disposals 1 112 58 0 0 0 0 171

Central Bedfordshire Council Statement of Accounts 2016/17

63

g Wa)| epuaby

8/ T obed



Reclassifications and transfers 0 352 0 0 0 (418) 0 (66)

Balance as at 31 March 2016 (11) (16,785) (18,681) (71,552) ®3) 172 0 (106,861)

Net Book Value
Balance as at 31 March 2016 415,681 485,009 13,705 235,643 2,675 4,893 35,727 1,193,333
Balance as at 31 March 2015 358,495 351,436 9,022 224,845 2,572 182 28,071 974,623

Depreciation:
The following useful lives have been used in the calculation of depreciation:

. Council houses up to 60 years

. Operational buildings up to 50 years
. Infrastructure up to 30 years

. Vehicles up to 10 years

. Plant and equipment up to10 years.

Capital Commitments:
As at 31 March 2017, the Council had entered into a contract for the construction or enhancement of Property, Plant and Equipment in 2016/17 and future years, budgeted to
cost £6.7M. The capital commitment relates to a Broadband Extension Project.

Revaluations:

The Council carries out a rolling programme that ensures that all Property, Plant and Equipment required to be measured at fair value is re-valued at least every five years. In
addition, a revaluation loss and material change review was undertaken at the 31 March 2017. All valuations, except Council dwellings, were carried out internally. Council
Dwelling valuations are provided by the external Chartered Surveyors Wilks Head & Eve. Valuations of land and buildings were carried out in accordance with the
methodologies and bases for estimation set out in the professional standards of the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors (RICS).

The significant assumptions applied in estimating the fair values are:

. Good freehold title to the properties owner occupied, held as investments, or surplus to requirements

. Good adequate leasehold or other short-term tenure for the properties held leasehold for operational purposes

. Properties are not subject to any unusual or especially onerous restrictions, encumbrances or outgoings

. Building structures, electrical heating and building service apparatus are in good repair and condition

. No contaminative or potential contaminative uses have ever been carried out in any of the properties

. For Depreciated Replacement Cost purposes that planning permission would be received without onerous or unusual conditions for alternative uses on the built area
. That repairs and maintenance expenditure is at an acceptable level and there is no significant backlog.

Central Bedfordshire Council Statement of Accounts 2016/17
64

g Wa)| epuaby

6.1 obed



Note 15 - Intangible Assets

Agenda Item 8
Page 180

The Council accounts for its IT software as Intangible Assets, to the extent that the
software is not an integral part of a particular IT system and accounted for as part of
the hardware item of Property, Plant and Equipment. The Intangible Assets include
both purchased licenses and internally generated software.

All software is given a finite useful life, based on assessments of the period that the
software is expected to be of use to the Council. The useful lives assigned to the
major software suites used by the Council are 10 years as standard.

The carrying amount of Intangible Assets is amortised on a straight-line basis. The
amortisation of £1.0M charged to revenue in 2016/17 (£0.5M in 2015/16) was
charged to the IT administration cost centre and then absorbed as an overhead
across all the service headings in the Cost of Services.

The movement on Intangible Asset balances during the year is as follows:

31st March
2016

Total

£000

31st March
2017

Total

£000

Balance at start of year:
18,393 - Gross carrying amounts

(9,572) - Accumulated amortisation

18,708
(10,039)

8,821 Net carrying amount at start of year

Additions:
315 - Purchases
0 Reclassifications and transfers

(466) Amortisation for the period

8,670

1,050
3,449
(983)

8,670 Net carrying amount at end of year

Comprising:
18,708 - Gross carrying amounts
(10,039) - Accumulated amortisation

12,185

23,206
(11,022)

8,670

12,185

Central Bedfordshire Council Statement of Accounts 2016/17

65



Note 16 - Financial Instruments

Financial Instruments

Long-term
31 March 2016

Long-term

31 March 2017

Current
31 March 2016

Agenda Item 8
Page 181

Current

31 March 2017

Investments
Loans and receivables

Available-for-sale financial
assets

Total investments

Debtors
Loans and receivables

Financial assets carried at
contract amounts

Total included in Debtors

Borrowings

Financial liabilities at amortised
cost

Total included in Borrowings

Other Long Term Liabilities

PFI and finance lease liabilities

Total other long term liabilities

Creditors

Financial liabilities carried at
contract amount

Total Creditors

£000 £000 £000 £000

0 0 564 1,007

5,150 5,279 0 0

5,150 5,279 564 1,007

549 491 0 0

36,148 17,529

549 491 36,148 17,529

(274,146) (274,279) (63,683) (73,430)

(274,146) (274,279) (63,683) (73,430)
(15,252) (16,532)
(289,398) (290,811)

(44,673) (47,790)

0 0 (44,673) (47,790)

Central Bedfordshire Council Statement of Accounts 2016/17

66



Income, Expense, Gains and Losses

Interest expense
Fee expense

Total expense in Surplus or
Deficit on the Provision of
Services

Interest income

Total income in Surplus or
Deficit on the Provision of
Services

Gains on revaluation

Surplus/deficit arising on

revaluation of financial assets

in Other Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure

Net (gain)/loss for the year

Interest expense
Fee expense

Total expense in Surplus or
Deficit on the Provision of
Services

Interest income

Total income in Surplus or
Deficit on the Provision of
Services

Gains on revaluation

Surplus/deficit arising on

revaluation of financial assets

in Other Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure

Net (gain)/loss for the year

Agenda Item 8

Page 182

2017
Financial Financial Assets: Financial Assets: Assets and Total
Liabilites: Loans and Available-for-sale Liabilities at Fair
Liabilities receivables assets Value through
measured at Profit and Loss
amortised cost
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
10,697 0 0 0 10,697
23 0 0 0 23
10,720 0 0 0 10,720
- (66) (274) 0 (339)
0 (66) (274) 0 (339)
- - (128) - (128)
- - (128) - (128)
10,720 (66) (402) 0 10,252
2016
Financial Financial Assets: Financial Assets: Assets and Total
Liabilites: Loans and Available-for-sale Liabilities at Fair
Liabilities receivables assets Value through
measured at Profit and Loss
amortised cost
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
10,762 0 0 0 10,762
11 0 0 0 11
10,773 0 0 0 10,773
- (357) 0 0 (357)
0 (357) 0 0 (357)
- - (146) - (146)
- - (146) - (146)
10,773 (357) (146) 0 10,270

Central Bedfordshire Council Statement of Accounts 2016/17

67



Note 16a - Financial Instruments - Fair Value

Financial Assets Measured at Fair Value

Recurring Fair Value Measurements -
Available for sale:

31 March 2016

31 March 2017

£'000 £'000
Lime Fund 5,150 5,279
Money Market Funds 0 6,000
Balance 31 March 5,150 11,279

Agenda Item 8
Page 183

The Fair Values of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities that are not Measured at Fair
Value (but for which Fair Value Disclosures are required)

Financial Liabilities

31 March 2016

31 March 2017

Carrying Amount Fair Value Carrying Amount Fair Value
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Financial Liabilities held at Amortised Cost (337,829) (380,602) (347,709) (417,881)
PFI and finance lease liabilities (15,733) (21,526) (17,243) (25,898)
Total (353,562) (402,128) (364,952) (443,779)

Financial Assets

31 March 2016

31 March 2017

Carrying Amount Fair Value Carrying Amount Fair Value
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Loans and Receivables 564 564 1,007 1,007
Long-Term Debtors 549 549 491 491
Total 1,113 1,113 1,498 1,498

Central Bedfordshire Council Statement of Accounts 2016/17

68



Note 17 - Inventories

A breakdown of the Council’s inventories is given below:

Community Equipment Service

2015/16 2016/17
£000 £000
Balance outstanding at start of 0 98
year
Purchases 98 0
Written-off balances 0 ©)
Balance Outstanding at Year 98 90

End

Note 18 - Debtors

31 March 2016

31 March 2017

£000 £000
6,148 Central Government Bodies 7,602
2,960 Other Local Authorities 2,940
2,592 NHS Bodies 2,403
43,000 Other Entities and Individuals 31,781
54,700 Total Debtors 44,726

* Debtors are presented net of an impairment allowance in respect of uncollectable debts.

Note 19 - Cash and Cash Equivalents

Agenda Item 8
Page 184

The balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents is made up of the following elements:

31 March 2016

31 March 2017

£000 £000
(7,388) Cash and Bank balances (3,981)
0 Short Term Investments 6,000
7,797  Short Term Deposits 2,244
409 Total Cash and Cash Equivalents 4,263

* The overdrawn position in respect of bank accounts reflects outstanding BACS and cheque payments.

Central Bedfordshire

Council Statement of Accounts 2016/17

69



Note 20 -

Current

31 March 2016

Assets Held for Sale

Current

31 March 2017

£000 £000
173  Balance outstanding at start of year 173
Assets newly classified as held for sale:
100  Property Plant and Equipment 0
Assets de-classified as held for sale:
(70)  Assets sold (167)
(30)  Other Movements 0
173  Balance Outstanding year end 6

Note 21 -

31 March 2016

Creditors

31 March 2017

£'000 £'000
(1,302) Central Government Bodies (9,424)
(5,075) Other Local Authorities (4,842)
(86) NHS Bodies (2,127)
(41,608) Other Entities and Individuals (43,398)
(48,071) Total Creditors (59,791)

* Includes PFI short-term liability which had been separately shown in the Balance Sheet in 2015/16.

Central Bedfordshire Council Statement of Accounts 2016/17

Agenda Item 8

Page 185

70



Note 22 — Provisions

Current
Provisions
Outstanding Insurance

2016/17 legal cases provision Other provisions Total

£000 £000 £000 £000
Opening Balance (295) (2,333) (3,049) (5,677)
Increase in provision (504) (1,212) (3,450) (5,167)
during year
Utilised during year 38 357 3,285 3,680
Unused Amounts 47 854 162 1,064
Reversed
Closing Balance (714) (2,334) (3,052) (6,101)

Outstanding Insurance

2015/16 legal cases provision Other provisions Total

£000 £000 £000 £000
Opening Balance 0 (2,378) (3,325) (5,703)
Increase in provision (295) (1,406) (646) (2,347)
during year
Utilised during year 0 359 636 995
Unused Amounts 0 1,091 287 1,378
Reversed
Closing Balance (295) (2,334) (3,048) (5,677)

Outstanding Legal Cases:

The Council has provided for a number of specific ongoing legal cases.

Insurance Provision:

Agenda Item 8
Page 186

The Council has a number of injury and compensation claims in progress where the
Council is alleged to be at fault. Provision is made for those claims where it is
deemed probable that the Council may have to incur costs and make settlement
where any payments will not met by relevant insurance contracts.

Other Provisions:

Other provisions include the Council’'s share of Non Domestic Rates valuation
appeals (£2.1M) and the cost of approved school closures (£0.4M).

Central Bedfordshire Council Statement of Accounts 2016/17

71



Note 23 - Usable Reserves

Agenda Item 8
Page 187

Movements in the Council’'s Usable Reserves are detailed in the Movement in

Reserves Statement.

Capital Receipts Reserve

The Capital Receipts Reserve holds the proceeds from the disposal of land or other
assets, which are restricted by statute from being used other than to fund new capital
expenditure or to be set aside to finance historical capital expenditure. The balance
on the reserve shows the resources that have yet to be applied for these purposes at

the year-end.

Capital Receipts Reserve

31 March 2016

£000

31 March 2017

£000

(3,451) Balance 1 April
(5,154) Capital Receipts in year
528 Capital Receipts Pooled

5,081 Capital Receipts used for financing

(2,996)
(14,263)

517
10,268

(2,996) Balance 31 March

(6,474)

Major Repairs Reserve

The Council is required to maintain the Major Repairs Reserve, which controls an
element of the capital resources limited to being used on capital expenditure on HRA
assets or the financing of historical capital expenditure by the HRA. The balance
shows the capital resources that have yet to be applied at the year-end.

Major Repairs Reserve

31 March 2016

£000

31 March 2017

£000

(200) Balance 1 April
(3,946) Depreciation and Amortisation

3,946 Application to finance capital expenditure

(200)
(4,567)
4,567

(200) Balance 31 March

(200)

Central Bedfordshire Council Statement of Accounts 2016/17

72



Agenda Item 8
Page 188

Capital Grants Unapplied Account

The Capital Grants Unapplied Account (Reserve) holds the grants and contributions
received towards capital projects for which the Council has met the conditions that
would otherwise require repayment of the monies but which have yet to be applied to
meet expenditure. The balance is restricted by grant terms as to the capital
expenditure against which it can be applied and/or the financial year in which this
can take place.

Capital Grants Unapplied

31 March 2016 31 March 2017
£000 £000
(13,580) Balance 1 April (3,260)
(620) Capital grants recognised in year 0
10,940 Capital grants and contributions applied 800
(3,260) Balance 31 March (2,459)

Central Bedfordshire Council Statement of Accounts 2016/17
73



Agenda Item 8
Page 189

Note 24 - Unusable Reserves

The table below provides a breakdown of the Council’'s Unusable Reserves included
in the Movement in Reserves Statement. Unusable Reserves have no immediate
impact on the current resources available to the Council, but do illustrate potential
long term financial resourcing implications.

31 March 2016 31 March 2017
£000 £000
(180,576) Revaluation Reserve (263,823)
(150) Available for Sale Financial Instruments (279)

Reserve

(550,790) Capital Adjustment Account (538,503)
(48)  Financial Instruments Adjustment Account 0
320,562 Pension Reserve 416,484
(2,780) Collection Fund Adjustment Account (1,814)
2,008 Accumulated Absences Account 2,563
(411,774) Total (385,372)

Revaluation Reserve

The Revaluation Reserve contains the gains made by the Council arising from
increases in the value of its Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets.

The balance is reduced when assets with accumulated gains are:
* revalued downwards or impaired and the gains are lost;

* used in the provision of services and the gains are consumed through depreciation;
or

» disposed of and the gains are realised.

The Reserve contains only revaluation gains accumulated since 1 April 2007, the
date that the Reserve was created. Accumulated gains arising before that date are
consolidated into the balance on the Capital Adjustment Account.

Revaluation Reserve

31 March 2016 31 March 2017
£000 £000
(91,966) Balance 1 April (180,575)
(88,664) Upward revaluation of assets (66,788)

Central Bedfordshire Council Statement of Accounts 2016/17
74



9,952 Downward revaluation of assets and (19,712)
impairment losses not charged to the
Surplus/Deficit on the Provision of Services
(78,712)  Surplus or deficit on revaluation of non- (86,500)
current assets not charged to the Surplus
or Deficit on the Provision of Services
2,102 Difference between fair value depreciation 3,072
and historical cost depreciation
171  Accumulated gains on assets sold or 180
scrapped
2,273  Amount written off to the Capital 3,252
Adjustment Account
(12,171) Other movements to the Surplus or Deficit 0
on Provision of Services
(180,576) Balance 31 March (263,823)

Available for Sale Financial Instruments Reserve

Agenda Item 8
Page 190

The Available for Sale Financial Instruments Reserve contains the gains made by
the Council arising from increases in the value of its investments that have quoted
market prices or otherwise do not have fixed or determinable payments. The balance

is reduced when investments with accumulated gains are either:

* revalued downwards or impaired and the gains are lost; or

« sold and the gains are realised.

Available for Sale Financial Instruments Reserve

31 March 2016

31 March 2017

£000 £000

(4) Balance 1 April (150)
(146) Upward revaluation of investments (128)
(150) Balance 31 March (279)

Capital Adjustment Account

The Capital Adjustment Account absorbs the timing differences arising from the
different arrangements for accounting for the consumption of Non-Current Assets
and for financing the acquisition, construction or additions to those assets under
statutory provisions. The Account is debited with the cost of acquisition, construction
or subsequent costs as depreciation, impairment losses and amortisations are
charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (with reconciling
postings from the Revaluation Reserve to convert current and fair value figures to a

Central Bedfordshire Council Statement of Accounts 2016/17

75



Agenda Item 8
Page 191

historical cost basis). The Account is credited with the amounts set aside by the
Council as finance for the costs of acquisition, construction and subsequent costs.
The Account also contains revaluation gains accumulated on Property, Plant and
Equipment before 1 April 2007, the date that the Revaluation Reserve was created
to hold such gains. Note 9 provides details of the source of all the transactions
posted to the Account apart from those involving the Revaluation Reserve.

Capital Adjustment Account

31 March 2016 31 March 2017
£'000 £'000
(534,881) Balance 1 April (550,790)
23,950 Charges for depreciation and impairment of 27,147

non-current assets.

(3,131) Revaluation losses on non-current assets 5,704
467 Amortisation of intangible assets 983
27,506 Revenue expenditure funded from capital 28,275

under statute

8,261 Amounts of non-current assets written off on 18,000
disposal or sale as part of the gain/loss on
disposal to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement

57,053 Reversal of Iltems relating to capital 80,109
expenditure debited or credited to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement

(2,273)  Adjusting Amounts Written out of the (3,252)
Revaluation Reserve

54,780 Net written out amount of the cost of non- 76,856
current assets consumed in the year

(5,081) Use of Capital Receipts Reserve to Finance (10,268)
new capital expenditure

(3,946) Use of Major Repairs Reserve to finance (4,567)
new capital expenditure

(52,864) Capital Grants and Contributions credited to (42,388)
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement that have been applied to capital
financing

(8,867) Statutory provision for the financing of (1,648)
capital investment charged against the
General Fund and HRA balances

(12,103) Capital expenditure charged against the (5,698)
General Fund and HRA balances.

(82,861) Capital financing applied in year: (64,569)

12,171 Other movements 0

(550,790) Balance 31 March (538,503)

Central Bedfordshire Council Statement of Accounts 2016/17
76



Agenda Item 8
Page 192

Financial Instruments Adjustment Account

The Financial Instruments Adjustment Account absorbs the timing differences arising
from the different arrangements for accounting for income and expenses relating to
certain financial instruments and for bearing losses or benefiting from gains per
statutory provisions. The Council uses the Account to manage premiums paid on the
early redemption of loans. Premiums are debited to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement when they are incurred, but reversed out of the General Fund
Balance to the Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

Financial Instruments Adjustment Account

31 March 2016 31 March 2017
£000 £000
1,601  Balance 1 April (48)
(1,649) Proportion of premiums incurred in previous financial years to 48

be charged against the General Fund Balance in accordance
with statutory requirements

(48) Balance 31 March 0

Pensions Reserve

The Pensions Reserve absorbs the timing differences arising from the different
arrangements for accounting for post-employment benefits and for funding benefits
in accordance with statutory provisions. The Council accounts for post-employment
benefits in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as the benefits
are earned by employees accruing years of service, updating the liabilities
recognised to reflect inflation, changing assumptions and investment returns on any
resources set aside to meet the costs.

However, statutory arrangements require benefits earned to be financed given that
the Council makes employer’s contributions to pension funds or eventually pays any
pensions for which it is directly responsible. The debit balance on the Pensions
Reserve therefore shows a substantial shortfall in the benefits earned by past and
current employees and the resources the Council has set aside to meet them. The
statutory arrangements will ensure that funding will have been set aside by the time
the benefits come to be paid.

Pension Reserve

31 March 2016 31 March 2017
£000 £000
379,640 Balance 1 April 320,562
(74,176) Remeasurements of the net defined benefit (liability)/asset 85,042
34,648 Reversal of items relating to retirement benefits debited or credited 30,913

to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

(19,550) Employers pensions contributions and direct payments to (20,033)
pensioners payable in the year
320,562 Balance 31 March 416,484

Central Bedfordshire Council Statement of Accounts 2016/17
77



Agenda Item 8
Page 193

Collection Fund Adjustment Account

The Collection Fund Adjustment Account manages the differences arising from the
recognition of Council Tax and Non-Domestic Rates income in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement as it falls due from Council Tax and Business
ratepayers compared with the statutory arrangements for paying across amounts to
the General Fund from the Collection Fund.

Collection Fund Adjustment Account

31 March 2016 31 March 2017
£000 £000
(956) Balance 1 April (2,780)
(1,824)  Amount by which council tax and non-domestic rates income 966

credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement is different from council tax income calculated for the
year in accordance with statutory requirements

(2,780) Balance 31 March (1,814)

Accumulated Absences Account

The Accumulated Absences Account absorbs the differences that would otherwise
arise on the General Fund Balance from accruing for compensated absences earned
but not taken in the year, e.g., annual leave entitlement carried forward at 31 March.
Statutory arrangements require that the impact on the General Fund Balance is
neutralised by transfers to or from the Account.

Accumulated Absences Account

31 March 2016 31 March 2017
£000 £000
2,472  Balance 1 April 2,008
(2,472)  Settlement or cancellation of accrual made at the end of (2,008)

the preceding year

2,008  Amounts accrued at the end of the current year 2,563

(464)  Amount by which officer remuneration charged to the 555
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement on an
accruals basis is different from remuneration chargeable
in year in accordance with statutory requirements

2,008 Balance 31 March 2,563

Central Bedfordshire Council Statement of Accounts 2016/17
78



Agenda Item 8
Page 194

Note 25 - Cash Flow from Operating Activities

The cash flows for operating activities include the following items:

31 March 2016

31 March 2017

£'000 £'000
0  *Interest received (345)
0 *Interest paid 10,613
0 *Total 10,268

The cash flows for operating activities include the following items:

31 March 2016

31 March 2017

£'000 £'000

(23,950) Depreciation (27,147)

3,130 Impairment and downward valuations (5,704)

(467)  Amortisation (983)

(1,835) Increase/(decrease) in creditors (13,326)

270  (Increase)/decrease in debtors (168)

98 (Increase)/decrease in inventories (@)

(15,097)  Movement in pension liability (10,880)

(8,261)  Carrying amount of non-current assets and non-current (18,000)
assets held for sale, sold or derecognised

153  Other non-cash movements charged to the surplus or (556)

deficit on provision of services
(45,959) Total (76,772)

The surplus or deficit on the provision of services has been adjusted for the following items which are investing

and financing activities:

31 March 2016

31 March 2017

£'000 £'000
(10,581)  * Interest and investment income 0
5,154  Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and 14,263
equipment, investment property and intangible assets
42,543  Any other items for which the cash effects are investing 41,588
or financing cash flows
37,116  Total 55,851

* To conform with CIPFA's Code of Practice, interest has been included in Net Operating Activities instead of Investing
Activities in 2016/17 although the figures for 2015/16 have been left unchanged from last year’s published accounts.

Central Bedfordshire Council Statement of Accounts 2016/17
79



Agenda Item 8
Page 195

Note 26 - Cash Flow from Investing Activities

31 March 2016

31 March 2017

£'000 £'000
83,692 Purchase of property, plant and equipment, 84,860
investment property and intangible assets
11,967 Purchase of short-term and long-term 4,005
investments
10,591 * Other payments for investing activities 0
(5,154) Proceeds from the sale of property, plant (14,263)
and equipment, investment property and
intangible assets
(11,969) Proceeds from short-term and long-term (3,505)
investments
(51,611) Other receipts from investing activities (54,071)
37,516 Net cash flows from investing activities 17,026

* To conform with CIPFA's Code of Practice, interest has been included in Net Operating Activities instead of Investing
Activities in 2016/17 although the figures for 2015/16 have been left unchanged from last year’s published accounts.

Note 27 - Cash Flow from Financing Activities

31 March 2016

31 March 2017

£'000 £'000
(123,900) Cash receipts of short-term and long-term (290,760)
borrowing
535 Cash payments for the reduction of outstanding 418
liabilities relating to finance leases and on-
Balance-Sheet PFI contracts
98,446 Repayments of short-term and long-term 280,992
borrowing
1,895 Other payments for financing activities (1,502)
(23,023) Net cash flows from financing activities (10,852)

Central Bedfordshire Council Statement of Accounts 2016/17

80



Note 28 - Trading Operations

Agenda Item 8
Page 196

The Council has established four trading units where the service manager is required
to operate in a commercial environment and balance their budget by generating
income from other parts of the Council or other organisations. Details of these units
are given as follows:

Car Parks

2015/16 2016/17
£000 £000
(1,355) Income (1,684)
1,074 Expenditure 1,242
(281) Net (Surplus) / Deficit for Year (442)

2015/16 Building Control 2016/17
£000 £000
(736) Income (710)
692 Expenditure 610
(44) Net (Surplus) / Deficit for Year (100)

Albion Archaeol

2015/16 lon Archasology 2016/17
£000 £000
(1,648) Income (2,035)
1,915 Expenditure 2,210
267 Net (Surplus) / Deficit for Year 175

2015/16 Leighton Buzzard Theatre 2016/17
£000 £000
(255) Income (228)
342  Expenditure 328
87  Net (Surplus) / Deficit for Year 100

Trading Operations Total Income and

2015/16 Expenditure: 2016/17
£000 £000
(3,994) Income (4,657)
4,023  Expenditure 4,390
29 Net (Surplus) / Deficit for Year (267)

Analysis of Inclusion in The Comprehensive

2015/16 Income and Expenditure Statement: 2016/17
£000 £000
29  Net (surplus) on trading operations (267)
29 Net (surplus)/ deficit included in Financing and (267)

Investment Income and Expenditure

Central Bedfordshire Council Statement of Accounts 2016/17

81



Agenda Item 8
Page 197

Note 29 - Pooled Budgets and Partnership Arrangements

PARTNERSHIP ARRANGEMENTS
Better Care Fund:

Effective since April 2015, the Council has entered into a partnership arrangement
with NHS Bedfordshire Clinical Commissioning Group in accordance with Section 75
of the National Health Service Act 2006. Central Bedfordshire Council provides
financial management for this partnership arrangement.

The Better Care Fund (BCF) is a policy initiative between local authorities, CCGs
and NHS providers which has resulted in funds being used to jointly commission or
deliver health and social care. Apart from the integrated equipment store
arrangements, the terms of the Section 75 agreement means that contracts are
stand-alone with the financial risk being retained by the lead body. In relation to the
equipment store, the arrangement is hosted by the Council and accounted for as a
pooled budget.

The Clinical Commissioning Group and Central Bedfordshire Council have signed a
Framework Partnership Agreement relating to the BCF and commissioning of health
and social care services. The agreement has established a Partnership Board with
joint membership from each organisation. The Partnership Board determines which
schemes are funded in the locality. Each partner then manages the contracts with
their own providers of BCF services and each partner retains any financial risk
relating to those contracts.

Better Care Fund

2015/16 2016/17

£000 £000

(4,607) Central Bedfordshire Council (10,313)

(14,100) Bedfordshire Clinical Commissioning Group (10,221)

(18,707) Total Pooled Funding (20,534)

9,275 Central Bedfordshire Council 9,055

8,906 Bedfordshire Clinical Commissioning Group 10,221

18,181 Expenditure 19,276

(526) Net Surplus/Deficit on the Pooled Budget (1,258)

(263) The Council’s Share of the Net Surplus / Deficit (629)

Central Bedfordshire Council Statement of Accounts 2016/17
82



Agenda Item 8
Page 198

POOLED BUDGETS
Bedfordshire Community Equipment Service:

Central Bedfordshire Council (CBC) has entered into a pooled budget arrangement
with Bedford Borough Council (BBC) and Bedfordshire Clinical Commissioning
Group (BCCG) for the provision of community equipment services to meet the needs
of people living in the geographical area. During 2016/17 the Council continued
responsibility for hosting the pooled budget.

The partners contribute funds to the agreed budget equal to 21% (CBC), 13% (BBC)
and 66% (BCCG) of the budget respectively. The same proportions are used to meet
any deficit or share any surplus arising on the pooled budget at the end of each
financial year.

The pooled budget is hosted by the Council on behalf of the three partners to the
agreement.

Bedfordshire Community Equipment Service

2015/16 2016/17
£000 £000
(428) Central Bedfordshire Council (461)
(256) Bedford Borough Council (273)
(1,260) Bedfordshire Clinical Commissioning Group (1,344)
(1,944) Total Pooled Funding (2,078)

Expenditure:

1,944  Central Bedfordshire Council 2,078

0 Net Surplus/Deficit on the Pooled Budget 0

Note 30 - Members’ Allowances

The Council paid the following amounts to Members of the Council during the year:

31 March 2016 31 March 2017
£'000 £'000
1,078 * Salaries 1,065
116 Expenses 112
1,194 Total Members' Allowances 1,177

* Salaries figure includes employer’s national insurance and superannuation contributions

Central Bedfordshire Council Statement of Accounts 2016/17
83



Note 31 - Officers’ Remuneration

Senior Officers are defined by the Council as any officer at Director level or above. During 2016/17, this classification included the

Chief Executive and seven Directors

The remuneration paid to the Council’s permanent senior employees is as follows:

Officers Remuneration

Salary, Fees and

Expenses Compensation for

Pension

Total

2016/17 Allowances Allowances Loss of Office Contribution
£0 £0 £0 £0 £0

Chief Executive (R Carr) 2016/17 183,113 1,457 0 45,595 230,165

2015/16 181,300 1,193 0 45,144 227,637
Director of Children's Services 2016/17 146,450 748 0 36,466 183,664
(S Harrison)

2015/16 145,000 808 0 36,105 181,913
Director of Social Care, Health 2016/17 146,450 1,699 0 36,466 184,615
& Housing (J Ogley)

2015/16 145,000 1,373 0 36,104 182,477
Director of Resources (C 2016/17 117,050 1,073 0 29,145 147,268
Warboys)

2015/16 110,000 853 0 27,390 138,243
Director of Community 2016/17 117,050 528 0 29,145 146,723
Services (M Coiffait)

2015/16 110,000 574 0 27,390 137,964
Director of Improvement & 2016/17 34,050 167 63,287 0 97,504
Corporate Services (D
Broadbent-Clarke)

2015/16 132,692 597 0 0 133,289
Chief Legal & Democratic 2016/17 0 0 0 0 0
Services Officer (M Clay)

2015/16 39,579 0 0 9,855 49,434
Director of Regeneration & 2016/17 115,550 2,685 0 28,772 147,007
Business Support (J
Longhurst)

2015/16 110,000 1,626 0 27,390 139,016

Central Bedfordshire Council Statement of Accounts 2016/17

84

g Wa)| epuaby

66T obed



Director of Public Health (M 2016/17 101,182 2,994 0 25,734 129,910
Scott)
2015/16 100,669 3,167 0 25,604 129,440
Total 2016/17 960,895 11,351 63,287 231,323 1,266,856
2015/16 1,074,240 10,191 0 234,982 1,319,413

Deb Broadbent-Clarke - Director of Improvement & Corporate Services left the Council on 30th June 2016.

Charles Warboys — Director of Resources was appointed to this new position on 1st October 2016, having previously been the

Chief Finance Officer.

Muriel Scott - Director of Public Health is funded by Central Bedfordshire Council, Bedford Borough Council and Milton Keynes

Council. Central Bedfordshire Council's element is a total remuneration of £52,671.

There were no other payments in either year to Senior Officers in relation to bonuses.

Senior Employees Remuneration

2015/16 2016/17
£50,001 to £55,000 63 51
£55,001 to £60,000 40 58
£60,001 to £65,000 33 36
£65,001 to £70,000 26 21
£70,001 to £75,000 6 8
£75,001 to £80,000 5 6
£80,001 to £85,000 4 3
£85,001 to £90,000 6 6
£90,001 to £95,000 4 1
£95,001 to £100,000 2 4
£100,001 to £105,000 2 3
Total 191 197

Central Bedfordshire Council Statement of Accounts 2016/17

85

g Wwa)| epuaby

00¢ abed



The above table shows the Council’s other school and non-school permanent employees (excluding those individuals listed above
within senior employees) receiving more than £50k remuneration for the year (excluding employer’s pension contributions).

Exit Packages

Exit package cost band

(including special Number of com_pulsory Number of other Total number of exit Total cost of exit packages in
payments) redundancies departures agreed packages by cost band each band (£000)

2015/16 2016/17 2015/16 2016/17 2015/16 2016/17 2015/16 2016/17
£0-£20,000 35 22 18 5 53 27 319,000 116,000
£20,001 - £40,000 6 6 7 0 13 6 329,000 155,000
£40,001 - £60,000 0 1 0 1 0 2 0 90,000
£60,001 - £200,000 1 1 1 2 2 3 130,000 312,000
Total 42 30 26 8 68 38 778,000 673,000

The table above includes all exit packages that have been agreed, accrued for and charged to the Council's Comprehensive
Income & Expenditure Statement for the current year. The Council's Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement does not
include any provision for exit packages, however there is an earmarked reserve established for this purpose.

The table includes all benefits on termination, e.g., redundancy, pay in lieu of notice, severance and actuarial strain.

Central Bedfordshire Council Statement of Accounts 2016/17
86

g Wwa)| epuaby

TOg abed



Agenda Item 8
Page 202

Note 32 - External Audit Costs

The Council has incurred the following costs in relation to the audit of the Statement
of Accounts:

2015/16 2016/17
£000 £000

149 Fees payable to external auditors with regard to 139
external audit services carried out by the appointed
auditor for the year

42  * Fees payable in respect of other services provided 36
by external auditors during the year

191 Total 175

* The fees for other services payable in both 2015/16 and 2016/17 related to Teachers Pensions End of Year Certification
(EQYC), grant claims and returns certification.

Note 33 - Dedicated Schools Grant

Individual Schools

Notes DSG Receivable for 2016/17 Central Expenditure Budget Total

£000 £000 £000
A Final DSG for year before Academies recoupment 195,435
B Academy figure recouped for year (92,506)
C Total DSG after academy recoupment 102,929
D Plus: Brought forward from previous year 3,109
E Less: Carry forward to following year (agreed in advance) 0
F Agreed initial budgeted distribution in year 22,324 83,713 106,038
G In year adjustments (1,721) 649 (1,071)
H Final budget distribution for year 20,604 84,363 104,966
| Less: Actual central expenditure (19,162) (19,162)
J Less: Actual ISB deployed to schools (84,363) (84,363)
K Plus: Local Authority contribution for year 0 0 0
L Carry forward to 2017/18 1,442 0 1,442

Central Bedfordshire Council Statement of Accounts 2016/17
87



Agenda Item 8

Page 203
Individual Schools
Notes DSG Receivable for 2015/16 Central Expenditure Budget Total

£000 £000 £000

A Final DSG for year before Academies recoupment 192,114
B Academy figure recouped for year (89,800)
C Total DSG after academy recoupment 102,314
D Plus: Brought forward from previous year 4,079
E Less: Carry forward to following year (agreed in advance) 0
F Agreed initial budgeted distribution in year 21,847 84,546 106,393
G In year adjustments (1,820) (759) (2,579)
H Final budget distribution for year 20,027 83,787 103,814
| Less: Actual central expenditure (16,918) (16,918)
J Less: Actual ISB deployed to schools (83,787) (83,787)
K Plus: Local Authority contribution for year 0 0 0
L Carry forward to 2016/17 3,109 0 3,109

Note 34 - Grant Income

The Council credited the following grants, taxes, contributions and donations to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in 2016/17:

Grant Income Credited to Taxation and non-specific Grant Income and
Expenditure

31 March 2016 31 March 2017
£000 £000
(30,072) Revenue Support Grant (20,152)
(1,341) Council Tax Freeze Grant 0
(2,683) NDR Section 31 Grant (1,730)
0 Transition Grant (2,234)
0 Council Tax Annex Grant (33)
(852) HRA Capital Grant 0
(12,193) New School Places Programme (13,729)
(9,822) New Woodside link road to M1 (7,898)
(4,457) Highways Structural Maintenance (4,336)
(2,321) Section 106 developer contributions (3,077)
0 Special Schools Provision (2,402)
(2,712)  Schools Capital Maintenance (2,236)
0 Stratton Park Phase 5 & 6 additional infrastructure (1,400)
(2,619) Local Broadband Infrastructure (1,186)
(974) A421-M1 Junction 13 - Milton Keynes Magna Park* (1,150)
(2,104) Flitwick Leisure Centre Redevelopment 0

Central Bedfordshire Council Statement of Accounts 2016/17
88



Agenda Item 8

Page 204
(1,818) Highways Integrated schemes 0
(2,672) Others (individually less than £1M) (4,175)
(76,640) Total (65,737)
* this grant was included in ‘Others (individually less than £1M’ in 2015/16
Credited to Services
31 March 2016 31 March 2017
£000 £000
(102,314) Dedicated Schools Grant (102,929)
(60,249) Housing Benefit Administration Subsidy Grant (58,446)
(11,306)  Public Health Grant (12,909)
(9,070) New Homes Bonus Grant (11,725)
(4,939) Better Care Fund (NHS Grant) (5,055)
(4,086) Pupil Premium Grant (EFA) (3,866)
0 EFA (UIFSM/Primary PE&Sports/Year 7 Catch-Up Premium)* (3,444)
(3,326)  Additional Grant for Schools** (3,361)
(2,582) Post-16 - Education Funding Agency Grant (2,523)
(2,250) Early Intervention Grant (2,097)
0 PFI* (1,886)
(1,203)  Adult & Community Learning Grant (1,330)
(835) Asylum Seekers Grant** (2,175)
(5,956) Others (individually less than £1M) (6,259)
(208,016) Total (217,005)

* The PFI and EFA grants had not been included in the above table but rather reported within ‘Fees, charges and other service
income’ in 2015/16.
** these grants were included in ‘Others (individually less than £1M’ in 2015/16

Grants Receipts in Advance (Capital Grants) - Long Term Liabilities

31 March 2016 31 March 2017

£000 £000

(26,051) Section 106 developer contributions (38,507)

(5,094) New School Places Programme 0

(3,948) New Woodside link road to M1 0

(1,618) Special Schools Provision 0

(2,152) Others (individually less than £1M) (4,420)

(38,863) Total (42,927)

Central Bedfordshire Council Statement of Accounts 2016/17
89



Agenda Item 8
Page 205

Note 35 - Related Parties

The Council is required to disclose material transactions with related parties — bodies
or individuals that have the potential to control or influence the Council or to be
controlled or influenced by the Council. Disclosure of these transactions allows
readers to assess the extent to which the Council might have been constrained in its
ability to operate independently or might have secured the ability to limit another
party’s ability to bargain freely with the Council.

Central Government:

Central government has significant influence over the general operations of the
Council — it is responsible for providing the statutory framework within which the
Council operates, provides the significant funding in the form of grants and
prescribes the terms of many of the transactions that the Council has with other
parties.

Members:

Members of the Council have direct control over the Council’s financial and operating
policies. The total of Members’ allowances paid in 2016/17 is shown in Note 30.

A number of Councillors are school governors and are appointed Town and Parish
Council Members, although they do not control or significantly influence any of these
public bodies given the nature of governance arrangements in place.

A list of Councillor relationships with companies / organisations that have had
material financial transactions in 2016/17 with the Council is provided below.
Contracts were entered into in full compliance with the Council’s standing orders.
Material financial transactions for this purpose are defined as those over £1.0M. If
however the transactions are below £1.0M, but significant in relation to the total
income and expenditure of the Related Party, they have been included within this
disclosure.

2016/17

Expenditure by

the Council

Councillor |Organisation Relationship £'000

S. Dixon Willmott Dixon which is wholly Shareholder 2551

owned by Hardwicke Investments

P. Hollick South Beds Dial-A-Ride Member 198

D. Bowater |South Essex Partnership CBC-appointed 8,150
Governor

Central Bedfordshire Council Statement of Accounts 2016/17
90



Agenda Item 8
Page 206

Senior Officers:
Senior Officers are defined as per Note 31.

During 2016/17, there were no material related party transactions relating to Senior
Officers.

Other Public Bodies:

The Council hosts a partnership arrangement with NHS Bedfordshire Clinical
Commissioning Group in respect of the Better Care Fund (BCF). Established in April
2015, it provides funds to local areas to support the integration of health and social
care. The agreement has established a Partnership Board with joint membership
from each organisation. The Partnership Board determines which schemes are
funded in the locality. Each partner then manages the contracts with their own
providers of BCF services and each partner retains any financial risk relating to
those contracts.

The Council also hosts a pooled budget arrangement with NHS Bedfordshire Clinical
Commissioning Group and Bedford Borough Council for the provision of Community
Equipment Services.

Further details of these two partnership and pooled budget arrangements are
included in Note 29.

Pension Fund:

The Council participates in the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS),
administered locally by Bedford Borough Council. Details of payments made to the
Bedfordshire Pension Fund for employer’s superannuation contributions are shown
in Note 41.

Entities Controlled or Significantly Influenced by the Council:

Whilst there are no groups controlled or significantly influenced by Central
Bedfordshire Council, since 1st April 2016, the Council has held a one-third
ownership of LGSS Law Ltd which is a Local Authorities Trading Company (LATC).
Established by Cambridgeshire County Council and Northamptonshire County
Council, the company’s main objective is to provide legal services to the public
sector. Total payments of £2.2m were made to LGSS Law Ltd in 2016/17 for legal
services, undertaking the role of the Council’s Monitoring Officer and disbursements.

Note 36 - Capital Expenditure and Capital Financing

The total amount of capital expenditure incurred in the year is shown in the table
below (including the value of assets acquired under finance leases and PFI
contracts), together with the resources that have been used to finance it. Where
capital expenditure is to be financed in future years by charges to revenue as assets
are used by the Council, the expenditure results in an increase in the Capital

Central Bedfordshire Council Statement of Accounts 2016/17
91



Agenda Item 8
Page 207

Financing Requirement (CFR), a measure of the capital expenditure incurred
historically by the Council that has yet to be financed. The CFR is analysed as
follows:

Capital Expenditure and Capital Financing

31 March 2016 31 March 2017
£000 £000

446,919 Opening Capital Financing Requirement 475,810

Capital Investment:

83,930 Property Plant and Equipment 83,882
315 Intangible Assets 1,050
27,506 Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital Under Statute 28,275
111,751 Total Capital Spending 113,206

Sources of Finance:

(5,081) Capital receipts (10,268)
(52,863) Government Grants and other contributions (42,388)
(3,946) Major repairs reserve (4,567)

Sums set aside from revenue:

(12,103) - Direct revenue contributions (5,698)

(8,867) - Minimum revenue provision (1,648)
(82,860) Total Sources of Finance (64,569)
475,810 Closing Capital Financing Requirement 524,446

Explanation of movements in year

31 March 2016 31 March 2017
£ £

28,891 Increase in underlying need to borrow (unsupported by 48,637
government financial assistance)

28,891 Increase/(decrease) in Capital Financing Requirement 48,637

Central Bedfordshire Council Statement of Accounts 2016/17
92



Agenda Item 8
Page 208

Note 37 - Leases

Council as Lessee

Finance Leases:

At 31 March 2016, the Council has not taken any finance leases.
Operating Leases:

The Council has use of a number of buildings and land in delivering services by
entering into operating leases, with various lease lengths from 1 to 99 years. Most
are less than 25 years and many are annual, those that are 99 years are very limited
in number and immaterial in value.

Council as Lessee - Operating Leases

The future minimum lease payments due under non-cancellable
operating leases in future years are set out below:

31 March 2016 31 March 2017
£'000 £'000
199  Not later than one year 200
557 Later than one year and not 410

later than five years

410  Later than five years 254

1,166 Total 865

The expenditure charged to services in the CIES during the year
in relation to these leases was:

31 March 2016 31 March 2017
£'000 £'000
254  Minimum lease payments 200
254  Total 200

Central Bedfordshire Council Statement of Accounts 2016/17
93



Agenda Item 8
Page 209

Council as Lessor
Finance Leases:

The Council has no leased out assets whereby the Council would be lessor, that
meet the definition of a finance lease.

Operating Leases:

The Council leases out property (as landlord) under operating leases for the
following purposes:

. for the provision of community services, such as sports facilities, tourism
services and community centres;

. for economic development purposes to provide suitable affordable
accommodation for local businesses;

. for agricultural purposes.

The minimum lease payments receivable do not include rents that are contingent on
events taking place after the lease was entered into, such as adjustments following
rent reviews.

Council as Lessor - Operating Leases

The future minimum lease payments receivable under non-
cancellable leases in future years are:

31 March 2016 31 March 2017
£'000 £'000
1,486  Not later than one year 1,341
4,165 Later than one year and not 4,076

later than five years

23,178  Later than five years 22,873

28,829  Total 28,290

Central Bedfordshire Council Statement of Accounts 2016/17
94



Agenda Item 8
Page 210

Note 38 - Service concession arrangements

In December 2003, Bedfordshire County Council entered into a contract with
Bedfordshire Education Partnership Ltd for the provision of new buildings, the
refurbishment of existing buildings and associated facilities management at two
schools (Samuel Whitbread Academy and Harlington Upper School) which have
both since converted to Academy status.

The contract specifies minimum standards for the services to be provided by the
contractor, with deductions from the fee payable being made if facilities are
unavailable or performance is below the minimum standards. The contractor took on
the obligation to construct new buildings, refurbish existing buildings and maintain
them in a minimum acceptable condition and to procure and maintain the plant and
equipment needed to operate the schools.

The buildings and any plant and equipment installed in them at the end of the
contract will be transferred to the Academies for nil consideration. The Council only
has rights to terminate the contract if it compensates the contractor in full for costs
incurred and future profits that would have been generated over the remaining term
of the contract.

Property, Plant and Equipment:

The assets used to provide services at the schools are not recognised on the
Council’'s Balance Sheet, given that the two schools have converted to Academy
status and the assets were written out of the Council’s asset register at the point of
transfer.

Payments:

The Council makes an agreed payment each year to Bedford Education Partnership
Ltd which is increased each year by inflation linked to the Retail Price Index (RPI)
and can be reduced if the contractor fails to meet availability and performance
standards in any year but which is otherwise fixed until the contract expires on 31
December 2035. The payment was £4.557M in 2016/17 (£4.286M in 2015/16).

Central Bedfordshire Council Statement of Accounts 2016/17
95



Movement in PFI Liabilities

Schools PFI Total
2016/17
£'000 £'000
Balance outstanding at start of year (15,733) (15,733)
Payments during the year (1,510) (1,510)
Balance outstanding at year-end (17,243) (17,243)
Schools PFI Total
2015/16
£'000 £'000
Balance outstanding at start of year (16,268) (16,268)
Payments during the year 535 535
Balance outstanding at year-end (15,733) (15,733)

Payments due under PFI schemes -
2016/17

Reimbursement of Capital Expenditure Schools PFI Total

£'000 £'000
Payable within one year (711) (711)
Payable within two to five years (2,383) (2,383)
Payable within six to ten years (3,710) (3,710)
Payable within eleven to fifteen years (5,271) (5,271)
Payable within sixteen to twenty years (5,168) (5,168)
Total (17,243) (17,243)
Interest Schools PFI Total

£'000 £'000
Payable within one year (1,575) (1,575)
Payable within two to five years (5,883) (5,883)
Payable within six to ten years (7,025) (7,025)
Payable within eleven to fifteen years (6,186) (6,186)
Payable within sixteen to twenty years (6,203) (6,203)
Total (26,872) (26,872)
Payment for Services Schools PFI Total

£'000 £'000
Payable within one year (1,399) (1,399)
Payable within two to five years (6,529) (6,529)
Payable within six to ten years (8,383) (8,383)
Payable within eleven to fifteen years (8,407) (8,407)
Payable within sixteen to twenty years (5,705) (5,705)
Total (30,423) (30,423)

Central Bedfordshire Council Statement of Accounts 2016/17

Agenda Item 8
Page 211

96



Agenda Item 8
Page 212

Note 39 - Termination Benefits

The Council terminated the contracts of 38 employees in 2016/17, incurring direct
redundancy costs of £673K (68 employees and £778K in 2015/16) — see Note 31 for
the number of exit packages and total cost per band. These costs have been
incurred as part of the Council's drive to reduce operating costs:

. £100K paid to 2 officers in Children's Services

. £72K paid to 3 officers in Corporate Services

. £285K paid to 10 officers in Regeneration & Community Services
. £157K paid to 21 officers in Social Care, Health & Housing

. £59K paid to 2 officers for schools.

Note 40 - Pension Schemes Accounted for as Defined
Contribution Schemes

The Council does not participate in any defined contribution schemes.
Teachers’ Pension Scheme

Teachers employed by the Council are members of the Teachers’ Pension Scheme,
administered by the Department for Education (DfE). The Scheme provides teachers
with specified benefits upon their retirement, and the Council contributes towards the
costs by making contributions based on a percentage of members’ pensionable
salaries.

The Scheme is a multi-employer defined benefit scheme. The Scheme is unfunded
and the DfE uses a notional fund as the basis for calculating the employers’
contribution rate paid by local authorities. Valuations of the notional fund are
undertaken every four years.

The Scheme has in excess of 7,700 participating employers and consequently the
Council is not able to identify its share of the underlying financial position and
performance of the Scheme with sufficient reliability for accounting purposes. For the
purposes of this Statement of Accounts, it is therefore accounted for on the same
basis as a defined contribution scheme.

In 2016/17, the Council paid £5.573M to Teachers’ Pensions in respect of teachers’
retirement benefits, representing 16.49% of pensionable pay. The comparative
figures for 2015/16 were £5.219M and 15.43% respectively. There were no
contributions remaining payable at the year-end.

Central Bedfordshire Council Statement of Accounts 2016/17
97



Agenda Item 8
Page 213

The Council is responsible for the costs of any additional benefits awarded upon
early retirement outside of the terms of the teachers’ scheme. These costs are
accounted for on a defined benefit basis and detailed in Note 41.

The Council is not liable to the Scheme for any other entities’ obligations under the
plan.

Public Health Staff

Under the new arrangements for Public Health, staff performing public health
functions were compulsorily transferred to the Council on 1 April 2013 on the
abolition of the Primary Care Trusts (PCTs) nationally. The transferred staff retained
access to the NHS Pension Scheme. The Scheme provides specified benefits upon
retirement towards which the Council makes contributions based on a percentage of
members’ pensionable salaries. The Scheme is administered by the Department of
Health (DoH).

The Scheme is a multi-employer defined benefit scheme. The Scheme is unfunded
and the DoH uses a notional fund as the basis for setting employer contribution
rates. Valuations of the fund are undertaken every four years.

The Scheme has over 1.35M active members employed in a wide variety of
organisations. The Council is unable to identify its share of the underlying financial
position and performance of the Scheme with sufficient reliability for accounting
purposes. For the purposes of this Statement of Accounts, it is therefore accounted
for on the same basis as a defined contribution scheme.

In 2016/17, the Council paid £50K to the NHS Pension Scheme in respect of the
retirement benefits of public health staff (E53K in 2015/16). There were no
contributions remaining payable at the year-end.

The Council is not liable to the Scheme for any other entities’ obligations under the
plan.

Note 41 - Defined Benefit Pension Scheme

As part of the terms and conditions of employment of its officers, the Council makes
contributions towards the cost of post-employment benefits within the Local
Government Pension Scheme (LGPS). Although these benefits will not actually be
payable until employees retire, the Council has a commitment to make the payments
(for those benefits) and to disclose them at the time that employees earn their future
entitlement.

The Council participates in one post-employment scheme: the LGPS, administered
locally by Bedford Borough Council — this is a funded defined benefit final salary
scheme, meaning that the Council and employees pay contributions into a fund,

Central Bedfordshire Council Statement of Accounts 2016/17
98



Agenda Item 8
Page 214

calculated at a level intended to balance the pensions liabilities with investment
assets.

There are no other schemes other than the LGPS.

Arrangements for the award of discretionary post-retirement benefits upon early
retirement - this is an unfunded defined benefit arrangement, under which liabilities
are recognised when awards are made. However, there are no investment assets
built up to meet these liabilities, and cash has to be generated to meet actual
pension payments as they eventually fall due.

The Bedfordshire Pension Fund is operated under the regulatory framework for the
LGPS and the governance of the Scheme is the responsibility of the pensions
committee of Bedford Borough Council. Policy is determined in accordance with the
Pensions Fund Regulations. The investment managers of the fund are appointed by
the committee and consist of the Chief Finance Officer and resources of the
appointed Investment Fund managers.

The principal risks to the Council of the Scheme are the longevity assumptions,
statutory changes to the Scheme, structural changes to the scheme (i.e., large-scale
withdrawals from the Scheme), changes to inflation, bond vyields and the
performance of the equity investments held by the Scheme. These are mitigated to a
certain extent by the statutory requirements to charge to the General Fund and
Housing Revenue Account the amounts required by statute as described in the
Accounting Policies Note 1.

Discretionary Post-retirement Benefits:

Discretionary post-retirement benefits on early retirement are an unfunded defined
benefit arrangement, under which liabilities are recognised when awards are made.

There are no plan assets built up to meet these pension liabilities.
Transactions Relating to Post-employment Benefits:

The Council recognises the cost of retirement benefits in the reported cost of service
when they are earned by employees, rather than when the benefits are eventually
paid as pensions. However, the charge the Council is required to make against
Council Tax is based on the cash payable in the year, so the real cost of post-
employment/retirement benefits is reversed out of the General Fund and Housing
Revenue Account via the Movement in Reserves Statement. The following
transactions have been made in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement and the General Fund Balance via the Movement in Reserves Statement
during the year.

Central Bedfordshire Council Statement of Accounts 2016/17
99



General Fund Transactions

2015/16 2016/17
LGPS LGPS
£000 £000
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
Cost of Services
Service cost comprising:
22,614  Current service cost 19,320
(160)  (Gain)/ loss from curtailments 386
Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure
12,194  Net interest expense 11,207
34,648  Total charged to Surplus and Deficit on 30,913

Provision of Services

Other post-employment benefits charged to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement

£000 £000
Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability
comprising:
9,504  Return on plan assets (excluding the amount (60,208)
included in the net interest expense)
(12,499)  Actuarial gains and losses arising on changes in (2,695)
demographic assumptions
(71,181)  Actuarial gains and losses arising on changes in 147,945
financial assumptions
(39,528) Total charged to the Comprehensive Income 115,955
and Expenditure Statement
2015/16 2016/17
LGPS LGPS
Movement in Reserves Statement
£000 £000
(34,648)  Reversal of net charges made to the Surplus or (30,913)
Deficit on the Provision of Services
Actual amount charged against the general fund
balance for pensions in the year:
19,551  Employers' contributions payable to scheme 20,033

Central Bedfordshire Council Statement of Accounts 2016/17

Agenda Item 8
Page 215

100



Pensions Assets and Liabilities Recognised in
the Balance Sheet

2015/16 2016/17
LGPS LGPS
£000 £000
(747,661)  Present value of the defined obligation (917,401)
427,099  Fair value of plan assets 500,917
(320,562) Net (liability) / asset arising from the defined (416,484)
benefit obligation
Movement in the the Value of Scheme Assets
2015/16 2016/17
LGPS LGPS
£000 £000
422,698  Opening fair value of scheme assets 427,099
13,532  Interest income 14,915
Remeasurement gain / (loss):
(9,504)  The return on plan assets, excluding the amount 60,208
included in the net interest expense
19,551  Contributions from employer 20,033
5,168  Contributions from employees into the scheme 5,069
(24,346) Benefits / transfers paid (26,407)
427,099  Closing value of scheme assets 500,917
Movements in the Fair Value of Scheme
2015/16 Liabilities 2016/17
LGPS LGPS
£000 £000
(802,339)  Opening balance at 1 April (747,661)
(22,614)  Current service cost (19,320)
(25,726) Interest cost (26,122)
(5,168)  Contributions from scheme participants (5,069)
Remeasurement gains and losses:
12,499  Actuarial gains / (losses) from changes in 2,695
demographic assumptions
71,181  Actuarial gains / (losses) from changes in financial (147,945)
assumptions
(113)  Gains/ (losses) on curtailments (386)
24,346  Benefits / transfers paid 26,407
273  Liabilities extinguished on settlements 0
(747,661) Balance as at 31 March (917,401)

Agenda Item 8

Page 216

The table above shows the amount included in the Balance Sheet arising from the
Council’s obligation in respect of its defined benefit plans.

Central Bedfordshire Council Statement of Accounts 2016/17

101



Agenda Item 8
Page 217

Basis for Estimating Assets and Liabilities:

Liabilities have been assessed on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit
method, an estimate of the pensions that will be payable in future years dependent
on assumptions about mortality rates, salary levels, etc.

Both the Local Government Pension Scheme and discretionary benefits liabilities
have been estimated by Hymans Robertson, an independent firm of actuaries,
estimates for the Bedfordshire Pension Fund being based on the latest full valuation
of the Scheme as at 1 April 2016.

The significant assumptions used by the actuary have been:

2015/16 Local Government Pension Scheme 2016/17
3.5%  Long-term expected rate of return on assets in the 2.6%
scheme *

Mortality assumptions:
Longevity at 65 for current pensioners:
22.4 Men 22.4

24.3 Women 24.5

Longevity at 65 for future pensioners:

24.4 Men 24.0

26.8 Women 26.2

3.2%  Retail Price Inflation (RPI) 2.7%

3.2%  Rate of increase in salaries 2.7%

2.2%  Consumer Price Inflation (CPI) — pension increase 2.4%
rate

3.5%  Rate for discounting scheme liabilities 2.6%

*  Rate for discounting scheme liabilities, which is determined by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period
on high quality corporate bonds.

The estimation of the defined benefit obligations is sensitive to the actuarial
assumptions set out in the table above. The following sensitivity analysis has been
determined based on reasonably possible changes of the assumptions occurring at
the end of the reporting period and assumes for each change that the assumption
analysed changes while all the other assumptions remain constant. The assumptions
in longevity, for example, assume that only life expectancy increases or decreases
for men and women. In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the
assumptions may be interrelated. The estimations in the sensitivity analysis have
followed the accounting policies for the Scheme, i.e., on an actuarial basis using the
projected unit credit method. The methods and types of assumptions used in
preparing the following sensitivity analysis did not change from those used in the
previous period.

Central Bedfordshire Council Statement of Accounts 2016/17
102



Agenda Item 8
Page 218

Impact on the Defined Benefit
Obligation in the Scheme

2016/17
Approximate % Approximate
increase to monetary amount
Employer
Liability
£000
Rate of increase in salaries (0.5% increase) 1% 10,098
Rate of increase in pensions (0.5% increase) 8% 74,281
Rate of discounting Scheme liabilities (0.5% 9% 85,354

decrease)

Note 42 - Contingent Liabilities

At 31 March 2017, the Council was not aware of any contingent liabilities.

Note 43 - Contingent Assets

At 31 March 2017, the Council was not aware of any contingent assets.

Note 44 - Nature and Extent of Risks Arising from Financial
Instruments

The Council’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:

. credit risk — the possibility that the counterparty to a financial asset might fail
to meet its contractual obligations, causing a loss to the Council;

. liquidity risk — the possibility that the Council might not have the cash
available to make its contracted payments on time;

. market risk — the possibility that an unplanned financial loss might arise for the
Council as a result of changes in market variables such as interest rates or equity
prices.

The Council’'s overall risk management programme includes focus on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects
on the resources available to fund services. Risk management is carried out by the
Resources Directorate’s treasury team, under policies approved by the Council in the

Central Bedfordshire Council Statement of Accounts 2016/17
103



Agenda Item 8
Page 219

annual Treasury Management Strategy. The Council provides written principles for
overall risk management, as well as written policies covering specific areas, such as
interest rate risk, credit risk and the investment of surplus cash.

Credit Risk:

Credit risk arises from deposits with banks and financial institutions, as well as credit
exposure to the Council’s customers.

This risk is minimised through the Annual Investment Strategy, which requires that
deposits are not made with financial institutions unless they meet identified minimum
credit criteria, which will be the lowest published long-term credit rating assigned by
the international rating agencies of Moody’s, Standards & Poor’s, and Fitch — a
minimum long-term rating of BBB+ (or Moody’s equivalent of Baal) for UK
counterparties: AA+ (or Moody’s equivalent of Aa1) for non-UK sovereigns. The
Annual Investment Strategy also imposes a maximum sum to be invested with a
financial institution located within each category.

The Council’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to its investments in banks
and building societies cannot be assessed generally as the risk of any institution
failing to make interest payments or repay the principal sum will be specific to each
individual institution. Recent experience has shown that it is rare for such entities to
be unable to meet their commitments. A risk of non-recovery applies to all of the
Council’'s deposits, but there was no evidence at the 31 March 2017 that this risk
was likely to crystallise.

The Council does not expect any losses from non-performance by any of its
counterparties in relation to deposits and bonds.

Customers for goods and services are assessed, taking into account their financial
position, past experience and other factors, with individual credit limits being set in
accordance with internal ratings in accordance with parameters set by the Council.

The Council has a total of £13.067M customer balances which have been invoiced at
year end. This is analysed in the table 'Credit Risk - Debtors' shown later in this
Note.

The Council’'s experience of customer debtor balance write offs equated to 1.8% of
the year end total in 2016/17, which compares to 2.0% in 2015/16.

Credit Risk - Debtors 31 March 2016 31 March 2017
£000 £000
8,142 7,765
Less than three months
1,02
Three to six months 026 855
. 2,052 1,710
Six months to one year
1,807 2,737
More than one year
13,027 13,067

Central Bedfordshire Council Statement of Accounts 2016/17
104



Agenda Item 8
Page 220

Liquidity Risk:

The Council has a cash flow management system that seeks to ensure that cash is
available as needed. If unexpected movements happen, the Council has ready
access to borrowings from the money markets and the Public Works Loan Board
(PWLB). There is no significant risk that it will be unable to raise finance to meet its
commitments under financial instruments. Instead, the risk is that the Council will be
bound to replenish a significant proportion of its borrowings at a time of unfavourable
interest rates. The Council sets limits on the proportion of its fixed rate borrowing
during specified periods. This strategy is to ensure that no more than 50% of loans
are due to mature within any one year period through the careful planning of new
loans taken out. The maturity analysis of financial liabilities is analysed in the table
‘Liquidity Risk' shown later in this Note.

Liquidity Risk 31 March 2016 31 March 2017
£000 £000
62,512 72,280
Less than one year
0 0
Between one and two years
) 0 0
Between two and five years
100,24 100,24
More Than 5 Years 00,246 00,246
175,314 175,314
More Than 10 years
338,072 347,840

Interest Rate Risk

The Council is exposed to risk in terms of its exposure to interest rate movements on
its borrowings and investments. Movements in interest rates have a complex impact
on the Council. For instance, a rise in interest rates would have the following effects:

. borrowings at variable rates — the interest expense charged to the Surplus or
Deficit on the Provision of Services will rise;

. borrowings at fixed rates — the fair value of the liabilities borrowings will fall;

. investments at variable rates — the interest income credited to the Surplus or

Deficit on the Provision of Services will rise;
. investments at fixed rates — the fair value of the assets will fall.

Borrowings are not carried at fair value, so nominal gains and losses on fixed rate
borrowings would not impact on the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services or
Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure. However, changes in interest
payable and receivable on variable rate borrowings and investments will be posted
to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services and affect the General Fund
Balance.

Movements in the fair value of fixed rate investments that have a quoted market
price will be reflected in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure.

Central Bedfordshire Council Statement of Accounts 2016/17
105



Agenda Item 8
Page 221

The Council has a number of strategies for managing interest rate risk and aims to
keep a maximum of 50% of its borrowings in variable rate loans. During periods of
falling interest rates, and where economic circumstances make it favourable, fixed
rate loans will be repaid early to limit exposure to losses. The risk of loss is
ameliorated by the fact that a proportion of government grant payable on financing
costs will normally move with prevailing interest rates or the Council’'s cost of
borrowing and provide compensation for a proportion of any higher costs.

The treasury management team has an active strategy for assessing interest rate
exposure that feeds into the setting of the annual budget and which is used to
update budget monitoring quarterly during the year. This allows any adverse
changes to be mitigated. The analysis will also advise whether new borrowing taken
out is fixed or variable.

According to this assessment strategy, at 31 March 2017, if interest rates had been
1% higher with all other variables held constant, the financial effect is outlined in the
table 'Market Risk - Interest Rate Risk' shown later in this Note. The impact of a 1%
fall in interest rates would be the same movement as above but in reverse for
variable rated borrowing.

Market Risk - Interest Rate

Risk 31 March 2017
£000

- . ) 1,173

Increase in interest payable on variable rate borrowings

Increase in interest receivable on variable rate (92)

investments

Impact on Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services 1,080

Share of overall impact debited to the HRA 154

Decrease in fair value of fixed rate borrowings liabilities (no impact on the
Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services or Other Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure) (41,013)

Price Risk

The Council does not invest in equity shares but does hold units to the value of
£5.3M in a property fund with Aviva Investors (the “Lime Fund”). The Council is
consequently exposed to losses arising from movements in the price of the units.

As the shareholdings have arisen in the acquisition of specific interests, the Council
is not in a position to limit its exposure to price movements by diversifying its
portfolio. Instead it only acquires shareholdings in return for “open book”
arrangements with the company concerned so that the Council can monitor factors
that might cause a fall in the value of specific shareholdings.

The units held are all classified as ‘Available-for-Sale’ and as all movements in price
are unrealised until sale, when they would become realised, the impact of gains and
losses are recognised in the Available-for-Sale Financial Instruments Reserve. A
general shift of 5% in the price of units (positive or negative) would result in a £264K

Central Bedfordshire Council Statement of Accounts 2016/17
106



Agenda Item 8

Page 222

gain or loss being recognised in the Available-for-Sale Financial Instruments
Reserve for 2016/17 (the actual cumulative unrealised gain for the Lime Fund stood
at £279K as at 31/03/2017).

Foreign Exchange Risk

The Council has no financial assets or liabilities denominated in foreign currencies.
As a result, there is no exposure to losses arising from movements in exchange

rates.

Note 45 - Trust Funds

The Council acts a custodian trustee for four trust funds. The funds are not assets of
the Council and therefore they have not been included in the Council’'s Balance

Sheet.

Funds for which the Council acts as custodian trustee:

2016/17
Fund Income Assets Liabilities
£000 £000 £000
LW Williams Fund 0 10 0
Adult Social Care 0 30 0
Customer Fund
LuDun Fund 0 130 0
Linsell House Bequest 0 21 0
Total 0 191 0
2015/16
und Income Assets Liabilities
£000 £000 £000
LW Williams Fund 0 10 0
Adult Social Care 0 30 0
Customer Fund
LuDun Fund 0 126 0
Linsell House Bequest 0 23 0
Total 0 189 0

Central Bedfordshire Council Statement of Accounts 2016/17

107



Agenda Item 8
Page 223

Supplementary Financial
Statements
2016/17

108



Agenda Item 8
Page 224

Housing Revenue Account Income and Expenditure

Statement

31 March 2016

31 March 2017

£000 £000
Expenditure
4,944 Repairs & Maintenance 5,234
6,807  Supervision & Management 7,427
303 Rents, Rates, Taxes and other charges 405
(19,975) Depreciation, impairments and revaluation losses of 7,994
non-current assets
118 Debt Management Costs 135
42  Movement in the allowance for bad debts 86
(7,760) Total Expenditure 21,280
Income
(26,829) Dwelling rents (27,257)
(501) Non-dwelling rents (553)
(873) Charges for services and facilities (967)
(524) Contributions from General Fund (862)
(28,727) Total Income (29,639)
(36,488) Net Expenditure or Income of HRA Services as (8,359)
included in the whole authority Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement
101 HRA Services Share of Corporate & Democratic 96
Core
(36,386) Net Expenditure of HRA Services (8,263)
(793) Gains/loss on sale of HRA Fixed Assets (5,246)
4,034 Interest Payable and Similar Charges 3,975
(63) HRA Interest and Investment Income (52)
364 Net interest on the defined benéfit liability/asset 347
(851) Capital Grants and Contributions 0
(33,697) (Surplus) or Deficit for Year on HRA Services (9,238)

Central Bedfordshire Council Statement of Accounts 2016/17

109



Movement on the HRA Statement

31 March 2016

Movement on the HRA Statement

31 March 2017

£000 £000
(2,000) Balance on the HRA at the end of the previous (2,000)
year
(33,696) (Surplus) or Deficit on the HRA Income and (9,238)
Expenditure Statement
34,800 Adjustments between accounting basis and 4,919
funding basis under statute
1,104 Net (increase) or decrease before transfers to (4,319)
or from reserves
(1,204) Transfer to/(from) reserves 4,319
0 (Increase) or decrease on the HRA for the year 0
(2,000) Balance on the HRA at the end of the (2,000)

current year

31 March 2016

Adjustment between accounting basis

31 March 2017

£000 £000
20,826 Transfers to/from the Capital Adjustment (7,994)
Account

793  Gain or loss on sale of non-current assets 5,246
(456) Contributions to or from the Pension Reserve (325)
3,946 Transfers to/(from) Major Repairs Reserve 4,567
9,690 Capital expenditure funded by the HRA 3,425
34,799 Net additional amount required by statute to 4,919

be debited or (credited) to the HRA Balance
for the year

Central Bedfordshire Council Statement of Accounts 2016/17

Agenda Item 8

Page 225

110



Agenda Item 8
Page 226

31 March 2016 Transfer to/from Reserves 31 March 2017
£000 £000
7,487 Transfers to earmarked reserves 7,190
(8,591) Transfers from earmarked reserves (2,871)
(1,104) Total Transfers 4,319

Notes to the HRA Account

HRA 1 Housing Stock

The number and types of dwelling in the Council’s housing stock:

Property Type Stock at Additions Sales Demolished Stock at
01/04/2016 31/03/2017

Low rise flats 1,293 45 (@) 0 1,331
Medium rise flats 503 90 0 0 593
High rise flats 0 0 0 0 0
Houses & 3,309 9 22) o 3.295
bungalows

Total 5,105 144 (29) 6] 5,219

HRA 2 Balance Sheet Values of HRA Assets

Value at 31/03/2016 Value at 31/03/2017
£000 Operational assets £000
414,232 Council dwellings 449,395
6,986 Other land & buildings 6,879
421,218 456,274

As at 1 April 2016, the vacant possession value of the Council's dwellings is
estimated at £880.5M. The lower Balance Sheet value of £449.4M shown above
reflects its existing use as tenanted council housing at less than market rents.

Central Bedfordshire Council Statement of Accounts 2016/17
111



Agenda Item 8
Page 227

HRA 3 Major Repairs Reserve

The Council is required to maintain the Major Repairs Reserve, which controls an
element of the capital resources limited to being used on capital expenditure on HRA
assets or the financing of historical capital expenditure by the HRA. The balance
shows the capital resources that have yet to be applied at the year-end.

31 March 2016 31 March 2017
£000 £000
(200) Balance at 1 April (200)
(3,946) Total depreciation on all HRA assets (4,567)
3,946 Expenditure in year 4,567
(200) Balance at 31 March (200)

HRA 4 Capital Expenditure and Financing

The Council spent £10.2M on HRA capital projects in 2016/17 (2015/16 £17.6M).
This spending was financed from the following sources:

31 March 2016 31 March 2017
£000 £000

Capital investment

17,588 Operational assets 10,163

17,588 Total capital investment 10,163

Sources of funding

(3,100) Capital Receipts (3,359)
(3,946) Major Repairs Reserve (4,567)
(852) Government grants and other contributions 0
(9,690) Direct Revenue Financing (2,237)
(17,588) Total funding (10,163)

Central Bedfordshire Council Statement of Accounts 2016/17
112



Agenda Item 8
Page 228

HRA 5 Capital Receipts

The total receipts from the sale of HRA assets in the year were as follows:

Total Capital Receipts Generated during the year

31 March 2016 31 March 2017
£000 £000
(3,163) Council Houses (7,323)
(10) Right to Buy 0
(2) Principal Repayments on Mortgage 0
0 Sale of Land (31)
(3,175) Total (7,354)

HRA 6 Depreciation and Impairment

Depreciation and impairment is only charged to the HRA in respect of operational
assets. The charges for 2016/17 were as follows:

Depreciation and Impairment of Non-Current Assets

31 March 2016 31 March 2017
Depreciation Impairment Depreciation Impairment
£000 £000 £000 £000
(3,864) 23,927 Council Dwellings (4,470) (3,456)
(82) (6) Other Land and Buildings 97) 29
(3,946) 23,921 Total (4,567) (3.,427)

Central Bedfordshire Council Statement of Accounts 2016/17
113



HRA 7 Rent Arrears

Agenda Item 8
Page 229

The amount of rent arrears and the aggregate Balance Sheet impairment allowance
in respect of uncollectable debts:

31 March 2016 31 March 2017
£000 £000
Current Tenant Arrears 428 437
Former Tenant Arrears 482 513
Gross Rent Arrears 910 950
Bad Debt Provision (541) (575)
Total 369 375

HRA 8 The HRA share of contributions to / from the Pensions Reserve

The Council recognises the share of pension fund net assets and liabilities
attributable to the HRA within appropriations in the net operating costs for the
service. Appropriate adjustments are made so as to ensure that the sum required to
be funded by housing rents is equal to the actual contributions paid to the Pension
Fund in the year. The following adjustments have been made through the Movement
on the HRA Statement balance in the year.

31 March
31 March 2016 2017
£000 £000
674 Current Service Cost 599
364 Net interest expense 347
1,038 Total charged to Comprehensive Income and 946
Expenditure Statement
(583) Employer’s contributions payable to the Pension Fund and (621)
retirement benefits payable direct to pensioners
455 Movement on Pension Reserve 325

Central Bedfordshire Council Statement of Accounts 2016/17

114



Collection Fund

The Collection Fund is an agent’s statement that reflects the statutory obligation for billing authorities to maintain a separate
Collection Fund. The statement shows the transactions of the billing authority in relation to the collection from taxpayers and
distribution to local authorities and the Government of Council Tax and Non-Domestic Rates.

31 March 2016

31 March 2017

Business Rates Council Tax Total Collection Fund Business Rates Council Tax Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
INCOME:
161,182 161,182 Council Tax Receivable 168,175 168,175
75,703 75,703 Business Rates Receivable 85,200 85,200
75,703 161,182 236,885 Total amounts to be credited 85,200 168,175 253,375
EXPENDITURE:
Apportionment of Previous Year Surplus/Deficit:
1,464 1,464 Central Government 2,728 2,728
1,434 (2,195) 239 Central Bedfordshire Council 2,673 (4,071) (1,398)
0 (132) (132) Police and Crime Commissioner for Bedfordshire 0 (459) (459)
29 (74) (45) Bedfordshire Fire and Rescue Service 55 (256) (202)
Precepts, demands and shares:
(40,322) (40,322) Central Government (42,712) (42,712)
(39,515) (122,188) (161,703) Central Bedfordshire Council (41,858) (130,486) (172,344)
0 (14,912) (14,912) Police and Crime Commissioner for Bedfordshire 0 (15,625) (15,625)
(806) (8,333) (9,139) Bedfordshire Fire and Rescue Service (854) (8,731) (9,585)

Central Bedfordshire Council Statement of Accounts 2016/17

115

g Wwa)| epuaby

0gg abed



(10,154) (10,154) Parishes (10,705) (10,705)
Charges to Collection Fund:

87) 0 87) Write-offs of uncollectable amounts (105) 0 (105)
(586) (612) (1,198) Increase/(decrease) in allowance for impairment (546) (739) (1,285)
1,573 1,573 Increase/(decrease) in allowance for appeals (215) (215)
(227) (227) Transitional Protection Payments Payable (345) (345)
(314) (314) Charge to General Fund for allowable collection (312) (312)

costs for non-domestic rates
Other transfers to General Fund in accordance
with non-domestic rates regulations
[report separately for each major Scheme where
transfers are material]
(383) (383) Renewable Energy (392) (392)
(77,740) (157,600) (235,340) Total amounts to be debited (81,883) (171,072) (252,955)
(2,037) 3,582 1,545 Surplus /(deficit) arising during the year 3,317 (2,897) 420
(5,165) 3,688 (1,477) Surplus/(deficit) b/f at 1 April 2016 (7,202) 7,270 68
(7,202) 7,270 68 Surplus/(deficit) c¢/f at 31 March 2017 (3,885) 4,373 488

Central Bedfordshire Council Statement of Accounts 2016/17

g Wwa)| epuaby

T obed



Agenda Item 8
Page 232

Notes to the Collection Fund

The Collection Fund is required by statute to show the transactions of the billing
authority in relation to Council Tax and Non-Domestic Rates (NDR). The Collection
Fund shows how the transactions have been distributed to the Council and its major
preceptors: Central Government; Bedfordshire Police Authority; and Bedfordshire
Fire and Rescue Service. Town and parish precepts form part of the amount due to
be collected from Council Taxpayers within Central Bedfordshire.

The transactions of the Collection Fund are wholly prescribed by legislation. Billing
authorities have no discretion to determine which receipts and payments are
accounted for within the fund and which outside.

Council Tax Base

The tax base is derived by estimating the number of domestic properties in each
Council Tax band, applying reliefs and exemptions and multiplying the result by the
weighting factor applicable to each tax band. This result is then reduced by 1% to
allow for non-collection and other reductions such as discounts and appeals.

Note 1 - Council Tax Income

2016/17
Calculated no  Ratio to Equated No of
Band Valuation band limits of dwellings band D dwellings
£ No No
A Upto and including - 40,0000 9,721 6/9 6,481
B 40,001 - 52,000 23,018 7/9 17,903
C 52,001 - 68,000 32,356 8/9 28,761
D 68,001 - 88,000 21,762 9/9 21,762
E 88,001 - 120,000 14,917 11/9 18,232
F 120,001 - 160,000 8,021 13/9 11,586
G 160,001 - 320,000 4,692 15/9 7,820
H More than - 320,001 352 18/9 704
Adjustment (17,303)
Council tax base 95,946

Central Bedfordshire Council Statement of Accounts 2016/17
117



Agenda Item 8

Page 233
2015/16
Calculated no Ratio to Equated No of
Band Valuation band limits of dwellings band D dwellings
£ No No
A Upto and including - 40,0000 9,580 6/9 6,387
B 40,001 - 52,000 22,742 719 17,688
C 52,001 - 68,000 31,931 8/9 28,383
D 68,001 - 88,000 21,287 9/9 21,287
E 88,001 - 120,000 14,629 11/9 17,880
F 120,001 - 160,000 7,840 13/9 11,324
G 160,001 - 320,000 4,589 15/9 7,648
H More than - 320,001 345 18/9 690
Adjustment (17,895)
Council tax base 93,392
31 March 2016 31 March 2017
Business Business
Council Tax Rates Total| Council Tax Rates Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Central Bedfordshire Council 6,190 (3,529) 2,661 3,727 (1,904) 1,823
Central Government 0 (3,601) (3,601) 0 (1,942) (1,942)
Police & Crime Commissioner for
Bedfordshire 693 0 693 415 0 415
Bedford Fire & Rescue Service 387 (72) 315 232 (40) 192
Total 7,270 (7,202) 68 4,373 (3,886) 487

Central Bedfordshire Council Statement of Accounts 2016/17
118



Agenda Item 8
Page 234

Independent Auditor’s Report To The Members Of Central
Bedfordshire Council

To be included following completion of the audit.

Central Bedfordshire Council Statement of Accounts 2016/17
119



Agenda Item 8
Page 235

Annual Governance Statement 2016/17

To be included following completion of the audit.

Central Bedfordshire Council Statement of Accounts 2016/17
120



Agenda Item 8
Page 236

Glossary

ACCOUNTING PERIOD

The period of time covered by the accounts, normally a period of twelve months
commencing on 1 April. The end of the accounting period is the Balance Sheet date.

ACCRUALS

Sums included in the final accounts to recognise revenue and capital income and
expenditure earned or incurred in the financial year, but for which actual payment
had not been received or made as at 31 March.

ACQUISITIONS

The Council spends funds from the capital programme to buy or enhance assets
such as land and buildings.

ACTUARIAL GAINS AND LOSSES

For a defined benefit pension scheme, the changes in actuarial surpluses or deficits
that arise because:

- events have not coincided with the actuarial assumptions made for the last
valuation; or

- the actuarial assumptions have changed.
ACTUARIAL VALUATION

The Actuary reviews the assets and liabilities of the Pension Fund and reports to the
Council on the Fund’s financial position and recommended employers’ contribution
rates every three years.

ACTUARY

An independent and appropriately qualified adviser who carries out statutorily
required pension fund valuations.

AGENCY SERVICES

Provided by or for another local authority or public body where the cost of carrying
out the service is reimbursed.

AMORTISATION

The routine decrease in value of an intangible asset, or the process of paying off a
debt over time through regular payments. A corresponding concept for tangible
assets is known as depreciation. The idea of amortisation is to spread the cost of an
asset over the period of its 'useful life'.

Central Bedfordshire Council Statement of Accounts 2016/17
121



Agenda Item 8
Page 237

ASSET

An item having value to the Council in monetary terms. Assets are categorised as
either current or non-current:

- a current asset will be consumed or cease to have material value within the next
financial year (e.g., cash and stock);

- a non-current asset provides benefits to the Council and to the services it provides
for a period of more than one year and may be tangible, e.g., a community centre, or
intangible, e.g., computer software licences.

ASSET REGISTER

A record of Council assets including land and buildings, housing, infrastructure,
vehicles, plant and equipment. This is maintained for capital accounting and property
management purposes. It is updated annually to reflect new acquisitions, disposals,
revaluations and depreciation.

AUDIT OF ACCOUNTS
An independent examination of the Council’s financial affairs.
AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSET

A non-derivative financial asset that is not classified as Loans and Receivables. The
asset needs to be immediately available for sale and is valued at the lower of its
current carrying value or fair value less costs to dispose. Available-for-Sale financial
assets include equity investments and other investments traded in an active market.

BAD DEBTS

Debts owed to the Council which are considered to be irrecoverable and are written
off.

BALANCE SHEET

A statement of the recorded assets, liabilities and other balances at the end of the
accounting period.

BALANCES

The amount of money left over at the end of the financial year after allowing for all
expenditure and income that has taken place. These are also known as financial
reserves. They comprise of the General Fund balance, the Collection Fund balance,
the Housing Revenue Account balance and Schools Reserve Account balance.

BILLING AUTHORITY

A local authority charged by statute with responsibility for the collection of and
accounting for Council Tax and Non-Domestic Rates (NDR) in their area. These are
district councils, borough councils and unitary authorities.

Central Bedfordshire Council Statement of Accounts 2016/17
122



Agenda Item 8
Page 238

BORROWING

Using cash provided by another party to pay for expenditure, on the basis of an
agreement to repay the cash at a future point, usually incurring interest charges over
and above the original principal amount.

BUDGET
The forecast of net revenue and capital expenditure over the accounting period.
CAPITAL ADJUSTMENT ACCOUNT

An account that reflects the difference between the cost of non-current assets
consumed and the capital financing set aside to pay for them.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

Expenditure on the acquisition of a fixed asset, which will be used in providing
services beyond the current accounting period, or expenditure which adds to and not
merely maintains the value of an existing fixed asset.

CAPITAL FINANCING

Funds raised to pay for capital expenditure. There are various methods of financing
capital expenditure including borrowing, leasing, direct revenue financing, usable
capital receipts, capital grants, capital contributions, revenue reserves and
earmarked reserves.

CAPITAL FINANCING REQUIREMENT (CFR)

The CFR is the capital investment funded from borrowing which has yet to be repaid
and is the basis for the Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP).

CAPITAL PROGRAMME
The capital schemes the Council intends to carry out over a specific period of time.
CAPITAL RECEIPT

The proceeds from the disposal of land or other fixed assets. Proportions of capital
receipts can be used to finance new capital expenditure, within rules set down by the
Government but they cannot be used to finance revenue expenditure.

CAPITAL RESERVES

Capital reserves represent resources earmarked to fund capital schemes as part of
the Council’s capital investment strategy.

CAPITALISATION

Costs are capitalised to the extent that they create or improve any non-current asset
with a useful economic life greater than one year.

Central Bedfordshire Council Statement of Accounts 2016/17
123



Agenda Item 8
Page 239

CASH EQUIVALENTS

Investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash with an
insignificant risk of change in value.

CHARTERED INSTITUTE OF PUBLIC FINANCE AND ACCOUNTANCY (CIPFA)

The professional accountancy body which represents at national level the interests
of local government and public service finance. The Institute produces advice, codes
of practice and guidance to local authorities.

CIPFA CODE OF PRACTICE ON LOCAL AUTHORITY ACCOUNTING

The Code specifies the principles and practices of accounting to give a “true and fair”
view of the financial position and transactions of a local authority.

COLLECTION FUND

A separate fund that records the income and expenditure relating to Council Tax and
Non-Domestic Rates (NDR).

COMMUNITY ASSETS

Assets that the Council intends to hold forever, that have no determinable useful life
and that may have restrictions on their disposal. Examples of community assets are
parks and historical buildings.

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT

The account of the Council that reports the net cost for the year of the functions for
which it is responsible and demonstrates how that cost has been financed from
precepts, grants and other income.

CONSISTENCY

The principle that the accounting treatment of like items within an accounting period
and from one period to the next are the same.

CONTINGENT ASSET

A contingent asset is a possible asset arising from past events whose existence will
be confirmed only by the occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not
wholly within the Council’s accounts.

CONTINGENT LIABILITY
A contingent liability is either:

- a possible obligation arising from past events whose existence will be confirmed
only by the occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
Council’s control; or

- a present obligation arising from past events where it is not probable that a transfer
of economic benefits will be required, or the amount of the obligation cannot be
measured with sufficient reliability.

Central Bedfordshire Council Statement of Accounts 2016/17
124



Agenda Item 8
Page 240

COUNCIL TAX

A local tax, based upon the value of domestic property, set by local authorities in
order to meet their budget requirement.

CREDITOR

Amount owed by the Council for work done, goods received or services rendered
within the accounting period, but for which payment has not been made by the end
of that accounting period.

CURRENT ASSET

An asset that is intended to be sold within the normal operating cycle; the asset is
held primarily for the purpose of trading or the Council expects to realise the asset
within 12 months of the Balance Sheet date.

CURRENT LIABILITY

An amount which will become payable or could be called in within one year of the
Balance Sheet date; examples are creditors and cash overdrawn.

CURRENT VALUE

The price that would be received from the sale of operational property, plant and
equipment assets or paid to transfer a liability based on existing use value in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

DEBTOR

Amount owed to the Council for works done, goods received or services rendered
within the accounting period, but for which payment has not been received by the
end of that accounting period.

DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION SCHEME

A pension scheme in which a pensioner’s benefits are specified, usually relating to
their length of service and salary, and are independent of the contributions payable,
and the benefits are unrelated to the performance of the investments of the scheme.

DEPRECIATED HISTORICAL COST

The valuation of non-current assets at their original cost less depreciation charged to
date.

DEPRECIATED REPLACEMENT COST

Relating to non-current assets, the current replacement costs adjusted for
depreciation. This method of valuation is used when it is not practical to estimate the
open market value for the existing use of a specialised property, such as highways
and footpaths.

Central Bedfordshire Council Statement of Accounts 2016/17
125



Agenda Item 8
Page 241

DEPRECIATION

The measure of the cost of wearing out, consumption or other reduction in the useful
economic life of the Council’s fixed assets during the accounting period, whether
from use, the passage of time or obsolescence through technical or other changes.

EFFECTIVE RATE OF INTEREST

The rate of interest that will discount the estimated cash flows over the life of a
financial instrument to the amount in the Balance Sheet at initial measurement.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

All forms of consideration given by the Council in exchange for services rendered by
employees.

EXCEPTIONAL ITEM

An item which derives from events or transactions that falls within the ordinary
activities of the Council and which needs to be disclosed separately by virtue of its
size or incidence to give fair presentation of the accounts from year to year. Such an
item will always be explained in a Note to the Statement of Accounts.

EXISTING USE VALUE FOR SOCIAL HOUSING (EUV-SH)

A vacant possession valuation of Council dwellings adjusted to reflect the continuing
occupation by a secure tenant. A further adjustment is made to reflect the difference
between open market rented property and social rented property.

EXPENDITURE AND FUNDING ANALYSIS

A report which brings together the Council’s performance on the basis of expenditure
measured under proper accounting practices with statutorily defined charges to the
General Fund (including the HRA). It also shows how annual expenditure is allocated
for decision making purposes between the Council’s directorates.

EXTRAORDINARY ITEMS

Material items that are not within the Council’'s ordinary activities and are not
expected to recur.

FAIR VALUE

The fair value of an asset is the price at which it could be exchanged in an arm’s
length transaction.

FINANCE LEASE

A lease that transfers substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of a
fixed asset to the lessee. Under this type of lease, the organisation paying the lease
is treated as if it owns the goods and is required to include such finance leased
assets on the Balance Sheet.

Central Bedfordshire Council Statement of Accounts 2016/17
126



Agenda Item 8
Page 242

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT

Any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or
equity instrument of another entity. The term ‘financial instrument’ covers both
financial assets and financial liabilities and includes both the most straightforward
financial assets and liabilities such as trade receivables and trade payables and the
most complex ones such as derivatives and embedded derivatives.

FINANCIAL LIABILITY

An obligation to transfer economic benefits controlled by the Council. Examples
include borrowings, financial guarantees and amounts owed to trade creditors.

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Activities that result in changes in the size and composition of the principal received
from or repaid to external providers of finance.

FORMULA GRANT

Central Government subsidy to local authorities comprising two elements: Revenue
Support Grant and redistributed Non-Domestic Rates.

GENERAL FUND

The Council’s main revenue account that covers the net cost of all services. Day-to-
day transactions are conducted through this account, with the exception of those
relating to the Housing Revenue Account (HRA), Collection Fund or any other trust
funds held by the Council. The accumulated credit balance on the General Fund is
needed as a cushion against unforeseen expenditure.

GOING CONCERN

The concept that the Statement of Accounts is prepared on the assumption that the
Council will continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future.

GOVERNMENT GRANTS

Grants made by Central Government towards either revenue or capital expenditure
in return for past or future compliance with certain conditions relating to the activities
of the Council. These grants may be specific to a particular scheme or may support
the revenue spend of the Council in general.

GROSS EXPENDITURE

The total cost of providing the Council’s services before deducting income from
Central Government grants, or fees and charges for services.

HISTORICAL COST

The amount originally paid for a non-current asset.

Central Bedfordshire Council Statement of Accounts 2016/17
127



Agenda Item 8
Page 243

HOUSING BENEFITS

A national system of financial assistance to individuals towards meeting certain
housing costs administered by local authorities and subsidised by Central
Government.

HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT (HRA)

A separate account to the General Fund, which includes the income and expenditure
arising from the provision of housing accommodation by the Council.

IMPAIRMENT

A reduction in the value of a fixed asset to below its recoverable amount, the higher
of the asset's fair value less costs to sell and its value in use.

INCOME

The gross inflow of economic benefits or service potential during the financial year
when those inflows or enhancements of assets or decreases of liabilities result in an
increase in reserves. Income includes both revenue arising in the course of ordinary
activities and gains such as the revaluation of non-current assets.

INFRASTRUCTURE ASSETS

Fixed assets belonging to the Council that cannot be transferred or sold, on which
expenditure is only recoverable by the continued use of the asset created. Examples
are highways, footpaths and bridges.

INSURANCE RESERVE

The Insurance Reserve is used to cover liabilities under policy excesses and to
finance any claims for small risks not insured externally. In addition, the Council
carries a substantial amount of self insurance financed from this Reserve.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

An intangible (non-physical) item may be defined as an asset when access to the
future economic benefits it represents is controlled by the reporting entity. This
Council’s intangible assets comprise computer software licences.

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (IFRS)

The international accounting standards that govern the treatment and reporting of
income and expenditure under which the Council has compiled its financial
statements.

INTERNATIONAL PUBLIC SECTOR ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (IPSAS)

International Accounting Standards (IAS) adapted to meet public sector
requirements.

Central Bedfordshire Council Statement of Accounts 2016/17
128



Agenda Item 8
Page 244

INVESTMENT PROPERTY

Land or buildings that are held solely for their investment potential, i.e., to earn rental
income or for capital appreciation or both.

LESSEE

The party that leases an asset that is owned by another party.
LESSOR

The owner of an asset which is leased to another party.
LIABILITY

A liability is where the Council owes payment to an individual or another
organisation.

- A current liability is an amount which will become payable or could be called in
within the next accounting period, e.g., creditors or cash overdrawn.

- A deferred liability is an amount which by arrangement is payable beyond the next
year at some point in the future or to be paid off by an annual sum over a period of
time.

LIQUID RESOURCES

Current asset investments that are readily disposable by the Council without
disrupting its business and are either:

- readily convertible to known amounts of cash at or close to the carrying amount; or

- traded in an active market.
LOANS AND RECEIVABLES

Financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and are not quoted in an active
market.

MAJOR REPAIRS RESERVE (MRR)

The Major Repairs Reserve records amounts set aside from the Housing Revenue
Account (HRA) which can be used to fund either future capital expenditure or the
repayment of borrowing.

MATERIALITY

The concept that the Statement of Accounts should include all amounts which, if
omitted, or mis-stated, could be expected to lead to a distortion of the financial
statements and ultimately mislead a user of the Statement of Accounts.

Central Bedfordshire Council Statement of Accounts 2016/17
129



Agenda Item 8
Page 245

MINIMUM REVENUE PROVISION (MRP)

The minimum amount which must be charged to the revenue account each year in
order to provide for the repayment of loans and other amounts borrowed by the
Council.

NET ASSETS
The amount by which assets exceed liabilities (same as ‘net worth’).
NET BOOK VALUE

The amount at which fixed assets are included in the Balance Sheet, i.e., their
historical costs or current value less the cumulative amounts provided for
depreciation.

NET PRESENT VALUE (NPV)

The difference between the present value of cash inflows and the present value of
cash outflows (including initial cost) over a period of time. NPV is used in capital
budgeting to analyse the profitability of a potential investment or project.

NET REALISABLE VALUE

The open market value of the asset in its existing use (or open market value in the
case of non-operational assets), less the expenses to be incurred in realising the
asset.

NET REVENUE EXPENDITURE

Gross expenditure less fees and charges for services and specific grants but before
the deduction of revenue support grants and national business rates.

NET WORTH

The total funds, balances and reserves (both usable and unusable reserves) held by
the Council.

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

An asset that does not meet the definition of a current asset and yields benefit to the
Council for a period of more than one year.

NON-DISTRIBUTED COSTS

These are overheads for which no user now benefits and as such are not
apportioned to services. An example is the extra pension costs caused by early
retirement.

NON-DOMESTIC RATES (NDR)

The Non-Domestic Rate is a levy on businesses, based on a national rate in the
pound set by Central Government and multiplied by the assessed rateable value of
the premises they occupy. It is collected by the Council on behalf of itself, Central
Government and major preceptors.

Central Bedfordshire Council Statement of Accounts 2016/17
130



Agenda Item 8
Page 246

NON-OPERATIONAL ASSETS

Tangible non-current assets held by the Council but not directly occupied, used or
consumed in the delivery of services. Examples are investment properties, assets
under construction or assets surplus to requirement pending sale or redevelopment.

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
The activities of the Council that are not investing or financing activities.
OPERATING LEASE

A lease where the ownership of the fixed asset remains with the lessor. An operating
lease is commonly used to acquire equipment on a relatively short-term basis and
the lease term is short compared to the useful life of the asset or piece of equipment
being leased.

OPERATIONAL ASSETS

Non-current assets held and occupied, used or consumed by the Council in the
pursuit of its strategy and in the direct delivery of those services for which it has
either a statutory or discretionary responsibility.

OUTTURN

Refers to actual income and expenditure or balances as opposed to budgeted
amounts.

PENSION RESERVE

The Pensions Reserve is a specific accounting mechanism used to reconcile the
payments made for the year to various statutory pension schemes in accordance
with those schemes’ requirements and the net change in the Council’s recognised
liability under International Accounting Standard 19 (IAS), Retirement Benefits, for
the same period. A transfer is made to or from the Pensions Reserve to ensure that
the charge to the General Fund balance reflects the amount required to be raised in
taxation. The Reserve is normally at the same level as the pensions liability carried
on the top half of the Balance Sheet.

POOLED BUDGET

Partners contribute a set amount of money to form a separate budget. The purpose
and scope of the budget is agreed at the outset and then used to pay for relevant
services and activities.

POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

Post employment benefits cover not only pensions but also other benefits payable
post employment such as life insurance and medical care.

POST-BALANCE SHEET EVENT

Events both favourable and unfavourable which occur between the Balance Sheet
date and the date on which the Statement of Accounts is authorised for issue.

Central Bedfordshire Council Statement of Accounts 2016/17
131



Agenda Item 8
Page 247

PRECEPT

The levy made by precepting authorities by billing authorities, requiring the latter to
collect income from Council Tax on their behalf.

PRECEPTING AUTHORITIES

Those authorities that are not billing authorities (i.e., do not collect Council Tax)
precept upon the billing authority, who then collect on their behalf — Bedfordshire
Police Authority, Bedfordshire Fire & Rescue Service and the Parishes that precept
upon Central Bedfordshire Council.

PRIOR YEAR ADJUSTMENT

Material adjustments applicable to previous years arising from changes in
accounting policies or from the correction of fundamental errors. This does not
include normal recurring corrections or adjustments of accounting estimates made in
prior years.

PRIVATE FINANCE INITIATIVE (PFI)

A contract between the Council and a private company where the private sector
makes a capital investment in the assets required to deliver improved services, and
operates and maintains that property for a specified period of time. The private
sector operator is paid for its services over the period of the arrangement, which is
typically 25 years.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (PPE)

Tangible assets (i.e., assets with physical substance) that are held for use in the
production or supply of goods and services and which are expected to be used for
longer than a single financial year.

PROVISION

An amount put aside in the accounts for future liabilities or losses which are certain
or very likely to occur but the amounts or dates of when they will arise are uncertain.

PUBLIC WORKS LOAN BOARD (PWLB)

A Central Government Agency, which provides loans for one year and above to
authorities at interest rates only slightly higher than those at which the Government
can borrow itself.

QUALIFIED VALUER

A person conducting asset valuations who holds a recognised and relevant
professional qualification and has sufficient current local and national knowledge of
the particular market, and the skills and understanding to undertake the valuation
competently.

RECEIPT IN ADVANCE
Receipt that will be matched to expenditure in a future financial year.

Central Bedfordshire Council Statement of Accounts 2016/17
132



Agenda Item 8
Page 248

RELATED PARTIES

For the Council’'s purposes, related parties are deemed to include the Council’s
Members, the Chief Executive, its Directors and their close family and household
members. These are considered to have the potential to control or significantly
influence the Council.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Statement Of Recommended Practice requires the disclosure of any material
transactions between the Council and related parties to ensure that stakeholders are
aware when these transactions occur and the amount and implications of such.

RESERVES

The accumulation of surpluses, deficits and appropriations over past years.
Reserves of a revenue nature are available and can be spent or earmarked at the
discretion of the Council. Some capital reserves such as the Capital Adjustment
Account cannot be used to meet current expenditure.

RESIDUAL LIFE

The assumed remaining life of a non-current asset used in calculating the
depreciation charge.

RESIDUAL VALUE

The net realisable value of an asset at the end of its useful life.
REVALUATION RESERVE

This records unrealised net gains from asset revaluations since 1 April 2007.
REVENUE CONTRIBUTIONS TO CAPITAL OUTLAY (RCCO)

The use of revenue monies to pay for capital expenditure — also known as Direct
Revenue Funding (DRF).

REVENUE EXPENDITURE

The day-to-day expenses of providing services, e.g., salaries, wages, materials,
supplies and services.

REVENUE EXPENDITURE FUNDED FROM CAPITAL UNDER STATUTE
(REFCUS)

Expenditure which ordinarily would be revenue, but is statutorily defined as capital.
Examples of REFCUS include grants of a capital nature to voluntary organisations
and back pay expenditure capitalised under Secretary of State Direction.

REVENUE SUPPORT GRANT (RSG)

A grant paid by Central Government to authorities, contributing towards the general
cost of their services.

Central Bedfordshire Council Statement of Accounts 2016/17
133



Agenda Item 8
Page 249

RIGHT TO BUY

The Council is legally required to sell council homes to tenants at a discount, where
the tenant wishes to buy their home.

SECTION 151 OFFICER

A term used to describe the Chief Finance Officer whose responsibilities are set out
in the Statement of Responsibilities for the Statement of Accounts.

SERVICE REPORTING CODE OF PRACTICE (SeRCOP)

CIPFA’s Service expenditure Reporting Code of Practice which provides guidance
on financial reporting to stakeholders and establishes ‘proper practice’ with regard to
consistent financial reporting.

SHORT TERM COMPENSATED ABSENCES

Short term compensated absences are periods during which an employee does not
provide services to the employer, but benefits continue to be paid.

SLIPPAGE

A delay in the progress of a capital scheme from the start date and payment flows
originally allowed for in the approved Capital Programme.

STOCKS

Items of raw materials and stores the Council has procured and holds in expectation
of future use. Examples are consumable stores, raw materials and products and
services in intermediate stages of completion.

TRUST FUNDS

Funds administered by the Council for such purposes as prizes, charities, specific
projects and on behalf of minors.

USABLE CAPITAL RECEIPTS RESERVE

Proceeds of non-current assets sales available to meet future capital investment.
These capital receipts are held in this reserve until such time they are used to either
fund new capital expenditure or repay any outstanding debt on fixed assets.

USEFUL ECONOMIC LIFE (UEL)

The period over which the Council will benefit from the use of a non-current asset.

Central Bedfordshire Council Statement of Accounts 2016/17
134



Agenda Item 8
Page 250

Contact Detalils

Contact us...

If you have any questions on these Financial Statements or require further
copies, please contact the Council as follows:

For the attention of:

Director of Resources
Central Bedfordshire Council
Priory House

Monks Walk

Chicksands

Shefford

Bedfordshire

SG17 5TQ

By telephone: 0300 300 6147 or 5206 (c/o Anthony Dodridge, Finance
Manager)

By email: anthony.dodridge @centralbedfordshire.gov.uk
maria.fuller@centralbedfordshire.gov.uk

For general enquiries of the Council please contact:

Phone: 0300 300 8000
Email: customer.services@centralbedfordshire.gov.uk
Write to: Central Bedfordshire Council, Priory House,

Monks Walk, Chicksands, Shefford, Bedfordshire SG17 5TQ

Go to the web: www.centralbedfordshire.gov.uk

Central Bedfordshire Council Statement of Accounts 2016/17
135


mailto:anthony.dodridge@centralbedfordshire.gov.uk
mailto:maria.fuller@centralbedfordshire.gov.uk
mailto:customer.services@centralbedfordshire.gov.uk

Appendix B

Appendix B — Schedule of Changes to Statement of Accounts Certified 29th June 2017

Changes made to the Statement of Accounts certified by Chief Finance Officer 29™ June 2017.

Statement | Section / Note | Comment —
of Comparison of published unaudited Statement of Accounts with Audited CBC Accounts 2016/17
Accounts
Page No
13 Narrative Narrative relating to the Expenditure and Funding Analysis has been moved to the end of this section, page 16,
Statement — as the statement is a note the accounts and not a main statement.
explanation of
the main
statements
14 Narrative Narrative has been added to the end of the paragraph explaining the note to further comment on the reason
Statement — that the 2015/16 data has been restated to reflect the new corporate structure.
Comprehensive
Income and Values have been updated to reflect the change in the valuation of Council housing stock following the
Expenditure application of the 10% impairment allowance:
Statement e The change in the Net cost of services between 2015/16 and 2016/17 has reduced by £12.5M to
£13.780M (from £26.311M)
e Provision of services deficit has reduced to £10.892M from £23.230M
e Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure has reduced to £151.450M from £178.817M
14 Narrative Values have been updated to reflect the change in the valuation of Council housing stock following the
Statement — application of the 10% impairment allowance:
The Movement e The reduction in the Unusable reserves has reduced to £26.4M from £66.1M, as a result the Total
in Reserves Unusable reserves has increased to £385.4M from £345.7M
Statement e The overall increase in the Revaluation Reserve increased to £83M from £56M, as a result the 2016/17
Revaluation Reserve increased to £263.8M from £236.6M
e The reduction in Capital Adjustments Account reduced to £12M from £25M
15 Narrative Property, plant and equipment values updated to reflect the change in the valuation of Council housing stock
Statement — following the application of the 10% impairment allowance:

Balance Sheet

e The increase in Property, plant and equipment in 2016/17 has increased to £117M from £77M
e Property, plant and equipment 2016/17 increased to £1,310M from £1,270M

20170927 Appendix B Amendments to SoA - Audit Ctte

bed
g Wwa)| epuaby

TGZ ©


ManningL01_3
Text Box
 Appendix B                                          



Appendix B — Schedule of Changes to Statement of Accounts Certified 29th June 2017

23 Comprehensive | Updated to identify the relevant notes that contain further information for particular line items.
Income and
Expenditure 2016/17 values have been updated to reflect the change in the valuation of Council housing stock following the
Statement application of the 10% impairment allowance:
e HRA Expenditure reduced to £21,376k from £33,907k, as a result the HRA Net position reduced to
(£8,263k) from (£21,376k)
e Cost of Services Expenditure reduced to £535,796k from £548,328k, as a result the Cost of Services Net
position reduced to £213,686k from £226,218k
e Other Operating Expenditure increased to £15,639k from £15,446k
e Deficit on Provision of Services expenditure reduced to £599,323k from £611,662k, as a result the
Deficit on Provision of Services net position reduced to £10,892k from £23,230k
e (Surplus) on revaluation of Property, Plant and Equipment increased to £86,500k from £59,134k
e Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure reduced to (£1,587) from £25,780k, as a result Total
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure reduced to £9,305k from £49,010k.
24 Movement in 2016/17 values have been updated to reflect the change in the valuation of Council housing stock following the
Reserves application of the 10% impairment allowance:
Statement e HRA - (Surplus) / deficit on the provision of services increased to (£9,238Kk) surplus from £3,101k deficit

Total Usable and Total Reserves - deficit on the provision of services reduced to £10,892k from
£23,230k

Other Comprehensive Income / Expenditure — Unusable Reserves and Total Reserves increased to
(£1,587k) income from £25,780k expenditure

HRA - Total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure increased to (£9,238k) income from £3,101k
expenditure

Total Usable Reserve - Total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure reduced to £10,892k from
£23,230k

Unusable Reserves - Total Reserve reduced to £9,305k from £49,010k

HRA - Adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis under regulations reduced to £4,919k
from (£7,419k), as a result the Total Usable - Adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis
under regulations reduced to (£27,988k) from (£40,326k) and the Unusable Reserves - Adjustments
between accounting basis and funding basis under regulations reduced from £27,988k from £40,326k
Unusable Reserves - Net Increase or Decrease before Transfers to Earmarked Reserves and Decrease
in 2016/17 reduced to £26,401k from £66,106k, as a result Total Reserves — Net Increase or Decrease
before Transfers to Earmarked Reserves and Decrease in 2016/17 reduced to £9,305k from £49,010k
Unusable Reserves - Balance at 31 March 2017 increased to £385,372k from £345,668k, as a result the

20170927 Appendix B Amendments to SoA - Audit Ctte

2GZ abed

g Wwa)| epuaby



Appendix B — Schedule of Changes to Statement of Accounts Certified 29th June 2017

Total Reserves - Balance at 31 March 2017 increased to £488,087k from £448,382k

25 Movement in Adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis under regulations line updated to show the £455k in
Reserves the Capital Receipts Reserve — this was previously included in the subtotal and total lines.
Statement
26 Balance Sheet | Updated to reflect the corresponding note numbers for particular line items where further detail can be located.
2016/17 values have been updated to reflect the change in the valuation of Council housing stock following the
application of the 10% impairment allowance:
e Property, plant and equipment valuation increased to £1,309,583k from £1,269,878k resulting in long
term assets increasing to £1,327,538k and Net Assets to £488,087k.
e Unusable reserves also increased to 385,372 to reflect the movement on the Capital Adjustment
Account, also resulting in a change to total reserves to £488,087k.
27 Cash Flow Updated to reflect the corresponding note numbers for particular line items where further detail can be located.
Statement
2016/17 values have been updated to reflect the change in the valuation of Council housing stock following the
application of the 10% impairment allowance:
e Net deficit on the provision of services reduced to £10,892k from £23,230k
e Adjustment to (surplus) / deficit on the provision of services for noncash movements reduced to
£76,772k from £89,110k.
27 Cash Flow Certification of s.151 Officer added below the Cash Flow Statement.
Statement
49 Note 6 -Events | Date the Statement of Accounts was authorised for issue by the Director of Resources has been included.
after the Narrative included to confirm that there are no events known to the Council which would need to be registered
Balance Sheet | as events after the Balance Sheet date.
Date
50 Note 7 — The EFA has been moved from the main statements section to Note 7 to reflect that it is not a main statement

Expenditure and
Funding
Analysis

and is a note to the accounts. The previous Note 7 has become Note 7A.

2015/16 values have been amended as these did not add through. No change to bottom-line figures —
presentational only.

2016/17 values have been updated to reflect the change in the valuation of Council housing stock following the ¢

abeg

20170927 Appendix B Amendments to SoA - Audit Ctte

€Ge

g Wwa)| epuaby



Appendix B — Schedule of Changes to Statement of Accounts Certified 29th June 2017

application of the 10% impairment allowance:

e HRA — Adjustments changed to (E20k) from £12,511k, as a result HRA — Net Expenditure in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement changed to (£8,263Kk) from £4,269k

e Net Cost of Services - Adjustments total reduced to £36,001k from £48,532k, as a result Net Cost of
Services — Net Expenditure in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement reduced to
£213,686k from £226,217k

e Other Income and Expenditure - Adjustments total reduced to (£25,057k) from (£25,250k), as a result
Other Income and Expenditure - Net Expenditure in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement reduced to (£202,794k) from (£202,987Kk)

e (Surplus) / Deficit on Provision of Services — Adjustments total reduced to £10,944k from £23,282k, as a
result (Surplus) / Deficit on Provision of Services - Net Expenditure in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement reduced to £10,892k from £23,230k.

51 Note 7A — Note | 2016/17 values have been updated to reflect the change in the valuation of Council housing stock following the
to the EFA application of the 10% impairment allowance:
e HRA — Net Capital Statutory Adjustments reduced to £7,994k from £20,525k, as a result HRA — Total
Adjustments change to (£20k) from £12,511k
e Net Cost of Services — Net Capital Statutory Adjustments reduced to £62,004k from £74,536k, as a
result Net Cost of Services — Total Adjustments reduced to £36,001k from £48,532k
e Other Income and Expenditure — Net Capital Statutory Adjustments reduced to (£37,230k) from
(E37,423k) resulting in Other Income and Expenditure — Total Adjustments reducing to (£25,057k) from
(E25,250k)
e Difference between the Statutory Charge and the Surplus or Deficit in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement — Net Capital Statutory Adjustments reduced to £24,774k from £37,113Kk,
resulting in the Difference between the Statutory Charge and the Surplus or Deficit in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement — Total Adjustments reducing to £10,944k from
£23,282k.
52 Note 7A — Note | 2015/16 Other differences values and total adjustments have been amended to reflect that the original figures
to the EFA did not add through. No change to bottom-line figures — presentational.
54 Note 8 — Additional line added for Support service recharge income, this had been omitted on publication however the
Expenditure values for both 2015/16 and 2016/17 were previously included in the total.
analysed by
Nature 2016/17 values have been updated to reflect the change in the valuation of Council housing stock following the ¢

Bed

20170927 Appendix B Amendments to SoA - Audit Ctte

14514

g Wwa)| epuaby



Appendix B — Schedule of Changes to Statement of Accounts Certified 29th June 2017

application of the 10% impairment allowance — Depreciation, amortisation and impairment reduced to £33,834k
from £46,365k, and Gain or loss on disposal of non-current assets increased to £3,736k from £3,543k, resulting
in the Deficit for Year reducing to £10,892k from £23,230k.

56-57 Note 9 - 2016/17 values have been updated to reflect the change in the valuation of Council housing stock following the
Adjustments application of the 10% impairment allowance:
between e HRA - Reversal of entries included in the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in relation to
Accounting capital expenditure (these items are charged to the Capital Adjustment Account) reduced to (£10,102k)
Basis and from (£22,440Kk), as a result the Movement in Unusable Reserves - Reversal of entries included in the
Funding Basis Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in relation to capital expenditure (these items are charged
under to the Capital Adjustment Account) reduced to £38,521k from £50,859k
Regulations — e HRA — Total Adjustments to Revenue Resources reduced to (£10,427k) from (£22,765k), resulting in
Capital Grants Movement in Unusable Reserves — Total Adjustments to Revenue Resources reducing to £50,969k from
Unapplied £63,308k

e HRA - Total Adjustments changed to £4,919k from (£7,419k), as a result Movement in Unusable
Reserves — Total Adjustments decreased to £27,988k from £40,326k.

58 Note 9 — Typing error on 2015/16 Reversal of entries included in the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in
Adjustments relation to capital expenditure (these items are charged to the Capital Adjustment Account)— General Fund
between balance at 31 March 2016 should read (£32,956k), not (£E32,932k) and Movement in Unusable Reserves
Accounting should read £15,129k not £15,105k.

Basis and

Funding Basis Typing error also on 2015/16 Total adjustments to Revenue Resources, General Fund balance should read
(E43,661k) not (£43,637k) and the Movement in Unusable Reserves should read £26,289k not £26,266k.
No change to bottom-line figures — presentational.

61 Note 11 — Other | 2016/17 values have been updated to reflect the change in the valuation of Council housing stock following the
Operating application of the 10% impairment allowance — Gains/losses on the Disposal of Non-Current Assets increased
Expenditure to £3,736k from £3,543k, as a result Total Other Operating Expenditure increased to £15,639k from £15,446k.

62 Note 14 — PPE | 2016/17 values have been updated to reflect the change in the valuation of Council housing stock following the

application of the 10% impairment allowance:
e Council Dwellings — Revaluation increases/(decreases) recognised in the Revaluation Reserve reduced
to £30,245k from £53,332k, as a result Total Property, Plant and Equipment - Revaluation ;?
increases/(decreases) recognised in the Revaluation Reserve increased to £79,729k from £52,816k Q

20170927 Appendix B Amendments to SoA - Audit Ctte

GGZ ©

g Wwa)| epuaby



Appendix B — Schedule of Changes to Statement of Accounts Certified 29th June 2017

e Council Dwellings - Revaluation increases/(decreases) recognised in the Surplus/Deficit on the Provision
of Services decreased to £4,985k from £17,970k, as a result Total Property, Plant and Equipment -
Revaluation increases/(decreases) recognised in the Surplus/Deficit on the Provision of Services
reduced to (£7,697k) from (£20,682Kk)

e Council Dwellings — Derecognition — disposals increased to (£2,130k) from (£1,937k), as a result Total
Property, Plant and Equipment - Derecognition — disposals increased to (£20,865k) from (£20,672Kk)

e Council Dwellings — Balance as at 31 March 2017 increased to £449,370k from £409,665k

e Council Dwellings - Depreciation written out to the Revaluation Reserve increased to £2,958k from
£2,504k, as a result Total Property, Plant and Equipment - Depreciation written out to the Revaluation
Reserve increased to £6,771k from £6,318k

e Council Dwellings - Depreciation written out to the Surplus/Deficit on the Provision of Services reduced
to £1,529k from £1,983k, as a result Total Property, Plant and Equipment - Depreciation written out to
the Surplus/Deficit on the Provision of Services reduced to £1,993k from £2,447k

e Council Dwellings — Net Book Value Balance as at 31 March 2017 increased to £449,395k from
£409,690Kk, as a result Total Property, Plant and Equipment - Balance as at 31 March 2017 increased to
£1,309,583k from £1,269,878k.

Typing error on opening balances, Balance as at 31 March 2016 for Land and Buildings should read £485,009k
not £485,323k and Surplus Assets should read £4,893k not £4,579k.

66 Note 16 — Debtors financial assets carried at contract amounts has reduced to £17,529k from £28,437k as prepayments
Financial had initially been included however these are not to be treated as a financial instrument.
instruments

70 Note 21 — Footnote added under Note 21 Creditors in respect of PFI short-term liability.
Creditors

74 Note 24 — 2016/17 values have been updated to reflect the change in the valuation of Council housing stock following the
Unusable application of the 10% impairment allowance — the Revaluation Reserve increased to (£263,823k) from
Reserves (£236,580k) and the Capital Adjustment Account increased to (£538,503k) from (£526,041k), as a result the

Total unusable reserves increased to (£385,372k) from (£345,668Kk).

75 Note 24 — 2016/17 values have been updated to reflect the change in the valuation of Council housing stock following the
Unusable application of the 10% impairment allowance:
Reserves — e Downward revaluation of assets and impairment losses changed to (£19,712k) from £7,654k, as a result
Revaluation the Surplus or deficit on revaluation of non-current assets not charged to the Surplus or Deficit on the
Reserve Provision of Services increased to (£86,500k) from (£59,134k)

e Accumulated gains on assets sold or scrapped increased to £180k from £57k, as a result the Amount

20170927 Appendix B Amendments to SoA - Audit Ctte

9GZ abed

g Wwa)| epuaby



Appendix B — Schedule of Changes to Statement of Accounts Certified 29th June 2017

written off to the Capital Adjustment Account increased to £3,252k from £3,128k
e This results in the Balance 31 March increasing to (£263,823k) from (£236,580Kk).

76 Note 24 — 2016/17 values have been updated to reflect the change in the valuation of Council housing stock following the
Capital application of the 10% impairment allowance:
Adjustment e Revaluation losses on non-current assets reduced to £5,704k from £18,235k
Account e Amounts of non-current assets written off on disposal or sale as part of the gain/loss on disposal to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement increased to £18,000k from £17,807k
e Reversal of Items relating to capital expenditure debited or credited to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement reduced to £80,109k from £92,447k
e Adjusting Amounts Written out of the Revaluation Reserve increased to (£3,252k) from (£3,128k)
e This results in the Net written out amount of the cost of non-current assets consumed in the year
reducing to £76,856k from £89,319k and the Balance 31 March increasing to (£538,503k).
79 Note 25 — Cash | 2016/17 values have been updated to reflect the change in the valuation of Council housing stock following the
Flow from application of the 10% impairment allowance — Impairment and downward valuations reduced to (£5,704k) from
Operating (£18,235k), the Carrying amount of non-current assets and non-current assets held for sale, sold or
Activities derecognised increased to (£18,000k) from (£17,807Kk) resulting in the total reducing to (£76,772k) from
(£89,110Kk).
88 Note 34 — Grant | Others (individually less than £1m) included items that were over £1m and therefore these have been analysed
Income out, along with their comparative 2015/16 value where applicable, as follows:
Special Schools Provision £2,402k
Stratton Park Phase 5 & 6 £1,400k
A421 and M1 Junction 13 Milton Keynes Magna Park £1,150k
No change to bottom-line figure - presentational.
89 Note 34 — Grant | Others (individually less than £1m) included items that were over £1m and therefore these have been analysed

Income credited
to services

out, along with their comparative 2015/16 value where applicable, as follows:

Asylum Seekers Grant - £1,175k
Additional Grant for Schools - £3,360k

No change to bottom-line figure - presentational.

(

Bed

20170927 Appendix B Amendments to SoA - Audit Ctte

JAST AL

g Wwa)| epuaby



Appendix B — Schedule of Changes to Statement of Accounts Certified 29th June 2017

91 Note 35 — Narrative added to the Pension Fund to clearly identify that Bedford Borough Council administer the fund.
Related Parties
Total value of payments made to LGSS Law Ltd in 2016/17 also added to reflect the total paid to them in the
year in relation to legal services and the role of the Monitoring Officer.
92 Note 36 — Typing error on 2017 Increase/(Decrease) in Capital Financing Requirement, changed to read £48,637k not
Capital £50,565k.
Expenditure and
Capital
Financing
109 HRA Income 2016/17 values have been updated to reflect the change in the valuation of Council housing stock following the
and Expenditure | application of the 10% impairment allowance:
Statement e Depreciation, impairments and revaluation losses of hon-current assets reduced to £7,994k from
£20,525k, as a result the total expenditure is now £21,280k not £33,811k
e Net Expenditure or Income of HRA Services as included in the whole authority Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement changed to (£8,359Kk) from £4,173Kk, as a result Net Expenditure of HRA
Services changed to (£8,263k) from £4,269k
e Gains/loss on sale of HRA Fixed Assets reduced to (£5,246k) from (£5,439k), as a result the surplus is
now (£9,238k) rather than a £3,101k deficit.
110 HRA Movement | 2016/17 values have been updated to reflect the change in the valuation of Council housing stock following the
on the HRA application of the 10% impairment allowance:
Statement e (Surplus) or Deficit on the HRA Income and Expenditure Statement changed to a (£9,238k) surplus from
a £3,101k deficit
¢ Adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis under statute changed to £4,919k from
(E7,419Kk)
e Transfers to/from the Capital Adjustment Account reduced to (£7,994k) not (£20,525Kk)
e Gain or loss on sale of non-current assets reduced to £5,246k from £5,439k
e As aresult the Net additional amount required by statute to be debited or (credited) to the HRA Balance
for the year has changed from (£7,419Kk) to £4,919k.
111 HRA Note 2 2016/17 values have been updated to reflect the change in the valuation of Council housing stock following the

application of the 10% impairment allowance — Council dwellings valuation has increased to £449,395k from
£409,665k, as a result the total HRA assets valuation has increased to £456,274Kk.

Bed

20170927 Appendix B Amendments to SoA - Audit Ctte

8G¢Z 9

g Wwa)| epuaby



Appendix B — Schedule of Changes to Statement of Accounts Certified 29th June 2017
Amended narrative for Major Repairs Reserve to reflect the same wording used in Note 23.

112 HRA Note 3
114 HRA Note 6 2016/17 values have been updated to reflect the change in the valuation of Council housing stock following the
application of the 10% impairment allowance — Council Dwellings impairment has reduced to (£3,456k) from
(E15,987k), resulting in the total impairment figure reducing to (£3,427k).

bed

20170927 Appendix B Amendments to SoA - Audit Ctte

g Wwa)| epuaby

6GZ °



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 8
Page 261

Appendix C — Letter of Representation 2016/17

Bedfordshire

Ernst & Young

400 Capability Green
Luton

LU1 3LU

27 September 2017

Management Representation Letter

Dear Sirs

This letter of representations is provided in connection with your audit of the
financial statements of Central Bedfordshire Council (“the Council”) for the year
ended 31 March 2017. We recognise that obtaining representations from us
concerning the information contained in this letter is a significant procedure in
enabling you to form an opinion as to whether the financial statements give a true
and fair view of the Council financial position of Central Bedfordshire Council as of
31 March 2017 and of its income and expenditure for the year then ended in
accordance with CIPFA LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in
the United Kingdom 2016/17.

We understand that the purpose of your audit of our financial statements is to
express an opinion thereon and that your audit was conducted in accordance with
International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland), which involves an
examination of the accounting system, internal control and related data to the
extent you considered necessary in the circumstances, and is not designed to
identify - nor necessarily be expected to disclose - all fraud, shortages, errors and
other irregularities, should any exist.

Accordingly, we make the following representations, which are true to the best of
our knowledge and belief, having made such inquiries as we considered necessary
for the purpose of appropriately informing ourselves:

A. Financial Statements and Financial Records

1. We have fulfilled our responsibilities, under the relevant statutory authorities,
for the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with the Accounts
and Audit Regulations 2015 and CIPFA LASAAC Code of Practice on Local
Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2016/17.

Priory House, Monks Walk Telephone 0300 300 8000
Chicksands, Shefford Email customer.services@centralbedfordshire.gov.uk
Bedfordshire SG17 5TQ www.centralbedfordshire.gov.uk



Agenda Item 8
Page 262

2. We acknowledge, our responsibility for the fair presentation of the financial
statements. We believe the financial statements referred to above give a true
and fair view of the financial position, financial performance (or results of
operations) and cash flows of the Council in accordance with the CIPFA
LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United
Kingdom 2016/17. We have approved the financial statements.

3. The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial
statements are appropriately described in the financial statements.

4. We believe that the Council has a system of internal controls adequate to
enable the preparation of accurate financial statements in accordance with the
CIPFA LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United
Kingdom 2016/17, that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

5. We believe that the Council has a system of internal controls adequate to
enable the preparation of accurate financial statements in accordance with the
CIPFA LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United
Kingdom 2016/17, that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

6. There are no unadjusted audit differences identified during the current audit
and pertaining to the latest period presented.

B. Fraud

1. We acknowledge that we are responsible for the design, implementation and
maintenance of internal controls to prevent and detect fraud.

2. We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that the
financial statements may be materially misstated as a result of fraud.

3. We have no knowledge of any fraud or suspected fraud involving management
or other employees who have a significant role in the Council’s internal controls
over financial reporting. In addition, we have no knowledge of any fraud or
suspected fraud involving other employees in which the fraud could have a
material effect on the financial statements. We have no knowledge of any
allegations of financial improprieties, including fraud or suspected fraud,
(regardless of the source or form and including without limitation, any
allegations by “whistleblowers”) which could result in a misstatement of the
financial statements or otherwise affect the financial reporting of the Council.

C. Compliance with Laws and Regulations

1. We have disclosed to you all identified or suspected non-compliance with laws
and regulations whose effects should be considered when preparing the
financial statements.

Priory House, Monks Walk Telephone 0300 300 8000
Chicksands, Shefford Email customer.services@centralbedfordshire.gov.uk
Bedfordshire SG17 5TQ www.centralbedfordshire.gov.uk



Agenda Item 8
Page 263

D. Information Provided and Completeness of Information and Transactions
1. We have provided you with:

e Access to all information of which we are aware that is relevant to the
preparation of the financial statements such as records, documentation and
other matters;

e Additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of
the audit; and

e Unrestricted access to persons within the entity from whom you determined
it necessary to obtain audit evidence.

2. All material transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are
reflected in the financial statements.

3. We have made available to you all minutes of the meetings of the Council and
committees (or summaries of actions of recent meetings for which minutes
have not yet been prepared) held through the year to the most recent meeting
on the following date: 27 September 2017.

4. We confirm the completeness of information provided regarding the
identification of related parties. We have disclosed to you the identity of the
Council’s related parties and all related party relationships and transactions of
which we are aware, including sales, purchases, loans, transfers of assets,
liabilities and services, leasing arrangements, guarantees, non-monetary
transactions and transactions for no consideration for the period ended, as well
as related balances due to or from such parties at the year end. These
transactions have been appropriately accounted for and disclosed in the
financial statements.

5. We have disclosed to you, and the Council has complied with, all aspects of
contractual agreements that could have a material effect on the financial
statements in the event of noncompliance, including all covenants, conditions
or other requirements of all outstanding debt.

E. Liabilities and Contingencies

1. All liabilities and contingencies, including those associated with guarantees,
whether written or oral, have been disclosed to you and are appropriately
reflected in the financial statements.

2. We have informed you of all outstanding and possible litigation and claims,
whether or not they have been discussed with legal counsel.

3. We have recorded and/or disclosed, as appropriate, all liabilities related
litigation and claims, both actual and contingent, and have disclosed in Note 42
to the financial statements all guarantees that we have given to third parties.

Priory House, Monks Walk Telephone 0300 300 8000
Chicksands, Shefford Email customer.services@centralbedfordshire.gov.uk
Bedfordshire SG17 5TQ www.centralbedfordshire.gov.uk



Agenda Item 8
Page 264

F. Subsequent Events

1. There have been no events subsequent to period end which require adjustment
of or disclosure in the financial statements or notes thereto.

G. Accounting Estimates

1. We believe that the significant assumptions we used in making accounting
estimates, including those measured at fair value, are reasonable.

2. Accounting estimates recognised or disclosed in the financial statements:

e We believe the measurement processes, including related assumptions and
models, we used in determining accounting estimates is appropriate and the
application of these processes is consistent.

e The disclosures relating to accounting estimates are complete and
appropriate in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework.

e The assumptions we used in making accounting estimates appropriately
reflects our intent and ability to carry out specific courses of action on behalf
of the entity, where relevant to the accounting estimates and disclosures.

¢ No subsequent event requires an adjustment to the accounting estimates
and disclosures included in the financial statements.

H. Retirement benefits

1. On the basis of the processes established by us and having made appropriate
enquiries, we are satisfied that the actuarial assumptions underlying the
scheme liabilities are consistent with our knowledge of the business. All
significant retirement benefits and all settlements and curtailments have been
identified and properly accounted for.

Yours faithfully,

Director of Resources & Section 151 Officer

Priory House, Monks Walk Telephone 0300 300 8000
Chicksands, Shefford Email customer.services@centralbedfordshire.gov.uk
Bedfordshire SG17 5TQ www.centralbedfordshire.gov.uk



Agenda Item 8
Page 265

| confirm that this letter has been discussed and agreed at the Audit Committee on
27 September 2017

Chairman of the Audit Committee

Priory House, Monks Walk Telephone 0300 300 8000
Chicksands, Shefford Email customer.services@centralbedfordshire.gov.uk
Bedfordshire SG17 5TQ www.centralbedfordshire.gov.uk



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 9
Page 267

Central Bedfordshire Council

AUDIT COMMITTEE 27 September 2017

Update On The General Data Protection Regulation

Advising Officer: Stephan Conaway, Chief Information Officer
(Stephan.conaway@centralbedfordshire.gov.uk)

Contact Officers: Sean Dykes, Information Security Manager
(sean.dykes@centralbedfordshire.gov.uk )

Maria Damigos, Corporate Lawyer, LGSS Law Ltd

Purpose of this report

1. The report seeks to provide an overview of the General Data Protection
Regulation (GDPR) and the Council’s plans for compliance.

RECOMMENDATIONS
The Committee is asked to:

i. Note the position with the GDPR.

Overview and Scrutiny Comments/Recommendations

2. This is a report to update the committee on the GDPR. No decision is
necessary and the report has not been considered by the Overview &
Scrutiny Committees.

Introduction

3. At the Audit Committee meeting of 29 June 2017 Members considered
the position with the GDPR and asked for a report from the Chief
Information Officer to update Members.

Background

4. How personal data is dealt with in the UK is currently governed by the
Data Protection Act 1998 (DPA) which was enacted to bring the
European Union (EU) Data Protection Directive 1995 into UK law.

5. The GDPR is an EU Regulation by which the European Parliament, the
Council of the European Union and the European Commission
intended to give control back to citizens and residents over their
personal data and to simplify the regulatory environment for
international business by unifying the regulations within the EU.


mailto:Stephan.conaway@centralbedfordshire.gov.uk
mailto:sean.dykes@centralbedfordshire.gov.uk

Agenda ltem 9
Page 268

6. The regulation was adopted on 27 April 2016. It becomes enforceable
from 25 May 2018 after a two-year transition period. It does not require
any enabling legislation to be passed by national governments and is
thus directly binding and applicable whilst the UK is a member of the
EU. The UK government has confirmed that the UK’s decision to leave
the EU will not affect the commencement of the GDPR.

7. A Data Protection Bill is to be considered by parliament in September
to incorporate the requirements of the GDPR into UK legislation. It is
anticipated that this will ensure that the GDPR requirements are still
applicable after the UK leaves the EU.

Summary of Changes

8. The GDPR extends the rights and responsibilities contained in the
DPA. Apart from private use, it will apply to all individuals and
organisations storing or using personal data and will include a ‘data
processor’ (someone who acts on a data controller’s behalf).

9. Under the DPA the data controller was responsible for the data. Data
processors will now have specific obligations in relation to record
keeping and processing and will have more legal liability in the event of
a breach.

10.  The key areas of change are:
a. Lawful processing

For processing to be lawful under both the DPA and the GDPR, a
lawful basis must be identified. The requirements for lawful processing
under GDPR will change slightly. The Council will be able to rely on
consent, compliance with a legal obligation, protection of the vital
interests of a data subject or another person and performance of a task
carried out in the public interest or in the exercise of official authority
vested in it.

b. Consent and Privacy Notices

The definition of consent under the GDPR is more strictly defined than
under the DPA. It must be a freely given, specific, informed and an
unambiguous indication of the individual's wishes. There must be a
positive opt-in - consent cannot be inferred from silence, pre-ticked
boxes or inactivity. Simple procedures for withdrawing consent must be
in place.

The Council as a public authority and an employer will need to take
particular care to ensure that consent is freely given (or rely on another
basis for processing).



Agenda ltem 9
Page 269

Where consent is not given or required individuals must be provided
with a notice detailing what information is held and why, what will be
done with the information and the persons rights in respect of that data.

LGSS and the Information Security Manager are developing consent
templates and privacy notices that can be used across the Authority.

C. Children’s personal data

The GDPR contains new provisions intended to enhance the protection
of children’s personal data. Where services are offered directly to a
child, the Council must ensure that any privacy notice is written in a
clear, plain way that a child will understand.

Specialist advice from Children’s Services will be obtained to help with
the drafting of the consent and privacy notice templates.

d. Individual's Rights

The GDPR both strengthens existing rights under the DPA and creates
new rights for individuals. GDPR provides the following rights for
individuals:

The right to be informed

The right of access

The right to rectification

The right to erasure

The right to restrict processing

The right to data portability

The right to object

Rights in relation to automated decision making and profiling.

Whilst the Council may not currently carry out activities which are
affected by some of these rights the position will be monitored.

e. Accountability and Governance

The GDPR includes specific provisions that promote accountability and
governance which complement the GDPR’s transparency
requirements.

New requirements will include records of processing activities, privacy
impact assessments, privacy by design and the appointment of a Data
Protection Officer.

The Council must also be able to show that the requirements are being
complied with. The Council’'s governance measures will be reviewed
and updated to take account of any requirements not already in place.



Agenda ltem 9
Page 270

f. Breach Notification

The GDPR will introduce a duty to report all incidents where there has
been a significant breach to the ICO within 72 hours. The Council
already has a successful reporting system in place which will only need
minor updates to comply with the timescale for reporting.

g. Transfers of personal data to third countries or international
organisations

The GDPR imposes restrictions on the transfer of personal data
outside the European Union, to third countries or international
organisations, in order to ensure that the level of protection of
individuals afforded by the GDPR is not undermined. The Council will
need to clarify how this applies to information held in “the cloud” and
ensure appropriate safeguards are in place.

11.  The GDPR also significantly increases the maximum fine for a data
protection breach which can be imposed from £500,000 to either 10
million euros or 20 million euros (or 2% or 4% of global turnover in the
preceding financial year respectively) depending on the type of breach.

Current Position

12. A GDPR Working Group has been set up to monitor and implement the
requirements of the GDPR within the Council. The group is made up of
the Information Security Manager, LGSS Corporate Lawyer, Head of
Internal Audit, Deputy Chief Information Officer, Records and Risk
Officer and Information Request Officer. Updates are provided to the
Monitoring Officer, SIRO/Chief Information Officer, CMT and the
Information Assurance Group (IAG) as necessary.

13. The IAG includes senior officers from Human Resources, Internal
Audit, IT, Children’s Services, Adult Services and the Caldicott
Guardian and can provide further support, initial approval and sense
checking of proposed draft documents and procedures.

14.  Appendix A sets out the ICO Recommended Actions and the Council’s
current position.

15. As detailed above a template is being drafted which will allow all
departments to create/update their privacy notices or consents. Once
rolled out, it is proposed that drop in sessions will be available for
queries.

16. The Council’s data protection training is to be reviewed and revised
early 2018 and this will also take account of the new requirements of
the GDPR.



Agenda ltem 9
Page 271

17. A more detailed Action Plan is also to be developed. It is anticipated
that any areas of weakness identified by Internal Audits, the privacy
notices or consents and/or drop in sessions will feed into both the
Action Plan and the new data protection training where appropriate.

Council Priorities

18. Compliance with legal obligations ensures that Council delivers it
priorities and contributes to the achievement of all the Council’s
priorities.

Corporate Implications

Risk Management

19.  Failure to implement the requirements of the GDPR would be a breach
of the law. This is already identified as a significant governance issue
within the draft Annual Governance Statement for 2016/17. It is
however anticipated that all requirements will be met or implemented.

Staffing (including Trades Unions)

20.  There are none.

Legal Implications

21. The GDPR will become law in the UK on 25 May 2018. The Council
will need to comply with the GDPR and any other applicable legislation.

Financial Implications

22.  Although this report has no financial implications, resources will be
required for implementation of, and compliance with, the GDPR which
will either be met from existing budgets or will be the subject of further
reports to the appropriate committee or Executive.

Equalities Implications

23.  None arising directly from this report.

Conclusion and next Steps

24.  Development of a detailed Action Plan with ongoing awareness raising

for all staff. Drop in sessions to assist departments with specific
queries are also to be arranged and delivered.



Agenda Item 9
Page 272

Appendices
The following Appendices are attached:
Appendix A — ICO Recommended Actions

Further information can be obtained from:
https://ico.org.uk/for-organisations/data-protection-reform/overview-of-the-
qdpr/



https://ico.org.uk/for-organisations/data-protection-reform/overview-of-the-gdpr/
https://ico.org.uk/for-organisations/data-protection-reform/overview-of-the-gdpr/

Appendix A

Action as recommended by ICO

Date Completed

Action Ongoing

Position as at 9/8/17

Position Sep 17 (Working Group 12 Sep)

Your business has implemented appropriate
technical and organisational measures to show you
have considered and integrated data protection into
your processing activities

Technical measures to be incorporated have been discussed with Hytech, the Council's
information security technical consultants. Notices have been published to all staff on the
changes on how they may affect them. Policies & Procedures will be updated during early
2018.

Your business understands when you must conduct
a DPIA and has processes in place to action this.

This was instigated at CBC during 2016. A campaign to repromote this has been
commenced with email reminders sent to Directors and AD's for cascading down to
Managers and Staff

Your business has a DPIA framework which links to
your existing risk management and project
management processes.

This was instigated at CBC during 2016. A campaign to repromote this has been
commenced with email reminders sent to Directors and AD's for cascading down to
Managers and Staff

Your business has designated responsibility for data
protection compliance to a suitable individual
within the organisation.

Information Security Manager who feed issues into the Information Assurance Group. This
is then reported to Corporate Management Team on a quarterly basis.

Your business has appointed a Data Protection
Officer (DPO) if you are: (LIST) a public authority or
you carry out large scale monitoring of individuals or
you carry out large scale processing of special
categories of data or data relating to criminal
convictions and offences.

This is to be confirmed by the Chief Executive.

Your business supports the data protection lead
through provision of appropriate training and
reporting mechanisms to senior management.

Data protection and information security training will be reviewed early in 2018 with L&D to
consider changes that need to be made to it and consider more specialised training for
those areas where sensitive personal data is handled more extensively.

Your business has reviewed the various types of
processing you carry out. You have identified your
lawful basis for your processing activities and
documented this.

We have a lawful basis for processing, although we will study the new data protection bill
for any new requirements.

Your business has explained your lawful basis for
processing personal data in your privacy notice(s).

SD and MD LGSS will be working on a new draft privacy notice during August

Your business has documented what personal data
you hold, where that data came from and who it is
shared with.

This will be considered by SD and CAG. Will take advice from Internal Audit on how best to do it

Your business has planned to conduct an
information audit across the organisation to map
data flows.

Will speak to Internal Audit on this

Your business has reviewed how you seek, record
and manage consent.

MD LGSS and SD will be working on new consent notices for all departments shortly

Your business has reviewed the systems currently
used to record consent and implemented
appropriate mechanisms in order to ensure an
effective audit trail.

SD to speak to Hytec (Information Security technical experts) regarding this.

6 Wal| epuaby

¢/ ¢ abed



Appendix A

Decision makers and key people in your business are
aware that the law is changing to the GDPR and
appreciate the impact this is likely to have.

Yes. CMT and Members have been made aware of the changes and there likely effect.

Your business has identified areas that could cause
compliance problems under the GDPR and has
recorded these on the organisation’s risk register.

We are working with Internal Audit on this

Your business is raising awareness across the
organisation of the changes that are coming.

Regular updates have been published in local media (Staff Central, Managers Emails)
since the beginning of 2017. More detailed information on the changes coming is now
being directed at Directors and AD's.

Your business has set out the management support
and direction for data protection compliance in a
framework of policies and procedures.

We already have this in place. All policies and procedures will be reviewed early in 2018 to
assess the need for change to reflect the new regulation.

Your business monitors compliance with data
protection policies and regularly reviews the
effectiveness of data handling and processing
activities and security controls.

Policies are reviewed every two years currently. All our information governance policies will
be reviewed early in 2018 and amended to reflect the new regulations. These will only be
published generally once GDPR is law. Our training package is being reviewed in
conjunction with L&D beginiing in Jan 2018.

Your business has developed and implemented a
needs-based data protection training programme
for all staff.

See above. This will be developed with L&D colleagues from Jan 2018.

Your business has documented what personal data
you hold, where that data came from and who it is
shared with.

All our information sharing arrangements are documented and must be approved by an
authorisation group consisteing of Caldecott Guardian, LGSS Corporate Lawyer,
Information Security Manager and Records & Risk Officer. We will need to check how
personal data holdings are recorded.

Your business has planned to conduct an
information audit across the organisation to map
data flows.

We will need to consult Internal Audit on this.

Your business has checked your procedures to
ensure that you can deliver the rights of individuals
under the GDPR.

This action is ongoing

Your business has reviewed your procedures and
has plans in place for how you will handle requests
from individuals for access to their personal data
within the new timescales outlined in the GDPR.

We will be working on this from Jan 2018. The system we have will be easy to change and
we will ensure that all users are aware of the changes in plenty of time prior to
implementation.

Your business has reviewed your procedures and
has plans in place for how you will provide any
additional information to requestors as required
under the GDPR.

Our system is already very robust and will require minimal alteration.

Your business has implemented appropriate
procedures to ensure personal data breaches are
detected, reported and investigated effectively.

These have been in place for two years.

Your business has mechanisms in place to assess and
then report relevant breaches to the ICO where the
individual is likely to suffer some form of damage,
e.g. through identity theft or confidentiality breach.

The Information Security Manager is notified of all breaches and will make an assessment
on each incident on what action needs to be taken.

6 Wa)| epuaby

/¢ abed



Appendix A

Your business has mechanisms in place to notify
affected individuals where the breach is likely to
result in a high risk to their rights and freedoms.

See above. Information Security Manager, sometimes in consultation with LGSS, will
assess if this action needs to be completed.

If your business offers services directly to children,
you communicate privacy information in a clear,
plain way that a child will understand.

MD LGSS and SD will be looking at this shortly

If your business offers ‘information society services’
directly to children, your business has systems in
place to verify individuals’ ages and to obtain
parental or guardian consent where required.

Information Society services are defined as “any service normally provided for
remuneration, at a distance, by electronic means and at the individual request of the
recipient for services”. This is normally taken to refer to social media or games. Further
investigation to take place to see if CBC provides any services that might still come within
the definition

If your business operates in more than one EU
member state, you have determined your business’s
lead supervisory authority and documented this.

Not applicable

6 Wal| epuaby

G/ ¢ abed



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 10
Page 277

Central Bedfordshire Council

AUDIT COMMITTEE 27 September 2017

Annual Governance Statement 2016/17

Advising Officer: Quentin Baker, Monitoring Officer
(quentin.baker@centralbedfordshire.gov.uk )

Contact Officer: Maria Damigos, Corporate Lawyer, LGSS Law Ltd

Purpose of this report

1. The report seeks to update the Committee on amendments made to
the draft Annual Governance Statement and requests the Committee’s
approval of the Statement.

RECOMMENDATIONS
The Committee is asked to:

i. Approve the updated draft Annual Governance Statement attached
as Appendix A.

Overview and Scrutiny Comments/Recommendations

2. The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the production of
the Annual Governance Statement and therefore this matter has not
been considered by the Overview & Scrutiny Committees.

Background

3. The Audit Committee’s terms of reference include responsibility for
overseeing the production of the Council’'s Annual Governance
Statement.

4. On 27 June 2017 the Audit Committee approved the draft Annual
Governance Statement which was attached as Appendix A to the
report.

5. The draft Annual Governance Statement has been considered by the
Council’s external auditors and in view of comments received Section 5
of the Statement (Significant Governance Issues) has been amended
to clarify and explain the issues and how the Council is dealing with
them in more detail. The updates have been considered by the
Corporate Management Team.


mailto:quentin.baker@centralbedfordshire.gov.uk

Agenda Item 10
Page 278

Proposed Amendments

6. A clean amended version of the updated Annual Governance
Statement is attached as Appendix A. A tracked version showing the
proposed amendments is attached as Appendix B.

7. Details of the identified significant governance issues from the 2015/16
Annual Governance Statement have been included together with an
update of their status.

8. The current significant governance issues were also amended to
include details and an explanation of the actions being taken by the
Council to manage the issues. Part 5 now also highlights that whilst
the GDPR has been retained as a significant governance issue from
the 2015/16 Annual Governance Statement, it is considered that the
implementation programme for GDPR will result in full compliance
being achieved by May 2018. GDPR has accordingly not been
entered on the Strategic Risk Register as a risk.

9. Amendments have also been made to clarify the process of risk
monitoring.
Next Steps

10. The Audit Committee is asked to consider whether the updated draft
Annual Governance Statement accurately reflects the governance
arrangements and the management of risk.

Council Priorities

11. A sound system of corporate governance provides the framework and
assurance within which the Council can deliver its priorities with
confidence. Sound governance arrangements contribute to the
achievement of all the Council’s priorities.

Corporate Implications

Risk Management

12. The Annual Governance Statement identifies a number of significant
governance issues and, where appropriate, these have been identified
in the Council’s Risk Register, together with mitigating action to reduce
the level of the risk.

Staffing (including Trades Unions)

13. There are none.



Agenda Item 10
Page 279

Legal Implications

14. The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 require the Council to
conduct an annual review of its systems of internal control. The
preparation of an Annual Governance Statement forms part of that
process.

Financial Implications

15.  The Annual Governance Statement will be reported alongside the
Council’s Statement of Accounts for 2016/17, but this report has no
financial implications.

Equalities Implications

16.  None arising directly from this report.

Conclusion and next Steps

17.  If approved by the Audit Committee, the Statement will be submitted to
the Leader and Chief Executive for formal sign off.

Appendices
The following Appendices are attached:

Appendix A — Updated Draft Annual Governance Statement (clean copy)
Appendix B — Updated Draft Annual Governance Statement (tracked copy)



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 10

_ Page 281
Appendix A Bedfordshire

CENTRAL BEDFORDSHIRE COUNCIL

ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 2016/17

1.0 SCOPE OF RESPONSIBILITY

Central Bedfordshire Council is responsible for ensuring that its business is
conducted in accordance with the law and proper standards, and that public money
is safeguarded and properly accounted for, and used economically, efficiently and
effectively.

The Council also has a duty under the Local Government Act 1999 to make
arrangements to secure continuous improvements in the way in which its functions
are exercised having regard to a combination of economy, efficiency and
effectiveness.

In discharging this overall responsibility, the Council is responsible for putting in
place proper arrangements for the governance of its affairs and facilitating the
effective exercise of its functions, including arrangements for the management of
risk.

Central Bedfordshire Council has adopted a Code of Corporate Governance, which
is consistent with the principles of the CIPFA/SOLACE Framework Delivering Good
Governance in Local Government. A copy of this code is on our website
www.centralbedfordshire.gov.uk.

This statement explains how the Council has complied with national good practice
guidance and meets the requirements of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015
in relation to the publication of a statement on internal control.

2.0 THE GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK
21 The purpose of the governance framework

The governance framework is made up of the systems, processes, culture and
values by which the authority directs and controls its activities and through which it
engages with and leads the community. The framework enables the authority to
monitor the achievement of its strategic priorities and to consider whether those
priorities have led to the delivery of appropriate services and value for money. The
governance framework is described in the Code of Corporate Governance.

The system of internal control is a significant part of the corporate framework and
is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level. It cannot eliminate all risk of

Annual Governance Statement 2015/16 — Submitted to Audit Committee - 29 June 2016

10f13


http://www.centralbedfordshire.gov.uk/

Agenda Item 10
Page 282

failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives and can therefore only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal
control is based on an ongoing process designed to identify and prioritise risks to
the achievement of the Council’s policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the
likelihood of those risks being realised, the impact should they be realised and to
manage them efficiently, effectively and economically.

The governance framework has been in place at Central Bedfordshire Council for
the year ended 31 March 2017 and up to the date of the approval of the statement
of accounts.

This section of the Annual Governance Statement describes the key elements of
the systems and processes that make up the authority’s governance
arrangements.

2.2 The Governance Framework

The Council’s governance framework contributes to the delivery of the Council’s
vision and values and the key elements of the processes and systems that
comprise the framework are as follows:

e Strategic leadership provided by Members including the development and
review of the Council’s visions, priorities and values. These detail the
Council’s vision of its purpose and intended outcomes for residents and
service users to all;

e Key policies are defined in the “Policy Framework” within the Budget and
Policy Framework Procedure Rules in the Council’'s Constitution. This
framework is reviewed periodically to ensure it remains fit for purpose
strategically and that it is aligned to corporate priorities;

e Business planning processes which ensure that services are delivered in
line with the Council’s vision and values and representing the best use of all
Council resources;

e Measuring performance and achievement of objectives through the
mechanism of the Council’s performance management system;

e A written Constitution specifying the roles and responsibilities of elected
Members and Officers with protocols for effective communication;

e The Council has adopted arrangements to promote high standards of ethical
governance and includes Codes of Conduct defining the standards of
behaviour for both Members and Officers and a Member/Officer Protocol as
part of the Constitution. Further guidance is provided in the Council’s
Ethical Handbook;

e The Schemes of Delegation to Members and Officers within the Constitution
sets out the principles, processes and controls for decision makers. Codes
of Financial and Procurement Governance set out the constraints within

Annual Governance Statement 2016/17 — Submitted to Audit Committee - 29 June 2017
20f13



Agenda Item 10
Page 283

which Officers may work and these Codes are supported by more detailed
procedure rules;

e Embedded internal systems to ensure Members are presented with the
appropriate information to make decisions, including corporate implications
with advice on legal, risk management and financial considerations.
Member level decisions are based on reports and are recorded;

¢ An Audit Committee to provide independent assurance of the adequacy of
the risk management framework and the associated control environment,
independent scrutiny of the Authority’s financial and non-financial
performance to the extent that it affects the Authority’s exposure to risk and
weakens the control environment, and to oversee the financial reporting
process;

e Statutory Officers to support and monitor the Council's governance
arrangements, ensure compliance with relevant laws and regulations,
internal policies and procedures and that expenditure is lawful;

e Policies for confidential reporting (whistleblowing) and an Anti-Fraud
Strategy are in place to support the governance within the Council. There is
a corporate complaints process with separate procedures for Children’s
Services and Adult Social Care where complaints procedures are governed
by Regulations. There are also formal processes for registering complaints
in respect of the Council’s Housing Landlord functions and for receiving,
evaluating and investigating complaints against Members;

¢ A consultation strategy to ensure the Council consults with and engages the
diverse communities of Central Bedfordshire, allowing them to input to the
planning of services provided for them and the review of those services as
appropriate;

e A system of Overview and Scrutiny Committees with responsibility for key
areas and who receive reports on keys issues including budget monitoring,
performance and efficiency information and provides independent checks
and balances on the exercise of functions and responsibilities by the
Council.

3.0 REVIEW OF EFFECTIVENESS

Central Bedfordshire Council has responsibility for conducting, at least annually, a
review of effectiveness of its governance framework including the system of
internal control. The review of effectiveness is informed by the work of the
Corporate Management Team, which has responsibility for the development and
maintenance of the governance environment, the Head of Internal Audit’'s annual
report, and also by comments made by the external auditors and other review
agencies and inspectorates.

The Council continues to assess how its overall corporate governance
responsibilities are discharged.

Annual Governance Statement 2016/17 — Submitted to Audit Committee - 29 June 2017
30f13



Agenda Item 10
Page 284

The Council’s review of the Governance Framework and the effectiveness of the
system of internal control comprise:

e Reviews of the Governance Framework and internal control in
accordance with CIPFA Guidance carried out by Internal Audit on an
annual basis, including consideration of the Council’'s financial
management arrangements conforming with the CIPFA statements on
the role of the Chief Financial Officer in Local Government and the role
of the Chief Internal Auditor in Public Service Organisations; In early
2017 a complete review and redraft of the Council’s Code of Corporate
Governance by Internal Audit and the Monitoring Officer to reflect new
guidance issued by CIPFA/Solace in 2016, “Delivering Good
Governance in Local Government Framework”;

e Annual report and opinion on the Internal Control environment prepared
by the Head of Internal Audit and Risk'. This report draws on the
outcome of audit reviews undertaken throughout 2016/17 and is
informed by the comments of external auditors and inspectors. The
report is designed to provide assurance on the effectiveness of internal
controls;

e The completion of self-assurance statements by directors;

o the work undertaken by the external auditor reported in their annual audit
and inspection letter.

e other work undertaken by independent inspection bodies.

(1) Central Bedfordshire Council’s Vision

The Council’s overall objective is to create Central Bedfordshire as a “great place
to live and work” and the Council’'s medium term plan identifies the following
priorities:

Enhancing Central Bedfordshire.

Great residence services.

Improving education and skills.

Protecting the vulnerable and improving wellbeing.
Creating stronger communities.

An efficient and responsive Council.

The Council’s Budget and Policy Framework contains specific plans, policies and
strategies driving delivery of the Council's priorities and key work programmes.

I The role of Chief Internal Auditor within Central Bedfordshire Council is undertaken by the Head of
Internal Audit and Risk

Annual Governance Statement 2016/17 — Submitted to Audit Committee - 29 June 2017
4 0f 13



Agenda Item 10
Page 285

The Council has adopted a set of organisational values that describe the type of
organisation we want to be and the principles that will guide us in achieving our
priorities and vision. These set out the way the Council will work and interact with
its customers, members and staff.

The Council’s values are:

Respect and Empowerment
— we will treat people as individuals who matter to us.

Stewardship and Efficiencies
— we will make the best use of the resources available to us.

Results Focused
— we will focus on the outcomes that make a difference to people’s lives, and

Collaborative
— we will work closely with our colleagues, partners and customers to deliver
on these outcomes.

(2) Service Quality

The Council has used regular performance reporting to ensure a sustained focus
on those things that matter most to local people.

At a strategic level, the Corporate Management Team (CMT) reviews reports on
the performance of the Council on a monthly basis. CMT also reviews the MTP
progress or status report on a quarterly basis. This report is presented to the
Executive with any specific issues addressed through the Overview and Scrutiny
Committees.

At an operational level performance data is populated on the Council’s
performance system by relevant Directorates. Directors have responsibility for
ensuring that relevant data and commentaries are published on the system.
Directorate Management Teams also regularly considered their key performance
data, with associated commentary provided by Assistant Directors and/or Heads of
Service as appropriate.

The Head of Paid Service, Monitoring Officer and Chief Finance Officer also met
on a regular basis as statutory officers to consider and address any corporate
issues or matters of probity that may benefit from their collective input and
approach.

Annual Governance Statement 2016/17 — Submitted to Audit Committee - 29 June 2017
50f13



Agenda Item 10
Page 286

(3) Key Roles and Responsibilities

The Council’s Constitution sets out how the Council operates and sets out clearly
what matters are reserved to full Council and those powers which have been
delegated to committees and officers, Executive and Members.

Whilst the key roles and responsibilities will not change the format of the
Constitution has been reviewed by the Monitoring Officer to group relevant and
similar matters. The review will shortly be finalised.

(4) Codes of Conduct and standards of behaviour of Officers and
Members

Central Bedfordshire Council continues to promote high standards of ethical
governance. Complaints about the Council’'s Members is regularly reviewed via
the performance reports to CMT and bi-annually at General Purposes Committee
which has responsibility for overseeing the arrangements for the Code of Conduct.

The Council’s Ethical Handbook contains additional Codes relating to Gifts and
Hospitality, Planning and Licensing Good Practice, Confidential Reporting
(Whistleblowing) and guidance for Members on Property and Transactions and
Commercial Property Management.

(5) Decisions, processes and controls

The Scheme of Delegation within the Constitution sets out the powers delegated to
various Officers as well as the limits, processes and controls for those powers.

The Code of Financial Governance sets out the limits within which officers may
make decisions on spending, within the budget approved by the Council. The
Code is supported by detailed procedure rules which are maintained on the
Council’s intranet.

The Code of Procurement Governance defines the procurement process and
references the relevant levels of authority dependant upon financial thresholds.
The Code is supported by detailed procedure rules which are maintained on the
Council’s intranet. The rules are promoted to staff through bespoke training
courses. They are also embedded in a Procurement Tool Kit which is made
available to all members of staff who are involved in procurement, and is available
as an interactive version on the Intranet. A two page pictorial summary of the
rules is also made available.

The Council’s Risk Management Strategy and Policy Statement was updated and
approved by the Audit Committee in January 2016. The Strategic Risk register has
been regularly reviewed and refreshed during the year. CMT endorsed the Risk

Annual Governance Statement 2016/17 — Submitted to Audit Committee - 29 June 2017
6 of 13



Agenda Item 10
Page 287

Management Strategy and Policy Statement and have received regular risk reports
during the year, which have also been presented to the Audit Committee.

Committee reports require officers to set out the risk management considerations
in terms of current and potential risks and how they will be managed and mitigated.

(6) Audit Committee

The Audit Committee provides independent assurance of the adequacy of the
Council’s control environment and oversees the financial reporting process.

The Audit Committee met regularly during 2016/17, considering reports, including
the annual Internal Audit Report from the Chief Internal Auditor, the Council’s
Senior Finance Officers and the External Auditor as well as other officers as and
when appropriate. The Chair of the Audit Committee presents an annual report to
Council detailing the work of the Committee in the preceding year.

(7) Compliance with relevant laws and regulations

The Council continues to have access to a team of professional legal staff with
specialist knowledge of its functions via LGSS Law Itd, a firm wholly owned by the
Council, Cambridgeshire County Council and Northamptonshire County Council.
LGSS Law Itd have advised on relevant laws, regulations and constitutional issues
to ensure that the Council acts lawfully.

All reports considered by the Executive, the Council’s regulatory committees and
by Overview and Scrutiny Committees include advice on the legal implications and
risks of the proposed decisions. These reports are reviewed by a senior legal
adviser to ensure that the legal implications have been accurately reflected.

The Monitoring Officer or, as appropriate, a senior lawyer attends meetings of the
Council, the Executive and regulatory committees to advise on legal issues as they
arise.

(8) Whistle-blowing and complaints

The Confidential Reporting Policy was reviewed and updated in 2016/17 to reflect
changes to roles and responsibilities. The Anti-Fraud Strategy was due to be
reviewed during 2016/17 however the target date has been extended to December
17.

The Council welcomes feedback and has a three stage complaints process for
customers with separate statutory procedures for Children’s Services and Adult
Social Care.

Annual Governance Statement 2016/17 — Submitted to Audit Committee - 29 June 2017
7 of 13



Agenda Item 10
Page 288

(9) Development and Training for Officers and Members

We have offered a range of Learning and Development opportunities with a focus
on providing a wealth of on-demand resources (e-learning, webinars, e-books etc)
linked to the Corporate Vision, Values and Priorities. These are designed to
provide individuals with the skills to do their job and to support them and the
organisation in meeting their objectives and statutory requirements in the context of
the Council and local government.

The Member Development Programme has supported all Members and has
provided essential updates and training sessions.

(10) Channels of Communication

Central Bedfordshire Council has continued to enhance its communication with the
public, staff and other stakeholders during 2016/17. It has maintained presence on
social media and continued to provide the quarterly community magazine, and
weekly staff and Member bulletins.

The Council’'s website has been enhanced to ensure further engagement with the
public and proactive media relations have also ensured that Council decision
making and service developments are effectively reported to the media.

(11) Equality and Diversity

The Council has continued to promote equality of opportunity and eliminate
unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and foster good relations
during 2016/17. Equality Impact Assessments have been conducted for the
development of relevant strategies, policies and services and the Council’s
Equality Forum have been available to quality assure any significant Council
Strategies and Policies.

(12) Partnership governance

The Council’s Constitution includes a detailed Partnerships Protocol that sets out
the arrangements and principles for established and future public and private
sector partnerships.

The Protocol prescribes the key requirements to ensure accountability (internally
amongst partners and externally to communities), value for money, leadership,
decision-making, scrutiny and risk management.

All partnerships are required to have detailed terms of reference that fully set out
all of the arrangements and key partnerships review these on an annual basis to
ensure they are fit for purpose and aligned to the Partnership’s future work

Annual Governance Statement 2016/17 — Submitted to Audit Committee - 29 June 2017
8 of 13



Agenda Item 10
Page 289

programme.
(13) Internal Audit

The Internal Audit plan is prioritised by a combination of the key internal controls,
assessment and review on the basis of risk and the Council’s corporate
governance arrangements, including risk management. All Internal Audit reports
included an assessment of the adequacy of internal control and prioritised action
plans to address any identified weaknesses. These were submitted to Members,
Directors, Heads of Service and Head Teachers as appropriate.

The internal audit function is monitored and reviewed regularly by the Audit
Committee. The Committee also reviews progress in implementing high risk
recommendations made in audit reports.

A self assessment review is undertaken annually by the Head of Internal Audit and
Risk against compliance with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards 2013 on
the effectiveness of the Internal Audit function. No issues of concern were raised
as a result of these reviews. An independent external assessment was undertaken
by CIPFA during 2016/17, and the Internal Audit Team is fully compliant with the
Standards.

(14) Peer Review

The Council has carried out a number of peer reviews during the year, the latest of
which was an organisational wide review focusing on partnerships. Although
carried out in May 2017, and therefore strictly part of the 2017/18 report, it is worth
noting that a peer review took place, focussing in particular on:

Understanding of the local place and priority setting

Leadership of Place

Financial planning and viability

Organisational leadership and governance

Capacity to deliver

abhwd~

The draft findings will be included in next year’s report but two of the conclusions
were:
e Sound financial management which is well understood across the Council
and has allowed us to avoid some of the more draconian service reductions
that others have implemented.

e Strong partnership working in some contexts with a desire for even stronger
collaboration specifically on Central Bedfordshire specific issues.

Annual Governance Statement 2016/17 — Submitted to Audit Committee - 29 June 2017
90f 13



Agenda Item 10
Page 290

4.0 ANNUAL AUDIT REPORT FOR 2016/17

The Council's Head of Internal Audit submitted his opinion on the overall
adequacy and effectiveness of the Council’s internal control environment to the
Audit Committee on 29 June 2017. The Internal Audit work programme included
reviews of the fundamental financial systems and other assurance work on other
non fundamental systems.

The Head of Internal Audit reported that his opinion was that overall the Council’s
system of internal control, governance framework and risk management
arrangements were adequate. In general, the key controls in place were adequate
and effective such that reasonable assurance can be placed on the operation of
the Council’s functions.

Four of the fundamental system reviews received a Full Assurance audit opinion
and a further four have received an opinion of Adequate Assurance, only Swift
Financials received a Limited Opinion and it is expected that the all of the key
issues will be resolved as part of the coming software replacement or upgrade
project.

The majority of audit reviews of areas other than the fundamental systems have
received Adequate Assurance opinions. Where weaknesses in the current
processes have been identified actions have been agreed with management to
address these issues and Internal Audit has continued to track the
implementation of high priority recommendations throughout the year and report
to the Audit Committee.

Last year's Governance statement highlighted issues with the ICT Disaster
Recovery Plan. Since then ICT management is increasingly looking to cloud
services where feasible, which in addition to functionality improvement for end
users is considered to provide improved resilience and disaster recovery
procedures. The Audit Committee received direct assurance from ICT
management at the April 2017 meeting along with an updated Disaster Recovery
Plan. A follow up Internal Audit is currently in progress.

5.0 SIGNIFICANT GOVERNANCE ISSUES

In previous Annual Governance Statements certain significant governance issues
were identified and for the period 2015/16 were as follows:

e New EU Regulations relating to data protection will be effective as from
May 2018 and this will require updating of processes and procedures to
ensure compliance

Annual Governance Statement 2016/17 — Submitted to Audit Committee - 29 June 2017
10 of 13



Agenda Item 10
Page 291

e CIPFA/SOLACE have developed a new Good Governance in Local
Government 2016 Framework which will come into effect for 2016/17.

The first of these issues is ongoing and has been retained as a significant
governance issue as detailed below. In relation to the second the requirements in
the 2016 Framework have been implemented including the adoption of a new
Local Code of Corporate Governance.

For the period 2016/17 the significant governance issues which could impact the
Council are detailed below, together with the measures that the Council intends to
take to manage the risks associated with these issues.

¢ New EU Regulations relating to data protection will be effective as from
May 2018 and this will require updating of processes and procedures to
ensure compliance. The action plan for management of this issue
includes regular reviews of the Council’'s current and planned
compliance supported by legal advisors and an officer working group. A
programme for raising awareness and implementation of necessary
improvements has been commenced together with updates to CMT and
assurances are planned for Audit Committee. It is considered that this
approach will ensure that full compliance will be achieved by May 2018
and therefore it has not been entered onto the Strategic Risk Register

Central Bedfordshire does continue to face significant future challenges
arising from a significant reduction in Central Government funding. The
Council is mitigating this by being prudent in its medium term financial
plan and continues to consider longer term planning. A Certainty Deal
was agreed with the Government in October 2016 to fix the Revenue
Support Grant element of the funding settlement. The Council is
pursuing a significant transformation programme throughout the
organisation to ensure that modern, efficient and effective ways of
working are in place to support all service provision whilst continuing to
drive down costs and seek out appropriate opportunities. There is a
particular focus across the Council on the digitisation of services to
provide better customer access and enhance the customer experience.
Staff are being enabled to work in an agile manner, from any location.
Resources have been set aside to assist with the transformation
programme.

Where appropriate, significant governance issues are identified as part of the
Council’'s Strategic Risk Management regime, which is then subject to regular
monitoring by CMT to ensure appropriate mitigating action is taken.

Annual Governance Statement 2016/17 — Submitted to Audit Committee - 29 June 2017
11 0f 13



Agenda Item 10
Page 292

The following Strategic risks have an impact on governance:

e Failure to deliver major transformation programme within Children's
Services.

e Risk of failure to deliver community cohesion in the context of the
demographic growth in Central Bedfordshire. Some settlements will
experience considerable expansion and we need to manage potential
resentment, secure equal access to facilities and enhance a sense of
community.

e Fragility of Partners/Failure of Partners: Central Bedfordshire's vision
cannot be delivered in isolation. All partners, including Police,
Probation, Health, the Voluntary Community Sector, independent care
providers and Town and Parish Councils are experiencing significant
changes and pressures. These include budgetary pressures, transfer of
responsibilities, geographical factors, confusing accountabilities,
increasing complexities, fragility and volatility. There is an increased
risk that services to our public will be compromised and that increased
costs will fall on the Council.

e The political and economic uncertainty around potential changes in
laws, regulations, government policy or funding arising from the UK
leaving the European Union and other significant international events,
which may impact on Council objectives.

e The capacity of the Council to deliver services in the light of the scale of
the efficiencies we need to make, taking account of the increasing
importance of our income from NNDR, the impact of changes to HRA
financing and the anticipated transfer of new responsibilities to councils
without the concomitant funding, such as the administration of
attendance allowances.

Also reflects the impacts of shifts in Government policy, for example, the
impact of the move towards Academies.

e Failure to deliver the Organisational Development Plan.

6.0 COMPLIANCE WITH CIPFA CODE OF PRACTICE ON MANAGING THE
RISK OF FRAUD AND CORRUPTION

To help Councils recognise and address their fraud risks, CIPFA published a Code
of Practice on Managing the Risk of Fraud and Corruption in December 2014. This
sets out five principles that organisations should adhere to:

e Acknowledge responsibility

Annual Governance Statement 2016/17 — Submitted to Audit Committee - 29 June 2017
12 of 13



Agenda Item 10
Page 293

Identify risks
Develop a Strategy
Provide resources
Take action

The Code includes a requirement for organisations to include a statement within
their Annual Governance Statement about their adherence to this Code. A detailed
review of the Council’'s arrangements against the Code has been undertaken to
address any gaps identified and action has been taken to address any issues
identified. The Confidential Reporting Policy has been updated to support
compliance with the Code. There is an annual report to the Audit Committee on
the Council’s anti-fraud work.

Having considered all the principles, we are satisfied that, subject to the actions
identified below, the organisation has adopted a response that is appropriate for its
fraud and corruption risks and commits to maintain its vigilance to tackle fraud.

Action: Responsibility: Target Date:

To finalise the review of | Chief Finance Officer End December 2017
the Anti Fraud and
Corruption Strategy to
support compliance with
the Code.

7.0 CONCLUSION

This statement has been produced as a result of a review of the effectiveness of
the governance framework in place during 2016/17 and has been approved by the
Council’'s Audit Committee.

Overall, the arrangements continue to be regarded as fit for purpose in accordance
with the governance framework. The Council proposes to take steps over the
coming year to address the above matters to further enhance our governance
arrangements. We are satisfied that these steps will address the need for
improvements that were identified in the review of effectiveness and will monitor
their implementation and operation as part of our next annual review.

J JAMIESON R CARR
LEADER OF THE COUNCIL CHIEF EXECUTIVE
Dated Dated

Annual Governance Statement 2016/17 — Submitted to Audit Committee - 29 June 2017
13 0f 13



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 10
Page 295

Appendix B

CENTRAL BEDFORDSHIRE COUNCIL

ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 2016/17

1.0 SCOPE OF RESPONSIBILITY

Central Bedfordshire Council is responsible for ensuring that its business is
conducted in accordance with the law and proper standards, and that public money
is safeguarded and properly accounted for, and used economically, efficiently and
effectively.

The Council also has a duty under the Local Government Act 1999 to make
arrangements to secure continuous improvements in the way in which its functions
are exercised having regard to a combination of economy, efficiency and
effectiveness.

In discharging this overall responsibility, the Council is responsible for putting in
place proper arrangements for the governance of its affairs and facilitating the
effective exercise of its functions, including arrangements for the management of
risk.

Central Bedfordshire Council has adopted a Code of Corporate Governance, which
is consistent with the principles of the CIPFA/SOLACE Framework Delivering Good
Governance in Local Government. A copy of this code is on our website
www.centralbedfordshire.gov.uk.

This statement explains how the Council has complied with national good practice
guidance and meets the requirements of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015
in relation to the publication of a statement on internal control.

2.0 THE GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK
2.1 The purpose of the governance framework

The governance framework is made up of the systems, processes, culture and
values by which the authority directs and controls its activities and through which it
engages with and leads the community. The framework enables the authority to
monitor the achievement of its strategic priorities and to consider whether those
priorities have led to the delivery of appropriate services and value for money. The
governance framework is described in the Code of Corporate Governance.

Annual Governance Statement 2015/16 — Submitted to Audit Committee - 29 June 2016

1of 14



Agenda Item 10
Page 296

The system of internal control is a significant part of the corporate framework and
is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level. It cannot eliminate all risk of
failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives and can therefore only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal
control is based on an ongoing process designed to identify and prioritise risks to
the achievement of the Council's policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the
likelihood of those risks being realised, the impact should they be realised and to
manage them efficiently, effectively and economically.

The governance framework has been in place at Central Bedfordshire Council for
the year ended 31 March 2017 and up to the date of the approval of the statement
of accounts.

This section of the Annual Governance Statement describes the key elements of
the systems and processes that make up the authority’'s governance
arrangements.

2.2 The Governance Framework

The Council’s governance framework contributes to the delivery of the Council’s
vision and values and the key elements of the processes and systems that
comprise the framework are as follows:

e Strategic leadership provided by Members including the development and
review of the Council’s visions, priorities and values. These detail the
Council’s vision of its purpose and intended outcomes for residents and
service users to all;

e Key policies are defined in the “Policy Framework” within the Budget and
Policy Framework Procedure Rules in the Council's Constitution. This
framework is reviewed periodically to ensure it remains fit for purpose
strategically and that it is aligned to corporate priorities;

e Business planning processes which ensure that services are delivered in
line with the Council’s vision and values and representing the best use of all
Council resources;

e Measuring performance and achievement of objectives through the
mechanism of the Council’s performance management system,;

e A written Constitution specifying the roles and responsibilities of elected
Members and Officers with protocols for effective communication;

e The Council has adopted arrangements to promote high standards of ethical
governance and includes Codes of Conduct defining the standards of
behaviour for both Members and Officers and a Member/Officer Protocol as
part of the Constitution. Further guidance is provided in the Council’s
Ethical Handbook;

e The Schemes of Delegation to Members and Officers within the Constitution
sets out the principles, processes and controls for decision makers. Codes

Annual Governance Statement 2016/17 — Submitted to Audit Committee - 29 June 2017
20f 14



Agenda Item 10
Page 297

of Financial and Procurement Governance set out the constraints within
which Officers may work and these Codes are supported by more detailed
procedure rules;

e Embedded internal systems to ensure Members are presented with the
appropriate information to make decisions, including corporate implications
with advice on legal, risk management and financial considerations.
Member level decisions are based on reports and are recorded,;

¢ An Audit Committee to provide independent assurance of the adequacy of
the risk management framework and the associated control environment,
independent scrutiny of the Authority’s financial and non-financial
performance to the extent that it affects the Authority’s exposure to risk and
weakens the control environment, and to oversee the financial reporting
process;

e Statutory Officers to support and monitor the Council’'s governance
arrangements, ensure compliance with relevant laws and regulations,
internal policies and procedures and that expenditure is lawful;

e Policies for confidential reporting (whistleblowing) and an Anti-Fraud
Strategy are in place to support the governance within the Council. There is
a corporate complaints process with separate procedures for Children’s
Services and Adult Social Care where complaints procedures are governed
by Regulations. There are also formal processes for registering complaints
in respect of the Council's Housing Landlord functions and for receiving,
evaluating and investigating complaints against Members;

e A consultation strategy to ensure the Council consults with and engages the
diverse communities of Central Bedfordshire, allowing them to input to the
planning of services provided for them and the review of those services as
appropriate;

e A system of Overview and Scrutiny Committees with responsibility for key
areas and who receive reports on keys issues including budget monitoring,
performance and efficiency information and provides independent checks
and balances on the exercise of functions and responsibilities by the
Council.

3.0 REVIEW OF EFFECTIVENESS

Central Bedfordshire Council has responsibility for conducting, at least annually, a
review of effectiveness of its governance framework including the system of
internal control. The review of effectiveness is informed by the work of the
Corporate Management Team, which has responsibility for the development and
maintenance of the governance environment, the Head of Internal Audit’'s annual
report, and also by comments made by the external auditors and other review
agencies and inspectorates.

The Council continues to assess how its overall corporate governance
responsibilities are discharged.

Annual Governance Statement 2016/17 — Submitted to Audit Committee - 29 June 2017
3of 14



Agenda Item 10
Page 298

The Council’s review of the Governance Framework and the effectiveness of the
system of internal control comprise:

e Reviews of the Governance Framework and internal control in
accordance with CIPFA Guidance carried out by Internal Audit on an
annual basis, including consideration of the Council’'s financial
management arrangements conforming with the CIPFA statements on
the role of the Chief Financial Officer in Local Government and the role
of the Chief Internal Auditor in Public Service Organisations; In early
2017 a complete review and redraft of the Council’s Code of Corporate
Governance by Internal Audit and the Monitoring Officer to reflect new
guidance issued by CIPFA/Solace in 2016, “Delivering Good
Governance in Local Government Framework”;

e Annual report and opinion on the Internal Control environment prepared
by the Head of Internal Audit and Risk’. This report draws on the
outcome of audit reviews undertaken throughout 2016/17 and is
informed by the comments of external auditors and inspectors. The
report is designed to provide assurance on the effectiveness of internal
controls;

e The completion of self-assurance statements by directors;

o the work undertaken by the external auditor reported in their annual audit
and inspection letter.

e other work undertaken by independent inspection bodies.

(1) Central Bedfordshire Council’s Vision

The Council’s overall objective is to create Central Bedfordshire as a “great place
to live and work” and the Council's medium term plan identifies the following
priorities:

Enhancing Central Bedfordshire.

Great residence services.

Improving education and skills.

Protecting the vulnerable and improving wellbeing.
Creating stronger communities.

An efficient and responsive Council.

The Council’s Budget and Policy Framework contains specific plans, policies and
strategies driving delivery of the Council's priorities and key work programmes.

! The role of Chief Internal Auditor within Central Bedfordshire Council is undertaken by the Head of
Internal Audit and Risk

Annual Governance Statement 2016/17 — Submitted to Audit Committee - 29 June 2017
4 0of 14



Agenda Item 10
Page 299

The Council has adopted a set of organisational values that describe the type of
organisation we want to be and the principles that will guide us in achieving our
priorities and vision. These set out the way the Council will work and interact with
its customers, members and staff.

The Council’s values are:

Respect and Empowerment
— we will treat people as individuals who matter to us.

Stewardship and Efficiencies
— we will make the best use of the resources available to us.

Results Focused
— we will focus on the outcomes that make a difference to people’s lives, and

Collaborative
— we will work closely with our colleagues, partners and customers to deliver
on these outcomes.

(2) Service Quality

The Council has used regular performance reporting to ensure a sustained focus
on those things that matter most to local people.

At a strategic level, the Corporate Management Team (CMT) reviews reports on
the performance of the Council on a monthly basis. CMT also reviews the MTP
progress or status report on a quarterly basis. This report is presented to the
Executive with any specific issues addressed through the Overview and Scrutiny
Committees.

At an operational level performance data is populated on the Council’s
performance system by relevant Directorates. Directors have responsibility for
ensuring that relevant data and commentaries are published on the system.
Directorate Management Teams also regularly considered their key performance
data, with associated commentary provided by Assistant Directors and/or Heads of
Service as appropriate.

The Head of Paid Service, Monitoring Officer and Chief Finance Officer also met
on a regular basis as statutory officers to consider and address any corporate
issues or matters of probity that may benefit from their collective input and
approach.

Annual Governance Statement 2016/17 — Submitted to Audit Committee - 29 June 2017
5o0f 14



Agenda Item 10
Page 300

(3) Key Roles and Responsibilities

The Council's Constitution sets out how the Council operates and sets out clearly
what matters are reserved to full Council and those powers which have been
delegated to committees and officers, Executive and Members.

Whilst the key roles and responsibilities will not change the format of the
Constitution has been reviewed by the Monitoring Officer to group relevant and
similar matters. The review will shortly be finalised.

(4) Codes of Conduct and standards of behaviour of Officers and
Members

Central Bedfordshire Council continues to promote high standards of ethical
governance. Complaints about the Council’'s Members is regularly reviewed via
the performance reports to CMT and bi-annually at General Purposes Committee
which has responsibility for overseeing the arrangements for the Code of Conduct.

The Council’'s Ethical Handbook contains additional Codes relating to Gifts and
Hospitality, Planning and Licensing Good Practice, Confidential Reporting
(Whistleblowing) and guidance for Members on Property and Transactions and
Commercial Property Management.

(5) Decisions, processes and controls

The Scheme of Delegation within the Constitution sets out the powers delegated to
various Officers as well as the limits, processes and controls for those powers.

The Code of Financial Governance sets out the limits within which officers may
make decisions on spending, within the budget approved by the Council. The
Code is supported by detailed procedure rules which are maintained on the
Council’s intranet.

The Code of Procurement Governance defines the procurement process and
references the relevant levels of authority dependant upon financial thresholds.
The Code is supported by detailed procedure rules which are maintained on the
Council’s intranet. The rules are promoted to staff through bespoke training
courses. They are also embedded in a Procurement Tool Kit which is made
available to all members of staff who are involved in procurement, and is available
as an interactive version on the Intranet. A two page pictorial summary of the
rules is also made available.

The Council's Risk Management Strategy and Policy Statement was updated and
approved by the Audit Committee in January 2016. The Strategic Risk register has
been regularly reviewed and refreshed during the year. CMT endorsed the Risk

Annual Governance Statement 2016/17 — Submitted to Audit Committee - 29 June 2017
6 of 14



Agenda Item 10
Page 301

Management Strategy and Policy Statement and have received regular risk reports
during the year, which have also been presented to the Audit Committee.

Committee reports require officers to set out the risk management considerations
in terms of current and potential risks and how they will be managed and mitigated.

(6) Audit Committee

The Audit Committee provides independent assurance of the adequacy of the
Council’'s control environment and oversees the financial reporting process.

The Audit Committee met regularly during 2016/17, considering reports, including
the annual Internal Audit Report from the Chief Internal Auditor, the Council’s
Senior Finance Officers and the External Auditor as well as other officers as and
when appropriate. The Chair of the Audit Committee presents an annual report to
Council detailing the work of the Committee in the preceding year.

(7) Compliance with relevant laws and regulations

The Council continues to have access to a team of professional legal staff with
specialist knowledge of its functions via LGSS Law Itd, a firm wholly owned by the
Council, Cambridgeshire County Council and Northamptonshire County Council.
LGSS Law Itd have advised on relevant laws, regulations and constitutional issues
to ensure that the Council acts lawfully.

All reports considered by the Executive, the Council’s regulatory committees and
by Overview and Scrutiny Committees include advice on the legal implications and
risks of the proposed decisions. These reports are reviewed by a senior legal
adviser to ensure that the legal implications have been accurately reflected.

The Monitoring Officer or, as appropriate, a senior lawyer attends meetings of the
Council, the Executive and regulatory committees to advise on legal issues as they
arise.

(8) Whistle-blowing and complaints

The Confidential Reporting Policy was reviewed and updated in 2016/17 to reflect
changes to roles and responsibilities. The Anti-Fraud Strategy was due to be
reviewed during 2016/17 however the target date has been extended to December
17.

The Council welcomes feedback and has a three stage complaints process for
customers with separate statutory procedures for Children’s Services and Adult
Social Care.

Annual Governance Statement 2016/17 — Submitted to Audit Committee - 29 June 2017
7 of 14



Agenda Item 10
Page 302

(9) Development and Training for Officers and Members

We have offered a range of Learning and Development opportunities with a focus
on providing a wealth of on-demand resources (e-learning, webinars, e-books etc)
linked to the Corporate Vision, Values and Priorities. These are designed to
provide individuals with the skills to do their job and to support them and the
organisation in meeting their objectives and statutory requirements in the context of
the Council and local government.

The Member Development Programme has supported all Members and has
provided essential updates and training sessions.

(20) Channels of Communication

Central Bedfordshire Council has continued to enhance its communication with the
public, staff and other stakeholders during 2016/17. It has maintained presence on
social media and continued to provide the quarterly community magazine, and
weekly staff and Member bulletins.

The Council's website has been enhanced to ensure further engagement with the
public and proactive media relations have also ensured that Council decision
making and service developments are effectively reported to the media.

(12) Equality and Diversity

The Council has continued to promote equality of opportunity and eliminate
unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and foster good relations
during 2016/17. Equality Impact Assessments have been conducted for the
development of relevant strategies, policies and services and the Council’s
Equality Forum have been available to quality assure any significant Council
Strategies and Policies.

(22) Partnership governance

The Council’'s Constitution includes a detailed Partnerships Protocol that sets out
the arrangements and principles for established and future public and private
sector partnerships.

The Protocol prescribes the key requirements to ensure accountability (internally
amongst partners and externally to communities), value for money, leadership,
decision-making, scrutiny and risk management.

All partnerships are required to have detailed terms of reference that fully set out
all of the arrangements and key partnerships review these on an annual basis to
ensure they are fit for purpose and aligned to the Partnership’s future work

Annual Governance Statement 2016/17 — Submitted to Audit Committee - 29 June 2017
8 of 14



Agenda Item 10
Page 303

programme.
(13) Internal Audit

The Internal Audit plan is prioritised by a combination of the key internal controls,
assessment and review on the basis of risk and the Council’'s corporate
governance arrangements, including risk management. All Internal Audit reports
included an assessment of the adequacy of internal control and prioritised action
plans to address any identified weaknesses. These were submitted to Members,
Directors, Heads of Service and Head Teachers as appropriate.

The internal audit function is monitored and reviewed regularly by the Audit
Committee. The Committee also reviews progress in implementing high risk
recommendations made in audit reports.

A self assessment review is undertaken annually by the Head of Internal Audit and
Risk against compliance with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards 2013 on
the effectiveness of the Internal Audit function. No issues of concern were raised
as a result of these reviews. An independent external assessment was undertaken
by CIPFA during 2016/17, and the Internal Audit Team is fully compliant with the
Standards.

(24) Peer Review

The Council has carried out a number of peer reviews during the year, the latest of
which was an organisational wide review focusing on partnerships. Although
carried out in May 2017, and therefore strictly part of the 2017/18 report, it is worth
noting that a peer review took place, focussing in particular on:

Understanding of the local place and priority setting

Leadership of Place

Financial planning and viability

Organisational leadership and governance

Capacity to deliver

GhwbdE

The draft findings will be included in next year’s report but two of the conclusions
were:
e Sound financial management which is well understood across the Council
and has allowed us to avoid some of the more draconian service reductions
that others have implemented.

e Strong partnership working in some contexts with a desire for even stronger
collaboration specifically on Central Bedfordshire specific issues.

Annual Governance Statement 2016/17 — Submitted to Audit Committee - 29 June 2017
9of 14



Agenda Item 10
Page 304

4.0 ANNUAL AUDIT REPORT FOR 2016/17

The Council's Head of Internal Audit submitted his opinion on the overall
adequacy and effectiveness of the Council’s internal control environment to the
Audit Committee on 29 June 2017. The Internal Audit work programme included
reviews of the fundamental financial systems and other assurance work on other
non fundamental systems.

The Head of Internal Audit reported that his opinion was that overall the Council’s
system of internal control, governance framework and risk management
arrangements were adequate. In general, the key controls in place were adequate
and effective such that reasonable assurance can be placed on the operation of
the Council’s functions.

Four of the fundamental system reviews received a Full Assurance audit opinion
and a further four have received an opinion of Adequate Assurance, only Swift
Financials received a Limited Opinion and it is expected that the all of the key
issues will be resolved as part of the coming software replacement or upgrade
project.

The majority of audit reviews of areas other than the fundamental systems have
received Adequate Assurance opinions. Where weaknesses in the current
processes have been identified actions have been agreed with management to
address these issues and Internal Audit has continued to track the
implementation of high priority recommendations throughout the year and report
to the Audit Committee.

Last year's Governance statement highlighted issues with the ICT Disaster
Recovery Plan. Since then ICT management is increasingly looking to cloud
services where feasible, which in addition to functionality improvement for end
users is considered to provide improved resilience and disaster recovery
procedures. The Audit Committee received direct assurance from ICT
management at the April 2017 meeting along with an updated Disaster Recovery
Plan. A follow up Internal Audit is currently in progress.

5.0 SIGNIFICANT GOVERNANCE ISSUES

In previous Annual Governance Statements certain_significant governance issues
were identified and for the period 2015/16 were as follows:

e New EU Regulations relating to data protection will be effective as from
May 2018 and this will require updating of processes and procedures to
ensure compliance

Annual Governance Statement 2016/17 — Submitted to Audit Committee - 29 June 2017
10 of 14



Agenda Iltem 10
Page 305

e CIPFA/SOLACE have developed a new Good Governance in Local
Government 2016 Framework which will come into effect for 2016/17.

The first of these issues is ongoing and has been retained as a significant
governance issue as detailed below. In relation to the second the requirements in
the 2016 Framework have been implemented including the adoption of a new
Local Code of Corporate Governance.

For the period 2016/17 the significant governance issues which could impact the
Council are detailed belowhave-been-identified, together with the measures that
the Council intends to take to manage the risks associated with these issues.

R T

e New EU Regulations relating to data protection will be effective as from
May 2018 and this will require updating of processes and procedures to
ensure compliance. The action plan for management of this issue
includes reqular reviews of the Council's current and planned
compliance supported by legal advisors and an officer working group. A
programme for raising awareness and implementation of necessary
improvements has been commenced together with updates to CMT and
assurances are planned for Audit Committee. It is considered that this
approach will ensure that full compliance will be achieved by May 2018
and therefore it has not been entered onto the Strateqic Risk Reqgister

Central Bedfordshire does continue to face significant future challenges
arising from a significant reduction in Central Government funding. The
Council is mitigating this by being has-been prudent in its medium term
financial plan and_continues to consider longer term planning. A
Certainty Deal was agreed with the Government in October 2016 to fix
the Revenue Support Grant element of the funding settlement. The
Council is pursuing a significant transformation programme throughout
the organisation to ensure that modern, efficient and effective ways of
working are in place to support all service provision whilst continuing to
drive down costs and seek out appropriate opportunities. There is a
particular focus across the Council on the digitisation of services to
provide better customer access and enhance the customer experience.
Staff arerd being enabled to work in an agile manner, from any location.
Resources have been set aside to assist with the transformation

programme.

Annual Governance Statement 2016/17 — Submitted to Audit Committee - 29 June 2017
11 of 14



Agenda Item 10
Page 306

Where appropriate, significant governance issues are identified as part of the
Council's Strategic Risk Management regime, which is then subject to regular
monitoring by CMT to ensure appropriate mitigating action is taken.

The Strategic-Risk-Register-also-identifies-the-following_Strategic risks-which have

an impact on governance:

e Failure to deliver major transformation programme within Children's
Services.

e Risk of failure to deliver community cohesion in the context of the
demographic growth in Central Bedfordshire. Some settlements will
experience considerable expansion and we need to manage potential
resentment, secure equal access to facilities and enhance a sense of
community.

e Fragility of Partners/Failure of Partners: Central Bedfordshire's vision
cannot be delivered in isolation. All partners, including Police,
Probation, Health, the Voluntary Community Sector, independent care
providers and Town and Parish Councils are experiencing significant
changes and pressures. These include budgetary pressures, transfer of
responsibilities, geographical factors, confusing accountabilities,
increasing complexities, fragility and volatility. There is an increased
risk that services to our public will be compromised and that increased
costs will fall on the Council.

e The political and economic uncertainty around potential changes in
laws, regulations, government policy or funding arising from the UK
leaving the European Union and other significant international events,
which may impact on Council objectives.

e The capacity of the Council to deliver services in the light of the scale of
the efficiencies we need to make, taking account of the increasing
importance of our income from NNDR, the impact of changes to HRA
financing and the anticipated transfer of new responsibilities to councils
without the concomitant funding, such as the administration of
attendance allowances.

Also reflects the impacts of shifts in Government policy, for example, the
impact of the move towards Academies.

e Failure to deliver the Organisational Development Plan.

Annual Governance Statement 2016/17 — Submitted to Audit Committee - 29 June 2017
12 of 14



Agenda Item 10
Page 307

6.0 COMPLIANCE WITH CIPFA CODE OF PRACTICE ON MANAGING THE
RISK OF FRAUD AND CORRUPTION

To help Councils recognise and address their fraud risks, CIPFA published a Code
of Practice on Managing the Risk of Fraud and Corruption in December 2014. This
sets out five principles that organisations should adhere to:

Acknowledge responsibility
Identify risks

Develop a Strategy
Provide resources

Take action

The Code includes a requirement for organisations to include a statement within
their Annual Governance Statement about their adherence to this Code. A detailed
review of the Council’s arrangements against the Code has been undertaken to
address any gaps identified and action has been taken to address any issues
identified. The Confidential Reporting Policy has been updated to support
compliance with the Code. There is an annual report to the Audit Committee on
the Council’s anti-fraud work.

Having considered all the principles, we are satisfied that, subject to the actions
identified below, the organisation has adopted a response that is appropriate for its
fraud and corruption risks and commits to maintain its vigilance to tackle fraud.

Action: Responsibility: Target Date:

To finalise the review of | Chief Finance Officer End December 2017
the Anti Fraud and
Corruption Strategy to
support compliance with
the Code.

7.0 CONCLUSION

This statement has been produced as a result of a review of the effectiveness of
the governance framework in place during 2016/17 and has been approved by the
Council’'s Audit Committee.

Overall, the arrangements continue to be regarded as fit for purpose in accordance
with the governance framework. The Council proposes to take steps over the
coming year to address the above matters to further enhance our governance

Annual Governance Statement 2016/17 — Submitted to Audit Committee - 29 June 2017
13 of 14



Agenda Item 10
Page 308

arrangements. We are satisfied that these steps will address the need for
improvements that were identified in the review of effectiveness and will monitor
their implementation and operation as part of our next annual review.

J JAMIESON R CARR
LEADER OF THE COUNCIL CHIEF EXECUTIVE
Dated Dated

Annual Governance Statement 2016/17 — Submitted to Audit Committee - 29 June 2017
14 of 14



Agenda ltem 11
Page 309

Central Bedfordshire Council

AUDIT COMMITTEE 27t September 2017

Risk Update Report

Report of Charles Warboys, Director of Resources
(charles.warboys@centralbedfordshire.gov.uk)

Contact Officer: Clint Horne, Head of Internal Audit and Risk
(clint.horne@centralbedfordshire.gov.uk)

Purpose of this report:
The purpose of this report is to give an overview of the Council’s risk position
as at August 2017.

RECOMMENDATIONS
The Committee is asked to:

1. Consider and comment on the contents of the report.

Overview and Scrutiny Comments/Recommendations

1. This report is not scheduled to be considered by Overview and Scrutiny,
as this is the responsibility of the Audit Committee.

Background

2. The Terms of Reference of the Audit Committee include the monitoring of
the operation of the Risk Management Strategy. This report is the regular
update report to assist the Committee in discharging its responsibilities.

3. The purpose of this report is to give an overview of the Council’s risk
position as at August 2017.

Strategic Risks

4. As stated in the June update, CMT tasked for a full review and refresh of
the Strategic Risk Register in time for the next quarterly update. Therefore
all risks in the Strategic Risk Register have been reviewed and updated in
consultation with individual Risk Owners, Directorate Risk Co-ordinators
and then subsequently CMT together. This report provides an update on
the risks currently contained within the register.

5. Given the scale of changes, full details are not included within this report
but the full Strategic Risk report has been included at Appendix B. The
report now contains fourteen strategic risks.


mailto:charles.warboys@centralbedfordshire.gov.uk
mailto:clint.horne@centralbedfordshire.gov.uk

Agenda ltem 11
Page 310

6. Since the June update three risks have been removed, two being
sufficiently covered by other existing risks and the third swapped for a new
risk. These are:

‘STR0019 — failure to deliver effective and cohesive health and social care
to residents’ with risk ‘STR0O009 - Fragility / Failure of Partners’ being
considered sufficient alone.

‘STR0031 - The capacity of the Council to deliver services in the light of
further shifts in Government Policy,” this is considered to overlap with the
consequences of ‘STR0001 - Continuing significant reduction in or
redirection of funding due to Central Government cuts, or loss of grant or
other funding e.g. Health funding, Schools' Finance Regulations.’

‘STR0034 — Failure to Deliver the organisational development plan’ has
been replaced with a new wider ranging risk ‘STR0041 - Failure to enact
the changes we seek to move the organisation forward.” With risk
STR0034 moving onto the operational risk register managed at the
Resources Directorate level.

7. Many risks have been updated as to their Description, Mitigating Actions
Already Underway and Further Action Planned fields. The changes are
shown in a track changes format on the Risk Register at Appendix B, with
the above deleted risks marked grey.

8. In an effort to improve transparency for the risks with multiple risk owners,
some initial efforts have been made to more clearly show responsibility for
both existing mitigation and planned mitigation. It is hoped to continue to
progress this for subsequent updates.

9. Two risks (STR0036 & STR0001) have revised their residual risk scores
down, each moving from 16 to 12 based on the likelihood score being
revised from a 4 to a 3 after further consideration of the mitigating actions
already in place or underway.

Operational Risks

10. Operational risks have been omitted from this update pending a more
detailed review of processes to ensure that this continues to be fit for
purpose.

Emerging Risks

11.As previously mentioned a new replacement risk has been added to the
register; ‘STR0041 - Failure to enact the changes we seek to move the
organisation forward.’
Additionally, the Information Governance risk (STR0013) has also been
updated to reflect the General Data Protection Regulations (GDPR) which
are applicable from May 2018.



Agenda ltem 11
Page 311

Council Priorities

12.Good risk management enables delivery of the Council’s aims and
objectives. Good risk management ensures that we adopt a planned and
systematic approach to the identification and control of the risks that
threaten the delivery of objectives, protection of assets, or the financial
wellbeing of the Council.

Corporate Implications

Legal Implications

13.None directly from this report.

Financial Implications

14.None directly from this report.

Equalities Implications

15.None directly from this report.

Conclusion and next Steps

16.Internal Audit and Risk will continue to coordinate and update the
Strategic Risk register and an update will be presented to the next Audit
Committee.

Appendices

Appendix A — September 2017 Strategic Risk summary dashboard.
Appendix B — September 2017 Strategic Risk Register

Background Papers

None.



This page is intentionally left blank



August 2017

# Reference

Strategic Risk Dashboard

May

2016/17

Aug

Dec

Mar

2017/18

June

Aug

1|STR0O035 Failure to deliver major transformation programme within Children's Services.
2|STR0O032 Unsustainable market for social care.
3|STR0027 Failure to adopt a Local Plan and Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) .
4[STR0O001 Continuing significant reduction in or redirection of funding due to Central Government
cuts, or loss of grant or other funding e.g. Health funding, Schools' Finance Regulations.
5[STRO009 Fragility / Failure of partners compromising public services and increasing costs to the
Council
6|STR0O036 Failure to deliver social cohesion.
7|STR0O037 Failure to support vulnerable people and families, which results in higher demand for
more intensive services.
8[STR0O039 Failure to manage demand for rented and specialist accommodation as a consequence
of constrained housing supply.
9[STR0O040 Political and economic uncertainty arising from UK leaving EU and other significant
international events.
10[STRO038 Ineffective partnership response to Emergency Planning.
11|STRO008 Failure or disruption to key elements of core infrastructure (data centre, environment
and networks) leading to no functionality for more than 24 hours.
12|STR0O013 Information Management: a lack of consistent information management and data
accuracy across the organisation and the risk of non compliance with the Data
Protection Act / (GDPR from May 2018).
13|STR0O033 The impact of cyber crime.
14|STR0O041 Failure to enact the changes we seek to move the organisation forward.

STRO0019 Failure to Deliver effective and
cohesive Health and Social Care to local
Residents' has been subsumed into
'STRO009 Failure / Fragility of Partners
compromising public services and
increasing costs to the Council.'

There are three joint scoring highest
residual risks:

'STRO035 - Failure to deliver major
transformation programme within Children's
Services',

'STR0032 - Unsustainable market for social
care’,

'STR0027 - Failure to adopt a Local Plan
and Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) .'

Two risks (STR0001 & STR0036) have had
their residual scored revised down each
from 16 to 12, based on their likelihood
scores moving from 4 to 3 as a result of the
mitigation already in place for those risks.

A new risk has been added:
'STRO041 - Failure to enact the changes we
seek to move the organisation forward.'

Appendix A

Information security classification: UNCLASSIFIED

cT¢ abed

TT Way epusby


ManningL01_4
Text Box
Appendix A



This page is intentionally left blank



Risk Ref

Risk
Owner

Risk Manager

Risk
Review
Date

Inherent

Likelihood

Exposure

Nature of Risk

Description

Central Bedfordshire Council - Strategic Risk Register

Consequences

Mitigating Actions Already Underway

Residual

Likelihood

Exposure

Status
Change
Since
Last
Report

Appendix B

Target Further Action Planned or Other Comments
Residual
Risk

Exposure

Continue with current mitigations.

Architectural review of core infrastructure

Development of roadmaps for core ICT systems

Explore further opportunities to source expertise from third parties
Participate in corporate approach to business continuity planning to
minimise impact of IT failure or disruption

Installation of additional lines to provide resilience in the event of an

Target for completion Feb 2017.
Data Centres being configured to a more highly secure configuration.

STRO001 Charles Charles Aug 2017 5 Financial/ Significant reduction in  |Continuing financial pressures due to 1. Financial loss - There is robust monthly reviews of budgets including the 3
Warboys Warboys Economic or redirection of Central Government cuts, or loss of grant |2. Pressures on CBC Budgets proposed savings
funding/lack of certainty |or other funding (e.g. Council Tax 3. Reputational damage - The EIG (Efficiencies Implementation Group) meets monthly to

Support, Business Rates Retention, New |4. Non delivery/ reduction of services review progress of proposed savings

Homes Bonus). and/or reduction in reserves to fund - Four Year Settlement in place

£15.2m savings planned for 2017/18. services - The Certainty Deal (gives certainty re RSG settlement)

With the switch of funding streams to 5. Difficulties in planning ahead - Increase in Council Tax

other bodies, there is also a risk of failing - Social Care Levy introduced

to exert appropriate influence on decision - Four Year settlement in place.

making bodies who are receiving - Ensure that compensatory savings are found where savings are

redirected funding e.g. SEMLEP. not delivered through the above

With the introduction of pooled funding - Build up of earmarked and general reserves to act as a short

for Better Care Plans there is a risk of term buffer (including New Homes Bonus)

failing to deliver the required objectives. - Robust MTFP, forecasting, and increasing focus on long term

There is a potential risk of clawback horizon

arising from the introduction of - Establish good partnership working with all relevant bodies

integrated budgets within NHS. - Ensure CBC has representation on appropriate boards e.g.

Additional responsibilities may be SEMLEP, Police

transferred to local government without - Responding to consultations

adequate additional resources. - Networking

General uncertainty around future - Longer term planning

government policies e.g.

¢ Impact of New Living Wage J

¢ Impact of Continuing Healthcare

decisions on both Children and Adults

e |ssues relating to Housing Need,

including Homelessness and Social

Housing Rents

eCertain Loss of RSG

eImpact of change in Business Rate

Retention

eBetter Care Fund

* Risks/opportunities arising as a result of

the recent "Brexit" referendum, including

uncertainty over future European funding

*NHS changes may result in significant

cost shunting.

STRO008 Stephan Stephan Aug 2017 51| 4 ICT Systems ICT Failure Failure or disruption to key parts of the  [1. Loss of business critical systems A full report has been commissioned by an external provider to 2
Conaway Conaway Council's ICT systems as a result of but 2. Poor performance review current CBC infrastructure.

not limited to: 3. Reduced customer service Recommendations have been received; these are being

1. Complexity of ICT 4. Loss of data considered for deployment.

2. Dependence on third parties 5. Reduced staff motivation

3. In-house capacity and capability 6. Reputational damage Consideration is being given to disaster recovery and ensuring ©
7. Inefficiency that systems/procedures are robust and ICT failures are

minimised.
1of6 Strategic Risk Register Aug 2017

outage and to provide greater load balancing across CBC infrastructure.

Information security classification: OFFICIAL

GTE obed

TT Way epusby



Risk Ref

Risk
Owner

Risk Manager

Risk
Review
Date

Inherent

IN Likelihood

Exposure

Nature of Risk

Description

Central Bedfordshire Council - Strategic Risk Register

Consequences

Mitigating Actions Already Underway

Residual

Likelihood

Appendix B

NENH Further Action Planned or Other Comments
Change
Since
Last

Report

Target
Residual
Risk
Exposure

Exposure

STRO009 | Richard Carr | Richard Carr Aug 2017 Partnerships Fragility of Central Bedfordshire's vision cannot be  |1. Decisions being made by key statutory |1. Investing senior officer time in understanding partner issues, 413
partners/Failure of  |delivered in isolation. All partners, partners that could impact adversely on  |and looking to support partners with these issues (e.g. supporting This-may-lead to-a-simplificat fg an
Partners including Police, Probation, Health, the  [another partner/CBC. Police with senior recruitment, supporting CCG address budget
Voluntary Community Sector, and Town |2. Unforeseen/unknown liabilities falling  |issues) o PP e
and Parish Councils are experiencing on Central Bedfordshire Council 2. Encourage consistent application of business-like solutions to © ’
significant changes and pressures. These |3. Outcomes not achieved and services addressing issues (e.g. MASH) L e ant af eraternl far aeuaraamen
include budgetary pressures, transfer of |delivered to the public are compromised. (3. Trying to be more focussed and very clear on true priorities
responsibilities, geographical factors, 4. Greater costs potentially falling on and challenging how priorities are delivered (e.g. Joint Health and
confusing accountabilities, increasing Council, including those arising from: Well Being Strategy).
complexities, fragility and volatility. There|5. Later than desirable interventions 4. Using evidence base to identify areas of greatest need (e.g. A Eumiibiin o tiamls et DY e S et tsrrt
is an increased risk that services to our 6. Increased scrutiny e.g. from inspectors [|Joint Strategic Needs Assessment). ) ’ - b "
public will be compromised and that 7.Reputational damage 5. Deploy resources and utilise investment opportunities
increased costs will fall on the Council. effectively to support partners (e.g. Ivel Medical Centre) to
deliver whole community benefits.
6. Develop a multi agency approach, working closer with
partners, communities and other stakeholders in a locality model.
1. Good partnership working, including existing and specialist
governance arrangements: 1. Delivery of the recommendations from scrutiny enquiry into integration
2. Better Care Fund governance arrangements & plan, including and associated work.
iBCF funding 2. Contribution to the Bedfordshire, Luton and Milton Keynes (BLMK)
3. Community Health Service re-provision work underway sustainability and transformation plan (STP).
4. Kings Fund supporting the CCG, CBC and BBC to develop the 3. Further work on the implementation of Care and Health hubs.
vision for integration
5. Strategic Transformation Programme underway
6. Transforming Care Plan
7. Tight monitoring of the Looked After Children Plan
8. CCG Budget Recovery Plan
8. Established Central Bedfordshire Transformation Board
9. Moving to joint management arrangements with EPUT
10. Procurement of Mental Health Services completed
STR0013 Stephan Sean Dykes Aug 2017 3 Information Information A lack of consistent information 1. Financial implications oot e sl Deenline L T e 4| 2 Implementation of Corporate wide Data Protection training as well as
Conaway Governance Management management and data accuracy across  |2. Reputational damage Conducted internal health check and identified action plan for improved corporate monitoring and actions to improve compliance rates.
the organisation and the risk of non- 3. Non-compliance recommended improvements including development of KPI.
compliance with the Data Protection Act /|4. Inefficiency Review and redefine the terms of reference for the Information A review of information gathered through the PSN code of connection on
(GDPR from May 2018) Assurance Group. the Council's holdings, which identifies information owners.
Initiated update of retention schedules Council wide to meet
legislative/operational retention requirements. o Working group to work towards addressing gaps identified in GDPR Self
Monitoring of staff participation is now included as a standard Assessment before May 2018.
agenda item for Information Assurance Group.
ICO Self assessment for GDPR readiness undertaken and working
group established to drive forward.
STR0O019 | Richard Carr | Richard Carr Aug 2017 4 Service Delivery Failure to deliver The risk to the Health and Social Care 1. Fragmentation in service delivery to 1. Good partnership working, including existing and specialist 4| 4 Risk-is-continuing to-evolve from the PCT to CCG.BCF plan-shiftsservices
and Customers | effective and cohesive |System and local residents brought about |both children and adults goézrt?:rnézsf:r?:m:\?etfr;ance aangements & olan. including IBCE from-acute to-community—lssuesof concernsinclude:
Health and Social Care to |by significant changes in the National 2. Reputational damage fu’nding 4 Y — Y Bedford-Hospital TrustS gic-Revi
local residents Health System. €€G-undernational 3. Lack of clarity over the roles and 3. Community Health Service re-provision work underway e i
direction-and-onelocalhospitalina responsibilities of various 4. Kings Fund supporting the CCG, CBC and BBC to develop the vision Proct tof Mental- Health-S
challenging financial position— i for integration . X . o . .
S Zf'a[tarlir:ézr;\lligetr: influence respective 5 strat?agic Transformation Programme underway 1. DehverY of the recommendations from scrutiny enquiry into integration
Uncertainty caused by IBCF and decision making partners/bodies & T‘ransformllng‘ Care Plan p and assc?aat.ed work. . .
) _ LA 7. Tight monitoring of the Looked After Children Plan 2. Contribution to the Bedfordshire, Luton and Milton Keynes (BLMK)
associated targets 5. Poor inspection judgements : J PR .
. X . . - ) ) sustainability and transformation plan (STP).
% AL e SSRASRE S ey PIEssures |5 ESta-bIISheq _Central Bedordshire Transforma_tlon Soard 3. Further work on the implementation of Care and Health hubs.
placed on CBC as a consequence of 9. Moving to joint management arrangements with EPUT
. . 10. Procurement of Mental Health Services completed
decisions made by other partners/bodies
in response to need to reduce cost base
STR0027 Jason Jason Aug 2017 5 Community Failure to deliver Failure to adopt a Local Plan and 1. Financial loss Project Board established PID approved for delivery. 4| 4 b e e b s e e e 02
Longhurst Longhurst Sustainable Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) . 2. Infrastructure, housing and employment|Awaiting advice sought from DCLG on risks of proceeding in moved-to-underway
Development requirements not delivered absence of an up to date Local Plan 2. Draft submission Plan published for consultation Dec 17 Feb 18 -U
3. Reputational loss Draft (Regulation 18) Plan to be published May/June 17 July 17 L4 QJ
3. Adopt Local Plan April 2018 (@)
4. Process progressing to plan :D
A
H
o
20of 6 Strategic Risk Register Aug 2017 Information security classification: OFFICIAL

TT Wa)| epusby



Risk Ref

Risk
Owner

Risk Manager

Risk
Review
Date

Inherent

Likelihood

Exposure

Nature of Risk

Description

Central Bedfordshire Council - Strategic Risk Register

Consequences

Mitigating Actions Already Underway

Status
Change
Since
Last
Report

Residual

Likelihood

t.| Exposure

Appendix B

Target Further Action Planned or Other Comments
Residual
Risk

Exposure

Certainty Deal signed in October 2016.

1. Raise care as a priority within allocation policy for social renting.

2 .Market position statement planned for vulnerable adults

3. Collaborative regional approach, to include operating model
4.Consideration of wider support to care market

5. Establish the approach to fee setting

6. Work is underway to develop Market Position Statements for
Vulnerable People (Learning Disability, Mental health and Physical
Disability).

5. Further investment in the Bedfordshire Care Association, as part of iBCF

1.Password controls policy being updated - one password to cover all
access.

2. Information security training to be expanded to include cyber crime
risks.

3.Shadow image of files in Cloud to sit outside network.

STR0031 Charles Charles Aug 2017 Service Delivery [The capacity of the The capacity of the Council to deliver 1. Pressures on CBC budgets 1. Four year settlement in place
Warboys Warboys and Customers |Council to deliver services in the light of the scale of the 2. Reduction in service delivery 2. The "Certainty Deal"
services in the light of efficiencies we need to make, taking 3. Reputation damage 3. Responding to consultations
further shifts in account of the increasing importance of  |4. Difficulties in planning ahead. 4. Networking
Government Policy. our income from NNDR, the impact of 5.Longer term planning.
changes to HRA financing and the
anticipated transfer of new
responsibilities to councils without the o
concomitant funding, such as the
administration of attendance allowances.
Also reflects the impacts of shifts in
Government policy, for example, the
impact of the move towards Academies.
STR0032 Julie Ogley Julie Ogley Aug 2017 5 Finance/econo [Unsustainable market for|Not being able to access a sustainable 1. Pressures on CBC budgets 1. Market engagement
mic social care. market for social care at a reasonable 2. Instability of the care market 2. Broader support for care market
price due to the implementation of NLW, |3. Reduced capacity 3. Review of effectiveness of contractual arrangements
implications of Brexit and other 4. Compromised safety and quality 4. Financial provision built into medium term plan
legislation, and its impact on the wider  |5. Increased hospital admissions 5. MANOP Investment Prospectus produced.
economy. 6. Delays in transfer of care 6. Report agreed at executive to identify sites for 2 care homes
7. Reputational damage and 1 extra care.
8. Reduction in choice 7. Planning permission for Houghton Central granted November
9. impact on recruitment and retention 2016 «
10. Lack of case law 8. LD Commissioner in post who is now developing the
Vulnerable Persons' Position Statement.
9. Day Care Review now underway.
10. Domiciliary care retender
11. Residential and Nursing home retender
12. 4% uplift on fees applied for 2017/18
13. 3% Social Care Precept
STR0033 Stephan Stephan Aug 2017 3 ICT/Data The impact of cyber The impact of cyber crime. 1. Poor performance 1. Member of Cyber Security Sharing Protocol (gov.). Provides
Conaway Conaway Management |crime. 2. Reduced customer service advice on reducing risk of cyber crime.
3. Loss of data 2. Information Security Policy in place.
4. Inefficiency Information Security statement in place.
5. Financial loss 3. Data protection policy in place.
6. Reputational damage 4. Patching regime in place.
7. Non compliance with data protection  |5. Virus controls on devices. Ipads in use with application PN
legislation security provided by Apple.
6. Network user access scanning.
7. Intrusion detection system updated.
8.Protocol for regular monitoring in place.
9. Internal IT assurance processes developed.
10.Policy for privileged user access developed.
STR0034 Richard Carr ([Catherine Aug 2017 4 Service Delivery |Failure to deliver service |The failure to deliver the organisational |1.Non achievement of CBC objectives CMT to further review these work streams as part of a review to 4
Jones and Customers |improvement. development plan. 2.Reduced staff morale crystallise our objectives following the MTFP reviews.
3. Lack of service improvement.
4. Negative impact on achieveing the 1. CMT has agreed a refreshed programme with six work streams:
MTFP o Digitisation
e Pride and recognition
* Working smarter
e Customer strategy
¢ Knowledge and aptitudes
¢ Health and well being
L4
These are based on intensive engagement across the organisation
via the 3D programme. Programme facilitated by CMT, formally
launched at April Leadership event, with engagement from
managers across the organisation.
CMT to further clarify the transformation agenda

Delivery will be monitored monthly by CMT in the Making it Happen
dashboard and quarterly by PFMT in the Status Report.

30f6

Strategic Risk Register Aug 2017

/T€ abed

Information security classification: OFFICIAL

TT Wa)| epusby



Risk Ref

STR0035

Risk
Owner

Sue Harrison

Risk Manager

Sue Harrison

Risk
Review
Date

Aug 2017

Inherent

IN Likelihood

Exposure

Service Delivery
and Customers

Nature of Risk

Failure to safeguard
children effectively.
Failure to deliver budget
efficiencies.

Description

The failure to deliver major
transformation programmes. (Children's
Services).

Central Bedfordshire Council - Strategic Risk Register

Consequences

1. Failure to safeguard children effectively.
2. Non delivery of transformation
programmes

3. Non realisation of budget savings
4.Service failure

5. Non achievement of CBC objectives
6.Reduced staff morale/retention

7. Lack of service improvement. 8.
Restructure of management team leading
to instability

Mitigating Actions Already Underway

1. Work of Social Work and Early Help Academy - good CPD for
social work staff

2. Declared published timetable for the production and
monitoring of the plan

3. Additional budget monitoring is planned.

4. Business Continuity Plans in place.

5. Six weekly Transformation Board Meetings now in place.

6. Vigorous self evaluation programme within Children's Services
7. Risk registers in place capturing financial/service risks

8. Project plan in place with milestones and KPIs

9. Regular monitoring by CMT

10. Regular reporting to Overview and Scrutiny

11. Demand Analysis undertaken identifying potential
opportunities for reducing children going into care

12. Multi-agency leadership board in place

13. Assistant Director for Transformation and Education has been
appointed (Commences 170717)

14. All Social Care and Early help teams are intergrated in
localities.

15. New Community Healthcare providers are aware of new way
of working.

Residual

IN Likelihood
Exposure

Status
Change
Since
Last
Report

Appendix B

Target Further Action Planned or Other Comments
Residual
Risk

Exposure

Progress the implementation of the 'Locality' model.

STR0036

Richard-Carr /
Marcel Coiffat
/ Jason
Longhurst

Richard-Carr/
B
Jeanette Keyte

/ Andrew
Davie

Aug 2017

Service Delivery
and Customers

Social division

Risk of failure to deliver community
cohesion in the context of the
demographic growth in Central
Bedfordshire. Some settlements will
experience considerable expansion and
we need to manage potential
resentment, secure equal access to
facilities and enhance a sense of
community. One aspect of this relates
specifically to provision for gypsy and
traveller communities

1. Inequity

2.Enhanced deprivation

3.Social isolation

4. Pockets of extreme vulnerability
(including. Modern day slavery)
5.Anti- social behaviour

6. Vigilante activity

T, m -
Co-ordinated response to G&T issues
Options for more effective management direct action being

Local Plan is out for consultation.

Way forward on consultation for the Billingdon site now agreed
by Executive.

Review of the terms of reference for the 4 Joint Committees
underway.

Successful programme of T&PC Conferences throughout the
year.

Member attendance at T&PC meetings. Monthly briefing
provided to Members to assist communication.

Community engagement events held on specific issues, e.g. 15
Community Planning events.

Training for T&PCs on key issues, e.g. Planning and Emergency
Response.

T&PC Forum established as sounding board to highlight and
address key issues.

Key point of contact at Member and Senior Officer level to
resolve issues and coordinate input.

5106 funded Community Buildings / Facilities transferred to
T&PCs, (or in discussion) e.g. Stotfold, Silsoe, Biggleswade,
Cranfield, Marston, Potton and Houghton Regis.

Audit of community facilities underway to inform future provision
and 106 / CIL investment and future policy / technical guidance.

Cabinet have agreed a proposed way forward for dealing with
issues at a particular G&T site in CBs. The working group will
develop an initial outline of work needed.

Police Unauthorised Encampment Procedure now in place and
being worked to. Some gaps identified nd discussions will raise
these with police colleagues.

Rural Policing Team now in place and CB Officers will engage
particularly around G&T issues.

1. Needs co-ordinated effort within CBC and development of further
understanding of the issues likely to be experienced by some communities

2. Encourage consideration of the impact of demographic growth at
earliest opportunity when considering plans including with partners

3. Local Plan needs further development to reflect Stronger Communities,
and strategic responses to G&T and Transit sites {inehudinga-specific-
.

4. Need to strengthen liaison with Town Councils for growing towns

5. Investment in social infrastructure

6. Explore Legacy Project with Kingsland
7. Help partners understand the impact of demographic growth (e.g.
Health and Police)

9. CBC Prevent Group is in place and will be developing an action plan set
against recommendations from the Counter Terrorism Local Profile.

40f6

Strategic Risk Register Aug 2017

gT¢ abed

Information security classification: OFFICIAL

TT wa)| epusby



Risk Ref

Risk
Owner

Risk Manager

Risk
Review
Date

Inherent

IN Likelihood

Exposure

Nature of Risk

Description

Central Bedfordshire Council - Strategic Risk Register

Consequences

Mitigating Actions Already Underway

Residual

IN Likelihood

Status
Change
Since
Last
Report

Exposure

STR0O037 Julie Julie Aug 2017 Service Delivery Failure to support Failure to support vulnerable people and |1. Increased homelessness SCHH:
Ogley/Celia- | Ogley/Celia- and Customers |vulnerable people, which| families, including facets of access to  |2. Lack of access to suitable 1. Investment by CBC to purchase additional housing for
Shehet/Sue Shehet/Sue results in higher demand | accommodation, welfare reform and low |accommodation temporary accommodation.
Harrison Harrison for more intensive levels of income. 3. Increased child and family poverty 2. Discretionary Housing Payments.
services. 4. "Two Tier" community o s e D T e
5. Increased dependency upon CBC forfamily-housing
6. Increase in number of children taken 3. Additional investment in "Let's Rent" scheme. SCHH
into care. 4. Homelessness Strategy Action Plan - progress towards DCLG
7. Negative health, well being and "gold standard".
emotional impacts. 5. Invested in Credit Unions / new publicity has increased activity.
8. Increase in risky behaviours (lifestyles) |6. Implement the Sheltered Housing Review, including de-
9. Capping of Local Housing Allowance. designation of some schemes to meet the needs of other client
10. More Children in Care groups. Rightsizing approach established with clear targets
11.More Children in Criminal Justice within the People scorecard, so as to make best use of stock.
System 7. Tenancy Sustainment approach, supporting tenants earlier to
increase rent collection and avoid crisis/support.
8. Work is underway to develop right sizing alternative PN
accommodation.
CS:
9. Transformation plans include managing demand and keeping
children safe at home.
10. Childrens Services early help offer is strong and supports
Children remaining with family wherever it is safe to do so.
11. Childrens Services 'One Family, One Plan' approach supports
vulnerable people to better parent their children.
12. Childrens services share Youth Offending Team with Beds BC
& there are strategic plans in palce to work with Children at risk
of entering the Criminal Justice System - these are monitored by
the Youth Offending Board and the Ministry of Justice.
STRO038 | Richard-Carr/ Sue Aug 2017 4 Partnerships Ineffective partnership  |The fragility of the emergency planning  [1. Failure to respond appropriately to 1. Sharing capacity, expertise, resource and skills across 3
Marcel Childerhouse / response to emergency |and business continuity functions across |health emergencies. partnerships to avoid duplication and strengthen response (CS)
Coiffaitt/ Mark Conway planning. partners and the impact of this on our 2. Reputational damage. 2. Bedfordshire Community Risk Register in place.
ability to deliver our objectives. A 3. Failure to protect vulnerable people 3. Representation on Bedfordshire Local Resilience Forum (BLRF)
particular facet relates to: 4. Negative health impacts.. 4.Representation on Business Continuity Awareness Group (part
shortcomings identified in the Police's 5. Death of BLRF)
approach to vulnerability identified by 6. Legal action/financial loss. 5. Guidance on schools resilience on schools portal
HMIC; 7. Failure to deliver services. 6. Plans and partnerships tested during recent gas outage in
Ampthill, Clophill and Maulden
Muriel Scott |Muriel Scott and emergency planning and resilience 7. Local Health Resilience Partnership (co chaired by Director of
amongst health partners Public Health) has overview and scrutiny of resilience
arrangements for public health Ld
8.Representation on Local Health Resilience Group
9. Multi agency flu plan
10. Infectious disease plan (CBC)
11. Application of 2004 Core Standards - Emergency
Preparedness Response applied to all health organisations
12.Moderate individual organisations annual self assessments &
recommend actions
13.Ensure mass casualities & pandemic flu plan are updated &
exercised regularly.
STR0O039 Julie Ogley Julie Ogley Aug 2017 5 Financial/ Inability to deliver Uncertain national policy; singular focus |1. Interventions across the Council are 1. Local Plan policies 3
Economic accomodation for on Starter Homes; also unpredictable challenging: Children's; Adults 2. Council's approach to use of land assets
vulnerable and homeless [change: rent reduction; LHA caps, result |2. Pressure on CBC Budgets; 3. Homelessness Strategy Action Plan
people in the supply of rented and specialist 3.Unmet housing need; risk of harm; 4.Temporary Accommodation Action Plan
accommodation being reduced and 4.Increased homelessness; 5. Good quality advice & information
unaffordable. 5.Reputational damage; 6.Supported Housing re-configuration
The new legislation, (Homelessness 6. Reduction in choice 7. Housing Investment Plan & Business Planning
Reduction Act 2017), is likely to add to 8. MANOP programme L4
the numbers of people it is required to 9.Supply of rented & specialist accommodation
accommodate which will need to be 10. CBC Policy position on Starter Homes
resourced. 11. Negotiation of section 106 agreements
12. Welfare Reform Group Action Plan
13. Alignment between partner ambitions and CBC objectives.
50f6 Strategic Risk Register Aug 2017

Target
Residual
Risk

Exposure

Appendix B

Further Action Planned or Other Comments

CsS:

1.Further joint working between Children and Adult Services.
2. SEND transition and supporting children leaving care with appropriate
accommodation.
3. Plans to review and develop an ambitious vision for Children's Homes of
the Future.

4. Four Year transformation plan to be delivered to timescales

SCHH:

1. Redesign of ASC Customer Pathway to develop a better understanding
of the customers needs and expectations to mitigate the need for paid

services and support.

2. Reshape the prevention offer around community services, including

extending this to primary care

3. Implementation of multi disciplinary approach, based on localities

4. Development of a Lettings Agency
5. Housing support into Hospitals and health settings

1. BLRF project on better joint working WIP

2. Finalise Business continuity plans
3 C

ta lnfluanza d icfluplan-under
L4 L

3. Consideration of Joint Multi Agency Team

make decision W/C 18 September 2017

4. On the 12th July 2016 BLRF Executive agreed that they would proceed
with a Joint multi agency emergency planning unit. BLRF Executive to

Information security classification: OFFICIAL

6T¢ abed

TT Wa)| epusby



Appendix B

Central Bedfordshire Council - Strategic Risk Register

Risk Ref {3 Risk Manager {3 Inherent Nature of Risk Description Consequences Mitigating Actions Already Underway Residual  Status  Target Further Action Planned or Other Comments

Owner Review
Date

Change Residual
Since Risk

Last Exposure
Report

Exposure

Exposure

IN Likelihood
IN Likelihood

STRO040 | Richard Carr | Richard Carr Aug 2017 Financial/ Financial and economic [The political and economic uncertainty  [Impact on; ¢ Continued monitoring of the post referendum environment by 4
Economic uncertainty around potential changes in laws, local economy CMT
regulations, government policy or funding|capital receipts and land and property * Keeping abreast of official publications from local, central and
arising from the UK leaving the European |negotiations European government
Union and other significant international [employment trends and productivity  Targeted lobbying by Members on specific issues
events, which may impact on Council waste disposal e Influencing Government through responding to consultations
objectives. changes in ministerial appointments and |* Engagement with the Local Government Association (LGA),
the associated implications for aspects of [Department of Communities and Local Government (DCLG),
government policy, such as education, Department of Innovation and Skills, and other relevant bodies to

public health, and indeed the approach to |ensure that current funding is protected

the management of the public finances ¢ Monitor emerging policy changes, and

the potential impact of changes being ® Monitor European Union funded schemes.
considered by the Bank of England, such |eReflect budget implications in MTFP

as adjustments to interest rates
workforce implications, especially in areas
like health and social care where
significant numbers of staff were non UK
nationals

the impact of the unwinding of European
legislation affecting large areas of
regulation, including areas such as the
working time directive and health and
safety regulations, employment rights and
procurement, and community cohesion
and the need to ensure inappropriate
behaviour and, indeed, racism was tackled
appropriately and quickly.

STRO041 Richard Carr |Georgina Aug 2017 413 Service Delivery [Failure to enact the An inability to unify and manage a diverse(1. Failure to understand the relative CMT have agreed outcomes, measures and provisional targets for| 3 1 In taking the work forward a cross council group is exploring what other
Stanton / Vikki and Customers [changes we seek to range of change projects as a prioritised |importance and dependence of change a range of cross cutting change projects. significant change programmes (including work on Quadrants) are
Chapman move the organisation  |and resourced transformation projects. A set of design principles have also been agreed which include underway in order that their relationship to the CMT transformation
forward. programme. 2. Inability to deploy the resources commitments to take a whole system approach to change and to goals/workstreams can be understood. The group will also look at
required to the things that are most aim for standardisation in our approach. dependencies and recommend options for prioritisation, delivery models

O . New
critical for us to deliver.

3. Failure to achieve stated priorities for
customers, staff, partners and suppliers.

and engagement.

Kev:
Text Added since last undate
Text to be removed

Risk Removed from Strategic Risk Register

TT Way epusby

0zg abed

6 of 6 Strategic Risk Register Aug 2017 Information security classification: OFFICIAL



Agenda ltem 12
Page 321

Central Bedfordshire Council

AUDIT COMMITTEE 27 September 2017

Internal Audit Progress Report
Report of Charles Warboys, Chief Finance Officer

Contact Officer: Clint Horne, Head of Internal Audit and Risk

Purpose of this report:
This report provides a progress update on the status of Internal Audit work for
2017/18.

RECOMMENDATIONS
The Committee is asked to:

1. Consider and comment on the contents of the report.

Overview and Scrutiny Comments/Recommendations

1. This report is not scheduled to be considered by Overview and Scrutiny,
as it is the responsibility of the Audit Committee.

Background

2. Management is responsible for the system of internal control and should
set in place policies and procedures to help ensure that the system is
functioning correctly. Internal audit reviews, appraises and reports on the
efficiency, effectiveness and economy of financial and other management
controls.

3. The Audit Committee is the governing body charged with monitoring
progress on the work of Internal Audit.

4. The Audit Committee approved the 2017-19 Internal Audit Plan in April
2017. This report provides an update on progress made against the plan
up to the end of August 2017.



Agenda ltem 12
Page 322

Progress on the 2017/18 Audit Plan
Fundamental System Audits

5. In the last progress update there were three Fundamental Financial
system audits that were in progress. All three are now finalised; Accounts
Payable and Asset Management were both Adequate opinions and Swift
Financials continued as Limited.

6. Scoping has commenced on the majority of the 2017/18 Fundamental
Financial system audit reviews. Consideration is being given to internal
system changes when scoping these reviews to provide assurance that
the controls surrounding the implementation of any revised processes are
robust. Consideration will also be given to whether there have been any
Government initiatives that would impact on controls and processes. No
significant issues have been identified to date.

7. A light touch approach has been in place for these reviews for several
years; more detailed substantive testing will now be undertaken on a
prioritised risk basis. A follow up of previous recommendations made will
also be carried out.

8. The findings of completed Phase 1 reviews will be reported to the January
Audit Committee.

Other Audit Work

9. Internal Audit has continued to be engaged in several projects, in order to
provide advice and guidance on the control environment during project
implementation which has included the SuccessFactors Project and the
Fiori Project (both part of the SAP Optimisation Programme) and shortly
with the Accolaid replacement Project. Work has also been undertaken on
grant certification work.

10. In addition to the fundamental financial system audit reviews the following

audits have been completed since the last update:

o VAT (Final report — Adequate)

¢ Financial Assessment & Charging for Residential Care (Final report —
Adequate)

o Data Centre Contracts Management (Briefing Note)
Proactive anti fraud review of Employee Self Service (Expense claims and
Timesheets) (Briefing Note)

e Maulden Lower School (Final report — Limited)

e Members, Declarations of Interest, Gifts & Hospitality (Draft report —
Adequate)

o Watling Lower School (Draft report — Limited)

o Comensura (Draft report — Adequate)



Agenda ltem 12
Page 323

11. A number of other reviews are currently progressing, and these are also

shown within Appendix A. The outcomes will be reported to a future
committee meeting.

Schools

12.The rolling programme of school audit visits has continued. To date this

year 1 school report has been finalised and a further report has been
issued as a draft. An investment of time has been made to update our
audit approach to schools to allow us to concentrate on key risks using
more desktop review approach and targeted site visit. The aim is to reduce
the time taken per school review overall and specifically on site; this new
approach will be piloted later this term.

Other Matters of Interest

13. The Committee has previously been advised of the arrangements for

appointing external auditors through Public Sector Audit Appointments
(PSAA) Ltd. Contracts have been awarded for the various lots available
and arrangements are now being finalised for matching lot winners to
Local Authorities. The Director of Resources has recently been asked
whether the Authority would have any issues were Ernst & Young to be
appointed to our contract and has replied in the negative

14.Internal Audit continues to have a vacancy (since April 2017) in the Audit

Manager role. Internal attempts at recruitment have proved unsuccessful
and further options are now being considered. A Senior Auditor has also
now resigned due to personal circumstances and an internal candidate
has been appointed in their place and is due to start in October.

Performance Management

15.The Internal Audit Charter requires Internal Audit to report its progress on

some key performance indicators. The indicators include both CBC audit
activities and school audit activity.



Agenda ltem 12
Page 324

Activities for 1 April 2017 — 31st August 2017

KPI Definition Current Year Previous Annual
Year target
Actual Target Actual
KPI01 Percentage of 28% 35% 35% 80%
total audit days
completed.
KPIO2 | Percentage of 11% 27% 21% 80%

the number of
planned reviews
completed.
KPIO3 | Percentage of 83% 75% 63% 75%
audit reviews
completed within
the planned time
budget, or within
a 1 day
tolerance.

KPIO4 | Time taken to 100% 80% 94% 80%
respond to draft
reports:
Percentage of
reviews where
the first final
draft report was
returned within
10 available
working days of
receipt of the
report from the
Auditor.

KPIO5 | Time taken to 100% 80% 100% 80%
issue a final
report:
Percentage of
reviews where
the final report
was issued
within 10
available
working days of
receipt of the
response
agreeing to the
formal report.
KPIO6 | Overall 100% 80% n/a 80%
customer
satisfaction.




Agenda ltem 12
Page 325

16. Analysis of indicators:

As previously reported to the Audit Committee Internal Audit has had several
resourcing / staffing issues over the last year and this is reflected in the
performance reported for this quarter.

A review is currently underway to reprioritise outstanding work and explore
the use of additional temporary resource to support delivery of high priority
areas of the audit plan. It is hoped that the Audit Manager vacancy will also
be filled before the year end.

KPIO1 -

KPIOZ2 -

KPIO3 -

KPI04 -

KPIO5 -

KPI06 —

As at the end of August, Internal Audit has delivered a total of 349
productive audit days against a total of 1260 planned days for the
year.

This KPI measures final reports issued to date. 11% of the
planned reviews have been completed to final report stage. In
addition, a number of reviews have been completed to draft
report stage and nearly all of the Fundamental Financial audits
are now in progress.

83% of planned reviews have been completed either within the
planned time budgets, or within a 1 day tolerance. Whilst this is
positive it is more reflective of the low volumes at this stage of the
year.

This indicator measures the time taken for Internal Audit to
receive a response from the auditee to the draft report. During
the period up to the end of August 100% of draft reports were
responded to within the target set.

This indicator measures the time taken by Internal Audit to issue
the final report upon receipt of an agreed response from the
auditee, and continues to be positive.

7 responses have been received for customer satisfaction
surveys so far this year and all have been either satisfied or very
satisfied.

Council Priorities

17.The activities of Internal Audit are crucial to the governance arrangements
of the organisation and as such are supporting all of the priorities of the
Council.



Agenda ltem 12
Page 326

Corporate Implications

Legal Implications

18.None directly from this report.

Financial Implications

19.None directly from this report. However, sound systems assist in
preventing loss of resources (by other wastage or fraud), thereby
improving effectiveness and efficiency.

Equalities Implications

20.None directly from this report.

Conclusion and next Steps

21.Internal Audit has continued to support the drive to strengthen internal
control within Central Bedfordshire Council. Work is progressing to deliver
the agreed plan by the year end.

22. A further update on audit progress will be presented to the next Audit
Committee.

Appendices
Appendix A — Progress on Audit Activity
Background Papers

None.



INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2016 - 2017

Agend%leggm 12

age 327

Priority Audit Title 2017/18 Link to strategic risk Position as at end August Opinion
Days
B/f work
Accounts Payable/Purchase Ledger (including feeder Final report issued Adequate
systems)
Asset M.anagement (incl. Asset Register)/Capital Final report issued Adequate
Accounting
SWIFT Financials Final report issued Limited
Contracts Management - Data Centre Visits Briefing Note issued n/a
Prgactwe ant.l fraud - Employee Self Service (Expense Briefing Note issued n/a
claims and Timesheets)
Maulden Lower School Final report issued Limited
Sandy Upper School Follow-up Final report issued Unsatisfactory Progress
VAT Final report issued Adequate
Financial Assessment & Charging for Residential Care Final report issued Adequate
Members, Declarations of Interest, Gifts & Hospitality Draft report issued Adequate*
Comensura Draft report issued Adequate*
IT inventories Fieldwork completed -
Leisure Services Outcomes - Post Fieldwork completed B
implementation review of Flitwick Leisure Centre
Mosaic Fieldwork in progress -
IT contracts managed outside IT Fieldwork in progress -
IT Customer Service - problem resolution (Helpdesk) Fieldwork in progress -
IT Network Management and Security Scoping in progress -
Deferred pending -
Section 106 Agreements outcome of
external review.
Supporting Delivery of New Housing Cancelled - Service Request |~
Assets Disposal Programme Cancelled - Service Request |-
Section 38 income Cancelled - Service Request |-
Highways - assurance on client assurance Defered to 17/18 )
arrangements
Budgetary Control Defered to 17/18 -
Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) Defered to 18/19 -
Total - Carry Over Work 120
Fundamental Systems
H Accounts Payable/Purchase Ledger ( including feeder 35|5TR0001 Fieldwork in progress
systems)
H Accounts Receivable/Sales Ledger 30 STRO001 Fieldwork in progress
H Council Tax (including Council Tax Support Scheme) 35 STRO001 Fieldwork in progress
H Housing Benefits 40 STRO0001 Fieldwork in progress
H Main Accounting Systems (MAS) 30|STR0001 Fieldwork in progress
H National Non Domestic Rates NNDR 35(sTR0001 Fieldwork in progress
H Payroll 35 STRO0001 Fieldwork in progress
prog
H SWIFT Financials 15|STRO001
H Treasury Management 20 [STR0001 Fieldwork in progress
H Housing Rents including tenant arrears 25|STR0001 Fieldwork in progress
H Cash And Banking (Non Invoiced Income) 20|sTR0O001 Fieldwork in progress
Total - Fundamental Systems 320
Assurance Audits - Chief Executive
M Data Quality 15|STR0013
M Information Governance 15[STR0013 Draft report issued Adequate*
IT Reviews:
M Cloud Hosting Data Storage 15|STR0O008 Scoping in progress
M Project Management - IT Governance 15|Governance Scoping in progress
M Desk Top Environment - End User Compliance 15|STR0O008 Scoping in progress
H IT Disaster Recovery 10| STRO008 Scoping in progress
H SAP Access and Security 10|STR0013 Scoping in progress
M [Third Party Hosting 15|STR0013 Fieldwork completed
Total - Chief Executive 110




Agenda ltem 12
Page 328

Priority Audit Title 2017/18 Link to strategic risk Position as at end August Opinion
Days
Assurance Audits - Resources
M VAT reviews 10|STRO001 To Cancel
M Budgetary Control 15|STR0O001
L Highways Infrastructure - processes for accounting 15[STR0O001 To Cancel
L Ethlcs - Declarations of Interests, Gifts and Hospitality - 10 Governance
Officers
M Corporate Governance Reviews - LGSS Law 15|Governance Fieldwork in progress
L Democratic Services Review 10 |Governance Scoping in progress
Total - Resources 75
Assurance Audits - Children's Services
M Schools General - School Improvement 80 Rolling programme, 1 School
Governance completed see below
Watling Lower School Governance/Operational Draft Report Issued Limited*
M Themed Reviews 15|STR0035
Total - Children's Services 95
Assurance Audits - Social Care, Health and Housing
L Day Centres 10| Operational To Cancel
M Better Care Fund Integration 15[STR0009
M New Generation Housing 15[STR0032 To Cancel, Service Request
M Direct Payments - Review of controls 15 [Operational
Total - Social Care, Health and Housing 55
Assurance Audits - Community Services
M Highways - assurance on client assurance 10 Operational
arrangements
M Compliance - Assets 10| Operational
M |School Transport 15 |Operational Scoping in progress
Total - Community Services 35
Assurance Audits - Regeneration and Business Support
M European Social Fund 15| Operational To Cancel
M Albion Archaeology 15| Operational
Total - Regeneration and Business Support 30
Assurance Audits - Contracts and Partnerships
M Contracts Management 20 [STR0001/Operational
M Value for Money reviews 15|STR0O001/Operational
M Partnership Governance 15|STR0009/Governance
Total - Contracts and Partnerships 50
Assurance Audits - Public Health
M Public Health compliance with best practice 15|STR0038
M Joint Procurement Arrangements 15|STR0038
Total - Public Health 30
Special Investigations
M National Fraud Initiative (NFI) 20|STR0001
M Special Investigations 40|STR0001
Pro active anti fraud reviews -
L Allocation of Grants 10| Operational
Total - Special investigations 70
Ad Hoc Consultancy etc.
H Risk Management Activities 35(- Ongoing throughout year
M Major projects - Consultancy 70(- Ongoing throughout year
M Supporting Annual Governance Statement 5(- Ongoing throughout year
M Audit of Individual Grants 20]- Ongoing throughout year
M General Advice 20]- Ongoing throughout year
M Head of Audit Chargeable Against Plan 60 |- Ongoing throughout year
M Assurance Mapping Review 5(- Ongoing throughout year
M Benchmarking Exercise 5(- Ongoing throughout year
L Contingency 50 |-
Total - Ad Hoc Consultancy etc. 270
Carry over Work
H |Completion of reviews in progress as at 31st March 120
Total - Carry over Work 120
TOTAL CHARGEABLE DAYS REQUIRED 1260




Agenda Item 13
Page 329

Central Bedfordshire Council

AUDIT COMMITTEE 27 September 2017

Tracking of Internal Audit Recommendations
Report of Charles Warboys, Director of Resources

Contact Officer: Clint Horne, Head of Internal Audit and Risk

Purpose of this report:
This report summarises the high priority recommendations arising from
Internal Audit reports and sets out the progress made in their implementation.

RECOMMENDATIONS
The Committee is asked to:

1. Consider and comment on the updates, as presented.

Overview and Scrutiny Comments/Recommendations

1. This report is not scheduled to be considered by Overview and Scrutiny,
as this is the responsibility of the Audit Committee.

Background

2. One of the purposes of the Audit Committee is to provide independent
assurance on the adequacy of the risk management framework and the
associated control environment.

3. To further strengthen the Audit Committee’s role in monitoring the
internal control environment within the Council, Internal Audit has
developed a system for monitoring and reporting progress against high
priority recommendations arising from internal audit inspections.

4. This paper presents the regular summary of high priority
recommendations made to date, along with the progress made against
implementation of those recommendations, as at the end of May 2017.



Agenda Item 13
Page 330

Tracking High Priority Recommendations

5. The Recommendation for the audit of ‘Financial Assessment and
Charging for Residential Care’ has now been implemented, as have the 3
recommendations relating to the Housing Repairs audit. That leaves the
2 ‘Housing Tenancy Management’ recommendations and the ‘Assets
Compliance’ recommendation outstanding. Details are provided at
Appendix A

6. Wherever possible evidence has been obtained to verify the
implementation of recommendations. However, in some instances,
verbal assurance has been obtained. Where this is the case, further
evidence will be obtained to support the assurances given.

7. Progress will continue to be monitored. The follow up of audit
recommendations forms an integral part of the fundamental system audit
reviews.

Future Monitoring

8. Officers responsible for the implementation of recommendations will be
contacted regularly to provide updates on progress made. Evidence will
be required to support progress made. Where recommendations are still
being implemented these will continue to be monitored.

Council Priorities

9. An effective internal audit function will indirectly contribute to all of the
Council’s priorities.

Corporate Implications
Legal Implications
10.None directly from this report.
Financial Implications
11.Although there are no direct financial risks from the issues identified in
the report, the outcome of implementing audit recommendations is for the
Council to enhance internal control, and better manage its risks, thereby
increasing protection from adverse events.

Equalities Implications

12.None directly from this report.



Agenda Item 13
Page 331

Conclusion and next Steps

13. Further work is required to ensure that the outstanding
recommendations are implemented and to monitor additional
recommendations made during the year.

14. This continuous tracking and reporting of progress on Internal Audit
inspections to the Audit Committee ensures that the Committee has the
means to monitor how effectively the high priority recommendations
have been implemented.

Appendices

Appendix A — Details of outstanding High Priority recommendations that
remain outstanding

Appendix B — Summary of High Priority Internal Audit recommendations as at
31/08/2017

Background Papers

None.



This page is intentionally left blank



enda Item 13
K%‘Q"JFXAPage 333

Details on those recommendations outstanding
Status — all Amber (Ongoing with deadline missed)

Social Care, Health and Housing

Housing Tenancy Management

Recommendation R1:

The Director of Social Care, Health and Housing and the Director of Regeneration
and Business should clarify how housing responsibilities are allocated across their
directorates. This should include the responsibility for and ownership of the
Tenancy Strategy.

Rationale for Recommendation:

The Housing Tenancy Strategy was drafted by the Assistant Director - Housing
Services with an Executive Foreword jointly signed by the Executive member with
responsibility for Social Care, Health and Housing and the Director of Social Care
Health and Housing (SCHH). It was approved by the Executive in March 2013
however during the course of this review it became apparent that responsibility for
and ownership of the strategy is unclear. Discussions between the Director of Social
Care, Health and Housing and the Director of Regeneration and Business confirmed
that housing responsibilities lie across 2 Directorates, SCHH and Regeneration and
Business, and that both Directors will clarify how this will be addressed.

Target Dates:
November 2015
March 2016 (revised)
August 2016
October 2017

Current Position and Explanation for Slippage:
The Regeneration and Business restructure is currently out to consultation. The
recommendation will be addressed once this is finalised.

Recommendation R2:
A Monitoring Group should be established, with clear terms of reference, to monitor
and review the effectiveness of the Tenancy Strategy.

Rationale for Recommendation:

Each Provider is responsible for its own individual tenancy policies, as well as
arrangements for review and appeals. However, the Tenancy Strategy proposed that
the Council establish a monitoring group consisting of representatives of registered
providers and other key stakeholders. This group is meant to support the Council in
its role of monitoring and reviewing the effectiveness of this Strategy but the group is
yet to be set up.

Target Dates:
November 2015
March 2016 (revised)
August 2016
October 2017

Current Position and Explanation for Slippage:
This will be addressed as part of the action plan being developed in response to the
earlier recommendation.

August 2017 Position 1



Agenda Item 13

Community Services

Assets - Compliance with the statutory, regulatory and legal requirements for
the Council’s buildings

Page 334

Recommendation R3:

A Corporate Landlord approach should be adopted by consolidating compliance
assurance responsibilities. This will unify professional and technical resources and
avoid duplication of resources.

Rationale for Recommendation:

At the time of the audit, there was no mechanism in place to monitor the compliance
level of all corporate properties. The Facilities Management Team monitor 61
properties, however a further 80 properties are managed at directorate level. The
Facilities Management Team is therefore unable to vouch for their compliance.

Target Dates:
June 2017

Current Position and Explanation for Slippage:

CMT have agreed that Corporate Landlord model will be adopted but implementation
planning has not yet started. Permanent Head of Facilities Management starts
September ‘17 and is tasked to create an implementation plan. A revised target date
will be reported to the next committee and will be tracked thereafter.

August 2017 Position 2



Summary of Outstanding High Priority Internal Audit recommendations as at End August 2017

Name Date of Report | Original Expected |Number of| Completed | Ongoing - | Work in | No work
completion of all Recs GREEN On Progress -| started -
Recommendations schedule Target target
(Where identified) for missed | missed
completion | AMBER RED
with set
timescales
GREEN
SOCIAL CARE, HEALTH & HOUSING
Housing Tenancy Management 04/09/2015 30/11/2015 2 2 Recs.1-2
Financial Assessment and Charging for Residential
Care 23/05/2017 30/06/2017 1 1
COMMUNITY SERVICES
Regular Reconciliation between QL & SAP Pre 2012 30/09/2014 3 3
Assets Compliance 08/12/2016 30/06/2017 1 1 Rec 3
Total 7 4 0 3 0
>
Q
D
-]
(@
02
=
. «Q D
AppendixB @ 3
31/08/17 0
wk
oaw



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 14
Page 337

Central Bedfordshire Council

AUDIT COMMITTEE 27 September 2017

Work Programme
Advising Officers:

Leslie Manning, Committee Services Officer
(leslie.manning@centralbedfordshire.gov.uk)

Purpose of this report

The purpose of this report is to assist the Audit Committee in discharging its
responsibilities by providing a proposed work programme for consideration.

RECOMMENDATION

That the Committee considers the proposed work programme attached
at Appendix A.

Overview and Scrutiny Comments/Recommendations

1. This report is not scheduled to be considered by Overview and Scrutiny
as the Audit Committee provides independent scrutiny of the Authority’s
financial performance.

Background

2. To assist the Audit Committee a work programme is attached at
Appendix A to this report. The work programme contains the known
agenda items that the Committee will need to consider.

3. Additional items will be identified as the municipal year progresses.
The work programme is therefore subject to change.

Council Priorities

4. The activities of the Audit Committee are crucial to the governance
arrangements of the organisation.

Corporate Implications
Legal Implications

5. There are no legal implications.


mailto:leslie.manning@centralbedfordshire.gov.uk

Agenda Item 14
Page 338

Financial Implications

6. There are no financial implications.

Equalities Implications

7. Central Bedfordshire Council has a statutory duty to promote equality
of opportunity, eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and
victimisation and foster good relations in respect of nine protected
characteristics; age disability, gender reassignment, marriage and
civil partnership, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex
and sexual orientation.

8. Report authors will be encouraged to work with the Corporate Policy
Advisor (Equality & Diversity) in order to ensure that relevant equality
implications are identified.

Conclusion and next Steps

9. This report will assist the Audit Committee in discharging its
responsibilities. Any amendments approved by the Committee will be
incorporated in the work programme.

Appendices

Appendix A — Audit Committee Work Programme

Background Papers

None



Agenda Item 14

Appendix A Page 339

Audit Committee Work Programme

2017/18 Municipal Year

29 June 2017 e CBC Unaudited Statement of Accounts 2016/17
(presentation) (CW/RG)

Annual Audit and Certification Fees 2017/18 (NH)
Annual Governance Statement 2016/17 (QB/MD)
Local Government Pension Scheme Update (RG)
Annual Counter Fraud Update (GM)

2016/17 Internal Audit Annual Audit Opinion (CH)
Tracking of Internal Audit Recommendations (CH)
Risk Update Report (CH)

Work Programme (LM)

27 September
2017

External Audit Results Report 2016/17 (NH)
Statement of Accounts 2016/17 (DG)

Update on the General Data Protection
Regulation (SD)

Annual Governance Statement 2016/17 (QB/MD)
Risk Update Report (CH)

Internal Audit Progress Report (CH)

Tracking of Internal Audit Recommendations (CH)
Work Programme (LM)

8 January 2018 Certification of Claims and Returns Annual Report
2016/17(NH)

Annual Audit Letter for the Year Ended 31 March
2017 (NH)

Audit Plan (NH)

Statement of Accounts 2017/18 (DG)

Local Government Pension Scheme Update (DG)
Risk Update Report (CH)

Internal Audit Progress Report (CH)

Tracking of Internal Audit Recommendations (CH)

Work Programme (LM)

9 April 2018 Annual Review of Risk Based Verification (RBV)
Policy for Housing Benefit and Local Council Tax
Support Assessments (GM)

Risk Update Report (CH)

Tracking of Internal Audit Recommendations (CH)
Internal Audit Progress Report (CH)

Work Programme (LM)




This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	Appendix A to the minutes
	Appendix B to the minutes

	7 External Audit Results Report 2016/17
	07 External Audit Results Report 2016.17
	Executive summary (continued)
	Executive summary (continued)
	Executive summary (continued)
	Audit issues and approach: Key issue: Revenue and expenditure recognition
	Audit issues and approach: Key issue: Management Override
	Draft audit report
	Audit differences
	Value for Money
	VFM risks
	Other reporting issues
	Other reporting issues
	Assessment of control environment
	Required communications with the Audit Committee
	There are certain communications that we must provide to the Audit Committees of UK clients. We have done this by:
	Terms of engagement
	Confirmation by the audit committee of acceptance of terms of engagement as written in the engagement letter signed by both parties.
	The statement of responsibilities serves as the formal terms of engagement between the PSAA’s appointed auditors and audited bodies.
	Planning and audit approach
	Communication of the planned scope and timing of the audit, including any limitations.
	Audit Plan
	Significant findings from the audit
	Audit Results Report
	Going concern
	Events or conditions identified that may cast significant doubt on the entity’s ability to continue as a going concern, including:
	► Whether the events or conditions constitute a material uncertainty
	► Whether the use of the going concern assumption is appropriate in the preparation and presentation of the financial statements
	Events or conditions identified that may cast significant doubt on the entity’s ability to continue as a going concern, including:
	No conditions or events were identified, either individually or together to raise any doubt about Central Bedfordshire Council’s ability to continue for the 12 months from the date of our report.
	Misstatements
	► Uncorrected misstatements and their effect on our audit opinion
	► The effect of uncorrected misstatements related to prior periods
	► A request that any uncorrected misstatement be corrected
	► Uncorrected misstatements and their effect on our audit opinion The effect of uncorrected misstatements related to prior periods A request that any uncorrected misstatement be corrected Significant corrected misstatements, in writing
	Audit Results Report
	Audit Results Report
	Fraud
	► Asking the Audit Committee whether they have knowledge of any actual, suspected or alleged fraud affecting the Authority
	► Unless all those charged with governance are involved in managing the entity, any fraud identified or information obtained indicating that a fraud may exist involving:
	► Asking the Audit Committee whether they have knowledge of any actual, suspected or alleged fraud affecting the AuthorityUnless all those charged with governance are involved in managing the entity, any fraud identified or information obtained indicating that a fraud may exist involving:
	We have asked management and those charged with governance about arrangements to prevent or detect fraud. We have not become aware of any fraud or illegal acts during our audit.
	We have asked management and those charged with governance about arrangements to prevent or detect fraud. We have not become aware of any fraud or illegal acts during our audit.
	Related parties
	Significant matters arising during the audit in connection with the Authority’s related parties including, where applicable:
	► Non-disclosure by management
	► Inappropriate authorisation and approval of transactions
	► Disagreement over disclosures
	► Non-compliance with laws and/or regulations
	Significant matters arising during the audit in connection with the Authority’s related parties including, where applicable:
	We have no matters to report.
	Subsequent events
	► Where appropriate, asking the Audit Committee whether any subsequent events have occurred that might affect the financial statements.
	We have asked management and those charged with governance.
	Our work on this area is not yet complete and we will consider whether any subsequent events have occurred that might affect the financial statements up to the date that the opinion is signed.
	We have asked management and those charged with governance. Our work on this area is not yet complete and we will consider whether any subsequent events have occurred that might affect the financial statements up to the date that the opinion is signed.
	Other information
	► Where material inconsistencies are identified in other information included in the document containing the financial statements, but management refuses to make the revision.
	Audit Results Report
	Audit Results ReportWe have no matters to report.
	External confirmations
	► Management’s refusal for us to request confirmations
	► Management’s refusal for us to request confirmations We were unable to obtain relevant and reliable audit evidence from other procedures.
	We have received all requested confirmations.
	Consideration of lawsand/or  regulations
	► Audit findings of non-compliance where it is material and believed to be intentional. This communication is subject to compliance with legislation on “tipping off”
	► Audit findings of non-compliance where it is material and believed to be intentional. This communication is subject to compliance with legislation on “tipping off”Asking the audit committee about possible instances of non-compliance with laws and/or regulations that may have a material effect on the financial statements, and known to the audit committee.
	We have asked management and those charged with governance. We have not identified any material instances or non-compliance with laws and regulations.
	Significant deficiencies in internal controls identified during the audit
	► Significant deficiencies in internal controls identified during the audit.
	Audit Results Report
	Audit Results Report
	Independence
	Communication of all significant facts and matters that have a bearing on EY’s objectivity and independence.
	Communicating key elements of the audit engagement partner’s consideration of independence and objectivity such as:
	► The principal threats
	► Safeguards adopted and their effectiveness
	► An overall assessment of threats and safeguards
	► Information on the firm’s general policies and processes for maintaining objectivity and independence
	Communication of all significant facts and matters that have a bearing on EY’s objectivity and independence.Communicating key elements of the audit engagement partner’s consideration of independence and objectivity such as:
	Audit Plan
	Audit Plan Audit Results Report
	Fee Reporting
	Breakdown of fee information when the  audit plan is agreed
	Breakdown of fee information at the completion of the audit
	Breakdown of fee information when the  audit plan is agreedBreakdown of fee information at the completion of the auditAny non-audit work
	Audit Plan
	Audit Plan Audit Results Report
	Certification work
	Summary of certification work
	The Certification Report will be presented to the Audit Committee in due course.
	Independence
	Outstanding matters
	Clearance of final queries
	Receipt and review of all final queries
	EY and Management
	Review of final version of financial statements
	Receipt of final version of financial statements incorporating all agreed amendments and EY check of these
	EY and Management
	Management representation letter
	Receipt of signed management representation letter
	Management
	Subsequent events review
	Completion of subsequent events procedures to the date of€signing the audit report.
	EY and Management
	Accounting and regulatory update
	Accounting update

	Name
	Summary of key measures
	Impact on Central Bedfordshire Council
	IFRS 9 Financial Instruments
	IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
	IFRS 16 Leases
	Accounting updat

	Accounting and regulatory update (continued)
	Progress report on implementation of new standards and regulations

	Name
	Summary of key measures
	Impact on Central Bedfordshire Council
	Earlier deadline for production and audit of the financial statements from 2017/18
	Progress report on implementation of new standards and regulations

	Management representation letter


	8 2016/17 Statement of Accounts
	08 Appendix A - Statement of Accounts 2016-17
	08 Appendix B - Amendments to Statement of Accounts
	08 Appendix C - Letter of Representation 2016-17

	9 Update on the General Data Protection Regulation
	09 Appendix A - Update on GDPR

	10 Annual Governance Statement 2016/17
	10 AGS - Appendix A Draft UPDATED AGS 16-17 V3 (clean)
	10 AGS - Appendix B Draft UPDATED AGS 16-17 V3 (tracked)

	11 Risk Update Report
	11 Risk Update Report Appendix A
	11 Risk Update Report Appendix B

	12 Internal Audit Progress Report
	12 Appendix A - 2017-18 Progress against plan.xls

	13 Tracking of Internal Audit Recommendations
	13 Appendix A-Tracking of High Recs
	13 Appendix B -Tracking of High Rec

	14 Work Programme
	14 Appendix A - Work Programme v8


